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" Our purpose

-~

Precision is at the heart of what we do. Spectris
provides customers with specialist insight through
our high-tech instruments and test equipment,
augmented by the power of our software.

Through a combination of cur hardware, and
analytical and simulation software, we provide
superior data and invaluable insights that enable
our customers to work faster, smarter and more
efficiently. This also equips therm with the ahility to

" _reduce their time to market, improve processes,

quahty‘and;ylefd In this way, our know-how creates
value for the'wider society, as our customers

manutacture and deveiop new products to take
the world cleaner, healthier and more productive.

Delivering value beyond measure.

2019 performance

Financial

Sales

Adjusted operating profit’

S Sian

Adjusted Operaling margin'

L‘ 2

2.0
Rl
+30bps
LFL +50bps

.'_\d).;c(ed earnings per -;hare

A
2

Statutory operating profic



Executing our Strategy
for Profitable Growth

Strategic Report

Contents

54
56

56

97

105
106

106
107
108

109
158

159

160

172

Strategic Report

Spectris At a Glance

Chairman's Statement

Market Overview

Chief Executive's Review

Ohie Strategy

Business Modet

Key Performance Indicators
Operational Review

Financial Review

Risk MAanagement

Principal Risks and Uncertainties
Viability staterment
Sustainability Report - -

Governance

Board of Directors

Chairman’s introduction to

corporate governance

Reporting in accordance

with the 2018 UK Corporate - -
Governance Code

Board activity

Board effectiveness

Board composition

Nomination Committee Report

Audit and Risk Cornmittee Report
Directors’ Remuneration Report
Directors' Report .-
Directors’ responsibility

staterment

Financial Statements

independent auditar's report

to the members of Spectris ple
Consolidated income statement
Consolidsated staternent

of comprehensive income
Consolidated statement

of changes in equity
Consolidated statement

of financial position
Consolidated staternent

of cash flows

Notes to the accounts

Spectris pic staterment

of financial position

Spectris pic statement

of changes in equity

Notes to the Company accounts

-~ -

Additional information .

Sharehoider information

Spectris plc Annual Report and Accounts 2019 ]



At aGlance

Spectris in focus

Spectris harnesses the power of precision
measurement to equip our customers to

make the world cleaner, healthier and more
productive. We are focusing on where we have
competitive and differentiated offerings, and
where we can maintain and build defendable
positions, in attractive tech-driven end rmarkets.

Group sales by location (%)

1_ North America 31
2 Europe 33
3 Asia 31
4 Rast of the world 5

Group sales by end-user market (%)

1__ Pharmaceutical 15
2 Automaotive 14
3 Energy & ullities 10
rmiconductors, tefecoms

& electronics 10
5 Academic research [:
6 Metals, minerals & mining 8
7 _Machine manufacturing 7
8_Pulp & paper 7
9  Asrogspace & defence 4
18 Other 17

i

DR®B@

Our key markets

Pharmaceuticad
Alutomotive

Electronics and
semiconducters

Primaty and
advanced materials

Technology-led
industrials

Read more: Market
overview pages 6 and 7
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Our organisational
structure

Our operating companies

What we do

We provide high-tech instruments,
test equipment and software for
many of the world’s most technically
demanding industrial applications.

Qur technical expertise and deep
domain knowledge enables usto
pravide the data and insights customers
need to solve their challenges.

What our praducts equip our
customers to do

We provide customers with our leading
instrument and sensor technalogy,
along with complementary software
and services. Through a combination
of our hardware, and anaiytical and
simulation scftware, we provide
superior data and invaluable insights
that enable customers to work faster,
smarter and more efficiently. This
also equips them with the ability to
reduce their time to market, improve
processes, quality and yield, In this
way, our know-haow creates value for
our wider society, as our customers
manufacture and develop new
products to make the world a cleaner,
healthier and more productive place.

We also provide a broad range of
support services such as training,
technical support, spare parts,
calibration and maintenance.

Where we are

‘We have a predominantly direct sales
mode! through a worldwide network
of sales, marketing and support offices
enabling us to be close to customers
and gain a deep understanding of the
challenges they are seeking to address.

Read more: Qperational
review pages 20t 35
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Chairman's Statement

Driving the
business forward

The Group's progress in 2019 was positive.
With the new Executive management team
in place and the strategic direction clearly
articulated, the focus has turned o its
efficient execution.

How we help
customers

" Malvern
Panatytical

Read moro: Pages 28 to 31

Industrial Solutions

Read more. Pages 22 to A5

Spectt:a plc S

Parformance

in 2079, sales increasaed 2% to
£1,632.0 million reflecting a 0.4%
increase in fike-for-like {'LFL) saies,
The Group delivered a 4% LFL increase
in adjusted opearating profit ta

£258.1 million, with adjusted operating
margins of 15.8%. Adjusted earnings
per share {'EPS') increased 2% to

168.0 pence, Statutory operating
profit was £84.3 million, resulting in
statutery operating margins of

5.2% and statutory basic EPS was
202.2 pence. The Group divested

BTG Croup ['BTC') as we cormmenced
the implementation of our revised




“Delivery of the strategy during 2020
and beyond will further simplify the
Group and focus it on sustainable
growth that, in turn, should enhance
profitability and create long-term
value for all our stakehoiders.”

Mark Williamson
Chairman

strategy and as a consequence of the

sale, together with improved adjusted
cash conversion of 91%, we ended the

year with net cash of £33.5 million.

The Board is proposing a final dividend
of 43.2 pence per share which, when
rombined with the interim dividend

of 219 pence, gives a total of 651 pence
per share for the year, an increase

of 6.7%, consistent with our policy of
making progressive dividend payments
based on affordability and sustainability.
| am pleased to note that this is the
30th consecutive year that the Group
has increased its dividend since
becoming a publicly listed company

in 1988, The dividend wili be paid on

22 June 2020 to sharehoiders on the
register at the close of business on

22 May 2020, The ex-dividend date

is 26 May 2020. The Board is also
proposing a special dividend of

150 pence per share and share
consolidation, which will require
shareholder approval at the AGM.

Strategy update

Against a challenging macroeconomic
backdrop, our LFL sales growth was
limited to 0.4% in 2019. However, we
delivered margin expansion following
a greater focus on cost conteol and
the successful implernentation of an
efficiency improvement programme.
During the year, the Board finalised
its strategic review to develop and
sustainably grow the business and
this was formally presented 1o the
City by the Executive teamat a
Capital Markets Day in June. The
review identified three platform
businesses - Malvern Panalytical,
HEK and Omega - which are scalable,
aligned to target growth markets

and offer the greatest value creation
opportunity for our custorners

and sharehclders. The remaining
high-quality businesses have been
grouped together to form the
Industrial Solutions division and work
was undertaken to determine which
of these businesses will remain key to
the Group and thase where Spectris
may not be the best future owner. As
part of this strategic process, BTG was
identifieq for sale and successfully soid
during the year. The Board ensured

Chairman's Statement

Adjusted EPS
+] 9%

Dividend per share

+6.7%

that all employees in BTG were either
employed by thé hew owners or

appropriately compensatad basad un
their length &f service with the Group.

Stakehoider engagement and
section 172

In accordance with section 172 of

the Companles Act 2006, the Board
recognises The importance of our wide
stakeholders to the sustainability of our
business. The Sustaihability Repott
{pages 48 to b3) and the Lovernance
section (pages b4 {6 Yu) fe1 Ut

in more detail how the Board has
approached its duty under seclivn 172,
Integral to the success of Specirls aie
the skills, expenénde and tacnnical
capability of our workforce and

| would like to thank thern for their
commitment and focus during the
year. we are comrriiied t ernygdyigy
with and supporting all oUr employees
through the pefiod &f change as we
enact our strategy. An empluyee
engagerment survey was carled vul

in June to monitor the impact on
employees and this was followed up
with a further survey in January 2020.
The Board reviewed the resiltanf the
initial survoy and agreed a number nf
improvement actions in response to
the initial employee feedback. How
we go about our business activities is
important and we have reviewed our
values, purpose and code of business
ethics to align them with our revised
strategy. following consultation with
our ompleyaes.

The Group also increased its focus

on health and safety with the
establishment ot a group-wide Health
and Satety Committee and several
heaith and safety initiatives were
implemented In 2019. We have also
improved OuUF protesses for collating
envitonmental and emissions Jata o
allow us to FedLce aur Impact on climate
change and monitor our progress
towards our sustainability objectives.

The Beard is kept abreast of the views
of shareholders on a regular basis and
this has been particularly important
during 2019 to @nsure that the new
strategy is both understood and
endorsed by shareholders. During the
year, we also extensively engaged with

Strategic Report

shareholders on our new remuneration
putivy, which had been amended -
W sligre inaragernent objectives and

pet funrance tTargets with the now

strategy. This new policy was put to
shareholders at a General Meeting

in December and was strongly

supperted, with a 4% vnite in favour of

the policy. Accordingly, the new policy

was implemented on 1 January 2020. -

Buard update

Thie new UK Corgrarate Governonoe

CTude Lias been arother area of focus

for the Board In 2019. We appointed

wur first Workforce Engagement

Direltor and | am pleased to confirm

thial Spaecliis has voinplied with all

aspects of the new Code, further -
details of which are contained within

the Cuverinarce section.

In March, we appointed Derek Harding

as Chief Financial Officer. Derek has
awide-ranging financial background

and has been integral to driving the

new strategy forward with Andrew

Heath and the rest of the Executive .-
management team. tn September,

Cathy Turner joined the Spectris Board

and will Cian thhe Reruneration
Cortnillee fiunn Maich 2020. Cethy i3

an experienced non-executive director

with significant knowledge of HR and
rermuneration matters, having served

as Group MR director at Barclays plc -
where she was also a member of its
executive comrnittee,

Summary

Our progress in 2019 was positive.

With the new Executive management
team in place and the strategic
direction agreed by the Board and
communicated to the City, the focus ‘-
has turned to its efficient execution,
Delivery of the strategy during 2020
and beyond will further simpliify the
Group and focus it on sustainable
growth that, in turn, should enhance
prefitability and create long-term value
for all our stakeholders, The Board is
confident that the Group is well placed
for the future.

Mark Williamson
Chairman
12 February 2020
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Market Overview

- Afocuson
our markets

Qur key addressable markets have attractive,
. structural demand drivers underpinning
long-term growth.

Industry

@

- Pharmaceutical

Market trends

An aging population and increasing middte class around the
world is driving long-term demand for better healthcare. Drug
discovery and development is facing 2 number of cornplex
challenges to meet this demand. More stringent expectations
around efficacy and efficiency improvements, complex
disease pathways requiring more sophisticated therapies and
personalised rmedicine are increasing requirements for more
precise testing to ensure safety and reduce time to market,

Key trends shaping
our offer

. Increasing drug complexity

- Reducing developrment time

and cost

- Mare stringent trials
- Advanced data analytics

—|

®

Automotive

The growing prodiferation of new car platforms, new entrants,
the shortening of platform life cycles and the introduction

of new technologies {e.g. electrification and autonomous
vehicles) is increasing the overall volume, compiexity and
pace of change in research and devalopment, testing and
measurermnent.

- Rate of hew product launches
- Vehicle electrification

- Connected and autonomous

hybrid/EVs

vehicles
Rising use of simulation
and software

Electronics and
semiconductors

Electronic components are becorning increasingly complex
and advances in semiconductor technology are enabling
more chips to be embedded in a broader range of products,
requiring more sophisticated guality control and testing
equipment and techniques at the chip fabrication level as
well as at the system level (e g. full vehicle testing, phone
performance testing).

- Processing power and

speed

- Miniaturisation
- 5G

&

Primary and
advanced
materials

Primary materials — alongside an increasing ermphasis on
health and safety as well as environmental awareness, our
customers are focusing on delivering improved yields,
productivity, product quality and cost reduction in the
extraction and processing of raw and bulk matenals.

Advanced materials - the development and manufactura
of advanced materials [e.g. 3D printing, Li-ion batteries) has
rapidty increased and has also been enhanced by the
avaflability of more advanced processing techniques,

- Energy efficiency

Autonomous operations

- Predictive analytics
- Environmental and

sustainability

®

Technology-led
- industrials

The increased focus on optimising production processes in
real-time, enabled by ermnbedding more sensors on the
production line to underpin industrial internet of things (‘NoT’)
and drive further improvements to operational efficiency, is
increasing demand for smart sensars, tésting hardware,
control systems and software solutions, The continued
consumer demand for smartphones and adoption of 5C is
expected to drive growth in the telecoms sector. In aercspace,
new development programmes are being undertaken with
testing requirements becaming moere advanced. Conditions
affecting the automotive supply chain will continue to impact
sales to the machine manufacturing sector.
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- HoT
- Process automation
- Additive manufacturing
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Chief Executive's Review

Simpler and

more focused

Performance was good against a weakening
market backdrop as we delivered improved
margin and cash flow. We implemented our new
Strategy for Profitable Growth as we move to
becorme a more focused and simplified business.

Delivering value beyond measure for
all our stakeholders

In 2019, we defined, communicated
and started implementing the new
Spectris strategy. Our strategic
direction is clear, as is the basis by
which we will deliver value for all our
shareholders. We have reviewed

the composition of the portfolio,
established a path to simplify and
focus the Group, and determined
where we will play, how we will win
and how we will configure. We are
prioritising investment in our platform
and potential platform businesses,
which in turn are fecused on
high-growth markets where they
offer campetitive advantage. By
focusing on sales growth, improving
rmargins and producing enhanced
cashflow and capital returns, we have
theé opportunity to deliver significant
value to our shareholders.

This work has further clarified our
purpose; the role that Spectris
currently plays, and where we want

to progress in terms of our proposition
to customers. Precision is at the heart
of what we do, Our businesses provide
global customers with specialist insight
through our high-tech instruments
and test equipment, augmented by
the power of our software. We are

well positioned in our markets with
compelling and differentiated offerings
that our custormers vaiue highly.

‘We ensure our custorners get the
measurements and insights they

reed to meet their chailenges and

this, in turn, enables them to deliver
significant benefits to their

OWN CONSUIMers.

We can see how this is being

delivered in our key end markets, where
there 1s rapid change underway.

In pharmaceutical, the ever-increasing
demand for better healthcare
continues to drive the development

of sophisticated new drugs and
generic versions. in automotive, new
hybrid, electric and autonomous
technologies are rapidly being
developed, and safety, environmental
and sustainability concerns are driving
lower emissions, yield improvements

and compliance. There is also a digital
revolution in the hame as well as the
workplace. Each advance in technoloqv,
at tightening of regulations, or
certifications sets new challences

for rmeasurement, data aathering.
modeling, simulation and interpretation.
In addition, we help our customers
become more effective and more
productive in their existing operations
ar in meeting higher requlatory.
certification or quality demands.

As such, the demand for data, analytics
and insights continues to grow. in

turn, this is driving the need for more
sensors and instrurmnents, with greater
levels of sensitivity and accuracy, and
more integrated scftware and services,
including predictive and prognostic
analytics. This is the space where
Spectris is going to build and grow. We
arc harneasing the power of precisiun
measurement to unip our customers
to make the world cleaner, healthier,
and more productive. In this way,
Spectris know-how is also creating
significant value for society at large.

Fulfitling these strategic and
operational priorities relies on having
the right people with the relevant skills.
We invest in innovating our products
to ensure we provide our customers
withr speiglist g, Ukewise, we
invest in our peaple to ensure we have
the skills, experience and knowledge
to deliver this value for our customers.
It also helps to ensure that our people
thrive and have challenging and
rewarding careers, while working

in an ethical and safe company.

Far nur investars haine positionaecd
in attractive end markets means we
are best placed to drive growth and
profitability. Our objective is to
improve profitability through better
operational laverage and eptimising
our assets, supported by active
portfolio managerment. We are
deploying a rmore rigorous approach
o capitsl aliocstion to increase returns.
This, in turn, will deliver enhanced
value to our shareholders.
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Financial performance

In 2019, sales increased by 1.7% to
£1,632.0 million (2018 £1.£04 2 millinn)
QN an organic, constant currency
{like~for-like, '] F1'} hasis, eales incraasad
0.4%. The salas cnntringrinn fram
acquisitions were broadly offset by
disposals and there was A 1.5% pnsitive
impact frormn foreign currency
exchange movements.

Adjusted operatiiig prohit was

£258.1 million (2018: £248.3 million}
with an adjusted ¢perating margin

of 15.8% {2018: 15.5%). On a LFL basis,
operating margin improved by 50 basis
points (‘bps’), in part reflecting the
successful impact of the profit
improvement programme, which
helped drive a 50bps LFL decrease in
overheads. Tha Crouip's adjusted cash
flow conversion rate improved tc 91%
[ZO18, 59%). The Croup recordaed a
rerurn on gross capital ermnployed of
13.5% (2018: 13, 7%} with the increase

in adiusted operating punfir aff<et hy
a higher capital base as a result of
acquisitions completed in 2018,

By region, there was good growth in
Asia, although LFL sales were slightly
lower in China. Both North America
and Europe posted lower saleson

a LFL basis. In our end markets,
here was strong L¥L sales growth to
academic research and energy and
utility customers as well as growth

in aerospace, sermiconducter and
pharmaceuticai, with decfines in

the electronics, telecoms, metals
and mining industries. Autornotive
was also lower, partly reflecting

a tough prior year comparator.




“in my first full year as Chief Executive,
we have delivered on humerous
fronts with improved margins and
cash flow, 2 more transparent
organisational structure and renewed
manhagemeant team plus the
divestrment of BTG. There is more
to deliver in 2020 and beyond.”

Andrew Heath
Chief Executive

Strategic Report

Adjusted aperating profit

£2581mM

Adjusted operating margin

15.8%

Investment case

Leading technologics, strong brands
and talented employee

ng cash conversion
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Chief Executive's Review continued

Malvern Panalyticai delivered a 1.4%
LFL saies increase, with strong

growth in Asia and to its acadernic
research and advanced materials
customers, partly offset by lower

LFL sales into pharmaceuticai. LFL
adjusted operating profit increased 5%,
with margin expansion of 60bps, held
back by the weaker performance at
Concept Life Sciences.

Malvern Panalytical has been focusing
on identifying and executing further
growth cpportunities across its three
key end markets, as well as launching
new products which significantly
improve the quality and speed of

the characterisation of materials,

It also continues to actively foster
partnerships and collaborations

with academia to further expand

the value it provides to custormers

via data analytics, machine learning
and artificial intelligence. Combining
best-in-class sensor products with
increased domain knowledge and
newly developed Al capabilities will aid
Malvern Panalytical in expanding its
capabilities into more predictive and
prescriptive value-adding solutions,

a key focus area far 2020.

At HBK, LFL sales declined 1.2% in
the year reflecting more difficult
end markets, although there was
good growth in North America
and to the aerospace industry, with
a stronger overall second half
performance. Against this moare
chalienging backdrop, HBK delivered
a solid financial performance with
LFL adjusted operating profit and
margin increasing by 8% and
130bps, respectively.

Considerable progress has been

made on the merger with the senicr
leadership team now estabiished

and a good part of the restructuring
completed. Merger activities will
continue into 2020, bringing additional
benefits through further rationalisation
and focus, aligned to the execution of
the strategy to accelerate growth and
further improve operating margins.

Its simulation offering, centred on
Vi-grade, and its new eDrive product
will be target growth areas inta 2020
and beyond.

At Omega, LFL sales were 9.1% lower,
impacted by USA-China tariffs and
stowing US industrial production, with
sales weaker in both these regions.
The cutsourcing of a significant
product line and the launch of the new
digital platform alsc impacted sales,
as customers transitioned to the new
website. As a result of the decline in
sales and the increased overheads

incurred in developing the website,
LFL adjusted operating profit and
margin both contracted, by 39% and
600bps, respectively.

The launch of the new digital platform
was a significant step in providing
custaomers with an industry-leading
e-commeérce capability. While the
customer transition was slower than
anticipated, key operating rmetrics have
improved notably since the launch,
Omega also accelerated its product
refresh programme during the year,
introducing 133 new product lines,
with more planned for 2020. These
investrnents consolidate Ormega’s
position as a leading, specialist, digital
provider in the process engineering
distribution space. Continuing te drive
wvolume though the website to deliver
sales growth will be a key objective
for 2020 and beyond.

The Industrial Solutions division
delivered 3.2% higher LFL sales, with
particularly strong growth in Asia, The
majority of the operating companies
posted increased sales, against a tough
year-on-year comparator. Since July,
these businesses have been operating
together under a new leadership tearm
with a focus on improving operational
and financial performance. As a result,
LFL adjusted operating profit has
increased 13% and LFL adjusted
operating margin has expanded 150bps.

The sale of BTG was successfully
completed during the year, which
resulted in a net cash infiow of

£2627 million and a profit on disposal
of £2063 million. in eatly 2020, we
announced the sale of our interest

in the EMS Briel & Kjaer ((EMS B&K')
joint venture. During 2020, we will
continue to execute on our portfolio
management strategy, selectively
investing in those operating companies
with platform potential and divesting
where Spectris is not the best
leng-term owner.

Capital allocation

As part of the strategic review, the
capital allocation framework was
refreshed in 2019. Our strategy will
resuit in the Group being a highly
cash-generative business. We will
invest in R&D and capital expenditure
10 rnaintain and grow the businass,
supplemented by acquisitions, while
maintaining an efficient balance
sheet, with target leverage between
1-2x EBITDA. In 2019, the Croup's
adjusted cash flow conversion rate
was 91%, an improvement from the
59% recorded in 2018, We invested
£100.9 million (6.2% of sales) in R&D
(2018: £103.4 million, 6.4% of sales).
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Capex totalled £81.6 million

(2018: 94.1 million) following the peak
investmeant in Milfbrook in the prior
year. With the net cash inflow from the
divestrment of BTG, the Group ended
the year with net cash of £33.5 million
{2018; net debt £297) million).

The Board is proposing to pay a final
dividend of 43.2 pence per share
which, combined with the interim
dividend of 21.9 pence, gives a total

of 65.1 pence per share for the year,
an increase of 6.7%. This is consistent
with our policy of making progressive
dividend payments based upon
affordability and sustainability and
represents the 30th year in succession
of dividend growth.

In addition, Spectris is proposing to
return £175 million to shareholders via
a specia) dividend, combined with a
share consolidation. A special dividend
of 150 pence per existing ordinary share
is propased, and in order to maintain
the comparability of the Group's share
price and per-share metrics before and
after the speciat dividend, the Group
plans to undertake a supporting share
consolidation, which will be subject to
shareholder approval. The payment
and record dates for the special
dividend will be aligried with those

for the full-year dividend. Further
information regarding the special
dividend, share consolidation and
related resolutions will be set out

in the Company's Notice of Annual
General Meeting.

This will take the Group’s leverage to
O.4x%, 5till leaving sufficient headroom
for M&A, which remains a central part
of our strategy. We will rerain disciplined
on this front with a focus on synergistic
acquisitions to build cut the platforms
of create new platforms, from within
our Industrial Solutions division.

Profit improvement programme
and Spectris Business System

We successfully executed on the profit
improvernent prograrmme through
2019, Implementation of the initiatives
are now rmostly complete, with savings
arising from improving the sales mix,
product profitability, restructuring, site
rationalisation and reducing the size of
the centre. We have closed facilities at
Malvern Panalytical, BBK, NDCY and
CLS, reduced headcount through
organisational restructuring and retired
fower margin products and activities
at NDCT, HBK and Malvern Panaiytical.

The gross recurring benefit exceeded
our original targets, totalling

£25.5 million, with a further £10 million
still to be delivered in 2020.



Number of participants in
ents

Katzen

The one-off restructuring costs totalled
£52.2 million which were higher than
the gnticipated £45 million, with the
increase reflecting further restructuring
action which has been taken against
the backdrop of slowing sales
growth. We also took decisive action
in restructuring CLS. The total

cash cost was £34.3 million. Against
the current lower growth backdrop,
further activities under the profit
improvement programme will
continue in 2020 as we embed

our platform strategy. We anticipate
further costs in the range of

£20-25 miliion with incremental
benefits of £30 million, This
predominantly relates to additional
Costs that are being incurred to
support the angoing merger activity
at HBK.

We are also fostering a continuous
improvement cuiture to ensure we
operate at a lower overall cost and
expand margins, while continuing
to drive growth and deploy our
chosen strategic initiatives. The
Spectris Business Systern ('SBS')

is key to delivering this. This is a set
of time-tested and proven tools

to address growth and product
profitability, as well as waste reduction,
with Lean principles at its centre,

During 2019, we almost doubled the
number and level of participation in
Kaizen events across the Group. These
events have realised rmaterial benefits
ir our core value drivers relating

to safety, customer satisfaction,
an-time delivery, working capital

and quality. The events also
demonstrate the talent in cur people
and their passion 1o continue to
enhance customer experience and
improve business performance.

Chief Executive’s Review

During 2020, we will further strengthen
the deployment of the SBS across
the Group, accelerating the Lean
implementation through increased
leadership training and building on
the existing tool set. The areas of
focus will be on product profitability,
value-based selling and sales force
effectiveness to heip our businesses
deliver more profitable growth; R&D
effectiveness to reduce the support
burden and ensure spend is aligned
with our strategic initiatives; and
interrogating structural costs and
ways of working to reduce G&A. As
such, these initiatives are targeted
at improving sales, gross margin,
accelerating product and service
vitality and optimising overheads

1o improve operating margins.

Our people deliver the strategy

To support the execution and delivery
of the new strategy, a new leadership
structure was established during 2019
The Presidents of the platforms and
the Industrial Solutions Business
Group Director have joined the Group
Executive Committee. Amongst other
things, this change provides greater
clarity and transparency in managing
the performance of the Group. We
have also introduced a set of core value
drivers t¢c @nsure a consistent approach
and measurement of success across

all our operating companies.,

We have highly talented people. As the
Group facuses on strategy execution,
there has been increased engagement
with our employees to keep them
informed of the new direction and
change programme. Embedded in our
new purpose statement is an emphasis
on also delivering value for the people
who work across Spectris; providing a
great place to work, whete everyone
has the opportunity to reach their full
potential and feel that they are truly
contributing to sustainable growth and
progress within our wider society.

Our values underpin our behaviour.
They represent what we believe andg
guide our behaviours, so that we

are principled in what we do and our
culture reflects what we want to see in
Spectris: ambition, accountability and
integrity. Work has been underway to
refresh our values, in line with the new
strategy. Our new values and code of
business ethics will be launched early
in 2020.

Strategic Report

Coronavirus

We are experiencing less activity

in China in February than would
normally be expected, as a result of
the ever-changing situation regarding
coronavirus (COVID-19). We will
continue to monitor the situation
closely to assess the extent and
duration of the potential impact

on $Spectris and provide updates,
as necessary.

Summary and outlook

2019 saw demonstrable progress in
executing our Strategy for Profitable
Growth. The successful delivery of

our profit improvement programme,
combined with an increased emphasis
on deploying the Spectris Business
Systern, enabled us to deliver increased
profit and operating margin expansion,
against a weakening macroeconomic
backdrop. Cashflow improved
significantly in the year and we
successfully completed the sale of
BYC and announced the sale of the
EMS Briel & Kjaer joint ventuwre.
Additionally, we have announced a
special dividend of £175 miliion, in line
with our capital allocation policy. 2019
has been a year of delivery upon

which to build in 2020. We are intent
on further improving our operating
margin, to at least previous highs,

and enhancing capital returns, as we
continue to work on asset gptimisation
and managing the portfolio.

Absent a material impact from
coronavirus, for 2020, we anticipate
that markets will remain challenging
in the first half with a recovery only
currently forecasted to emerge later
in the year. We expect limited top-line
growth and will, therefore, continue
to concentrate on self-help initiatives
to drive further cost-efficiency

and ensure a more resitient and
profitable business.

The combination of facusing on

our customers, driving operating
leverage and the repositioning

and simplification of our portfolio,
slongside a refreshed capital allocation
framework, form the basis for delivering
a significant and sustainable increase
in shareholder value.

Andrew Heath
Chief Executive
19 February 2020
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Chief Executive's Review continuad

Andrew Meath,

Chief Executive,

and Derek Harding,
Chief Financial Officer,
reflect on their first
yeat at Spectris

Andrew, what are your refiections
on your time at Spectris so far?
Owverali, | am pleased with the Group's
performance during the year. The
macro ervironrment has becorme more
challenging which has had an impact
on our top-line sales growth. However,
the resilience of our businesses
combined with a keener focus on costs
through the impiementation of our
profit irnproverment prograrnme nNas
seen us grow our profit and deliver
Margin expansion.

Since joining, we have undertaken the
strategic review and this provides a
clear roadmap to simplify and focus
the Group; which we are now focused
on executing. We are clear on the
characteristics of the businesses we
want to own: scalable, positioned in
growth markets, having high gross
margins, being asset-light with the
potential to deliver growth, expand
margins, generate free cash flow
growth and enhanced capital returns.
We will be owners of businesses that
customers really value, but also provide
a great place for our peopte to work —
where they feel engaged and work in
a safe and ethical environment. It has
been a busy and exciting year.

Derek, where have you been
focusing your attention?

| am thoroughily enjoying my time at
Spectris. We have achieved a great
deal already and yet, there is stilt
much to deliver on.

As part of the strategic review, my
initial focus was a re-assessment of
our capital allocation framework and
policy. There will be an increased focus
on return on capital and we will be
more disciplined in our use of funds
going forward. We have established

a new KPi - return on gross capital
employed - to measure this and we

intend to improve on that in the future.

We have also re-visited our
internal reporting scheduie and,

1o reflect the new organisational
structure, a new cadence of
engagement with our operating
cornpanies has been introduced
with more detailed and consistent
reporting reguirements. Externally,
we started presenting our
firnancials under this new structure
and | believe this provides greater
detail and transparency around
the performance of our

platforrm businesses,
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Andrew, can you explain the concept
of Value beyond measure?

It's about delivering value to allof -
our stakeholders, be they customers,
employees, suppliers, shareholders
and wider scciety. Through our
technology and instruments, we
provide measurements and data o
ouf CuStomars, but more importantly,
specialist insight and analytics to
ensure they get the understanding
they need 1o create important benefits
1o their consurmers. This might be
getting a new drug to market quicker,
developing electric and autonomous
vehicles, improving the productivity of
manufacturing processes or meeting
regulatory requirements for food
quality, environmental or emissions
controls. In this way, Spectris know-
how is creating value and improving
the guality of life for society. We work
closely with our supphiers and partners
to ensure.the high quality of our
products. With regards 1o our
employees, we want to create a
woTking environrnent that they vatue
and where they can develop their full
potential. And for shargholders, Dy
optirmising our assets and focusing
‘where we have scale, we will increase
returns and drive operational feverage.



“Great products and services

are only as good as the people
standing Behind them. Aslhave
travelled arcundd Speclns, since
fstarted in September 2018,

I have continued o be impressed
vy the breadth and depth

of capability and talent we

have across the business.”

oo Heatis

“We want to grow highly cash
generative cperations and deploy
the cashin a structured and
considered way.”

Harcti

How has the strategic review been
received by your stakeholders?
Derek: We formally presented the
strategic review to investors at a
Capital Markets Day event in June
and feedback was very positive.
Investors appreciate the focus on
higher growth markets where we
have a competitive edge and strong
fundamentals, and they like the
move to simplify the portfolio.

Andrew: Internally, the feedback has
also been very positive. Our people
are excited about what we are doing
for our customers and the benefits we
bring to society, as well as the renewed
focus for the Group. But we are not
being complacent. As we go through
this pericd of change, it is important
to keep our colleagues informed and
motivated. There has been increased
engagement across the Group 1o
ensure that our people are kept
informed of the new strategic direction.
Ultimately, the success of Spectris
depends on the skills, experience and
technical capability of our people and
ensuring they are enthusiastic about
the direction of the Company. Also,

it is key they have the chance to
davelop, grow and help us deliver

for our customers.

Chief Executive's Review

How do you perceive the culture
and values of Spectris?

Andrew: | continue 1o be struck by the
openness and willingness of everyone
I meet in Spectris. There is a strong
desire to be successful, win right and
also to improve. Behaving ethically and
with integrity is at the core of Spectris’
values. While our businesses have
differing end market and product
focuses, their deep product and
application expertise, and the desire
10 serve our customers are common
attributes | have witnessed across

the Group.

What will drive future performance
and what most excites you about
the road ahead?

Andrew: Most of cur businesses face
off to end markets with good long-
term growth praspects, underpinned
by attractive drivers. More 5o, our
product and service offerings are also
particularly relevant, which is a great
place to be. We are harnessing the
power of precision measurerment 1o
equip aur customers in making the
world cleaner, healthier and more
productive. In the short-term, the
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macro-economic environment and
how our end markets perform will be
a key determinant, s we are also
looking to drive our performance with
internal improvernents through the
rigorous application of the Spectris
Business System - be it through our
sales team effectiveness, a tighter
focus on costs or impreving how and
where we allocate cur RA&D spend.
Together with our high-quality
products, market positions and
long-term customer relationships, my
initial impressions of Spectris leads me
to firmly believe that coliectively our
business has a great deal of potential
that we are yet 1o uniock, and I'm
excited to help deliver on that.

Derek: | agree - our businesses

have their own strong attractions,
opportunities for growth and margin
expansion. Delivering on that potential,
deploying capital in 3 methodical and
returns-focused way whilst strearmlining
the portfolio wil reposition Spectris

to deliver value for shareholders,
customers and employees and j am
excited to have joined the company

to hetp it execute on that.
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Qur Strategy

Our Strategy for
Profitable Growth

The strategic review involved a rigorous and consistent
assessment framework applied at both a Group and
operating company level. Through this, we established our
Strategy for Profitable Growth, which sets out our goals,
where to play, how to win and how we will configure Spectris.

wWhat are the goals

Cur philosophy. characternistics and focus

Where to play

Qur position and influence

Group philosophy Precision instrument-focused businesses

v+ Small number of scate platferms + High-tech instruments and test equipment
1 . Tight financial control - - Associated aftermarket service
' - Drive increasing shareholder valye - Synerpistic snfowarg and service, wharn
- Lyélically durabie Spectris has the right to play and win
Clear platform characteristics Attractive technology-driven
- Scalable end markets
- Attractive end markets : + Refendabie markats with barriers . v
' - High gross margins to entry . .
-, Asset light ' - Fauniirahle growth trende in : ..
' - Strong capabilities and¢ performance end markets:
~ pharmaceutical
Clear financial goals to create - automotive
. enhanced shareholder vaiue -wplartronics and semiconductnrn :
+ Sales arowth . . = primary and advanced mntacials P R N e
- Operating margin expansion -technology-ted industrials
I’ - Cash conversion
- Free cash flow growtn Clobal réach
+ Return on gross capital empioyed + Optimising presence in each key region

where relevant
Group non-financial goals
1 - On<time delivery
- Quality
' . Net promoter score
.+ Ethics and compliange
'L Employee eéngagement
b . Health, satety and environment

KPis: Market overview:
Pages 18 and 19 Pages6and 7

. . —
- P B ——
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How to win

Leveraging our unigle attributes

How to configure
Qur capability

Strategic Report

- Clear, compalling customor value
proposition :
» Leading instrument/sensor technology
+ Strong domain knowledge and

~ customer intimacy

v+ Complementary software and service

-~ Generating superior insights

Digitally-enabled

Innovation focused on growth and
maintaining leadership positions

Group-wide focus on continuous
“performance improvement through:

¥ Spectris Business Systermn

- Talent management

- Performance management

- Ethics and safety

Ethical leadership
. MBA strategy

- Synergistic acquisitions focused on
existing and potential platforms

Operational review:
Pages 20 to 35

Our Strategy

Gorc capabilitics reaide in the
operating companles

- Custoemer intimacy and value selling
- Go-to-rmarket

+ Strong domain knowiedge

- Application and technical expertise
» Commercial excellence

+ R&D effectiveness

- G&A efficiency

« Acquisition integration

l.ean head office

- Group strategy

. Financial performance

» Target setting

+ Capital allocation

- Portfolio transition

» Corporate governance and service;

Operational review:
Pages 20to 35
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Business Model

Focus on
creating value

Qur business model is centred around providing customers
globally with specialist insight through our high-tech
instruments, test equiprment and software to provide the
data and insights they need to solve their challenges and
create important benefits to their consumers.
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Our strategy Our resources
r:— T— . ————— - -
Customer focused Qur technoloqy and brands
Ta rgetlng  attractive end markets QOur products use high-quality,
where we afa best placed to innovative technologies which are
drlve growth and profltablllty award-winning and have strond, . _....
[“and where we have compeliing recognisable brands.
and dlfferentlated offerings. Ouroxpartice «- -
Operational leverage ‘We have a highly- qual:fled team of
improving profitability as we grow. people who have in-depth product,
_Portfolic management - -1 - tafg:u;:g:; sand industry expertise in
Optimising our assets, supported by - ’
active portfolio management and _Our customer relationships
synergistic acquisitions. We build strong, cellabdrative
- cystomer relatianships, underpinned
::a:s’?t?;er;d 5 by a deep understanding of cur
g customers’ businesses,
Our financial strength
Spectris is a highly cash-generative
business with a strong halance sheet
and a disciplined and rigorous
approach to capital allocation.
- Our suppliers and partners
Gur global supply chain and partners
are an essential and integral part
1 - . of our business.
‘ ' Qur values and culture
Qur valuas underpin the way we work,
guide our decision making and shape
v our culture.
Strategy for Revenue growth
Profitable Growth
1 Partfalio Opcrating
" management leverage
[
Ao Enhanced returns and Margin
<cash fiow generation expansion

Our operating mode)

Vve have a devolved operat;nq model.
with core capabilities embedded in

R R TR

our operating companies and a lean e

head office.

B

Operating companies N
Qur corc capobilitica: Tt e e
+ Customer knowledge

- Sales expertise

- Gtrong domainknowledge - °

- Application and technical expertise

- Cormmercial excellence

- RAD effectiveness —_————

Goa officiency -
+ Acquisition integration

_Lean head office

At a Group ievel, we will drive a
consistent approach to:
- Developing our talent and leadership:
+ Developing consistent performance
management;
- Underpinned by a strong ethics
and safety culture,

Spectris Businass System

To drive continuous performance
Heprusuniunl and v ease prolitalily,
we have put in place the Spectris
Business Systern, which follows Lean - -
principles and will be central to

delivering enhanced operational
efficiency and process improvements.

For more information about our
businesses see pages 20to 35

ER

" e . A" o ——— .
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Qur financial model

Qur businesses will be characterised

by the following attributes:

+ asset light;

- scalable and strongly alighed to
attractive markets;

- high gross margins,

- opportunity to drive revenue growth;
expand margins and generate strong
cash flows; and

- strong capabilities and performance.

Sources of capital

- We are a highly cash-generative
businéss. As we exécute on our
portfolic optimisation strategy, this
will be supplemented by disposal
proceeds. We aiso have access to the
doebt ond oquity maorkets to raise
further capital.

Sources of capital

Cash

generation

Proceeds
from
dispesals

Equity/
debt

Business Modeal

Use of capital/capital allocation

We operate a rigorous and
disciplined capital allocation
process:

- Capital will be deployed in R&D

and capex to maintain our
businesses and grow them

Delivering
o

valu

stakoeholc

. Sharehciders

organically. We expect to spend -

around 7% of sales on R&D.

- We will also grow our businesses
through acqguisition and M&A will

primarily be focused on our

platforen businesses O aim is fo
cover cur cost of capita! by at least

the third year.

From time to time, we may return
sut plus Lapilal tu shiarel wider s,
- Our ideal balance sheet leverage

will be 1-2x COITDA.

Use of capital

Appropriate capital structure

. Efficient balance sheet

Maintaining the business

+ Maintenance capex
- Malhtatahca RED
(product refresh)

Growing the business
organically

« Growth capex

- Growth R&D

[(new products and technology)

- Working capital

Growing the business
inorganically

. Acquisition spend

Returning surplus capital
to shareholders

- Special dividends

- Share repurchases

Spectris plc Annual Report and Accounts 2019




Key Performance indicators

" Measuring our S
g Customer focus L4

Operating leverage [

pe rforma nce Portfolio management (]
Perform and grow o
Ethics and HSE [

We monitor progress against the delivery of our Leadership and talent [ ]

strategic goals using both financial and non-financial

key performance indicators ('KPIs'). Reflecting the

change in strategy, we have introduced a new KPI

and our new remuneration policy is linked to three

of these KPls. . .
Financial
Like-for-like sales growth (%}
2019 Jos ®
2018 | 53]
2017 | ez

201619
2008 'OJi
Like -for-like sales growth

LFL seles growth is a rheasure of how our
R&D and other investments heip to grow our
business organically, i.e. excluding the affects

of currency translation and acquisitions or
divestments.

Performance

Irs 2019, sales were £1,632.0 million, a 0.4%
increase on a LFL. basis compared with 2018,
L Fl.sales increased at Malvern Panalytical
and in our Industrial Solutions division, and
were lower at HBK and Omega.

By region, Asia posted LFL sales growth,
with North America and Eurepe both seeing
adeclinein LI_sales.

Objective
Our aim is to achieve year-on-year growth
in LFL sales,

Adjusied vpersdng thargin (%)

2019
2013{_ o
2007 P
w6
2015[_,_ .

Adjusted operating margin

Adiusted operating margin is a measure of
improving profitability in our business and
is defined as adjusted operating profit as

a percentage of sales.

Performance

Adjusted operating margin was 15.8%, an
increase of 30 basis points {'bps") from 15.5%
i 2008, On a LFL basis, agjusted operating
margins improved by 50bps, reflecting a flat
gross margin year-on-year and » decrease in
overhead costs.

Objective

Qur aim is to improve grass margin and
constrain overheads to drive future operating
margin expansion, and return our operating
margin 1o at least our previous highs of
around 18%.
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Cash conversion (%)

Three-year aggregate economic profit [Em)

Strategic Report

Non-financial

Energy efficiency [MWh per £m revenue)

Cash conversion

Cash conversion represents an effective
measure of the quality of our earnings. Cash
conversion is defined as adjusted cash flow
as a percentage of adjusted operating profit.

Performance

Cash conversion was 91%, an increase
frorm 59% in 2018. This reflected the
growth in profitability, a favourable
working capital movement, a lower level of
capital expenditure and the impact of the
introduction of IFRS16.

Objective

Our aim is deliver a high level of cash
conversion each year.

Link to remuneration

Cash conversion is one of the new criteria
introduced for the annuat bonus. See page
72 for more information,

T 2017

oo I ©°

2018 196.8)

2006|
2015

Economic profit

Economic prafit is the annual result derived
from deducting a capital charge (based on
a weighted average cost of capital of % and
applied to average capital employed) from
adjusted operating profit, aggregated over
a three-year period.

Performance

Three-year aggregated economic profit was
£196.8 million, unchanged from the prior
year, with the increase in adjusted operating
profit offset by a higher capital charge.
Objective

Qur airm is to maintain a positive resuit over
the three-year paried.

Link to remuneration

Econaomic profit is one of the criteria far the
current PSP award, but does not feature in
the new remuneration policy. See page 72
for more information.

oo ©

2018 " 665
2017 T E%.2
2006 - . -683
2018 ‘75.6]
Energy afficiency

Energy efficiency makes a significant
contribution to environmental sustainability
and helps us to reduce our operating costs.

Performance

Energy efficiency, measured in MWh per
£m revenue, was 72.3 in 2019, an increase
of 9% compared with the priar year, partly
reflecting the impact of acquisitions made
n 2018.

Objective

We monitor our use of key sources of energy
{electricity, gas, oil and steam) with the

aim of reducing our carbon emissions and
improving energy efficiency.

Growth in adjusted EPS (55) Return on gross capital employed (%) *New Reportable accidents per 1,000 employees
2 2 © o0 FEENENEEY © 0o EER ©
2018 ; 2008 T 208 - -

2017 2017 18.6] 2017 83

2016 2016 143] 2016 Y

2015 Bhupcs) 2015 1%4.6] 2015 re)

Adjusted earnings per share growth
Adiusted earnings per share {EPS') is the
ratio of adjusted earnings for the year to the
weighted avarage number of ordinary shares
outstanding during the year, excluding
certain tems.

Performance

Adjusted EPS increased 2% 16 168.0p,
reflecting a 2% rise in adjusted profit before
tax and a decrease in the weighted average
number of shares, partly offset by a higher
effective tax rate.

Objective

Our aim is to achieve ygar-on-year growth
in adjusted EPS.

Link to remuneration

£PS performance is one of the criteria for
the current PSP award and the new LTIP,
See page 72 for more information.

Key Performance Indicators

Return on gross capital employed (‘ROCGCE")
ROGCE is calculated as adjusted operating
profit divided by the average of opening and
closing gross capital employed. Gross capital
employed is net assets excluding net debt
and excluding accurmuiated armortisation and
impairment of acquisition-related intangibie
assets including goodwill. .

Performance

ROGCE was 13.5% in 2019, with the rise
in adjusted operating profit offset by an
increase in the capital base as a result of
acquisitions completed in 2018.

Objectiva

Qur aim is to improve ROGCE year-on-year.

Link to remuneration

Accident incidence rate

We are committed to ensuring the health,
safety and wellbeing of our people and
monitor how we are performing by
measuring waork-related accidents or ill
health resulting in lost time in excess of
one day (years prior to 2017, three days).

Performance

There were 2.4 reportable accidents per
1,000 employees in 2019. This is & further
improvement over prior years, following an
increased focus on heaith and safety acrass
the Group.

Objective

Cur aim is to reduce accidents and

injuries at our sites to as low alevel as

casonab actical.
ROGCE is a new KPland one of the " y practs
criteria for the new LTIP. See page 72 for
more information.
Spectris plc Annual Report and Accounts 2019 19
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Cperational Review continued

Malvern
Panalytical

Malvern Panalytical is a leader in the advanced
measurement and characterisation of
materials. It provides best-in-class sensor
technologies, insightful data science and
domain knowtedge, helping customers
accelerate innovation and deliver greater
efficiency in R&D and manufacturing.

Financial performance

Sales increased 3% to £448.2 million,
reflecting a3 1% increase in LFL sales,
a 1% positive impact from foreign
currency exchange movements and
1% frorn acquisitions, net of disposals.

Sales growth for the year was driven

by strong demand in Asia, particularly
in China, Japan and South Korea. LFL
sales were lower in both North America
and Europe, continuing a similar trend
to the first haif of the year.

On a LFL basis, adjusted operating
profit increased 5% and adjusted
operating margins increased 60bps,
with the positive impact from higher
LFL sales, reflecting favourable pricing,
and good overhead cost controt partly
offset by the dilutive impact of Concept
Life Sciences ('CLS'). Following the
weak first half performance at CLS,
new senior management were brought
in and a detailed strategic review

was undertaken. As a result, the
environmental analytical laboratories
business was exited, with four sites
being closed, and an impairment of
goodwill and other intangible assets
was recognised at the hatf year. In
addition, CLS sold its environmental
consuitancy business in October.

CLS's facus is now solely on the
pharmaceutical, life sciences and food
markets where it can collaborate with
Malvern Panalytical.

22

Praduct faunches

New product launches during the
year included the 1atest generation

of Epsilon 1 X-ray fluorescence
spectrometers which provide fast and
repraducible elermental analysis with
greater flexibility and precision than
before. Also, the newest member

of the laser particle size analyser family,
Topsizer Plus, was faunched for the
Chinese market, Topsizer Plus retains
the main optical structure, consistent
with the original product, but with
enhanced functionality and capabibityy.

We have seen strong growth in the
academnic research sector during the
vear, particularly in North America and
Asia, with funding benefiting from

a numiber of government initiatives
across both geographies. Partnerships
and collabaorations with academia were
also an area of significant activity in
2019. For exarnple, a formal partnership
was agreed with the University of
Bristol, focusing on areas of mutual
interest, including data analytics,
machine learning and artificial
intelligence [‘Al'). The partnership
follows the cpening of Malvern
Panalytical’'s new Data Science Hub

at the University-run innovation

space. These types of coflaboration

are key in the move from providing
diagnostic solutions into more
predictive and prescriptive offerings
as we combine our best-in-class
sensors with increased domain
knowtedge and newly developed

Al application capabilities.
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Market trends and outiook

Pharma and food

Partly reflecting a tough year-on-year
cornparison, sales to the pharmaceutical
and food industries were loweron a
LFL basis. 2019 saw uncertainty within
the innovator pharmaceutical space,
as governments and other heaithcare
providers introduced tighter pricing
controls in order to manage rapidly
increasing costs. In response, a
significant number of customer
restructuring and portfolio
optimisation programmes were
initiated. However, the drive to reduce
healthcare costs has prompted
increased generic drug product
development, with global regulators
expanding the support they provide to
companies to ensure new generics can
be rapidly brought to market. This has
led to investment within generic
manufacturing hubs in India, China
and south-east Asia, offsetting the
decline within the innovator segment.
Additionally, innovator portfolio
deveiopments have targeted more
complex biologic and novel gene-
based therapies. This, coupled with
increased application of advanced
analytics and modelling t¢ improve
devetopment pipeline efficiency and
manage lifecycle costs, is generating
increased demand for our salutions.
The outlook for the sector therefore
rermains positive.

Food is, traditionally, a lower growth
market, being driven by consumer
spending. Howevar, there are higher
growth niches, such as confectionery
products and beverages, where we
have realised opportunities in 2019.




opcrating profit (Em)

73.0
§6.1

d operating margin

7.0
1687
1.8

A continued focus on food safety,

and the need for sustainable sourcing
and manufacture, represent further
opportunities relevant to our sofution
portfolio moving forward.

Primary materials

LFL sales to primary materiais
customers were lower year-on-year.
This primarily reflected lower levels of
activity in the metais market during
the year, aithough we expect this to
stabilise in the coming months, with
leading mining companies expecting
an uplift in demand and supply in 2020
{particularly in iren ore, nickel, zinc).

This recavery, combined with our
online and automatijon solutions, as
well as enhanced cross selling within
the segment, should help drive a
resumption in growth in 2020. With
customers focusing on delivering
improved yields, productivity, product
quality and lowering costs in the
extraction and processing of raw
materials, Malvern Panalytical
instruments are well placed 10 help
them to deliver these improvements.

Advanced materials

Saies into the advanced materials
industries have been strong,
particularly in North America and
Asia, driven by China, with a strong
growth in aftermarket sales across
all territories. From an industry
standpoint, the main grawth drivers
have been in academia and the
electronics, batteries, additive layer
manufacturing and catalysts rmarkets.
Dernand is being driven by new
product developmeant. For example,
innovations in mobile devices,

Operational Review | Maivern Panalyticai

eiectric cars and intelligent power
management solutions are driving
significant growth in the research

and development of batteries. This
includes Li-ion batteries as well as new
emerging battery techneclogies, such
as Na-ion, Li-sulphur and zinc-air.
Malvern Panalytical instruments heip
customers control the quality and
function of battery materials, to
enhance battery perfoermance and
improve the cycle {ife. For example,

a partnership was established with the
Next-Generation Energy Conversion
and Storage Technologies Lab at the
University of Pittsburgh's Emergy
innovation Center to monitor the
chernistry of what is happening inside
a battery while it is in use, which could
provide opportunities for identifying
new materials as well as improving
the battery itself.

We expect growth in this sector

to continye, resulting from new
emerging applications, particularly
in batteries and additive layer
rmanufacturing. Our focus is on
custormers involved in the research,

Sales by location (%)

1 _North America 22
2 Europe 33
3 Asia 37
4 Rest of the world B8

Sales by end-user market (%)

development and manufacturing of 1 _Pharmaceuticals & fine chemicals 33
these novel materials and complex 2 Metals, minerals & mining 24
systemns and devices. Asia will be 3 Academic research 20
a key region driving this growth, 4 Other 23
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Operational Review continued

HBK

HBK provides a strongly differentiated and
integrated physical sensing, testing, modeliing
and simulation solution which helps custormers
accelerate product development.

Financial performance

Saies increased 1%, including a 1%
positive impact from foreign currency
gxchange movements and a 1%
contribution from acqguisitions, net of
disposals, and a 1% LFL. sales decline,
partly reflecting some nhigh one-off
orders in 2018

By region, North America posted an
increase in LFL sales, while Europe and
Asia both saw a decline in LFL sales
growth, with Germany and China being
the mast challenging, reflecting the
downturn in autornotive and the
industrial markets in both regions.

On a LFL basis, adjusted operating
profit increased 8% and operating
margins rose by 130bps. The
year-oh-year improvement reflected
favourabte pricing and lower
overheads, as operational
improvements came through from
the merger and execution of the
profit improvement programme, as
well as some one-off costs in 2018.

HBK merger

During the year, work continued on
the rerger. The new senior jeadership
team is now established and the
strategy execution plan is being
implemented. Combining the sales
and rmarketing teams led to some
disruption to sales activities earlier

in the year, but the integrated, global,
go-to-market model is now in place
and delivering improved order flow,
despite a more challenging market
environment. Vi-grade is now part

of the HBK platform and will lead

the development of an expanded
sirulation offering for customers.
Restructuring associated with the

rmerger will continue into 2020, to
further bring down overhead costs,
through additional headcount
reductions, site consolidations and
closures. Further restructuring costs
will be incurred in 2020. These projects,
will further harmonise processes and
systems across the business, bringing
additional benefits from the merger.

Product launches

HBK released a number of new
products during 2019. These included
the next version of its BK Connact
product, a highty innovative sound and
vibration software analytics platform,
which seamlessly integrates data
acquisition, maonitoring, analysis,

data viewing and reporting in the
same system.

A new sound tevel meter, BAK 2245,
was launched in April. It is a reliabie
stand-alone noise measurement
device, which works seamlessiy with
specially-created apps, to undertake
accurate noise measurgment, analysis
and documentation. The meter can be
tailored for specific jobs across 2 wide
range of industries and users; from
simple noise complaint investigations
to more specialised tasks, such as
exhaust noise testing.

A new miniature pressure transducer
series was also launched. Being
smaller, more lightweight and
compact, it allows engineers ta carry
out reliable pressure tests within
confined areas, such as gearboxes

or coolant systerns. Again, it can be
deployed in a wide variety of industries,
for instance in automotive, aerospace
and shipping.
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“Against a more chatlenging market
backdrop, our performance in 2019
was sohd. Importantl, ave
made conswderable
merger as we dnve to deliver
growih and operating margin
oxpansion.”
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2019 also saw HBK significantly
updating and standardising its
range of optical sensors, which are
ideal for carrying out strain, tilt,
iefnperature and acceleration tests.
The newlight sensors are suitable
for structural health monitoring
used for highly stressed structures
(e.g. composite materials in wind
turbines) and are insensitive to
electromagnetic fields and other
harsh envirenmental conditions.

Market trends and outiook
Automotive

Within the autormotive sector, LFL
sales declined in both Europe and
Asia, but grew in North America, The
overall slowdown reflected a tough
comparator in 2018 and some impact
from the downturn in automotive.

With the HBEK platform being mostly
exposed to R&D within the automotive
sector, we still see robust demand for
the developrent of electric, hybrid
and connected and autonomous
vehicles ('CAV') globally, as well as
continued developrnents to internal
combustion engines, driven by the
growing need to reduce carbon and
GHG emissions. This is underpinned
by tightening emissions regulations
and policies, such as tax exemptions
and subsidies, to encourage the
uptake of electric vehicles, Asia in
particular, is anticipated to lead the
electric vehicle ['EV') market, owing to
the increasingly stringent regulations
in the region and the availability of
nickel-maetalfiithium-jon batteries

at competitive prices,
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These technologies are also requiring
new tests. For example, the lack of
engine noise from EVs is driving
demand for new, minimurm scund level
testing and driving demand for our
simulators and eDrive products, both
of which are focus growth areas for
HBK into 2020 and beyond.

Qur driving simulators allow customers
to change vehicle parameters and test
hundreds of different configurations,
as if they were physically on a proving
ground, with minimal effort, time

and cost, significantly reducing
development time. For example,
Maserati has deployed our dynamic
simulator, featuring the latest generation
driver-in-maotion technology, that
makes it possible to achieve a 50%
reduction in time-to-rmarket for

new cars, by carrying out 90% of atl
development virtually on the simulator,
and to reduce the use of physical
prototypes by 40%.

HBK's eDrive Testing is a revolutionary
system for testing elactrical inverters
and electrical rmachines. It provides an
all-in-one solution for simultaneous
and continuous acquisition of electric
voltage, power} and mechanical
ftorque, speed) signals in order to
understand the electric drive and its
josses in minutes. This is important for
the optimisation of the electric drive,
as well as increasing efficiency.

Machine manufacturing

A significant portion of pur sales in
machine manufacturing are for the
automotive supply chain, where

{FL sales rose year-on-year in our

two key regions, Europe and Asia. LFL
sales were lower in North America.

Operational Review | HBK

While activity is expected 1o remain
soft into 2029, machine buiiding
fundamentals continue to make this
an attractive market for HBK.

Aerospace and defence

LFL sales grew in Europe but declined
in North America and Asia, although
commercial business was good in all
regions. We continue to see notable
R&D investrment in the industry and
good opportunities, particularly for
software products. For example,

the proven Catman Enterprise DAQ
software is ideal for aesrospace testing
applications, such as static and fatigue
testing, and its applications range
from testing of sub-systems, such as
landing gear, up to a full-scale ‘iron
bird’ test, where all major flight
controls, hydraulics and electrics are
functionally tested. Demand will be
primarily driven by new development
programmes and we expect increasing
demands of aircraft and space testing
in 2020 and beyond.

Consumer electronics and telecoms
LFL sales were lower in 2019, primarily
reflecting fewer new product launches
by custormers. The underlying trends
in the consumer etectronics and
telecoms market remain healthy, in our
view. Noise and sound have become
critical marketing factors and are often
key differentiators in such products

as srmartphones and voice-activated,
smart home products. In addition,
manufacturers must comply with
increasingly stringent noise legisiation
which also drives the demand for
testing. This is underpinning demand
for our electro-acoustic products
where we expect to see moderate
growth in 2020.
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Sales by location (%)

1 North America 22
2 Europe 46
3 Asia 29
4 Rest of the world 3
Sales by end-user market (%)
1__Automotive 3
2 Machine building 25
3 Aerospace & defence 10
4 Telecoms & electronics 8
5 Academic research 7
6 Other 17
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Operational Review continued

Omega

Omega is a global leader in the technical
rarketplace, offering more than 100,000
state-of-the-art products for measurement and

control of temperature, humidity, pressure, strain,
force, flow, level, pH and conductivity. Omega

also provides a complete line of data acquisition,
electric heating and custom-engineered products.

Financial performance

LFL sales decreased 9%. There was a 3%
positive impact from foreign currency
exchange movements, resulting in
reported sales being 6% lower year-on-
year, Omega has a high exposure to
North America {71%), where it recorded
a decline in LFL sales, refiecting
slowing US industrial production, as
well as sorme initial disruption with

the outsourcing of a product line to

a third-party supplier, a temporary
disruption to otder flows from the
launch of the new digital platform and
some high one-off government orders
i 2018, In Asia, LFL sales were aiso
fower as a result of the USA-China tariff
situation and lower semiconductor
demand, after a strong year in 2018,
LFL sales growth in Europe was lower,
led by Germany and the UK.

LFL adjusted operating profit deciined
29% and LFL operating margins feli
600bps. This resulted from the lower
LFL sales and an increase in overheads,
due to extra licence costs and higher
depreciation in relation to the new
digital platform.

New e-commerce platform

During 2018, Omega launched its
new digital e-commerce platform in
its pritary North American markets
in order to strengthen its market
presence and position as a digital
leader in the process engineering
distribution space. After experiencing
some initial custormer adeption issues,
as customers learned to navigate the
new website, key operating metrics
have improved notably. Continuing
1o drive voturne though the website
to deliver saies growth will be a key
objective through 2020 and beyond.

Product launches

Omega launched the first phase of

its tndustrial Internet of things {'IloT’)
platform during 2019, This included
adding non-contact, infra-red
temperature smart sensors, as wel as
extending the capabilities, and ease of
use, of its wireless transmitters for the
core lemperature sensing offer. Both
series are part of a broader Omega lloT
cloud platform launch planned for
early 2020.

30 Spectris pic Annual Report and Accounts 2019

“Qur performance in 2019 was
mper of internal

actars. However, the

taunch of the new digital platform
was a key achievement and, along
with the introduction of 133 new
products, positions us as a digital
leader in th INTS (T gYoltideqts
distribution spe
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Omega continues to innovate its
temperature sensing offering, by
introducing a new patented, surface
rnount technology connector, bringing
temperature readings directly to the
printed circuit board in an automated,
efficient way. The product results in
superior accuracy and reduced tabour
costs for customers.

As well as introducing new
technologies, Omega continues 1o
strengthen kay categaries in growth
areas. In total 133 rnew product lines
were launched in 2012, including a new
line of differentiated, price competitive
thermal imaging devices. The series
stands out for its user-friendly software
interface and smartphone interface.

Finally, 2 new cross-piatform strategy
saw an HBK signal conditioner
introduced via Omega’s digital
channel, resulting in the best
performing product of this category for
Omega ~ the ClipX signal conditioner,
which is setting new standards within
industrial control. The ClipX can help
reduce the likelihood of machine
downtirme because it is self-monitoring
and able to detect faults early on, with
smart functions including health
monitoring, remote diagnosis, and
pre-calculated channels,



Ornega's core préssure-sensing
expertise was recognised with large
orders for load pins and load cells
{assists in the measurement of force}
in multiple applications, including
testing of cable integrity and lift
operations in helicopter rescue hoists
and applications in life science research
and dclinical diagnostics. Omega

also secured a significant order for
temperature transmitters in medical
imaging and scanning machines and
remained as a key supplier to one of
the leading manufacturers in the
offshore wing turbine industry.

Market trends

LFL sales growth was down in North
America, Omega's rmain market,
reflecting slowing US industrial
production. Growth is expected to be
rmodest in 2020, with recovery starting
in the second half. In Asia, LFL sales
decreased, particularly in China and
South Korea, reflecting a tough
comparator, weaker macroeconomic
conditions in China and lower
semiconductor demand globaliy.

The semiconductor market improved
in the second half, with stronger
growth projected in 2020, Omega

Operational Review | Omega

also feit the impact of tariffsin its
Chinese market as many of the
components Omega sells there are
incorporated into OEM products
destined for the USA. This impact
is expected to continue into 2020.

We continue 1o see an increasing
trend of bringing intelligence closer
to or into the sensor, and & demand
for features that allow for connected
applications that bypass manual
configuration and reduce installation
labour, The expansion of our smart
lloT range of sensors and control
systerns, and our ability to provide

‘rapid, custom-configuration places

us in a strong position to grow in

line with these trends. Across all
product segments, Omega is actively
working on addressing the increasing
intersection of connectivity, flexibility
and ease-of-use demanded by its
customers to drive growth,

LeC Reporh
et Reno)

Sales by location {%)

1 __North America il
2 _ Europe n
3 Asia 16
4 Rest of the world 2
Sales by end-user market (%)
1 Semiconductors, telecoms
& electronics n
2 Distribution 10
3 _Metals, minerais & mining [
4 Other 53
N
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Qperational Review cantinued

Industrial Solutions

The Industrial Solutions division (1ISD') comprises
a portfolic of high-value, niche businesses.

A number of ISD companies have platform
potential, with strong market positions, growth
prospects and margins. It comprises: BTG Group
(divested Decernber 2019), Brue! & Kjzer Vibro,
ESG Solutions, Millbrook, NDC Technologies
(‘NDCT'), Particte Measuring Systermns ((PMS/),
Red Lion Controls and Servomex.

. Financial performance
Sales rose 3% to £616.5 million,
reflecting a LFL sales increase of 3%.
There was a 21% positive impact
from foreign currency exchange
movements and a 1% negative impact
from acquisitions, net of disposals,
reflecting the sale of BTG, On a regional
basis, LFL sales rose strongly in Asia
and were up in Europe, but this was
partly offset by lower LFL sales in
North America.

LFL adjusted operating profit
increased 13% and LFL adjusted
operating margins increased 150bps.
This resulted from the increase in

LFL szles, particularly at PMS and
Servormex, plus a higher gross margin
reflecting favourable pricing at all
operating companies. In addition,
growth in overheads was constrained
at a lower ievel than the increase

in sales, as a consequence of the
successful implementation of the
profit improvernent prograrmme
across the operating companies.

Divisional strategy

The industrial Selutions division
{'1SD') 'comprises a portfolio of
high-value, niche businesses that
compete globally. A new divisional
leadership team was established in
2019, with good progress being made
on improving the operational and
financial performance of these
businesses while also executing

on the divestment strategy.

In December, the divestrment of BTG
was completed, in line with the strategy
te simplify and focus the portfolic on
high-growth end markets. Given

BTG's presence in the pulp and paper
industry, Spectris believed its next
stage of develiopment would be better

fulfilled under different cwnership. In
January 2020, the sale of the EMS Brie!
& Kjaer joint venture was announced.
During 2020, the iS50 operating
companies will be assessed continually
for either investment or potential
disposal in line with Spectris’ strategy.

Market trends and ocutiook
Semiconductor and electronics

The serniconductor industry posted
good LFL sales growth with particularly
strong growth in Asia {outside China),
rmore than offsetting a slowdown in
North America. This growth was
underpinned by a strong order backiog
at the start of 2019, supported by
notable sales of gas analysers and
particie counters to major chip
manufacturing facilities in Asia. The
backlog reduced through the year,
nowever, as the sector saw a declineg

in capitat equiprnent orders. Crowth

is expected to resume in 2020 and

we are well positioned with key
customers and channel partners

to benefit as it does.

In addition, the roll-out of SG netwaorks
is expected to support growth, for
example in the manufacture of chips
and in manufacturing applications and
supporting solutions. This enhanced
mobile broadband hetwork with
improved refiability and uptirme

will enable manufacturers to utilise
wirelgss communications in
appiications previously only attainable
with wired communications, reducing
installation costs and enabling
real-time connectivity to stranded
assets. Red Lion's next generation
automation platform will be 5C-ready
and is expected to benefit from this
market opportunity.
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The current softness in the electronics
sector is expected through the first
quarter and potentially first half of
2020, although recovery in the second
half is anticipated based on industry
and customer forecasts.

Pharmaceutical and jife sciences

The pharmaceutical and life sciences
industries saw good LFL sales growth
in 2019, particularly in Asia, driven

by China. LFL sales were also higher

in North America, although the
pharmaceutical pricing legislation in
the USA could impact the level of future
investment. However, the continued
increase in regulatary scrutiny with
emnphasis on data and process integrity
should support demand for PMS’
contarmination monitoring hardware,
and high-level consulting services,

to meet the [atest environmental
rmonitoring needs. These requirarments
support PMS' move to increase the
numier of partnerships with adjacent
life sciences businesses to expand the
scope of itg offering. For example, PMS
is working with Becton, Dickinson and
Company to provide customers with

a camplete partfolio of active air
monitoring systems and high-quality
prepared plated media, to meet their
erwironimental monitering needs and
regulatory requiirements.

Energy and utilities

In energy and utilities, environmentatl
maonitoring is slso becorning more
stringent and this is where Servomex's
gas analysers play a critical role. This
position underpinned strong sales

into the hydrocarbon processing and
petrcchemicals sectors across all
regqions. Servomex has been realigning
its organisational structure around its
core customer markets and expanding
its sales and customer service



Adjusted operating margin (£m)

infrastructure into under-represented
markets. In addition, it is simplifying
and expanding its product portfolio
to develop modular sensor and
analyser products. These initiatives
should help underpin further growth
in 2020 and beyond.

Similarly, B&K Vibro saw strong growth
in sales in this sector, particularly in
North America and Asia. Two product
releases during the year will help
underpin future growth. The flagship
machinery protection system, vC.8000,
received certification such that it can
now be used in functional safety
applications. A new, fully integrated
displacement transmitter was also
faunched, which is simple to install and
can halve the cost of the installation,
This sensor offers a unique streamlined
solution for both shaft displacement
and vibration monitoring across a wide
range of industrial rotating machinery.

At £SG, sales were lower primarily
reflecting financial pressure

and consolidation amongst its
customers, as a result of the downward
pressure on if pricing and lower cost,
alternative competition. A number of
counter-measures were implemented
which has led to an enhanced pipeline
coming into 2020, which should
underpin an improved performance.

Automotive

LFL sales into automotive increased,
reflecting the investment in new test
facilities at Millbrook which added
capacity for electrified powertrain
testing in Leyland, in Detroit and in

a new facility in California, serving the
emerging technology cluster in this
region. In September, Millbroak formally
opened its battery test facility, a leading
facility for testing large battery packs for

Qperational Review | Industrial Solutions

performance and durability, and also
opened its CAV Village, part of the

UK government-backed TestBed UK.
Itincludes a Vi-grade simulator,
compiete with virtual representation of
Millbrook proving ground, allowing CAV
developers to operate in the virtual and
real environments, simultaneously. The
developrnent and validation of CAVs is
further supported by the installation

of a 5G-enabled network at Milllsrook.
In Finland, the extended indoor winter
test facility was cpened adding
much-needed capacity for snow and
ice testing of tyres and vehicles, ahead
of the intraduction of new European ice
labelling regulations. Mitibrook has
benefited from significant capital
investment aligned with priority testing
for automotive OEMs and tier one
suppliers and is well positioned to serve
customers into 2020 and beyond. The
peak year of capex investment is now
behind us.

Other

In our other end markets, which

are primarily served by NDCT, the
converting and film extrusion
industries saw sales increase due to
stronger performance in the Americas.
Cable and tubing saw a decline due

to the impact of tariff prices in China.
A heaithy backiog entering 2019 drove
very strong LFL sales to the food, drink
and tobacco sector in ail regions and
good growth into metals, minerals
and mining. In the latter, as part of

the profit improvement programme,
a decision was taken to exit certain
product lines serving this industry
and so the focus into 2020 will be

on its other key end markets.

Sales by location (%)

1 North America 35
2 Europe 30
3 Asia 30
4 Rest of the world 5
Sales by end-user market (%)
1 Energy & utilities 18
2 Pulp & paper 18
3  Pharmaceurtical 13
4 Automotive 3
5 Semiconductors, telecoms
and electronics n
& Other 27
35
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Financial Review

Improving our
performance

Our new reporting structure provides greater
transparency on the performance of our businesses.
The impact from the initiatives that we have
launched are starting to show through in the
financial performance of the Group.

Financial highlights

Operating performance

2na

16320
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“gince joining Spectris in March 2019,
| am pleased with the financial
progress the Group has made.

We have delivered enhanced
margins and cashflow, in some
challenging end markets, and are
positioning the Group to be more
resilient going forward.”

Derek Harding
Chief Financial Officer

financial performance

Sales increased by 1.7% or

£27.8 miillion to £1,632.0 million
{2018: £1,604.2 miltion). Favourable
foreign exchange movements
contributed £23.6 million (1.5%)
and LFL sales increased by

£6.8 miltion {0.49). These were
partly offset by acquisitions, net
of disposals, which reduced sales
by £2.6 million {0.2%).

‘Adjusted operating profit
increased by 3.9% or £9.8 million
to £258.1 million {(2018: £248.3 million).
Favourable foreign exchange
movernents contributed £3.0 miltion
(1.2%) and LFL adjusted operating
profit increased by £9.2 million
(3.7%), partly offset by the impact
of acquisitions, net of £2.4 million
(1.0%) of disposals.

Adjusted operating margins improved
by 30bps, with LFL adjusted operating
margins up 50bps compared to 2018,
with the difference being explained by
the dilutive effects of acquisitions and
foreign exchange movements, The
improverment in the LFL operating
margin was due to a 50bps decrease
in LFL overhead costs as a percentage
of sales with LFL gross rmargin flat at
56.7% (2018: 56.7%).

The flat gross margin reflects
favourable pricing and procurement
savings offset by cost inflation and
mix impacts. LFL overheads were
down by 0.7% {2018: up 4.7%) with
savings generated from the profit
improverment programme through
headcount reductions and other
targeted savings that more than offset
overhead cost inflation. The aperating
margin improvemant was driven by
Industrial Sclutions, up 150bps. which
benefited from both pacitive volume
and pricing as welt as positive
reorganisation impacts, and HBK
up 130bps, mainly due to favourable
.. pricing and overhead savings Malvern

Panalylical's operating marginwas up _

“bUDpPs, which benefited from positive
pricing and procurement savings and
the benefits of restructuring. This was
offset by production cost inflation, and
a higher sales volurme refated growth
in vverheads. These improvements
waere partially offset by Omega down
60Cbps, where positive price impacts

" were offset by lower volumes, together
with increased IT and depreciation
costs as a result of the ongoing
e-commerce investment.

investment in our R&D programmes
amounted to £100.9 million or 6.2%
of sales (including £7.3 million of
capitalised development costs)
{2018: £103.4 miiilion or 6.4% of

sales, including £4.7 million of
capitalised cost).
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- Stawytory profit befare tax increased ' ;

 protit before tax in 2019 and 2018

Strategic Report

Statutory operating profit was |
down £921 million to £84.3 million J
{2018: £176.4 million) as the

improvement in adjusted operating

profit was offset by restructuring costs

of £52.2 million (2018: £15.6 million); net
transaction-related costs, depreciation

and fair value adjustments of £71 mitlion

{2018: £13.0 million); impairment of I
goodwill of £35.1 million; amortisation '
and impaironant of acquicition rcloted -+ !
intangible assets of £84.6 rmillion

(2018: £43.3 million) and a profit on
dispasal of property of £5.2 million.
Statutory operating margins of 5.2% H
were 580bps lower than the prior year.

Statutory net finance costs decreased |
by £10.0 million to £3.5 rmillion !
{2018: £13.5 million) principatlly due i
to foreign exchange gains arising ) '
during the year on retransiation of
short-term inter~company loan balances
rompared to farcign excharge lusses-

in respect of the surne kemsinthe
prior year., Adjusted net finance costs
were up £11 million at £6.8 million

[2018: £5.7 million) due to the inclusion of
intorest on ieases folluwing Lthe adgoptoh
of IFRS 16 nf £2 @ mitlion, parthroffecot by ~ = - —
the inclusion of a full year of income on

the Croup's receivable from the EMS

B&K joint venture (2018; seven months

of income) and lower intarest charges. -

v - ook

by £41.3 mifiion to £259.3 million in 2019 ;
from £218.0 milion in 2018, Statutoly _ .. __ . . -

benefited from profits on disposal

of businesses of £204.7 million and

£56.3 million, respectively. In 2019,

statutory profit bafore tax was also .
impacted by the impairment by

£21.3 million of the non-current

receivable from the EMS BAK joint

venture. Adjusted profit before tax

increased by 2.5% to £247.4 million.




Finaneial Review continued

Reconciliation of statutory to adjusted measures

i) 208

t 'y dj its Adjusted Statutory Adjustments Adjusted

£Em Em £m Em £m

Sales 1.632.0 - 1,632.0 16046.2 - 1,604.2
Gross profit 914.2 70 921.2 9074 0.3 Q077
Overheads and other operating casts {829.9) 166.8 (663.1) {731.0) 76 (659.4)
Operating profitt 84.3 173.8 258 1764 ne 2483
Share of post-tax results of joint venture {4.9) 1.0 (3.9} 1.2 - n2;
::2?,‘::::3; 21' S:;nicurrent receivable @.3) 2.3 _ _ _ _
Profit on disposal of businesses 204.7 {204.7) - 56.3 (56.3) -
Financial income 79 {4.0) 38 25 - 25
Finance costs (.4 o7 10.7) (15.0) 78 8.2
Profit before tax - 259.3 ma) 247.4 218.0 234 2614
Taxation charge (25.2) (27.7) {52.9) {32.8) (14.8) {476)
Profit after tax’ 2343 {39.6) 194.5 185.2 8.6 193.8

1 Further detail on the reconciliation of statutory apecating profit, profit before tax and profit after tax ta their related adjusted measuces is provided

in Note 2 to the Financial Staterments.

The effective tax rate on adjusted

profit before tax was 21.4% (2018: 19.7%),
an increase of 170bps primarily due

to changes in tax laws affecting the
Group's intra-group financing
arrangements. On a statutory basis, the
tax rate of 9.7% (2018:15.0%) was below
the weighted average expected tax rate
of 18.6% (2018; 26.0%), primarily resulting
from the majority of the BTG disposal
proceeds being received in respect of
the sale of shares in Group companies,
which qualified as tax-exermnpt disposals
under the relevant local tax law. in 2020,
the Croup expects its effective tax rate

10 be broadly in line with the rate in 2013

The Group's approach to tax matters

is set out in its tax strategy which, in
compliance with the Finance Act 2017,
has been made available on our website
at www .spectris.com/sustainability/
tax-strategy.

Adjusted earnings per share

increased by 1.9% to 168.0 pence
{2018:164.9 pence), reflecting the net
impact of the 2.5% increase in acjusted
profit before tax and the decrease in
the weighted average number of shares
from 177.5 million in 2018 to 15.8 miltion
in 2019, following the share buyback.
This was partly offset by the increase
in the effective tax rate. Statutory
earnings per share increasad 1o

202.2 pence from 157.6 pence,

Acquisitions and disposals

The Group completed one acquisition
during the year with a total cost of
£3.8 millicn. A net £5.9 million was paid
in respect of prior year acquisitions,
making the net cash outflow in the
year £9.7 million. Furthermore, an
amount of £1.6 million was spent on
transaction-related costs, which makes
the total transaction-related cash
outflow for the year £11.3 million.

On 2 December 2019, the Group
completed the disposal of BTG for
grass consideration of £274.5 million
which resulted in a net cash inflow
of £262.7 rnillion. The profit on
disposal was £206.) million. Sales of
£118 9 million and adjusted operating
profit of £22.6 million relating to
BTG were included in the operating
results for the 11-month period of
ownership prior to its disposal.

On 17 January 2020, as part of the
ptan to simplify the CGroup's portfolio,
an announcement was made that
agreement had been reached for the
sale of our interest in the EMS B&K
Jjoint venture for consideration of
£17.9 million in cash and approximately
£1.2 miillion In shares in Ervirosyite
Limited. The closing of the deal is
subject to approval by Envirosuite's
shareholders at a meeting to be

held on 24 February 2020 and the
conditional placernent of shares by
Envirosuite required to fund the
consideration for the transaction,
with completion expected to take
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place shortly thereafter, As a result, the
receivabie from the joint venture has
been impaired by £21.3 million tothe
expected recoverable amount and the
remaining balance of £18.9 million has
been included within assets held for
sale at 31 December 2019 (see Note 13).

Restructuring costs

The Group has incurred costs of
£52.2 million relating to restructuring
in 2019 (2018: £15.6 miilion). In 2019,
this relates wholly to one-off costs of
the profit improvement programme
{201B: £10.8 million relating to Project
Ugplift and £4.8 million relating to the
profitirnprovernent programme),
These restructuring costs include
£277.5 million of staff-related costs
including redundancy and reiated
costs, £11.6 millicn related to
impairments of assets including
inventory, property, plant and
equipment and intangibie assets
and £13.1 million of other costs.

Impairments

During the year, £35.1 million was
recognised as an impairment of
goodwill and £471 million as an
impairment of intangible assets. The
impairment of goodwill of £35.1 million
and £32.4 million of the impairment
of intangible assets were in respect to
Concept Life Sciences, as announced
at the half year resuits. The remaining
£14.7 million impairment of intangible
assets resulted from restructuring
activities undertaken during the year
following decisions made at the
strategic review.
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Operating profit

=TRIREERRES T N AT LN

Cash flow

Adjusted cash flow improved by

£87.5 miillion to £234.2 million during
the year, resulting in an adjusted cash
flow conversion rate of 91% [2018: 59%).
The improvernent principally resulted
fromn the favourable working capital

movement mainly atuibutable to Other cash fiows

improved receivables collection, 2019

growth in profitability, a faveurable £rm

impact frorm IFRS 16, and lower capital L e (3709

expenditure, principally in Millbrook
and Omega. This was partially offset

by an increase in inventory, principally
in the Industrial Solutions division, and
a ¢lecrease in trade payables across the
GCroup. We expect capital expenditure
to be at similar levels in 2020.

Average trade working capital (the
monthly average of the surmn of
inventory, trade receivables, trade
payables and other current trading net
assets), expressed as a percentage of
sales, increased by 230bps 1o 13.7%
(2078: 11.49%). Excluding acquisitions,
disposals and foreign exchange, the
LFL average trade working capital
increased by 250bps 1o 13.9%, with
increases across all platforms, mainly

at Malvern Panalytical and Omega
which experienced a higher level

of trade receivables and inventory,
respectively. The year-end trade
working capital to sales ratic decreased
by NObps to 13.5% in 2019 {2018: 14.6%).
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Financial Review continued

“We ended the year in a net cash
positian of £33.5 million, largely as
a result of the receipt of proceeds
from the sale of BYG,as wellas
improved cash flow.”

Capital expenditure {nex of grants} on
property, plant and equipment and
ntangible assets during the year of
£81.6 million {2018: £94.1 million)
equated to 5.0% of sales (2018: 5.9%}
and was 140% of adjusted depreciation
and software amortisation (2018: 267%).

Financing and treasury

The Group finances its operations
from both retained earnings and
third-party borrowings. The year-end
gross debt balance consists entirely
of fixed rate borrowings.

As at 31 December 2019, the

Group had £786.0 milfion of
committed facilities denominated
in different currencies, consisting

of an $800.0 million {£606.4 million)
revolving credit facility maturing in
July 2024 with a one-year extension
option, subject to approval by the
lenders, a seven-year €94.8 million
(£80.7 mitiion} term loan maturing
in October 2020, and a seven-year
€116.2 million (£98.9 million) term
loan maturing in September 2022,
The revoiving credit facility was
undrawn at the year end. In addition,
at 31 Decermber 2019, the Group had
a cash balance of £2131 million and
various uncommitted faciiities and
bank overdraft facilities available.

At the year end, the Group's gross
borrowings amounted to £179.6 million,
100% of which were at fixed interest
rates (2018: 51%). The ageing profile

at the year end showed that 45%

[2078: 6%) of borrowings are dye to
mature within one year, nil (2018: 23%)
between cne and twoe years, and 55%
between twao and five years (2018: 71%).

40

Qverall, net debt decreased by
£330.6 million (2018: increase of
£246.6 million) from £2971 million

to a net cash position of £33.5 million,
iargely as a result of the receipt of
proceeds from the sale of BTG. Net
bank interest costs were covered by
adjusted operating profit 40 times
{2018 37 times).

Currency

The Group has béth translational and
transactional currency exposuras,
Translational exposures arise on the
consclidation of overseas company
results into Sterling. Transactional
exposures arise where the currency
of sale or purchase invoices differs
from the functional currency tn
which each company prepares its
(ocal accounts. The transactional
exposures include situations where
foreign currency denominated trade
receivables, trade payables and cash
balances are held.

After matching the currency of revenue
with the currency of costs wherever
practical, forward exchange contracts
are used 1o hedge a proportion of

the remaining forecast net transaction
flows where there is reasonable certainty
of an exposure. At 31 December 2019,
approximately 62% of the estimated
transactional exposures for 2020 were
hedged using forward exchange
contracts, mainly against Sterfing,

the Euro and the Danish Krone.

The largest transtaticnal exposures
during the year were to the US Dollar,
Euro, Danish Krone, Chinese Yuan
Renminbi and Swiss Frang, although

Spettris ple Apnuail Report and Accounts 2019

since the disposat of BTG, the Croup ne
longer has a significant translational
exposure to the Swiss Franc. Translational
exposures are not hedged. The table
opposite shows the average and
closing key exchange rates compared
to Sterling.

During the year, currency translation
effects resulted in operating

profit being £3.0 million higher

{2018; £0.] million iower) than it would
have been if calculated using prior
year exchange rates. Transactional
foreign exchange iosses of £3.5 million
{2018: £2.1 million gain} were included
in administrative expenses, whilst
sales include a loss of £2.9 million
(2018 £1.4 million loss) arising on
forward exchange contracts taken
out 1o hedge transactional exposures
in respect of sales.

Brexit

The Group qperates in a range of
end-user markets that may be affected
by Brexit developrments in the future.
Mitigating actions have been put in
place through an enhanced analysis
including stress testing for Brexit

to determine severe but plausible
potential scenarios and the Croup is
continuously monitoring events. As
part of this analysis, management have
considered the measurement impact
on the Group's balance sheet. Now that
the UK has cfficially left the EU, close
attention is being paid to any emerging
details reiating to potentiaf trade deals
and their associated impact, both
positive and negative, on the Group.
Although the cutcome of Brexit is
difficult to quantify, we do not expect
the direct consequences of Brexit to
have a material impact te the Group.
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Dividends

The Board is proposing te pay a final
dividend of 43.2 pence per share

(2018: £0.5p) which, combined with

the interim dividend of 21.8 pence per
share (2018: 20.5 pence}, gives a totat
dividend of 65.1 pence per share for the
year {2018; 1.0 pence), an increase of LI D i A £
6.7%. in addition, Spectris is proposing i i

to return £175 million to shareholders
via a special dividend, combined with
a share consolidation. A special
dividend of 150 pence per existing
ordinary share is proposed, and in
order to maintain the comparability
of the Group's share price and
per-share metrics before and after
the special dividend, the Group plans ear ; ) X e
to undertake a supporting share ’ B . ’
consoligation, which will be subject
to shareholder approval.

Derek Harding
Chief Financial Ofticer
19 February 2020
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Risk Management

Our approach

We recognise that effective management of risk is
essential to the successful delivery of our strategic
objectives. As such, risk management is built into
our day-to-day activities and forms an integral part

of how we operate.

The Group has a well-established
process, which delivers visibility and
accountability for risk management
across our businesses. This process
forms part of the Group's overall
internal control framewaork, as
described on page 68.

Risk management process

Our appsoach Lo risk managermen
combines a granular bottom-up
assessment of day-to-day operational
risk with a top-down assessment of
those risks that are rmost significant
at the Group level.

Each platform/business unit
undertakes a detailed assessment

of risk across their markets, processes
and operations including a consolidation
of any emerging risks that should

be formatly evaluated. A formal risk
register is submitted to the Group,
with each risk assessed in terms of
gross and net impact and likelihood,
as well as velocity (velocity represents
the length of time such a risk

is capable of materialising). Key
mitigations, both planned and
existing, have formal owners and

are subject to regulat operational
reviaw as well as independent
assurance where appropriate.

This approach informs a continuous
top-town assessment of risk,
undertaken by the Executive
Committee and Audit and Risk
Committee throughout the year.
The aim of this process is to identify
those Group Principal Risks that
reprasent a significant severity in
terms of the achievement of the
Group's performance against its
strategic objectives and/or those risks
that are more suitably assessed,
monitored and mitigated centrally.

An Executive owner is assigned to each
Croup Principal Risk, which is formally
assessed in terms of its gross and net
severity, an appetite is defined, and
mitigations are identified within the
four lines of defence framework. Each
risk is subject to a formal assessment
by the Executive Committee during
the year and the suite of Group
Principal Risks is reviewed twice yearly
by the Audit and Risk Committee,

2019 update

With the Groug's strategic objectives
redefined and subsequent to

changes in the Executive Cornmittee
membership and composition, the
Group has been provided with an
opportunity to fundamentally reassess
its Principal Risks. Therefore, during
2019, the Executive Committee
re-evaluated the existing Principal
Risks, to consider emerging/alternative
risks, and to reassign Executive
ownership. This process has resulted

in the identification of eight Group
Principal Risks, which are detailed
onthe proceeding pages 44 to 46,

Cornpetitive Activity and New Product
Development risks have been removed
as Group Principal Risks. Whilst these
rernain important risks that wiit
continue to be managed at an
operational level, the Group and
cumulative severity of each of these
two risks are considered to be
sufficiently mitigated in farge part due
to the natural hedging effect of our
diverse portfolio of custormers and
products. In addition, several former
Principal Risks have heen absorbed
into one or more of the current eight
risks, Currency imbalance will continue
to be monitored and mitigated
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through the management of
Political and Market/Financial Shock
risks; Supply Chain Disruption will
continue to be managed as part

of Business Disruption risk; and
Mergers and Acquisitions is now

a key component of Strategic
Transformation risk management,

2020 focus

During 2020, we will continue to
develop the management framework
across these specific risks so that it
operates effectively alongside the
changing organisational structure,
This includes the estabilishment of
platform risk committees and the
development of a revised set of

key risk indicators, which will help
management to continuausly manitor
changes in the severity of each risk.

The above will inform a dynamic
assessment of the Group's Principal
Risks throughout 2020, allowing the
Board to periodically review existing
risks and consider key emerging risks,
whether they be operation-specific
or broader in scope, suich as climate
change and environmental mattets.
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fourtty hno of dele

Fourth line of defence
External/Non-executive oversight

1 Third line of defence
! Independent assuranca

Second fine of defence
Risk management frarnework, policies,
processes and coOntrols

First line of defence
' Risk identification and contrel execution
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Principal Risks and Uncertainties

Managing our
principal risks

Revenue growth

Enhanced returns and
cash flow generation

Risk assessment scale®

Margin
expansion

Very low

Low .

Moderate

High

Very high

* The combined impact and likelihood of a risk
occureing, net of mitigation activities

Change in rating

Increase T
No change -
Decreaxe J,
New risk ‘*

Risk appetite

Highly cautious

Cautious

Balanced

Oppertunistic

Highly gppaortunistic

Strategic transformation

Definition

Failure to successfully deliver the
Group strategy, including business
transformation and key mergers
and acquisitions activity.

Link to strategy

- Customer focus

+ Operating leverage

- Portfolio management

« Spectris Business System {'SBS'}
+ Perform and grow

Risk assessment
High

Change In rating

Risk appetite
Balanced

Impact

Cur day-to-day activities are inherently

aligned to the successful achievernent
of the Group's strategic objectives.
Nevertheless, we recognise the
importance of managing some of

the more transformative elements

of strategic activation as a Principat
Risk. These elements include mergers,
divestments and acquisitions,
incorporating effective cost
management tools into the SBS,
capital investment and the ongoing
digitisation of aur offerings and
infrastructure.

Mitigation

- Embedding profit improverment
into business as usual supported
by the SBS

'+ Enhanced acquisition/merger
integration processes and capability

. Requiar reviews to track activation

- A framework of physical and logical
control measures
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Cyber threat

Definition

Failure to appropriately protect critical
information/physical assets from
cyber threats, including external
thacking, cyber fraud, and inadvertent/
intentional electronic leakage of
critical ¢ata.

Link to strategy

- Customer focus

- Operating levetage
- Ethics and H5E

Risk assessment
High

Change in rating

1\

Risk appetite
Cautious

Cur businessas face both internal

and external inforrmation security risks,

the nature and complexity of which
are constantly changing, becoming

more sophisticated and unpredictable.

with the introduction of data privacy
regulatory requirernents, and a
continuing trend of high-profile
inforrnation security breaches
occurring across a wide range of
businesses, the Group takes a
necessarily proactive and cautious
approach to safeguarding its
information assets.

- information security and data
privacy poiicies and minimum
expected controls

- Cybwer risk assurance undertaken
by Internal Audit

- Online and face-to-face awareness
training

- Regular Board and Audit and Risk
Committee sessions on cyber threat

« Continued strengthening of IT

systerns
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Compliance

Definition

Failure to comply with laws and
regulations, leading to reputational
damage, substantial fines and
potential market exclusion.

Link to strategy
- Ethics and HSE
» Custorner focus

Risk assessment
High

Change in rating
-

Risk appetite
Highly cautious

Impact

We operate in many jurisdictions
and, consequently, are subject to
wide-ranging laws and regulations
including export controis, data privacy,
fair competition and anti-bribery and
corruption. Any compliance failure by
the Group or its representatives could
result in civil or criminal liabilities,
leading to significant fines and
penalties or the disqualification

of the Group from participation in
government-related contracts or
entire markets.

Mitigation

« Strong cultural alignment to the
Spectris value of ‘Absolute Integrity’

- Investment in experienced
compliance professionals

- Formal comptiance programme
inciuding policies, procedures
and training

« Contract review and approval
processes

Principal Risks and Uncertainties

Political

Definition

Material adverse changes in the
geopolitical environment putting at
risk our ability 1o execute our strategy.
Includes trade protectiohism, punitive
tax/regulatory regimes, and general
heightened tension between trading
parties or blocs.

Link to strategy

- Customer focus

- Operating feverage
- Perform and grow

Risk assessment
Moderate

Change in rating

Risk appetite
Balanced

We operate in a range of end

markets around the world and may

be affected by political or regulatory
developments in any of these
countries. Material adverse changes

in the political environment in the
countries in which we operate have
the potential to put at risk our ability
1o execute our strategy. We continually
maonitor the geopolitical landscape and
develop response plans accordingly.

- Event monitoring and horizon scanning

- Waorking groups to limit the impact
of materialising risks

- Maintain a strong balance sheet

. Operate in a broad spread of
geographical markets and end users

+ Response planning
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Market/financial shock

Definition

Material adverse changes in market
conditions, such as economic
recession, sudden negative investor
sentiment and cutrency fluctuation.

Link to strategy
- Customer focus
- OQperating leverage

Risk assessment
Moderate

Change in rating
-

Risk appetite
Balanced

As a public cormpany, and one that
conducts business in a large number
of markets, we recognise the giobal
ar local impact that a recession or
period of instability could have on
the Group. As with political risk, we
are limited in our ability to reduce
the tikelihood of such events, but
with careful monitoring and response
planning we can ensure that the
potential impact is restricted.

- Market monitaring and
horizon scanning
+ Maintain a strong balance sheet
« Operate in a broad spread
of geographical markets and
end users
- Response planning




Principal Risks and Uncertainties continued

Talent and capabilities

Definition

Failure 1o attract, retain, and deploy
the necessary talent to deliver
Group strategy.

Link to strategy
- Leadership and talent
- SBS

Risk assessment
Maderate

Change in rating
N

Risk appetite
Balanced

- r— s e o e

impact

1 The Group needs to attract, develop,
I motivate and retain the right peopie
to achieve our operational and
strategic targets. Effective talent
management is essential 1o
successfully delivering our current
business requirements and strategic
goals, and to realising the full
potential of our businesses.
Therefore, failure to leverage tatent
and capabilities could significantly
impact the successful exeqution of
our strategy.

v T -

iviiti‘gatiora .

« Structured recruitment and
succassion processes for senior
Group talent

- Global HR information systems
implementation underway

+ Annual organisation capability
review process

Intellectual property

Definition

Infringement of third-party rights,

and failure to appropriately protect our
intettectual property and infringement,
of the Group's intellectual property
rights by a third-party.

Link to strategy
« Customer focus
- Portfolio management

Risk assessment
tow

Change in rating

T

Risk appetite
Highly cautious

it is impartant that we have measures
in place to reduce the likelihood that
we may inadvertently infringe
third-party rights. Our infarmation
assets, know-how and products
provide the Group with a weaith of
intellectual property, and we have a
proactive approach towards protection
and management of that property. The
Group owns and registers patents and
trademarks, maintains trade secrets,
confidential information and copyright,
and exploits intellectual property
through licensing.

+ Monitoring third-party applications
and competitor activity

- Protection, including patent
registration

- Freedom-to-operate technical
reviews in advance of new product
development, acquisitions and
licensing

- Policies, procedures and training

Business disruption

Definition

Failure 1o appropriately prepare for and
respond to a crisis or major disruption
to key operations either across the
Group, in 8 key regionflocation, or via

a critical supplier.

Link to strategy

- Custorner focus

- Operaling leverage
- Parform and grow

Risk assessment
Low

Change in rating

Risk appetite
Cautious

The nature of gur geegraphically \
diverse and segmented businesses .
provides a degree of natural hedging !
from Group-wide disruption arising .
frarn a rnajor event, be it a physical 'J
disaster at @ majof site, or an in-region |
external event, such as the recent !
coronavirus outbreak in China. i
However, we acknowledge the ,
importance of proactively ensuring '
a consistent and effective business !
continuity management process !
across the Group. ]

}

- Business continuity plans

+ IT disaster recovery plans

- Testing plans

- Risk identification and monitoring

- Crisis management v
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Viability
statement

Longer-term viability of the Group
In accordance with section 4,
provision 31 of the 2018 UK Corporate
Governance Code, the Directors have
assessed the viability of the Company
over a three-year period, taking into
account the Group's current position
and the assessment of the Principal
Risks and Uncertainties as set out on
pages 44 10 46.

in determining the appropriate period
over which to assess viability, the Board
has considered budgeting, forecasting
and strategic planning cycies, the
timeframe within which we assess our
risks, the maturation of the Group's
credit facilities and the approach taken
by our peers. Subsequently, the Board
is of the view that a three-year period
allows the Group to perform a reliable
assessment; the value of extending
that assessment beyond three years
would be cutweighed by a decline in
the reliability of data as well as the
predictabiiity of each event,

Assessment of viability

The Directors carried out a robust
assessment of the Principal Risks
facing the Group, including those
that could threaten its business
rmodel, future performance, solvency
of liquidity. In assessing the viability
of the Group the Board has set out the
future prospects of the business as
outiined by the Group's strategy and
considered the financiatfliquidity
impact that a number of scenarios
might have on those prospects.

In assessing the viability of the Group,
the Directors have modelled over

a three-year period the impact that
these scenarios would have on the
financial performance of the Group.
As part of this assessment, the
Directors have considered the patural
hedging that occurs across the broad
spread of markets, praducts and
customers maintained by the Group.
Assumptions have also been made

in terms of the Group's ongoing ability
to raise finance, deploy capital, and

Strategic Report

Scenario modelled tink to Principal Risks

Scenario ¥
Reduction in sales

The Board considered a number of events that
could notably impact planned sales performance,
either in a specific Operating Company, country,
ar across the entire Group.

" Potitical

- Compliance
« Cyber threat
» Business disruption

-« Strategic transformation

- Market/financial shock

Scenario 2;
Significant operational expenses

Large, one-time or recurring fines and other
notable expenses arising from a variety of risk
events were considered.

+ Compliance
. Political

» Cyber threat
+ Business disruption

- Market/financial shock

Scenario 3:
Trading disruption/exclusion from market

The Board considered certain instances in which - Compliance

the Group or its Operating Companies might - Cyber threat

be debarred from or otherwise excluded from + Political

a particular market as well as a major disruption - Business disruption
in a critical operation.

refinance debt in order to maintain
sufficient headroom. In certain
instances, the Directors have included
necessary mitigation actions as part

of the assessment, including cost
reduction, reduced capital expenditure,
and tactical recovery processes
following from a major disruption.

Viability Statement

Based on the outcomes of the
viability assessment, the Board has
areasonable expectation that the
Group would be able to withstand
the impact of each of these scenarios,
im isolation and in a nurmber of
plausible combinations, should

they occur in the course of the three-
year assessment period. In each event
the Group would continue to operate
and meet its obligations and liabilities
as they fall due over the period to

31 December 2022,
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Global sustainable growth

Recognising our roke in the waorld

Consigtent and meaningful

engagement with stakehoiders is
integral to the Group's ongaing success
and is regularly considered by the
Board. As a global business, we have

a diverse range of stakeholders and
having 3 clear understanding of the

In support of the requirements

of section 172 cf the Companies Act

impact of our decisions on each of of the Board.
these stakeholder groups is pivotal to
the Board's decision-making process,

2006, page 58 sels out more detail
on haw the Board has considered
the rmaterial issues of the Group's
stakeholders and how these
considerations have impacted the
activities and decsion-rhaking

Our stakehalders
Shareholders
Peaple
Community
Custornars

Suppliers and partners

1 Qur stakeholders Muterinl Issuns How we have engaged

@ Sharenolders

Al Board decisions e rmadeto - Financial performance + Annual General Mesting + Regular interaction between
ﬁbﬁ”ﬂhﬁ:ﬂﬂﬂu + Capital dhstributions - Annual Report and Accounts Hﬁﬁ”yﬂ”ﬁﬁp
our shareholders, » Our strategy - Capital Markets Oay with investor roadshows and

- Long-term viability
+ How the Group meets its

anvironmental, social and

- Resuls staternents, trading

updates and press releases

- Remuneration Policy

with sharehold

conferencesinthe UK, Eurape,
the US4 and Canada

+ Standing invitation for

shareholdars representing more

b o y than 2.5% of the Company’s
holding over 45% of the Group's b " .
issued share capital ahead of ._.m:un:Mm_“ﬁ--:-”Mnu_.-_ to mast with
the approvai of the new Policy
1 (further details of which ate
. avallable on pages 70172}
. « Suanding Boord updates an
| investor relations
@ Pecple
Gur propla ate u highly-skilled - Culture - Appointment of a Workforce - Group Code of Business Ethics,
] and technieal workforce. They . Values Engagemant Director who held training and engagemaent, and
_ are an essantlal comnponent informal meetings with Spactris Helpline, reports from
of the Group's abifity to stay - Operating in an ethical amploywes f0m a cross-seclion which are considered by the
ahead in a fast-moving workd. emironment of roles and perspectives Audit and Risk Committee and
+ Progression and personal + First Group-wide senior the Board
developmant i survey - Digitkeation and isation
opportunities carfied outin 2019, with a of HR systems, which wit

- Remuneration

Fallow-up survey in Q1 2020

continue in 2020 and improve

L

and indirectly

- Baing able to demonsuate

clear Environment, Social
and Governance policies
and how these are
measutad
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- To deveiap new products to makea

tha world ciedner, hesithier and
more productive

- Maintaining energy efficiency

&5 8 kéy performance indicator
{KPH}

: " y clarity of talent poo! and
. . . - Board consideration of the senior .
+ Dhasiny and inclusion Teadership survey resuits and deveiopTTRnt DRpeTUNies
« Workforce engagament supporting action plan « Devetoprmant of the Spectris
O ; " Hub intranet to improve
- g pany e .
surveys com across the Group
|@ Community
| 45 & Group, we have & + Econgroic and aperstional - Dévoping highsquality - Developing the reporting of
Jwide-resching indirect impact of Group products and services for, and emissions across the Group with
impacton busi on lgcal in conjunction with, customers, the intenton to further improve
and environmants we intaract communities ipthem 1o imni I petformance
with and we sre committed . Environmental imgact of productivicy and oparational . Su ing sducational
fromakingaurmthat s impact © 0o vothdirecty 3 9ncy W utse less energy initiathves, awards and
i# a3 positive as possible, y and rave materials - war

programmas for young scientists,

schogls and univarsities Lo
promote science, technology,
engingaring and mathematics
subjects
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Qur stakehelders -

Material issues

How we have engaged

& Customers

Understanding our customers
is critical for the cantinued
success of our businesses.

8y developing iong-term
relationships with them we
are well placed to support
their evolving business
requirements.

Operational strength of
the Group and the ability
to meet customer
requirements

Ensuring we remain
competitive with a strong
differentiated value
proposition

Ability to provide
high-quality instruments
and technical expertise
and advice

- Ensuring service levels
match customer
expectations

- Maintaining effective custormner

relationship management tools
to suppart the identification
of customer neads

Additional focus an digital to
enabie closer links with
customers and their end markets

- Vaice of the customer feedback

integral to the Group's Strategic
Review process and product
development

- Customer satisfaction as a core

value driver

- Key account management
structure across the businesses
1o encourage meaningful,
consistent and ongoing
engagement with customers

- Focus on continyed innovation
and prioritisation of RED
resource and spend

@® Suppliers and partners

Qur relationships with our
suppliers and partners are
integral to the delivery of
quality products to our
customers and the operationaf
success of our business. Our
corporate development team
continues to build relationships
with strategic business partners
and assess possibilities for
future acquisitions. Our growing
business also supports the
development of businesses

In cur supply ¢hain,

Sustainability Report

- Ensuring an ethical supply
chain

« Potential disruption of
supply chain

- Competitiveness
- Financial performance

+ Research and
development investment

Effective and requiar
communication with suppliers
with standardised procedures
and a dedicated Group Vice
President of Supply Chain

- Ensuring high standards

throughout our supply chain

by using the SA 8OO0 Social
Accountability Standard to audit
our key suppliers against specific
eriteria, including anti-slavery and
conflict minerals in high-risk
jurisdictions

A non-financial information
statament summarising the
nature and location of non-
financial disclosures withinthe
Strateglc Report Is provided
on page 93, in compliance with
sections 414C and 4148 of the
Companies Act 2006,

Spectris pic Annual Report and Accounts 2019

Clear payment practice
pracesses across the Group
to ensure fair and prompt
treatrment of creditors

Continually monitoring the
quality of our suppliers to
optimise operationat efficiency

Ongoing dialogue with
strategic business partners

- Ensuring that Spectris values
are shared with our partners
and suppliers

More information about how
the Directors have discharged
thair duty under section 172
of the Companies Act can be
found in Strategic Report
{pages 50 to 53).

.
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Sustainability Report continued

People

The long-term success of the Group
relies on the skilfs and technical
expertise of our people. The people
who work within the Group are key
stakeholders. Throughout 2019, we
continued to consider ways in which
to create the best possible working
environrment and culture for our
employees to thrive in.

Diversity, equality and inclusion

We believe that people should be
recruited, developed and promoted
based on their talent, commitment
and experience. We endeavour to
ensure that everyone is treated equally
and fairly, irrespective of race, colour,
religion, national arigin, gender, sexual
corientation, age, background ofr
disability. There is a zero tolerance
policy in place for any form of
disctirmination or harassment.
Wherever possible, we offer flexible
warking optiens both through part-
time roles and job-share opportunities
to support inclusion, if an employee
became disabled, we would make
every effort 1o retain them, offering
retraining or adjustments to working
environment where necessary, Our
full employment policy is set out at
www.spectris.com

The Board's diversity policy, set out
on page 62, commits to further
promoting all types of diversity and
inclusiveness throughout the Group
and this wiil remain a key focus
during 2020. Our Workforce
Engagement Director will provide
regular feedback to the Board on
the Group's employee proposition.

Talent management

During 2019, a considered focus has
been placed on the refreshment

of the Group's talent pipeline which
has included succession planning
for the most senior roles across the
Group. Consequently, we are better
able to identify talent within the
organisation and use this to prepare
and promete high-potential individuals
to senior roies,

Empioyee heaith and wellbeing
Employee health and wellbeing
rermains a keen priarity for the Group.
In fine with the Group's decentralised
structure, operational responsibility
for employee health and welibeing

is rnanaged directly by each operating
company. In line with this approach,
the businesses within the Group
have prioritised different initiatives
that best reflect their workforce,
such as volunteering and employee

Gender pay gap reporting

Three of our operating companies
have mora than 250 employees
within the UK: Malvern Panalyticar,
Millbrook and Servornex. These
companies are therefore required by
VK iegislation to publish their gender
pay gap figures on their websites.
Spectris pic employs less than

250 people in the UK and is therefare
exemnpt from the statutory reporting
requirernents on gender pay. However,
in recognition of the importance of
addressing the gender pay gap, the
Group voluntarily includes the pay
gap figures for Spectris plc as part of
the Group's overall gender pay gap
reporting in the table below.

The combined results for Spectris pic
and its UK companies which are set
out below are based on 2,078 UK
employees (of whom less than 30%
were female). The results for the
Spectris Group (excluding CLS
which was not included in the 2018
reporting as it was not a member of *
the Group at the reporting date} are
also set out below to provide a direct
comparison to the 2018 figures and
were based an 1,398 employees (of
whomn less than 25% were fernale).

At Spectris, we are confident that
across the Group, men and women

are paid equally for doing equivalent
jobs, whilst the comparative data for
2013 shows a slight increase inthe
rmedian hourly gender pay gap of
116%, we are pleased to see that there
has been a significant improvement
to the gender bonus gap, with

the median bonus paid to female
Spectris ernployees being higher
than the median bonus paid to male
Spectris empioyees. The data for
2019 shows that our pay gap remains
lower than the national average.
Although the figures are in fine with
the sector in which we operate, we
are comimitted to continuing to
improve our gender pay gap.

Actions implemented in 2019

- Widened the remit of the
Remuneration Committee to
review remuneration practices
and the Board undertook a wider
review of diversity policies and
practices in respect of the
wider workforce.

2020 actions .

- Implementation of an online HR
management tool to assist with
recruitment, pay reviews and
career development.

- Review of Group's approach
to maternity and paternity pay,
parental leave and flexible working.

2018 2019
UK {inciuding CLS) UK (excluding CLS)
tedian? Mean® ‘Median® Mear? Medlan® Wean®
Hourly gender
pay gap 9.49% 13.529% 23.33% 21.13% 10.65% 12.29%

Gender bonus gap 15.41% 30.39%

(10.38)%* 20.40% [22.62)% 12.76%

Male  Femalé

Male Fernale Male Female

Bonus propertions 48.02%  60.25%

62.88%  S50.80% 72.95% 72.91%

1 Both Malvern Panalytical and its subsidiary Concept Life Sciences (CLS) are required to report
under the Equality Act 2010 {Gender Pay Gap Information) Regulations 2017

2 The terms rmedian pay gap, mean pay gap, median baonus gap, mean bonus gap and bonus
PIOPOTUOns 85 used within this surmmary table have the meaning attributed to them as set
out in The Equality Act 2010 (Gender Pay Cap Information) Regufations 2017,

3 Anegative percentage indircates that the median bonus paid to female Spectris efmpioyees
was higher than the median bonus paid to male Spectris empioyees

Employees by gender and role as at 31 December 2019

Male  Female Total
Directors T 3 10
Senior management 24 24 ne
Other employees 5,947 2,584 8,531
Total 6,048 26011 8,659
% of total 69.8 30.2 100

S0 Spectris plc Annual Report and Accounts 2019
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wellbeing policies, regular wellbeing
weeks, step challenges, qualified
mental health first-aiders and other
activities to encourage and promote
a heaithier workforce.

During 2019, we established a Group-
wide Heatth and Safety Committee.
The Committee has worked with the
operating companies on a number
of ernployee heaith and welibeing
initiatives to promote thought
leadership throughout the Group.
Work included: the roll-cut of a
Group-wide defibrillator policy; the
initiation of mental health first-aider
training in the UK and the agreement
of a suitable mental health provision
for each country within which the
Croup operates.

Employee turnover

Employee turnover is an important
measwe of our empioyees’ view

of the arganisation and for the

Board and management to consider
how talent is retained within the
organisation. Since 2018, Spectris

has been through a period of
significant strategic and organisational
change which continued throughout
2019 with the implementation of

the profit improvernent programme
and compietion of the strategic
review. The table below shows the
percentage of employees leaving the
Group voluntarily:

2006
7.2%

2015
7%

2018
14.2%

20017
7.6%

2019

11.4%

We are focused on retaining talent
within the Group and committed to
supporting our people through these
periods of organisational change.

Human rights

Spectris considers human rights to be
of the utmost importance, Qur human
rights policy is consistent with the Core
Conventions of the Internationa’ Labour
Organization and the policy requires
that we comply with internationally
recognised human rights standards

at all our sites. Qur policy sets out

our position on non-discrimination,
harassment and forced labour. Online
training on modern slavery and hurman
trafficking is available to all employees.
Human rights considerations are also

a key etement of the due diligence for
any potential acquisitions.

Strategic Report

Health and safety

As a responsible empioyer, we take

the health and safety of our employees
seriously and we are proud to have an
excellent track record of safety in our
workplaces. There were no work-related
fatalities in 2099 and details of recorded
injuries during the year and the prior
four years are set out below.

Accident incidence rate reports
received in 2019

Number of reportable
accidents per 1,000 employees

2008 _ 28]

2017 B
2006
2015!

The Spectris Health and Safety
Committee provides a Croup-wide
cormmunity for the consideration of
ohgoing safety best practice, The
Committee has representatives from
Spectris and each operating company.
It meets monthly to discuss key
themes, policies and challenges that
have arisen and considers whether
these are best managed at a Group or
local level. Key workstreams for 20192
have included:

- the establishment of a standard
observation card to support the
creation of a Group minimum
requirement standard for the
reporting of safety observations
and suppiementary training rmaterial
that can be custorised to the local
site and operating company,

- the instigation of a distracted
driving initiative to set a minimum
Group standard for the elimination
of distractions while driving. This
work is being ted by PMS with giobal
support and the output will be
finalised and rolled out Group-wide
during 2020; and

. the implementation of a consistent
set of safety metrics, including safety
observations, to reduce risk.

Spectris plc Annual Report and Accounts 2019 L



Sustainability Report continued

Environment

We consider that the impact that

we, and our supply chain, have on the
environment is an integral part of

who we are as a business and in turn,
SUPPOrts our custormners' environmental
impact, Key sources of energy
{electricity, gas, oil and steam} are
monitored throughout the Group te
allow us 1o be continually mindful of our
energy consumption and ways that this
consumption can be reduced. Energy
efficiency lenergy use per £m revenue)
remains one of our KPIs and is key to
our aperational excellence as set out

on page 19. In 2019, energy use per £m
revenue increased by 9% compared to
2078, This is due to an increase in total
energy consumption, partiy as a result
of the inclusion of Concept Life
Sciences ('CLS) for the first time.

The tables below set out our
performance in 2019. The online
reporting tool introduced in 2018

has been fundamental to further
enhance our understanding of the
environmental impact of our business.
We wiil use this improvement in the
quality of our data to create targets and
action plans for the improvement in our
emissions during 2020 and beyond,

Overall, our carbon footprint decreased
by 0.4%. The inclusion of CLS data
accounts for 3.6% of the total footprint,
and on a like-for-like basis, emissions
have reduced by 4% during the year.

Scope 1 emnissions increased by 17%
partly due to an increase in vehicle
travel emissions and also as a result
of the inclusion of CLS. This increase

is partly due to improved reporting of
vehicle travel in 2019. Scope 2 emissions
decreased by 2% despite an increase
in etectricity consumption in 2019.
Reducing our electricity consumption
will be a further area of focus as this
will have both environrmentat and
financial benefits.

As a starting point, we intend to
implerment the recommendations
made during the recent ‘Energy Saving
Opportunities Scheme' audits that
have been carried out across the
Group. Scope 3 emissions decreased by
8%, predominantly as a result of
reduced staff travel This aligns both
with our financial and envirenmental
objectives on employee travel,
Greenhouse gas ('GHG’) emissions for
the Group as a whole remained broadly
in fine with 2018, with a 0.4% reduction
overall. Emissions per £m of revenue
reduced by 2%. In 2018, the revenus

for CLS was included but no data

for carbon emissions.

In addition to the data we collect for
reporting purposes, we also continue
10 assimilate waste data relating to our
sites including landfill, incineration and
recycling and we will continue to focus
on refining and improving reporting of
waste data during 2020,

Ricardo Energy & Environment
{'Ricardo’l has independently verified
the data associated with energy
consumption, GHG emissions,
company vehicles and air travel. We

are confident in the systems we have
in place to measure, monitor and report
our energy use. The ¢arkon footprint
data collection and calculation
methodology covers the period from
1January to 31 December 2019 and was
conducted in accordance with the GHG
Protocol Corporate Accounting and
Reporting Standard {revised edition},
and the UK Cavernment Conversion
Factars for Company Reporting 2019,

Spectris continued to participate in

the Carbon Disclosure Project {CDPY)
in 2019. Our participation is important
to both us and our shareholders and
we recogrise the need to remain
accountable and transparent in respect
of our environmental reporting. During
2019, the Group received a rating of 'C’
(compared to a'C-' rating in 2018).

We will continue to work to improve
the quality of our environmental data
and use this to set future targets and
suitable environrnental KPls.

in December 2012, the Board
considered the Group's climate change
and environmental risk profile. In
addition, in light of the ernerging focus
on the Task Force on Climate Related
Financial Disclosure ("TCFD'), severai
actions have been agreed to the
additional disclosures by 2022 and
support the TCFD requirements. These
steps include:

« using the improved data that has
been collected since 2018 to consider
the expansion of emissions reporting
and the possibility of setting suitable
enviranmental KPLs,

setting targets in collaboration with

the Platforms to ensure the focus is

beneficial to all parties;

- peer benchmarking exercise of KPls
and consideration of the benefits ofa
publicly disclosed strategy on clirmate
change; and

. workshops with our businesses,
facilitated by Ricardo, to establish how
the Group can bast assess the short-,
medium- and long-term financial
impacts of climate change.

Performance summary

Indicator 2019 2018 Changs
Energy consumption {absolute) (MWh) 7984 106,659 %
Energy efficiancy (MWh per £m ravenue) 72 £6.5 9%
Creenhouse gas emissions (tannes CO.a) 82,537 82,861 %
Total carbon emissions (tonnes COe par £m ravenue) s 52 -2%
Energy consumption
Unit of measurement - MWh 2019 2008 Change
Electricity 89931 76,823 7%
Gas 9134 10,312 -11%
Qil 2687 274 ~19%
Steamn 16,171 16613 3%
Other fuels [2]] 197 -69%
Greenhouse gas emissions (tonnes CO.e)
Unit of measurement - tohnes CO, #quivalem 2019 2008
Scopel .07 13,738
Scope2 36669 37,425
Seope 3 29797 31699
Total gross emissions 82,537 B82.86)
51 52

Total carbon emnissions per £m revehue

52 Spectris plc Annual Report and Accounts 2019



Ethics

Culture

Ethical behaviour is integral to the
culture of Spectris. We recognise that
the way we conduct our business

and how we treat owr employees and
customers has a direct impact on

the culture and performance of the
organisation. We therefore demand the
highest standards from our employees,
partners and supptiers at all times.,

‘We ensure that our interral control
framework and ethics and compliance
programme operate effectively in
promoting a strong cuiture.

When considering acquisitions and
disposals, a key focus for the Board is
selecting opportunities that align with
the Spectris approach to ethics and
compliance and the Group's Values.

Ethical leadership

The Board and Executive tearn set

the tone for the Group's approach

to ethics and compliance and both
bodies regularly review this approach.
The Group's Lega), £thics ang
Compliznce team meet regularly to
share learning experiences and best
practice. During 2019, the Group has
strengthened its Legal, Ethics and
Compliance teams, both at Head Office
and across the Group to assist with the
implementation of the Group's Ethics
and Compliance Enhancement
Programme, including the revision

of the Code of Business Ethics and its
supporting behavioural-based training.

Ethics and compliance in 2019

During 2019, a significant project was
undertaken to refresh, condense and
digitalise our Code of Business Ethics.
The output of this project was approved
by the Board in December 2019, ahead
of a planned roll-out in early 2020. Akey
part of the refreshment process has
been the consideration of how to
embed knowledge of the new Code
throughout the Croup in the most
impactful way. The new Code will

be available in 12 languages and
communicated through a number of
digital and traditional communication
programmes throughout 2020,

Also, an extensive training and
communication programme wil
further embed the approach.

Sustainability Report

In 2019, the Croup cormmenced

a programme 1o review all of its
third-party distributors and sales
representatives with the aim of
monitoring the ongoing compliance
of such third parties and to regularly
enhance our compliance policies and
processes. This review is progressing
weil and together with the introduction
of compliance enhancements, will
continue during 202Q.

Throughout 2019, the Executive
Cornmittee continued its practice

of commencing every meeting with a
discussion on ethics and safety matters
and this practice is encouraged across
the Group.

Employee experience

Employeas are encouraged to raise
any issues that arise inthe course of
their work and discuss these issues
with their managers. We recognise
the importance of making sure

our employees feel supported and
comfortable to report wrongdaoing in
good faith with the knowledge that
their managers and ethics officers are
trained and confident in discussing
such concerns with employees.

Sgectris also has a confidenitial,
independent helpline that employees
and stakeholders can use o raise
cancerns anonymeusly if they wish.
Our helpline reporting processes
are regularty reviewed to make sure
these continue to be effective.
Reports received from all sources
are investigated fully and there is a
commitrnent 1o address alf concerns
made in gooed faith. The Audit and
Risk Committee receives regular
updates, at least twice a year, with
the Board undertaking an annual
review. Following the conclusion of
any investigation process, additional
guidance, training or disciplinary
action rmay be taken as appropriate,
and the impact of any actions is
closely monitored by sepior
mahagement. Root causes are
identified and addressed.

Spectris ple Annual Report and Accounts 2018
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Reporting

During 2019, the total number of
reports received by the Spectris
Helpline was 54 (20i8: 25). The Board
and Executive Committee are
cornmitted to encouraging an open
"speak up” culture. The Ethics &
Campliance team ensure that ali of our
people are aware of and are confident
to use the channels available to

them to report any concerns. During
2020, and fallowing the launch of

the new Code of Business Ethics,

the Ethics & Compliance team will
spend time ensuring that the Spectris
Helpline continues 1o be effective and
improving knowledge across all areas
of the Group.

Number of helpline reports
received in 2019

2008, 25
2007 24
206! 1
2005, B

Continuous training and education
Spectris maintains a comprehensive
training programme across the

Group with all employees required

to complete mandatory training on
the Code of Business Ethics and its
requirernents. Training modules
covering Anti-Bribery and Corruption,
Export Controls, Fair Competition,
Data Privacy and the prevention of tax
evasion are deployed on a risk-based
basis. Training is completed at the point
that empioyees join Spectris and at
regular intervals thereafter.

Training is currently comprised of
onling learning modules as well as
group workshops. As a key part of the
refreshment of the Code, a new suite
of training materials wilt be launched
in early 2020 including an enhanced
digital offering.

The Strategic Report was appraved by
the Board on 19 February 2020.

By order of the Board -
M s‘d-‘t’c"

Mark Serfozé
Company Secretary
19 February 2020



Covernance

Board of Directors

Qo
Mark Williamson (62}
Chairman

Appointed: May 2017
Nationality: British

Skills and expertise

Mark Williamsen is a qualified accountant with

a strong financial backgreund combined with
considerable managerial experience. He was chief
financlal efficer of International Power plc until 2012
and is experienced in managing relationshipng with
the investor and financial communities. Heis a
former senior indapendent pon-executive director
and chairman of the audit commititee of Alent ple.
Mark was chairman of irmperizi Brands ple untit

1 January 2020,

External appointments

He is currently senior independent non-executive
director and chairman of the audit committee of
National Grid pic,

Committee membership key'

Audit and Risk
Nomination
Remuneration

Disclosure

Executive

Chairman of a committee

000 e

¥ AsatlJanuary 2020

00
Andrew Heath (56)
Chief Executive

Appointed: September 2018
Nationality: British

$kills and expertise

Andrew brings a wide range of executive and
leadership expertise 10 S5pactris, with proven
exparience in technology-enabled businesses
and a track record of delivering sharehoider
value. He previously served as CEC of imagination
Technologies Group ple from 2016 10 2018 and
befare that was CEO of Alent pic.

Prior tg this, Androw had a 30-year cateer

with Rolis-Royce where he heid a number of
international and senior management roles,
latwerly serving as the president of energy from
2000 1o 2015,

Andrew has 2 BSC in enginearing frem imperiat
College London and an MBA from Loughborough
University.

Externa) appointments

Nore.

o0

Russell King {62)

Non-executive Directar,

Senior iIndependent Disector,
Remuneration Committee Chairman
and Workforce Engagement Director

Appointed: October 2010
Nationality; Briugh

Skills and expertise

Russel| King has considerable international
experignce acquired across a number of sectors,
including mining and chericals, together

with strong experience in strategy and

human resources.

Ameng other roles, he was previously chief strategy
officer of Angle American PLC and a non-execulive
director of Anglo Platinum Ltd. Priar te that, he
spent maore than 20 years in senios roles at ICH
Russellwill retire from Spectris plc in May 2020.

External appointments

Russelis chairman of Humminghbirg Resources plc,
non-executive director of Ricarde plc and an
independent non-executive at BOO LLP.
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- 10)
Perek Harding (46}
Chief Financialt Officer

Appointed: March 2009

Nationality: British.

skills and gxpertise

Derek brings a wide range of financial leadership
and industrial expertise to Spectris. In addition

to his responsibifity for Greup finance operations
woridwide, he also leads the operational
management of Spectrls Asia; Group Risk
Management; investor Relations; Group IT; Supply
Chain and the Group's Capital Allecation process.

He most recently served as group finance director
at Shop Direct. Derek was CFO st Senior pic fram
2013 to 2077 and before that, he was at Woiseley pk
for Myears in a number of financial leadership roles,
MmOt recently as finance ditector of Wolselsy UK.
He pravicusly held a number of group roles
including group financial controlter, director of
Group strategy &nd investor relstions, and head

of mergers and acquisitions. Derek qualitied as

a chartered accountant with Pwl,

External appointments
Nons.

T
00

Bill Seeger (68)

Non-executive Director and Audit and Risk
Cormmittee Chairman

Appointed: January 2015
Nationality: American

Skills and expertise

81l Seeger has significant corporate finance and
accounting experience. Bitl was group finance
directar of GKN ple and, prior to that, president

and CEC of the propulsion systems and special
progucts division and CFQ in the perospace division
of GKN. He spent most of his career at TRW, iatterly
in senior finance roles, including as vice-president,
tinancial planning and analysis, and vice-president,
finance, of TRAW Automative.

External appointments

Bill is s$enior independent non-executive director
and chair of the remunaration committee of Smiths
Group pic and lecturer at UCLA Anderson School

of Managernent.



00
Karim Bitar (55}
Non-executive Director

Appointed: July 2017
Nationality: Arnerican

Skills and expertise

Karim Bitar has extensive experience of leading
international, techrology-focused organisations.
He was appointed as chief executive officer of
ConvaTec Group PLC, a leading global medical
technology company, in Septamiber 2019, Prios to
this, he was the chief executive of Genus plc, an
agricultueal bistechnology company. Before joining
Cenus, Karinn worked for more than 15 years for £l
Lilly and Company, where he was prestdent of Lilly
Europe, Canada and Australia.

An ex-McKinsey and Company consuitant, he also
held management reles at Johnson and Johason
and the Dow Chemical Company.

External appointments

Karim is chief executive of ConvaTec Graup PLE
and a membwr of the University of Mithigan Ross
Sthool of Busingss Advisary Board.

00
UIf Quellmann {54)

Non-executive Director

Appointed: Jarwary 2015
Nationatity; German

Shills and expertise

UlIf Quellmann has breoad genesal management
experience and considerable knowledge of the
metals, minerals and mining industry, having
worked in the sectar for more than 16 years. He
was vice president, strategic projects of the copper
and dismonds product group at Rio Tinto gic and,
before that, chief financial offices of the copper
and diamonds product group,

He was also group treasurer fram 2008 to 2016. He
has held senior positions at Alcan Inc. intluding vice
president, investor retations and media relations,
and chief pension investment officer and assistant
treasurer, and senior management poasitions at
General Motors, in both the USA and the UK.

External appeintments

UIf is cutrently chief executive officer of Turquolse
Hill Resources Limited, {2 company listed on the
Toronto and Mew York Stock Exchanges),

Board of Directors

Cathy Turner [56)
Non-executive Director

Appointed: September 2019
MNationality: British

Skilis and expertise

Cathy Turner is an experieénced non-executive
director with significant industry knowledge of HR
and remuneration matters, having served as group
HR director at Barclays plc where she was alsc

a mernber of the group executive committee. At
various times, her responsibilities alse included
group strategy and investor relations, Her maost
recent executive role was as chief administration
officer at Lloyds Banking Group plc where she was
responsible for a number of carporate functions.
Cathy previously served as a nen-executive director
and chair of the remuneration committee at
Countrywide for six years.

External appointments

Cathy is a non-executive director and ¢hair of the
remuneration cormmitteg at Aldermore Bank and a
non-executive dirgctor and chalr of the
remuneration committee at Quilter pic. She isalsoa
partnar at the senior advisory organisation,
Manchester Square Partners.

o0
Martha Wyrsch (62)
Non-executive Director

Appointed: June 2012
Nationality: American

Skills and expertise

Martha Wyrsch has held a numbaer of senior
exgoutive positions in the energy industry and
has significant experience in North American
markets, Until March 2019, Mactha was executive
vice-president and general counsel of Sempra
Energy, 3 company duoted on the New Yark Stock
Exchange. Previously, she was president of Vestas
Armneticas, a subsidiary of Vestas Wind Systems A/5,
and prior to that she was president and CEO of
Spectra Enargy Transmission. She was previously
a non-executive director of SPX Corporation.

External appointments

Martha is a director of the Cristo Rey Network {a US
non.profit educational foundation), a non-executive
director of Quanta Services, Inc., a non-executive
director of First American Financist Corporation
and a non-executive director of Nabie Energy, Inc..

-1
Kjersti Wiklund (57)

Non-executive Director

Appointed: January 2017
Nationality: Norwegian

Skills and expertise

Kjersti wiklund brings significant knowledge of the
international telecommunicetions sector. Kjersti
has held a series of senior global roles, including:
director, growp technology operations at Vodafone;
chief operating officer of VimpelCom Russia;
deputy chief executive officer and chief technolagy
officer of Kylvstar In Ukraine; executive vice-
president and chief technolegy officer of Digl
Tetecommunications in Malaysia: and executive
vice-president and chief information afficer at
Telenor in Norway. Kjersti was previously a
non-executive director of Laird picin the UK,
Cxense ASA and Fast Search 8 Transfer ASA in
Norway and Telescience inc in the USA.

External appointments
Kjerstiis a non-executive director of Babcock
International Group PLC and Trainne plc.

E,

®e

Mark Serfézd
General Counse! and
Company Secretary

Appointed: October 2017

Mark jolned Spectris from Rolls-Royce where he
served as director of rigk for four years and before
that he spent 18 years at BAE Systermns plc where he
helkd a2 number of senior legal positions including,
latterly, the rote of group chief counsel compliance
and regulation.

Mark qualitied as a solicitor in 199Q and is @ member

of the University College London Centre for Ethics
and Law Advisory Board.
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Govarpance

Chairman’s introduction

“we have worked closely with Executive
Management to redefine the Group's
mission, vision and values which will
underpin the Group’s &#volving cuiture
under the new leadership team.”

Reporting in
accordance with the
2018 UK Corporate
Governance Code

Mark Williamson
Chairman

During 2019, the Board has continued
to focus on the creation of long-term
sustainable vaiue for shareholders

and other stakeholders through the
approval and enactment of the Group's
strategy for profitable growth. The
Board worked closely with managerment
during the lead up to the Capital
Markets Day in June to develop and
articulate the Group's strategy. We
hawve focused closely on feedback
received from stakeholders, including
investors and employees, following the
announcement of the strategy and the
first steps taken to enact it, including
the divestment of BTG,

During the second half of 2019, the
Board worked with the newly
appointed management team to
redefine the Group's mission, vision
and values that will underpin the
strategy and support the formation of
the Group's evolving culture. The Board
has been cognisant of the amount of
change taking place in the business
through both management transition
and the enactrnent of the new
strateqgy. The Board has also
rmaintained a keen focus during the
year on the impact of this change on
employees, This has included a review
of the outcome and action plan
surrounding the Group's first global
leadership empioyee pulse survey. In
our visits to HBK and Ormega this year,
the Board also spent time with both
the leadership teams and wider groups
of employees to better understand the
risks and opportunities presented by
the strategy.

In December 2019, the Board was
pleased to note the progress made

in the development of the Croup’s
Ethics and Compliance Enhancement
Prograrmme and approved the
refreshed Code of Business Ethics
which will sit alongside the new Group
values. The process undertaken to
establish the new values and the
refreshed Code is explained in more
detail on page 59.

This is the first year that the Company
has been required to comply with the
2018 UK Corporate Governance Code
{the ‘Code’) and 3 guide to how the

Board has led the Company's
compliance with the Code is set out
on the right of this page.

Board composition

and succession planning

Following Russell King's decisian ta
retire from the Board ahead of the
2020 Annual General Meeting {AGM’),
a detailed review of the Board's
succession plans was undertaken.
Foliowing this review, it was agreed
that Kjersti Wiklund would succeed
Russelt King as Workforce Engagement
Director in January 2020; and Bill
Seeger would succeed Russell as
Senior Independent Director {'SID) in
March 2020. An external search process
was also undertaken which led to

the appoaintment of Cathy Turner ta
the Board in September. Cathy will
assume the role of Chairrman of the
Remuneration Committee in March
2020. More information on this
process is set out in the Nomination
Cormrnitiee report on page 63.

| would like to take this opportunity to
recognise Russell's pivotal contribution
to the Board over the past nine years.
As Chairrman of the Rermuneration
Committee, he steered the Board
through a significantly changing
remuneration landscape and as SID,
e provided vitat leadership during
the previous Chairman's period of
illness and in his oversight of the
process which led 1o my appointment.
He will be greatly missed by the

Board from both a personal and
professional perspective,

Director re-election

With the exception of Russeli King,
all Directors will be standing for
election or re-election at the 2020
AGM and we look forward to your
continued support.

The Board and 1 appreciate our
interactions with shareholders and
welcome your cornments on this
Corporate Governance Report and on
the 2013 annual Repoft and Accounts.

Mark Williamsen
Chairman
19 Fepruary 2020
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Composition, succession
luation

Corporate Governance Code * -

Statement of Compliance

As a UK premiurn listed
cornpany, Spectris plc is’ -
expected to comply or explain
any non-compliance with the
2018 UK Corporate Governance

.

Code, published by the FRC, .._

and available on its website,
www.frcorg.uk. The Board .
considers that the Company
complied fully with the Cade
throughout the year ended
31 December 2019,
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Board and Executive Committee structure _ , -

t= The governance of the Group is structured through the Board and a series of cornmittees
that approve, review, chalienge and monitor the strategies and pelicies under which the Groun
operates, The structure and responsibilities of these Baard and management committees, {
and a summary of their responsibi!iti_e_as, are iflustrated in the diagram below:, . . ... ._

Board Committees

Governance

Audit and Risk
Responsible far overseeing

the financial reporting process,
significant accounting judgements
' and estimates, the Group’s ethics

and compliance programme,
financial and compliance controls

and risk management

L R

—r

Nomination
Responsible for advising on
succession matters and talent
management for the Board, Group
Executive and senior rnanagement

Management Committees

- - r—

Remuneration
Responsible for recornmending the
policy for the remuneration of the
Chairman, the Executive Directors
and the Executive Committee
members, in the context of
considering the pay and conditions
of the wider workforce

N

A 4

-
Executive _ Disclosure
Responsible for the day-to-day Rasponsible for the identification
management of the and disclosure of inside information
- ) Group's operations l and for ensuring that
' announcements comply with
; i applicable regulatory requirements
Board and Committee attendance
Audit and Risk Remuneration Nomination

Board Committes Committee Commitlee AGM [« 2]
Mark Williamson 9/9 nfa nfa 4/4 Y ¥
Andrew Heath 9/9 nfa n/a nfa Y ¥
Darek Harding' k¥4 nfa nfa n/a ¥
Russall King s/ nfa /5 4f4 v ¥
Karim Bitert _ . . - - afp - -3/3 . GG I - N e UL
UIfQuelimann 9/0 &fdy 5/5 &/4 Y Y
Bil Seeger 9/9 4i% nla 44 : ¥ Y
Cathy Turner 33 nfa wn L4 nja R
Llve Watson! 2/2 n/a ' nfa n/a n/a nfa
Kjarsti Wiklund? . 9/9 212 s/ 4f4 Y Y
Martha Wyrsch a/9 4[4 nfa &f4 ¥ ¥

1 Derek Hardin'g was appointed on 1 March 2619. Clive watson retired on 25 March 2019,

2 Karim Bitar stepped down from the Audit and Risk Committea folfowing the meeting on 25 July 2019 and Kjersti Wikiund joined the Committae

on the same date.
3 Cathy Turner was appolnted as a Director and rmember of the Remuneration and Nomination Committess on 1 September 2019,

4 Karim Bitar was unable o attend the AGM in May due to persenal commitments and the General Megting in Decermbar due to his commitments

as chief executive of ConvaTec PLC.

Board and Committees
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Governance

Board activity

.

—————————— i — = e -— - - —

The Board is collectively responsnble for the long-term
success of the Company. This is achieved through the
appropriate consideration of strategic, operational, financiat
and risk matters, setting the Group's strategy. overseeing its
delivery and establishing the purpose, values and citure of
the Group. This page details the focus of the Board during

e e ——— et —

Other key areas of focus

Operations and risk

Undertook deep-dive reviews of
each platform and the IS division
Held site visits at HBK {Naerumy)
and Omega (Connecticut) and
met with the platform leadership
tearns and wider emnployee groups

- Received presentations from
memtyers of the leadership team
and subject-matter experts,
including presentations on research
and development, IT and cyber
security

< Lndertook a considered review of
each principai risk and approved
changes to the Group's principal
risks to reflect the new strategy and
then reviewad the systems currently
in place for the identification,
managerment and mitigation of
those risks

- Considéred sustainable, long-term
vaiue for shareholders, customers
and stakeholders in the oversight
of the Gtoup's strategy, including
close monitoring of investor and

! empioyee feedback

1

L. ...

Strategic focus during 2019

2019 in support of these responsibilities.

Leadership and people

Appomtment and induction
of new Chief Fimancial Officer

- Discussed the composition of
the Board and its Committees,
including succession planning

- Reviewed and agreed a suitable
succession plan ahead of Russell
King's planned retirerment from
the Board

- Appointment and induction

of a new Non-executive Director

Reviewed and considered the

Group's response ta the 2019

Hampton-Alexander Raview

- Undertook a deep-dive review of
the Croup’s 'talent and capabilities’
principal risk

- Reviewed the results of the first
giobal leadership pulse survey and
proposed action pltan to address
issues raised

+ Agreed and received sharehoider
approval for the 2020 Remuneration
Policy

.

Finance

Monitored progress against the 2012
fmanctai plan and considered and
approved the 2020 financial plan

- Approved the Annual Repaort,
interim results and fuli/half-year

£8 Speéctris ple Annuat Report and Accounts 2019
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Qur stakehoiders .
e Sharehalders . ‘
Paapla . . . :‘
Commihity ‘ !
Customers i

e Suppliers and partners

The icons Indicate which stakeholders
the Board has considered when
making decisions, Further detail of the
Group's stakeholder profife is set out
on Pages 48 W 49.

results presentations to analysts

- Considered and approved the

Group'sgoing concernand e e

« Raviewed the dividend policy

i
1
viability staterments - ' ;
|

and recommended the final
and interim dividends

« Reviewed and approved .

- Reviewed material capital

Governance and ethics

-

- Planned for the 2019 external Board
+ Undertook a detalled review of the' o f
+ Reviewed and approved the

- Reviewed the Group's approach

- Reviewed ongoing litigation

management’s proposed future -
capital allocation strategy

expenditure 1equests

Reviewed results of the 2008 X
internal Board evaiuation and
agreed a suitable action plan

evaluation with Lisa Thomas of
Independent Board Evaluation

establishment of the Group's new
Ethics and Compliance Programme

terms of reference for the Board
Committees

to compliance with the 2018 UK
Corporate Governance Code

matters

+ Received updates on corporate |

governance and key legal and
regulatary matters from the General
Counsel and Company Secretary



Oversight and development of the Group’s culture

As part of the Board's responsibility
for setting the Croup's strategy,
purpose and values, the Board is also
responsible for ensuring that these
are aligned with the CGroup's culture.

During 2019, the Board considered
in detail the alignment of the
Group's culture and its strategic
direction under the new Strategy
for Profitable Growth.

Following the development of

the new strategy, the Board and
Executive Committee considered

it to be necessary to redefine and
communicate the type of company
that we wanted to be, In support of
this consideration, a detailed-and
externally faciliated process was
undertaken by the Executive
Committee to articulate the purpose
and values that would be core to the
success of the Group. This process
inciuded several internal global
workshops with feedback received
from over 150 employees in more than
20 countsies representing all platforms
and the majority of operating companies
in the Industrial Solutions division.

Our purpose

As part of the process outlined above,
the Board endorsed management’s
recommendation that the Group's
mission statement be defined as
'Detlivering vatue beyond measure”.
The Board was satisfied that this
staternent spoke effectively to the
core aims of the Group, those being:

- Delivery ~ delivering on our
commitrnents every day;

+ Value - fof our customers,
shareholders, employees and the
environment; and

» Beyond measure — which we define
as "delivering rmore than expected”.
Going beyond just the
measurement; highlighting the
importance of growing our
synergistic software, analytics and
services offerings.

Our values

The Board warked closely with the
management team to refine and
finalise the Group's proposed values.
Our new values articulate our aim

of being a8 world-class, sustainable
business that is focused on serving
our customers and other stakeholders.

Board activity

The Group has a proud history of
acting with absolute integrity and the
Board and management team were
keen to preserve and further this
legacy in the setting of the Group's
values. When revising and updating
the Group's Code of Business Ethics,
the Board and Executive Committee
ensured that the behaviours required
of all employees were aligned with the
Group's values. The new Group values
will be cormmunicated to employees
in the first guarter of 2020.

How does the Board track the
cultural health of the business?
An open and ethical culture is
fundamental to the way in which
we operate. It s shared across all
our businesses and operations and
as a Board. We regularly review and
monitor the health of our culture
using the following tools:

- employee engagement surveys
throughout the Group;

- reviewing cases from the Group’s
independent Ethics helpline and
understanding how root causes are
being addressed;
informat lunches with empioyees
during site visits;

- reviewing empiloyee turnover rates,
and

- considering the net promaoter scores
of each piatform as part of the deep
dive business reviews to assess
customer feedback.

Workforce Engagement Director

tn 2019, Russell King was appointed as
the Board's first dedicated Workforce
Engagement Director (‘WED') in
response o the requirements of the
new Code. The Board has agreed that
a key element of the role of the WED
will be the informal monitoring of the
Group's developing culture, beyond
the tools being reviewed by the
Board as a whole. Spectris defines

its workforce in line with the FRC
Guidance on Board Effectivenass, and
includes individuals engaged under
contracts of service, agency workers,
and remote workers, regardless of
their geographica! location.

Governante

A selection of the key activities
conducted by the WED during 2013
is set out below:

- informal meetings with employees
from a cross section of roles and
perspectives;

- meeting with the HR Director at
HBK to better understand the
progress of the merger, the impact
on employees and how this was
being managed by the leadership
team; and
review of the planned approach to
the Group's first global leadership
puise survey with the Group HR
Director prior te launch.

The Board received updates on the
progress of these engagement
activities during 2019. Ahead of
Russeil’s retirernent frorm the Board,
Kjersti Wiklund has been appointed
as the Board's WED. Throughout 2020,
Kjersti will work with the Executive
team to further define and build the
profile of the role within the
organisation. This will include:

+ visiting the Group's facilities in Asia
on behalf of the Board and meeting
with employee groups;

+ understanding from an employee
perspective the key challenges
facing the Group around diversity;

- spending tme with the Group's
ethics teamn to better understand
the trends and themes arising
from cases raised to the Croup's
Ethics helpline;

- reviewing the results of the pulse
surveys and ensuring the
appropriate action is being taken;
and

. disctssing thawhistieblowing
process with emplovees across
the Group and ensure it is readily
accessible and effective.

Stakeholder engagement

A key element of the Group's culture
Is the effective collaboration and
engagement with the Group's
stakeholders. Consistent and
meaningful stakeholder engagement
continues to be recognised by the
Directors as integral to the Company's
ongaing success and serves to meet
our obligations under section 172 of
the Companies Act 2006 as well as the
Code. Further details on the Group's
stakeholder engagement and the
Board's section Y72 statement are sat
out on pages S, 48 and 49.
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Govermance

Board effectiveness

: ' Informed
decision-
* - making
\',
- ~
Fd .
v .,’
o Access to Training and
© 1 thepusi development
% .
\ /

informed decision-making

The Chairman is supported by the
Ceneral Counsel and Company
SecTetary in ensuring the gissernination
of accurate, timely and clear infarmation
ta the Baard, allowing it to function
effectively and afficiently. The General
Counsel and Company Secretary is
responsible for ensuring compliance
with appropriate laws and regulations
and is available to support all of the
Directors, Directars may solicit
independent, professionat advice at

the Company's expense where specific_
expertise may be required to offectively
discharge their duties.

ARLEEs to the business

The Board undertakes a dasp-riive
review with the leadership of each
platform and the Industrial Sclutions
division at least annually. Additionally,
each year the Board meets on-site at
nng or e of the businaases, Duaid
visits include a tour of the relevant
faciiity, overviews of key products with
their deveiopers, B deep-dive 1eview of

the business with the wider leadarship
team and the opportunity to meet
infarmally with emplayees. Dusing 2019,
the Board visited Omegas in Connecticut,
USA and HBK in Nagrum, Denmark.
Further details are set out on page 61.

Training and development

New Directors receive a formal,

tailored and comprehensive induction
programme on jeining the Board and
further training 2nd development needs
are reviewed by the Chairman and
agreed at least annually, The Board
receives detailed technical updates in
relarion to corpcrate governance and
other legal and reguilarney topice frem
imtoraat and externat specialists, An
oxtarnal speakar prosnanone brings ~ o
thought leadership 1o Board discussions

on a variety of emerging themes and

tepics. In 2019, thase topics includod

a discussion on the future of work

let bY LooLke and a review of the
MAC/QICONRMIN DIVIMOAMENT Felévaiil '
to the Group’s key markets, led by

i1 EConomics.

The effectiveness of the Board is monitored

through annual Board evaluation

Board evajuation

As requited by the Code, the Board
undertakes an annual evaluation
of its effectiveness.

2018 evaluation process

and outcomes

In 2018, the Board evaluation was led
by the Chairman and inciuded a review
of the effectiveness of the Board
Committees and individual Directors.

The Board reviewed the findings of the
2018 evaluation at key junctures during
the year and built actions arising from
the evaluation process into the annual
Board planner (o ensure that progress
was made. Key activities undertaken in
response 1o the cutcomes of the Board
evaluation process included:

+ undertaking mitestone reviews of
the enactment of the new strategy
and monitoring ongoing stakeholder
engagement;
clarification of the Group's operating
model as part of the Group's
strategic review,;

- introduction of a robust capital
allocation framework, a summary of
which was included in the Capital
Markets Day presentation;

further development of origoing
interacuion between the Board,
operating compary management
and tha wider senior leadership
popudation to further the Board's
understanding of the skilis ang
capabilities within the Group;
succession planning for
Non-executive Directors and the
role of Remuneration Cormmittee
Chairman, inciuding notable focus
on the Board's existing skills and
diversity,;

consideration of the agendas for
Board and Committee meetings
to allow for more focused meetings
and more open debate;

definition and refinement of the
Group's risk agpetite and each of
the Principal Risks to ensure these
aligned with the revised strategic
direction;

ongoing Board exposure to the
Group's approach 1o health and
safetly matters, and

development of a programme of
external speakers on a variety of
topics in the interest of continued
Board development.
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20719 Board evaluation process

The 2019 Board evaluation was
externally facilitated by Lisa Thomas
from Independent Board Evaluation
and the process took place between
November 2019 and February 2020.
Neither Lisa Thomas nor Independent
Board Evalvation have any other
connection with the Company or
ndividual Directors,

The 2019 evaluation buiit on the
outcomes of the 2018 evaluation and
considered the Board's compaosition,
diversity and effectiveness. Each Board
Committee was also reviewed as part
of the externat evaluation process.
Initial feedback and recommendations
from the external evaluation were
presented to the Board for discussion
in February 2020, and it was agreed
that key acticns would be defined
based on that discussion and that
those actions would form part of the
Board's agenda for 2020.

The Chairman and the SID reviewed
the performance of each member

of the Board and provided feedback
and the SID ted the Non-executive
Directors in a review of the performance
of the Chairman. it was agreed

that each Director continued to
contribute effectively.
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Covernance

Board composition

As at 31 December 2013, the Board comprised seven
Non-executive Directors in addition to the Chairrnan and
two Executive Directors. A diagram showing the tenure
of each of the Diractors is set out below.

Board changes

Russell King compieted his nine-year tenure on the

Board in October 2019 and he will retire from the Board at
the 2020 ACM. The Nomination Committee report opposite
details the succession planning process that led to the
appointment of Kjersti Wiklund as Workforce Engagement
Director from 1 January 2020 and Bill Seeger as Senior
Independent Director {'5ID') from 1 March 2020.

Cathy Turner was appointed to the Board as a Non-
executive Director on 1 September 2019 and joined the
Remuneration and Nomination Committees on the same
date. in accordance with the Board’s agreed succession
pian, Cathy will be appointed as Rermuneration Committee
Chairmarn on Y March 2020.

Director re-election

In considering the recommendation of the election and
re-election of Directors, the Committee considered the
results of the individual evaluation process and noted

that all Directors continued to be effective in contributing
ta the Group's long-term sustainable success. The Board
accordingly recommends to shareholders the appointment
of Cathy Turner and the re-appointment of all Directors, with
the exception of Russell King as cutlined above, at the 2020
AGM, In making this recommendation, the Board, with the
support of the Nomination Cormnmittee, has reviewed any
circumstances which ave likely to impair, or could appear

to impair, a Non-executive Directar’s independence and
has concluded that all Non-executive Directors being
recommended for election and re-election are considered
to be Independent.

External appointments and time commitments

Externai directorships and conflicts of interest are declared
by Directors on appointment and are reviewed at least
annually by the Nomination Comrnittee. A conflicts of
interest register is maintained, evidencing any situational
or transactional conflicts, as well as each Director's
shareholding in the Company. This helps to ensure that
the judgernent of the Board remains uncompromised

and independent.

Any external appointments are considered and approved
by the Board following careful consideration of the impact
on the individual Director's ability to meet the necessary
time commitments. A diagram detailing the current
commitrents of the Board set against the overboarding
criteria included in the 1SS United Kingdom and heland
Proxy Voting Cuidelines is set out oppasite, The Board
considers alt Directors have sufficient time to meet their
Board responsibilities.

Details of the Directors external appointments are

included in their biographies on pages 54 to 55. The Board
appreciates the diverse skilis and experience that can be
gained frorn holding additional directorships and considers
that the obligations of the Board are properly fulfilled.
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Diversity
In December 2019, the Board reviewed its policy on diversity
and inclusion and agreed to adopt the following policy:

"The Board is committed to further promoting diversity and
inclusiveness of all kinds throughout the Group, regardiess
of geography or position. The Beard agrees that diversity,
which should be construed in its broadest sense and
includes gender and ethnic diversity, is an important factor
in Board effectiveness, The Group is a supportive participant
of the Hampton-Alexander Review which sets a target for
the percemage of women on FTSE boards and leadership
tearns to reach one third by 2020. The Board is scheduled

to reach this target during 2020 and intends to maintain

at least one third fernale membership on the Board."

During 2019, the Board considered its approach to the
promotion of diversity both at Board level and within the
Group. Following Russell King's retirement from the Board
in May 2020, the Board will meet the target set out inthe
Hampton-Alexander Review of reaching 33% female
directors on the Board by 2020, It is recognised that diversity
at senior management levels remains an area for significant
improvernent and the Board has spent time during the

yeat working with management to better understand and
develop the action plar to create a more diverse workforce.
Further detail on the initiatives undertaken by management
during the year to promote diversity within the workforce
are set out on pages 50 to 51. Diversity within the Group

will continue to be a priority area for improvement and
progress will continue to be closely monitored by the Board
during 2020.

Overboarding score

Natronality of Directars'

Gender (%}

Board tenure’




Nomination
Committee Report

During 2019, the Committee has continued to take a keen
interest in succession pianning below Board fevel. We have
worked with management to ensure that appropriate
opportunities are in place to develop high-performing
individuals and to build diversity in senior roles across the
Group. From our discussions during the year, the Committee
has obtained greater ciarity and a common understanding
with management oh senior key talent within the Group
and how this talent should be developed and we are
confident that this common understanding will strengthen
the Group's overall capabitities in the near term. The
development of talent will continue to be the subject of
ongoing dialogue during 2020.

The Committee also spent considerable time during 2012
considering and actioning the succession plan for Russell
King, who will step down from the Board in May 2020.
Details of the process undertaken, which led to the
appointrnent of Cathy Turner to the Board as Remuneration
Compnittee Chairman eiect and the selection of Bill Seeger
as the new Senior independent Director, is set out in

this report,

Mark Willlamson
Chairman of the Nomination Committee
19 February 2020

Role of the Committee

The Committee teads the process for Board appointments
and makes recommendations to the Board in this regard.
In fulfilling this role, the Committee evaluates the balance
of skills, experience, independence and knowtedge on

the Board. The Board values diversity and considers the
importance of diversity, in al its forms, when recruiting
new Board members,

The key responsibilities of the Committee are:

+ reviewing the size, structure and composition of the Board;

+ recommending membership of Board Committees;
undertaking succession planning for the Chairman,
Executive Directors and senior management;

- searching for candidates for the Board, and
recommending Directors for appointment;

- deterrnining the independence of Directors;

+ assessing whether Directors are able to commit enough
time to discharge their responsibilities; and

- reviewing the induction and training needs of Directors.

Full terms of reference for the Committee can be found at
www.spectris.com. The Comrnittee’s performance was
assessed as part of the Board's annual effectiveness review,
which was conducted by Lisa Thomas of Independent Board
Evaluation. Further details on the evaluation process are set
out on page 60.

Membership and attendees

Throughout 2019, all Non-executive Directors were members
of the Committee. Meetings are normally attended by the
Chief Executive and Group HR Director [except during any
discussion cf their own role}.

Governance

Activities of the Committee during 2019
During the year, the Committee’s key activities inciuded:

agreeing the succession plan for Russell King's role and
responsibilities ahead of his planned retirement from the
Board in May 2020,

+ the search and selection process for a new Non-executive
Director with suitable experience to be appointed as
Remuneration Committee Chairman, which culminated
in the recommendation of Cathy Turner's appointrnent
to the Board;

- providing continued oversight of a Group-wide
organisational capability review and as part of that
ovearsight process, reviewing and challenging the Group's
talent management and succession planning at a Group
Executive and senior management level,

- considering the independence of each Non-executive
Director and their time commitments; and
undertaking a detailed review of diverse candidates
within the Group's talent pipeline, in support of the Board
diversity policy.

Selection and recommendation of the appointment

of Cathy Turner

Following Russell King's confirmation of his decision to
retire from the Board before the 2020 AGM, the Committee
considered the appropriate succession plan for his roles and
responsibilities, in particular his roles as SID, Remuneration
Committee Chairman and Workforce Engagement Director.

The Committee firstly considered the skills, experience and
time commitments of the existing Non-executive Directors.
Based on this review, it was agreed that Bill Seeger be
recommended to the Board to succeed Russell King as SID
and that Kjersti wiklund be recommended to the Board as
workforce Engagement Director. it was further agreed that
a new Non-executive Director be recruited to complement
the skills, diversity, experience and knowledge of the Board
and that this additional director would, after a suitable
handover period, be appointed as Chairman of the
Remuneration Committee.

The Nomination Committee commenced a process to
identify and appoint a new Non-executive Director and
engaged the expertise of the Lygon Group, an external
search consultancy, to establish a diverse list of candidates,
who were then considered against the specification for

the role. Neither the Cormnpany nor any of the Directors have
any links with the Lygon Group who are a signatory to the
Voluntary Code of Conduct for Executive Search Firms

on gender diversity and best practice.

Members of the Nomination Committee and the Chief
Executive met with a shortlist of candidates in individual
and Group interviews and following a detailed referencing
process chose to recommend the appointment of Cathy
Turner to the Board. Cathy Turner was appointed in
Septernber and has spent several months working with
Russell King on the finalisation of the 2020 Remuneration
Policy and will becorme Chairman of the Remuneration
Committee on 1 March 2020.

2020 Committee focus

During 2020, the Committee will continue to focus

on succession planming and supporting the diverse
composition of the Board, Executive and senior
management popuiation with a particular focus on
leadership development within the platform businesses.
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Gavernance

Audit and Risk
Committee Report

The Committee provides assurance to the Board
on the integrity of financial reporting and oversees
the effectiveness of the internal and external audit
functions and risk management processes.

t am pleased to present the Audit and Risk Commitiee Key areas of focus

report to shareholders which sets out the activities of the The UK Corporate Governance Code requires, on a comply

Committee throughout 2019, These activities have included.  or explain basis, the Comrmittee to report on the significant
assessing the integrity of the Group's financial reporting tmh:t:;if?r: 5‘2?:::{ crl::tr:grtsh\:;t:?r. In 2019, i consider that
processes; P !

- the quality and effectiveness of internal audit and the
Group's systemns of risk management and internal controf;
and
the quality and effectiveness of the external audit.

The Cormmittee has held four meetings during the year,
which aligned with the Croup's financial reporting
timetable. This schedule allowed sufficient time for full
discussion of key 1opics and enabled early identification
and resolution of risks ar_\d issugs, As mentioned in last impairment discu
year's report, the Comrittee will meet for three longer in rotation ta th
meatings in 2020. X

The Committee maintains an annual calendar of activities
ta ensure that all significant areas of risk management
are addressed as well as allowing time for the review of
regulatory developments and emerging best practice.

. : Areview of the progress
As Chairman of the Committee, | meet regularly with of the Ethics and Complia
management, internal audit and the external auditor Enbancement Programme
between Committee meetings. In October, the Board had i N

the opportunity to visit the Omega site, as well as a visit to
MBK earlier an in 20719, During these visits, the Board met

with employees frorn within the businesses, including Membaership and attendance
members of the finance and risk teams. Along with the In kne with the requirements of the Code, the Committee
cther activities the Committee undertakes, these visits is comprised solely of independent Non-executive Directors,
are fundamental for the Committee 1o develop a sound Bill Seager, Martha Wyrsch and Uif Quelimann were all

members ¢f the Committee throughout 2019. Karim Bitar
was a member of the Committee untit 25 July 2019, Kjersti
We welcornecd Andrew Bond as our new audit partner in ;M;ltrlund éom : d ﬂ:;g?m? cltc:::gln ifsh.jfurl‘y 2.?‘]9' ':f;zt' has
March 2019. Details of the Committee’s assessment of the inval?J ng}eai grgr t and chalien esto tl"l: Cw:n:':itt; a's
performance, independence and effectiveness of Deloitte ongoi:g reii:\s of cyber and IT?isks wit hi:the pusiness
can be found on page 68. Following this review, the Bill Seeger is determined by the Committee to have “recent

understanding of the businesses within the Group and
the different risks they may face.

Carnmittee was satisfied that Delaitta remains effectiv . X f . .
inaits role s Deloitie remains effective and relevant financial experience” as required by the Code.
' All members of the Committee are considered to have
As a Committee, a particular focus in 2020 will continue cornpetencies that the Board deems relevant to the sectors
to be on risk management and, in particular, the Group's in which the Company operates.
ongoing enhancements 1o systerns ce and . .
ngoing enha systems of governance a Attendees at meetings normally include:

internal control.
-+ the Chairman

I hope that this review, and the report that follows, is useful h .
to support the understanding of the work of the Cormmittee the Ch@: E}cecut}ve .

. - the Chief Financial Officer
during the year. We encourage shareholder feedback and . the Head of Internat Audit
| look forward to meeting with shareholders at our Annual
General Meeting [AGM') in Ma - the General Counsel and Cornpany Secretary; and

9 Y- - Tepresentatives of the external auditor.

Bill Seeger
Chairman of the Audit and Risk Committee The Committee retains time around each meeting to meet
19 February 2020 separately without management present and invites the

Head of Internal Audit and the external auditor to attend for
part of this session.
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Role of the Committee

The Cornmittee supports the Board in fulfilling its
responsibilities in respect of:

. overseeing the Company’s financial and narrative
reporting processes, including advising the Board where
required on the fair, balanced and understandable
assessment of the information provided;

reviewing, challenging and approving significant
accounting judgements proposed by management;
reviewing and monitoring the way in which management
ensures and oversees the adequacy of financial, risk
management and compliance controls;

the appaintment, remnuneration, independence and
performance of the Greup's external auditor; and

- the independence and performance of internal audit.

Governance

Details of the work carried out by the Committee in
accordance with its terms of reference and in addressing
significant issues are reported to the Board as a matter
of course by the Chairman of the Cormmittee and are
described in this report. Details of the Committee
meeting attendance in 2019 can be found on page 57

of the Annual Report.

The Committee reviews the annual forward agenda and its
terms of reference annually 1o ensure they remain accurate
and effective.

The terms of reference for the Committee can be found
at www.spectris.com.

Key areas of focus in relation to the Financial Statements

The Committee has reviewed the key judgements applied to the following significant issues in the preparation of the
Financial Statements. The table below sets out the issue, its significance, how the Committee considered this and any -

comments and conclusions reached.
Change in Group segments

" Issues and significance

© InJune 2019, at the Capital Markets Day, the Group announced

+ its new Strategy for Profitable Growth, This included a change

¢ to the segmental structure of the Group from 1 July 2019, with

| three platforms identified: Malvern Panalytical, HBK and Omega

! “and the remaining operating companies forming a new division,
Industrial Solutions. At the same time, Concept Life Sciences
['CLS'} and Vi-grade were combined with Malvern Panalvtical and
HBK respectively. In October 2019, restated segmental financial
informaticn under IFRS 8 for the periods to 31 December 2018,

7 30 June 2018 and 30 June 2019 was made available on the
Company's website.

Alternatnve performance measures

lssuoﬁ and signlfleam:o
Ir\ Novermnber 2018, the Group launched the Profit Improvement
f ngramme Costs incurred undar the programmae in 2019 have
. been dlassified as adjusting items to operating profit within
rastructuring. There is a risk that items included could relate
fo underlying trading items, rather than be lnked to one-off
restructuring activities.

The role of the Committee

Tha Committee considered the nature and quantum of the items
included within restructurmg and the controls In place around
the inclusion of such items. The Committee received reports from
. management outlining the details of the nature and amount of

- iterns included within restructuring.

Cm e m e

-—

Audit and Risk Cornmittee Report

The role of the Committee

The Committee considered the presentation of the restated
segmental information and theé new segmental reporting structure
together with a report from management outlining the changes

1o the proposed segmental information.

Comments and conclusions

't he Committee concluded these appropriately reflected the
#nanagemaent and decision-making structure for the Group
from 1 July 2019,

Comments and canchisinne

The Committes canciudard that tha trgatrment of the rectructuring
costs and other one-off items as adjusting items was appropriate
in eroviding a fair and halanced axplanatinn nf rha ynderlying
parformance of the Group.

It wag glso sareed that the profit on disposal ot a property at
Omega during 2009 should be treated as an adjusting item due

to its size.

cece ———
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Audit and Risk Committee Report continued

Key areas of focus in relation to the Financial Statements continued

Review of non-current assets for impairment

* lssues and significance

' Management assessed the catrying value of its cash-generating
units, including detailed value-in-use calculations, to ensure that
the carrying values recognised were supported by future forecast
discounted cash fiows. CLS’s performance was below expectations
during 2019 which required an impairment to both goodwilt and

' imangivle 25515 in the First palf of 2019, The headroom between

* the recoverable amount and the carrying value of Millbrook CGU
is modest and whilst this did not give rise to any impairment,
reasonably possible changes in key assumptions coutd cause an
impairment. Managemeant axpects tha headioom 1o increase in
future periods as the recent capital investments depreciate and the
expected returns on these assets are realised.

, In addition, management assessed the recoverability of its

| recaivable from the Brilel & Kjaer EMS joint venture and has

: conchuded that it be impaired. Other impairments have also been
" recorded arising from the restructuring attivities. Fot ali other

Estimation, uncertainty and judgement

Issues and significance
During the year, the Cammittee received reparts and
recommendations from management to consider the significant
I accounting issues, estimates and judgements applicable to the
+ Group's Financial Staternents and disclosures.

The key risks of estimation disclosed in the Group’s 2019 Financial
Statements are: the assurnptions applied in the calculation

of retirernent benefit plan labitities; provisions for uncertain
exposures and tax positions; and estimates used in the annual
impairment review, The critical accounting judgement discussed
in the Group's 2019 Financial Statements is classification and
presentation of items as restructuring casts.

Further details are set aut in Notes 8, 11,19 and 20 to the
Finarcial Staternents.

The role of the Committee

Management confirmed to the Committee that they were
not aware of any materiat or immaterial misstatements made
intentionaily to achieve a particular presentation:.

Ll

brim:ipal Risks and Uhcertainties

| Issues and significance
During 2019, managernent undertook a holistic review of the
[ appropriateness of the Group's existing Principal Risks and
| suggested changes to reflect the Croup’s approved stratagy
for profitable growth.

The role of the Committee

The Committee reviewed and chaltenged the process foilowed
and the assessments made by management in respect of the
agreament of the Group's Principal Risks and Uncertainties

cash-genevating units, management did not consider there

to be any reasonably possible scenarios that could arise in the
next 12 menths that would result in an impairment charge being
recognised. Further detaifled disclosures are sef out in Notes 1)
and 13 to the Financial Statements.

The role of the Committee

The Commiittee reviewed and challenged assumptions made by
managemant in their assessment of the valuation of goodwill
and intangibie assets . They aiso considerad the external auditot’s
opinioh on the assumptions underpinhing Management’s
estimates and conclusions.

Comments and conclusions

As part of the Group's half year resuits, the Group recognised CLS
as an impaired asset and the Comenittee discussed and agreed
with management the necessary level of disclosure 1o support the
impairment assassmant

The Committee reviewed presentations by management and
questioned Deloitte t¢ understand whethar the external auditar
had, to the Committee's satisfaction, fulfilled its responsibilities.
with diligence and professional sceptic¢ism and in a sufficientiy
robust manner.

Comments and conclusions

After reviewing and challanging the presentations and reports '
from management and consulting, where necessary, with the
external auditor, the Committee is satisfied that the Financial
Statements appropriately addrass oritical judgements and

key estimates {both in respect of the amounts reported and

the disctosures).

The Commitiee was satisfied that the significant assumptions

usad for determining the value of assets and habilities have ’
been appropriately scrutinised and chalienged and are
sufficiently robust.

at its meeting in December. At the same meeting, it alse )
considered the proposed disclosure of these Principal Risks
and Uncertainties in the Annual Report. '

Comments and conciusions

The Committee endorsed the suggested approach from .

management that the Group's Principal Risks and Uncertainties ‘
should reflect the Group's approved Strategy for Profitable Growth.

A number of other jucdigements made by management were also reviewed with the independent auditor, including

the accounting as a result of the sale of EMS Briel & Kjaer on 17 January 2020 and the sensitivity in respect of the
value-in-use headroom calculated in the Miltbrook cash-generating units ('CGU’) impairment review. It was concluded
that the accounting treatment for EMS Brlel & Kjaer should be “held for sale” as at 31 December 2012; and that a disciosure

note would be included in respect of the Millbrook CGU.
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Activities of the Committee during 2019

GCovernance

The Committee has an annual forward agenda developed from its terms of reference. Standing items are considered at
each meeting, in addition to any specific rmatters arising, and topical business or financial items on which the Committee
has chosen to focus. The work of the Committee in 2019 principally fell into three main areas:

L Accounting, tax and financial reporting

- reviewing the integrity of the half-year and annual Financial
Statements and the associated significant financial reporting
judgements, estimates and disclosures;

considering the liquidity risk and the basis for preparing the half
yaar and annual Financial Staternents on a going concern basis,
and reviewing the related disclosures in the Annual Report and
Agcounts;

- considering the provisions of the Code regarding going concern

and viability statements and reviewing best practice and investor
cornment as well as the Group’s Viability Staterment;

- reviewing updates an pensians labilities including the
accounting standard on employee benefits (1A%19);

- the application of the new accounting standard on accounting
for leases (IFRS 16);

- reviewing the processes to assure the inmtegrity of the Annual
Report and Accounts;

2. Risk management and internal controls

- reviewing the management representation letter to the external
auditor and the findings and opinions of the external auditor;

- considering the process designed to ensure the external auditor
is aware of all “relevant audit information®, as required by Sections
418 and 419 of the Companies Act 2006;

assessing the disclosures in relation to internal controls and the
work of the Committee;

- recommending to the Board that the information presented
in the Annual Report and Accounts, when taken as a whole,
is fair, batanced and understandable and contains all relevant
information nacessary for shareholders to assess the Company's
position, performance, business model and strategy and
the processes undertaken to support the disclosure of that
information; and

- the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures
designed to ensure that the Annual Report and Accounts
complies with all relevant legai and reguiatory requirements.

- assessing tha effectiveness of the Group's risk management and
internal control environment and making recormmendations to
the Board;

» reviewing risk management updates from the variaus operating
companies; .

- considering reports from internal audit;

- considering the level of alignment between the Company’s
principal risks and interna! audit programme;

- reviewing the adequacy of resources of the internal audit
function and considering and approving the scope of the internal
audit programme;

- considering the effectiveness of internal audit;

2. External auditor

- reviewing tha Group’s ongeing litigation matters and associated
Provisions;

- reviewing the control procedures in place to comply with the
Groupy's policies an business ethics, anti-bribery, compliance and
fraud, including the steps being taken to enhance the Gioup’s
ethics and compliance programme;

- reviewing matters reported to the external whistieblowing
hotline and the status of associated investigations; and

- considering reports from the external auditor on its assessrment
of the cantrol environment.

Further details of the Group's whistieblowing policy and approachte
the management of ethical conduct are set out in the Sustainability
Report on page 53.

- considering the re-appointment of the external auditor,;

- considering and approving tha audit approach, the scepe of the
audit undertaken by Deloitte as external auditor and the fees for
the same;

- agreeing reporting materiality threshoids;
- reviewing reporis on audit findings;

- considering and approving letters of representation issued to
Deloitte; and

- consgidaring the independence of Delgitte and its effectiveness,
taking into account:

- the Deloitte Audit Quality Inspection Report;

- non-audit work undertaken by the external auditor;

- feedback from a survey targeted at various stakehsiders; and
- the Committee's own assessment.

Audit and Risk Commiittee Report
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Audit and Risk Committee Report continued

Internal control and risk management systems

To assist the Board with its responsibilities 1o effectively
determine the nature and extent of the Group's significant
risks, the Cornmittee carries out a robust annual assessment
of the principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group.
Tne Board remains ultirmately responsible for determining
the nature and extent of the effectiveness of the risk
management and internal controls systern which mitigate
potential impacts on shareholder investments and the
Company’s assets.

Before reporting its findings and recormmendations to the
Board, the Committee:

- evaluates and chalienges the results and
recornmendations of audits undertaken by the internal
audit team and the external auditor; .

- reviews reports received on significant control issues to
the Group and considers and challenges as necessary
the adequacy of management's response to any matters
rajised;

- appraises the Group's response ta information security

and data protection risks;

considers the Group's ethics programme and the

anti-bribery and corruption audit programme;

considers commmon control themes identified throughaut

the business, and where themes are identified, ensures

that subsequent action has been taken to minimise the
risk;

assesses the Group's responsibilities relating to regulated

exposures of the Group;

reviews the annual Audit and Risk Committee agenda;

and

- has oversight of the governance and risk management
framework, including a definition of risk appetite by risk
category and principai risk, put in place throughout the
Group.

The effectivervess of risk rmanagernent and mitigation is
reviewed regularly by the Executive Committee and twice
yearly by the Audit and Risk Committee. The Board notes
that, as with all such systems, the Croup's risk management
and internai controi framework is designed to manage,
rather than gliminate the risk of failure 1o achieve business
objectives, and can provide only reasonable and not
absolute assurance against material rnisstatement or loss,
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Viability Statement

Qur approach to the 2019 Viability Staternent built on the
work carried out last year. Tne Committee reviewed the 2019
Viability Statement in light of factors affecting the duration
over which the viability Statement is made, including:

budgeting, forecasting and strategic planning cycles;

- thetime frame within which our risks are assessed; and
the maturation of the Croup's credit facilities and the
approach taken by our peers.

The Committee remains of the view that the statement
made regarding the Company's viabiiity period continues
10 be an accurate assessment of the Company's viability
as at the date of the report, The Viability Statement can be
found in full on page 47.

Independent assurance

Internal audit

The Committee has oversight responsibilities for the internal
audit function, which is led by the Head of internal Audit.
Itis aiso responsible for monitoring the effectiveness of the
internal audit function.

The purpose of the internal audit function is to provide
independent, objective assurance to add value and improve
the Group's operations. Its responsibilities include assessing
the key risks of the organisation and examining, evaluating
and reporting on the adeguacy and effectiveness of the
systems of internal control and risk management in place,
and the governance processes in operation throughout

the Group.

During the year, the Commitiee considered the intermnal
audit programme for the forthcaorning year and reviewed
the proposed audit approach, coverage and allocation

of resources.

The Commiittee also reviewed the progress updates against
the 2019 activity of internal audit, received reports on issues
of significance to the Group and reported to the Board

on its evaluation of these findings. During the year, the
Cornmittee agreed to undertake an external assessment

of the effectiveness of the internal audit function. This
assessment will take place during the first half of 2020 and
will incorporate feedback from the operating company
leadership teams and Group functions. The Committee

will discuss the findings of the evaluation with the Head

of internal Audit at their scheduled meeting in July 2020.

In the meantime, the Committee observed the activities

of Internal Audit during 2019 and agreed that the Group’s
internal audit processes remained effective.

External auditor
The Committee is responsible for managing the relationship
with the Group’s external auditor on behalf of the Board.

Deiloitte LLP, appointed as the Company's auditor in 2016
following a competitive tender process, has now completed
its third year as auditor. Andrew Bond has held the role of
lead audit partner since March 2019,



During the year, the Committee carried out the annual
effectiveness review of the external auditor which
focused primarily on the 2018 audit. The findings of this
review were reported in detail to the Board. There were
no significant findings following the review and it was
concluded that the audit process continued to be effective.
The engagement |etter for the audit of the 2019 Financial
Statements was reviewed by the Committee, and, in
accordance with the authority given to the Committee
at the 2019 AGM, the Committee reviewed the proposed
remuneration of Deloitte. The Committee considered the
proposed auditor's remuneration to be appropriate.

Itis proposed that Deloitte be re-appointed as auditor

of the Company at the next ACM in May 2020 and, if so
re-appointed, that it will hold office until the conclusion
of the next general meeting of the Cormpany at which
accounts are laid. Further details are set out in the Notice
of Meeting, which is available at www.spectris.com.

The Group will continue the practice of the rotation of the
audit engagement partner at least every five years, with all
other partners and senior management required to rotate at
least every seven years. The independent external auditor's
report to shareholders is set out on pages 97 t0 104.

As detailed above, the Company complied with the
Statutory Audit Services Order 2014 throughout 2019,

Non-audit fees
The Committee believes that non-audit work may only be

undertaken by the external auditor in limited circumstances.

A cumulative annual cap is imposed for non-audit services
provided by our external auditor {save for acquisition due
diligence), above which all engagements are subject to the
Committee’s prior approval.

The Committee’s non-aydit services policy is available

at wwwi.specltris.com. Nor-audit fees for services
provided by Deloitte for the year amounted to £0.2miilion
(9% of the audit fee), which predominantly relate to the
half-year review. Further details are inciuded in Note 5

to the Financial Staternents.

Parformance review

The Cornmittee’s performance was assessed during

the year as part of the wider Board evaluation process.

The review was conducted externaily and led by Lisa
Thomas of Independent Board Evaluation. As part of the
evaluation process Ms. Thomas attended a meeting of the
Cormmittee and met individually with each Committee
member and key contributors to the Committee, including
the Head of internal Audit and the External Audit partner,
The Committee was considered to have operated effectively
during the year.

Audit and Risk Committee Report

Governance
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Directors’

Remuneration Report

Remuneration Committee
Chairman’s statement

This will be the final time | write to you as Chairman
of the Remuneration Committee.

 have been a rmermnber of the Board and Chairman of the
Remuneration Cornmittee since 2010. With that longevity
in mind, | wili retire from the Board at the 2020 Annual
General Meeting [[AGM’). During 2019, | worked closely with
the Chairman and members of the Nomination Committee
ta identify a suitable suc¢cessor as Chairman of the
Remuneration Committee. :

| am pleased to introduce Cathy Turner to you as Chairman-
elect of the Remuneration Committee. Cathy has significant
experience of HR and remuneration matters in an executive
capacity and importantly has been and is an effective
member and chairman of the remuneration committee in
other non-executive roles. | have greatly appreciated Cathy's
support and counsel since she joined the Cormrmittee in
September 2019, and her expetience in a wide variety of
different sectors will add significant value to the expanded
role of the Remuneration Committee under current
corporate governance requirements.

New Remuneration Policy

AL the General Meeting of the Company heid on 4
December 2019, a new Remuneration Palicy was approved
by sharehotders to take effect from 1 January 2020. At the
end of a successful consultation process, for which | would
like to thank the Cormpany's shareholders and the main
shareholder representative bodies, the Poficy and its
component parts received strong shareholder support. The
Policy received over 94% of votes in favour of its approval.

Background to the new Policy

The existing Remuneration Policy was approved by
shareholders in May 2017, Since that tirme, the Group has
appainted a new teadership tearm and set out its strategy
for profitable growth that was presented to the market

at a Capital Markets Day in June 2019, Following the
agreement of the new strategy, the Committee consuited
with management and our external remuneratiorn advisers,
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP {'PwC") to consider the most
appropriate way to refiect this strategy in the Group's future
remuneration structure. The new Policy was designed

by the Committee to align the interests of the Executive
Directars, and the senics management team, with the core
airms of the new strategy, as well as to align management
with the interests of shareholders in the reward for
significant cutperforrmance against the market. We brought
the Policy to shareholders for approval slightly ahead of the
three-year renewal requirermnent to ensure that executive
pay would be aligned with strategy and performance for
the 2020 reward cycle. A diagram depicting the new Policy
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structure is set out on the opposite page and a full surmmeary
of the new Policy and the key changes in comparison to the
2017 Paiicy is set out on page 72. Full details can be found in
the 2020 Policy document attached to the Notice of the 2019
General Meeting, a copy of which is available on our website
www.spectris.com.

Shareholder engagement

The Committeg consulted extensively with shareholders
and the main shareholder representative bodies on the
amendments 1o the Rernuneration Policy and new incentive
plans and the original proposals were amended as a resuit
of the feedback received to better align the interests of the
Executive Directors with shareholders. The Committee and
| felt that the shareholder engagement process resulted in
an approach that supported the Company’s objectives

and met the desires of the majority of the Company's
shareholders, as demonstrated by the votes received at
the December General Meeting.

Application of the new Policy

The first award under the Spectris LTIP will be made in late
February 2020 following the announcement of the 2019 full
year results. The Bonus Plan will be operated for the first
time in respect of the 2020 financial year.

Wider workforce considerations

Spectris is committed to creating an inclusive working
environment and to rewarding our empioyees throughout
the organisation in a fair manner. In making decisions on
executive pay, the Remuneration Committee considers
wider workforce rernuneration and conditions. All roles
are benchmarked against Pw(C’'s benchmarking report

of FTSE 100-150 companies.

We believe that ernployees should be able to share in
the success of the Company and in 2018 we introguced
a Share Incentive Plan for this purpose. We also believe
that employees should have the opportunity to save for
their futures and to this end we operate pension saving
mechanisms for all employees.

As part of our commitment to fairness, we have introduced
a new section to this Report (see page 90} which sets out
rmore information on our wider workforce pay conditions,
our CEQ to ermnployee pay ratio, our gender pay statistics,
and our diversity initiatives, The Committee has reviewed
these elements and is satisfied that the executive
remuneration structure remains appropriate, Whilst we
recognise there is much work still to do in this regard, we
believe that transparency is an important first step towards
making improvements in refation to these important issues.



Summary of 2019 performance outcomes

Adjusted profit before tax was up 2% with a 2% increase in
adjusted earnings per share. The Committee agreed that

it was appropriate for perfarmance to be assessed against
this adjusted measure having considered the individual
adjusting itemns shown in Note 2 to the Financial
Statements. The Committee set stretching targets and
against this backdrop the Executive Directors achieved a
slightly under-target payout for the financial performance.
Andrew Heath, Chief Executive Officer, earned a total annual
bonus for 2019 of 67.8% of salary (44.8% related to financial
abjectives and 23% to personal/strategic objectives) out

of a maximum potential opportunity of 150% of salary.
Derek Harding, Chief Financial Officer, earned a total annual
bonus for 2019 of 67.8% of salary {44.8% related to financial
obiectives and 23% to personal/strategic objectives) out

of a maximum potential opportunity of 125% of salary.

Full details of the perfarmance outcomes for the annuat
bonus are set cut on pages 77 and 78. All incentive
outcomes during 2019 reflected the operation of our
incentive programme formulas without the exercise of any
discretion by the Committee. The Committee is satisfied
that the Rermnuneration Policy has operated as intended
during 2019 and incentive outcomes are in line with
Company performance.

Governance

2020 remuneration outlook

The Executive Directors salaries were reviewed by the
Committee in February 2020 with a 3.5% increase agreed
with effect from 1 April 2020 in line with the average pay
incréase across the wider UK-based Spectris employee
population. The fee structure for the Chairman and
Non-executive Directors was reviewed jn Becermnber 2019,
with fee increases taking effact from 1 January 2020,
further details are set out on page 72.

Shareholders

I'would like to thank our shareholders for their continued
support during the year. Cathy Turner and the members of
the Remuneration Committee will be available to meet with
shareholders at the 2020 AGM and ahy questions regarding
remuneration can be directed to the Committee via the
Spectris website.

Russell King
Chairman of the Remuneration Committee
19 February 2020

Remuneration structure for 2020 effective 1 January 2020

3 ywar perfoermance pariod

~ 2 ysar h:l:ing
P

Performance Measures:
ERS, ROGCE & Absohute
TSR fwith Relative TSR gateway)

$0% daferral of

h
ANy bonus eated ;

| Additionnl features:

' . Shareholding requiremant increased Lo match
one-year variable pay, built up over five years
From appointmant:

CEOQ: 430% of salary
CFO: 405% of salary

- New post cessation shareholding requirement
200% of salary for all executive directors for bwo years

Year 1

Year G

Directors' Remuneration Report

Year 2
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Summary of key changes in the 2020

Remuneration Policy effective 1 January 2020

Current arangements under 2017 Policy

Key changes to Policy

FY2020 implementation of 2020 Policy

Executive fixed pay

Fixed remuneration which reflects required skills
i deliver the Group's ic and

and expes

No change to Policy.

CEO- £631,350

CFQOrE491,625

Increase for F Y2020 of 3.5% in line with sverage increase
for UK employees.

Executive Directors receive an annual cash
allowance in lieu of participation in 3 Spactsis
pension scheme. Maximum potential payment
under Policy of 25% of satary,

Allowance for new joiners aligned to the majority of
witler UK warkforce, Approach to be developed to
align incumbeng Directors’ pension arrangements
with wider workforce by the end of 2022,

CEQ: 20% of salary
CFO:18% of salary
New joiners: 6% of salary

Car and fue! allowances, healthcare, life and
disability agsurance with a maximum total £30,000.

N material changes.

Provided in fine with the Rermuneration Policy.

Executive variable pay

Maximum opportunity based on safary,

Paid in cash.

Payments in excess of 60% of salary to be used to
acauire Spectris shares until the minimum required
sharehotding level (300% of salary) is achisved.

No change in guantum,

50% of any bonus earned deferred for three years.

CECx 150% of salary
CTFO125% of salary

50% of any bonus earned is to ba deférrad in shares for
three years.

Measures and weidhtings:
CEQ:125% adjusted PBT, 25% personal objectives.
CFQL00% adjusted PRT, 29% personal objectives

Replacement of performance measures with
balanced financial and strategic performance
measures aligned with business surategy.

Percentage of total opportunity;

Meosureg weighting
Adiusted Cperating Protit 0%
Adjusted Cash conversion 20%

20%

Operatignal and strategic measures

Annual bonus payout curve:
Threshold: 1% of maximum apportunity
Target: 60% of maximum opportunity
Maxitmumn: Y00% of maximum opportunity

*erfoirng

Standardisation of target payout at 50% of the
maxirmum bonus opportunity.

Threshold: 9% of maximum opportunity
Target S0% of maximunn opportunity
Maximum: 100% of maximum cpportunity

Performance targets are not disclosed in advance
due to their commercial sensitivity. All targets will
be disclosed retrospectively following the end of the
performance period,

Maximum opportunity based on 200% of salary.

Maximum cpportunity incraased to 280% of
saiary through multiplier of 1.4x base gward
with TSR performance conditions,

280% of salary

Performance measures and weightings:
One-third weightings to each of growth in
adjusted EPS, TSR and Economic Profic (EF').

Performance measures aligned with Strategy
for Srofitable Growth,

100% Adjusted EPS growth:

Threshold: 4% p.a. Target: 7% p.a. Maximurm: 10% p.a.
100% Retu on Gross Capital Employed:

Threshold: 2019 ROGCE +1%, Target: +2%. Maximun: +3%
BO% Absotuta TSR {with relative TSR underpiny
Thrashoid: 8% p.2. Target: 10% p.a. Maximum: 15% p.a.

fother

{2809% of sofary total)
J

Shargholding requirerment: 300% of saizry within
tive years of date of appointment.

Increased to match one-year variable pay to be built
wp within five years of appaintment,

CEO: 430% of salary
CFO: 505% of salary

Post-cessation sharenoiding requirement:
None,

introduction of past-cessation shareholding
requizemnent and time frame.

Any Executive Director who leaves the Companyto
retain the lower of:

+ Actual shareholding at the date of depariure; or

- 200% of final salary.

o be retzined by a departing Executive Director for two

years post:

Malus and Clawback

Clawback provisions enable variable rernuneration
10 e reciairned under exceptional tircumstances
in the event of any miscalculation of entitiement,
misstatemant of accounts of incigence of fraud.
They also enabie the Committee (0 recoup the
vaiue of previously vested awards from an individual
within three years of the end of the refevant
performance period, if appropriate in the event of
& material correction of Financial results previousty
used to assess a performance condition or if the
performance was otherwise shown 1o be materially
worse than was belfieved when a performance

Introduction of matus provisions and enhanced
clawback pravisions.

Clawback and malus provisions enable variable
remuneration to he reclaimed under the follewing
CiTCurNIances: Mmaterial misstatemnents of results or
ACCOuUNts: gross misconduct of fraud; award calculated
in ercor; marerial faiture of risk Mmanagement; and a
material breach of our Code of Business Ethics. Standard
clawback provisions on banus and LTIPs apply within
two years of the end of the relevane performance period.

condition was assessed.
[NED foes . - . ]
Fees reflect responsibilities and time The existing fee structure for Non-executive Chairman £232,000
cemmitments for the rote. Directors has been in place since 1 January 2017, NED basic fee £58,000
The fee structure was reviewed in December 2019 Senior Independent Director £30,000
against FTSE 250 rnarker practice and changes Cammittee Chairman feg £12,000
wefe approved to take effect from 1 Januarny 2020 {Audit and Risk and Rernuneration)
to maintain fees at close to median level in Workforce Engagernent Director £8000
the FTSE 250. Travel supplement (ovarseas NEDs) E15000
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2019 Remuneration at a glance

Summary details of Executive Directors’ remuneration for the Andrew Heath Chief Executive

financial year ended 31 December 2019 are itlustrated below. Derek Harding Chief Financial Officer
Clive Watson Former Group Finance Director

Executive Directors

Single total figure of remunetation

Andrew Heath Derek Harding Clive Watson
£000 £'000

£000

Single totst figure of remuneration 1163 737 370

. Fixed Pay . Annual Bonus . Psp

The fixed elements of pay include base salary, pension, benefits in kind and taxable expenses. Derek Harding joined the
Board on 1 March 2019 and Clive Watscn stepped down from the Board on 25 March 2019. Their respective remuneration
figures have been pro-rated to reflect the time served as a Director. The PSP figure relates to the 2017 award which is
due to vest on 6 June 2020 and is, in part, based on estimated vesting fevels as at 31 December 2019 (see pages 79 and

80 for details).

Performance outcomes — Bonus and PSP vesting

Andrew Heath Perek Harding Clive Watson
£'000 £'000 £'000
£4%% 45% £268 £204 36%
£ng 1%

£49 L 3%
(e

N/A N/A
A Al 1 oSP Annual Annual PSP
Bo't!\‘lzl u:%?\g mﬂ v::i.;m B:'r'l‘:l.! vesting BO':!‘:I.I vasting Bonus  vesting
[l ~diusted Pt [ Personal objectives [ es e [Jep

The Annual Bonus percentage is actual bonus earned in respect of the 2019 financial year expressed as a percentage of the
maximum bonus opportunity. The PSP percentage is the estirnated vesting outcomes of the PSP award granted in 2017
expressed as a percentage of the total award. Andrew Heath and Derek Harding joined the Group after the 2017 PSP awards

were granted. Full details are set out on pages 77 to 80.

2019 Remuneration outcomes scenarios

Andrew Heath Derek Harding
£000 £000
£3,494

£2,004

* Maximum with S0% share price growth
- Total fixed pay

. Annuat Borus

. PSP award 2019

Basic Targat  Maximum Maimum Basic Target  Maximum Maximum £ach coloured bar shows the percentage of the
growth* growth® total comprised by each of the parts

The above bar charts iliustrate the rermuneration outturns at target and maximum opportunity in respect of the serving
Directaors at the 2019 year end. The outturns for Derek Harding have been pro-rated on a time-served basis. The PSP
element relates to PSP awards granted in 2019. Clive Watson stepped down from the Board on 25 March 2019 and did
not participate in the 2019 PSP award.
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Summary of 2017 Remuneration Policy

[

Our 2017 Remuneration Policy (approved by shareholders at the AGM on 26 May 2017) remained in operation for the FY2013
and a summary of its key features are detailed below. This Policy was reviewed during the year and our 2020 Remuyneration
Policy was approved by shareholders in general meeting on 4 December 2019. The 2020 Policy will apply with effect from
13January 2020 and may operate for three years before further shareholder approval is sought.

Full details of both the 2017 Remuneration Policy and the 2020 Remuneration Policy are available on the Company’s
website www.spectris.com or upon request from the Company Secretary at the Company’s registered office address.

Purpose and
link to strategy

Base salary/fees

- Competitive fixed remuneration

that enables Spectris to attract and

retain key executives,

Annual bonus

- Drives short-term profit performance,
- Incentivises Executive Directors to

achieve specific pre-determined
stretching objectives relating to
Spectris and the individual's personal
responsibilities.

Rerfermance Share Plan {19507

- Drives the delivery of sustained
caompound annual growth
in earnings per share ('EPS’,
refative out-performance in total
sharehoider return {TSR'} and
increase in ecenomic profit ('EP').

Operation

- Normally reviewed annually.
- Benchmarked triennially against
relevant comparators.

Bonus potential set at @ market-
competitive rate.
Payabite in cash.

- Bonus based on annual performance

targets.

- Bonus payments in excess of 60%

of salary must be used 1o acquire
shares in Spactris until the minimum
required shareholding {300% of base
salary) is achieved.

- No further bonus deferral

arrangements are currently in
ocperatfon.

- Clawback provisions enable variable

remuneration to be reclaimed
under exceptional circumstances
in the event of any miscalculation
of entitlernent, misstaterment of
accounts or incidence of fraud.

- Awards made annually with

perfarmance conditions based
over a three-year period.

- Two-year holding period for all

new awards,

- Post-tax benefit of any vested

PSP awards must be applied wo
the acquisition of shares untii the
required level of shareholding

is achieved.

- Clawback provisions enable the

Commitiee to recoup the value

of previously vested awards

from an individual within thiee
years of the end of the retevant
performance period if it considers
it appropriate in the event of a
material correction of financia!
results previously used to assess

a performance condition or if
pecfgimance was otherwise
shown to be materially worse than
was believed when a perfarmance
condition was assessed.

Maximum
oppartunity

- incieases imited to the average
increaséa for general UK wage
inflation.

- The Committee retains the
discretion to award increases/
reductions in excess of/below
this if, and where, it deems
applopliate.

+ Maximum opportunity is based on

base salary: .
- 150% Chief Executive
- 125% Group Finance Director/CFQ

- Bonus starts accruing from threshald

levels of performance.

- 200% of base salary.

Parformance
metric

- Reflects the role and the Director's

skills, perforrmance and experience,

referenced to a leval at or
moderately below the comparater
group’s median.

+ The Committes may determine

appropriate performance measures,
which are assessed annually.

- A minimurn {threshold) level of

perfarmance will result in a bonus of
9% of base salary. At targer, the bonus
level for @ach Executive Director is
§0% of base salary.

The Committee may datermine
appropriate performance
measures and vesting levels
for awards,

- 20% of award shares vest on

achievernent of minirmurm
performance and 100% for
rmaximum performance.
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Shareholding ownership
guidelines

All-employee share plans

Banefits in kind Pensiaon ard other benefits

- Market-competitive
benefits in kind enabling
Spectris to attract and
retain Key executives.

in kind

- Market-competitive defined

contribution pension, enabling
Spectris to attract and retain
key executives,

- The Spectris all-empioyee share
plans are operated to encourage
share ownership by employees,
allowing them to share in the long-
term success of the Group and
align their interests with those
of sharehotders.

+ To encourage share

ownership by the Executive
Directors and ensure that
their interests are aligned
with those of shareholders.

- Benefits in kind
include company
cars or allowances,
private fuel, medica!
inswrance and life and
disability insurance,
and are benchmarked
periodically.

- Pensions are benchmarked

periodically.

- Executive Directors are able to
participate in the Group's all-
employee share plans on the
same terms as other Group UK
ermplayees.

- Currently, the Group operates an
all-employee Share incentive Plan
{'SiP’} whereby an employee may
purchase Spectsis shares at market
price, using gross salaryup toa
maximum of the lavel allowed
by HMRC. For every five shares
purchased by an employee under
the SIP, the Cormpany will award
one free Matching share. Matching
shares are subject to forfeiture if
the employee leaves the S1P within
three years.

. The SIP replaced the Spectris
Savings Related Share Option
Scheme ['SAYE Scheme’).

- Each Executive Director is

required to build a retained
shareholding in Spectris of at
least three times base salary
in value within five years

of being appointed to the
Board.

Post-tax benefit of any
vested LTIP awards or any
bonus paymaent exceeding
60% of base salary must be
applied to the acquisition

of shares unti the required
level of sharehalding is
achieved.

Total benefits limited to
£30,000 p.a.

- A departing gift may be
provided up to a value

of £2.500 per Director
(applies to both Executive
and Non-executive
Directors).

+ Maximurm 25% of base salary as

taxable cash allowance in lieu of
pension contributions:
— 20% Chief Executive
- 15% Chief Financial Officer
{from T March 2019)
- 25% Group Finance Director {until
25 March 2019)

« HMRAC limit £150 per month and
one free Matching share for every
five shares purchased.

+ None applicable.

- None applicable.

- None applicable,

- None applicable.

- None applicable.
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Remuneration for FY2019

This section of the Repaort sets cut the details of the implementation of the 2017 Remuneration Policy during the 2019
firancial year. Details of the 2020 Remuneration Policy and how the Remuneraticn Committee intends to implerment
that Policy during 2020 are summarised on page 72. This part of the Raport together with the Remuneration Committee
Chairman’s Statement, Sumrmnary of applicable 2017 Remuneration Palicy, details of the 2020 Remuneration Policy and its
implementation, and the information on the Remuneration Committee form the Annual Report on Remuneration which
i5 subject to an advisory shareholder vote at the 2020 Annual General Meeting and contains both unaudited and audited

information. The audited sections of this Repart are clearly identified,

Executive Directors' remuneration
Single total figure of remuneration {audited)

Tne single totsl figure of remuneration of each Executive Director who served during the year is as follows:

E. Pension- F.All-

A Base 8 Taxable related  employee
£'000 salary benefits ¢.Bonus D. PSP+ benefits share plans Total
Andrew Heath® 2078 €0 17 [ary - 122 - 1,163
2018 203 6 182 - 41 - 432
Derek Harding? 2019 396 L3 268 - 59 - 737
2018 - - - - - - -
Clive Watson® 2019 90 % %9 204 23 - 370
2018 386 17 294 826 97 8 1,628

PN~

Andrew Heath was appeinted 10 the Board on 3 September 2018. His 2018 remuneration is pro-rated from that date.
Derek Harding was appointed to the Board on 1 March 2019. His 2019 remuneration is pro-rated from that date.
Clive Watson stepped down from the Board on 25 March 2019. His 2019 rernuneration is pro-rated to that date,

The PSP includes restated 2018 figures (o reflect actual vesting of 2016 awards. The vaiue sttributed to share price appreciation in respect of the
2016 award (based on the share price at vesting of 2,627 pence per share) was £287,621, representing 35% of the total award vested. The PSP figure

for 2019 relates to the 2017 award which is due 1o vest on 6 June 2020 and i3, in part based on estirnated vesting levels at at 31 Decernber 2019,
Dua to a fall in the share price over the performance period, the estimated share price appreciation, (based an the three month average share

price at 31 December 2019) was nil.

Notes to the single total figure of remuneration table
A, Salary (audited)

None of the serving Executive Directors received a salary increase during 2019. Derek Harding was appointed on an

annual base salary of £475,000, in line with the current Remuneration Policy. The average salary increase for ermnployees

of Spectris plc in 2019 was 3.8%.
B. Taxable benefits

Taxable benefits include company cars, private fuel, allowances paid in lieu of company cars and private fuel, medical
expenses insurance (including family cover) and life and disability cover.

Details of the totat value for 2019 are set out in the table beiow:

Medical/

Car and fuel hesafthcare
allowances cover Total
Executive Director £ E £
Andrew Heath 15,065 2,138 17,303
Qerek Harding' 12,638 1.806 14,4464
Clive Watson? 3,816 383 4,199

1 Taxable benefits pro-rated from date of appointment on 1 March 2019,
2 Taxable benefits pro-rated to date of leaving the Board on 25 March 2019,
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C. 2019 Annual bonus outcome (audited} -

The maximum bonus opportunity for Andrew Heath, Chief Executive, remains unchanged at 150% of base salary, of which
125% is based on adjusted profit before tax ['adjusted PBT'} and 25% is based on personal objective performance measures.
The rmaximum bonus opportunity for both Derek Harding, Chief Financial Officer, and Clive Watson, the former Group
Finance Director, also remains at 125% of base salary, of which Y009% is based on adjusted PBT and 25% is based on personal
objective performance measures. The on-target bonus for each Executive Director is 60% of base salary, comprising 50%
based on adjusted PBT and 10% based on personal objectives. No bonus deferral is currently in operation other than the
requirement to effectively defer bonus payments in excess of 60% of base salary into shares 1o satisfy Directors’ shareholding
requirements. The table below sets out the annual bonus earned by the Executive Directors in respect of the 2019 financia!
year including the financial trigger points used in determining the level of bonus payable.

Actual Group
performance/assessment Percentage
Bonus Eiernents cf bonus of personal objective Payout of maximum
Qpportunity opportunity On-target  Maximum performance € bonus
Andrew Heath 150% Group adjusted PBT 50% 125% 44.8% 273,280 29.9%
Personal objectives 0% 25% 23.0% 140,300 15.3%
Total 67.8% 413,580 45.2%
Derek Harding' 125%  Group adjusted PBT 50% 100% 44.B% 177333 35.8%
Personal objectives 0% 25% 23.0% 91,042 1B.4%
Total 67.8% 268,375 54.2%
Clive Wwatson? 125%  Group adjusted PBT 100% 125% 53.8% 48593 . 43.0%
) Totai 53.8% 48,593 43.0%

1 Derek Marding's bonus is pro-rated from the date of his appointment on 1 March 2019,
2 Clive Watson's bonus is pro-fated 1o the date of his feaving the Board on 25 March 2019, He remained a Group employee until he retired on 31 July

2019. His total 2019 bonus (pro-rated to his retirerment dataj was £121,072.

Bonus performance measures
The adjusted profit before tax bonus range established by the Remuneration Committee for 2019 was as follows:

Threshoid Targer Maximum Actual
£240mM  £252.5m £275m  £2512m

Bonus level
Adjusted profit before tax

For bonus purposes, the Committee believes that the Group adjusted profit before tax is a more reflective measure of
performance, removing certain items from statutory profit before tax that may give a distorted view of performance.
Adjustrments to adjusted profit before tax are made to reflect the original target,

The above adjusted profit before tax figure has been determined as follows:

£m
adjusted profit before tax 2474
Adjustments relating to the disposal of BTG 38
Adjusted profit before tax for bonus purposes 2512
* This item adjusts for the disposal of BTG which was not envisaged in the bonus targets
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Remuneration for FY2019 continued

The 2019 personal strategic objectives for the current Executive Directors, which were set at the beginning of the year

{or on appointment in the case of Derek Harding) and which account for 25% of salary, cover a range of the Company's
targeted strategic prictities. Each priority is assigned an individual weighting and performance against each of the defined
targets was assessed by the Remuneration Committee with input from the Chairman. The objectives for both Executive
Directors and perferrnance against them are summarised in the table below:

9% of salary % bonus
Andrew Heath target Performance summary awarded
Strategic:
- Complete strategic review; develsp a clear, executable 9% Strategic review completed and Strategy for Profitable 9%
sirategy execution plan inciuding detailed solution Growth succassfully presented at the June 2019
design, delivery programme, portfolio restructuring Capital Markets Day. Strategy activation pregramme
and change management plan; and present revised established, portfolio restructured with approved
strategy at the Capital Markets Day in June 2019. disposal programme.
Establish a revised operating model to reflect the Revised operating model established and financial
revised strategy and progress the deveicpment of perfarmance management system strengthened, HES
a clear approach to strengthening ESG and HSAE. profile increased with introduction of a new Group H3S
Committee. Further work planned to support the Group's
environmental praposition in 2020,
Operational:
- Execute corporate development plan in line with revised  B% Significant progress made in the agreernent and 7%
strategy in respect of acquisitions for core businesses managernent of the disposal of non-core businesses in ling
ard disposal of non-core businesses. with the agreed strategy, including the BTG divestment.
Agree overall Lean strategy, philosophy and Strong focus placed on growing the Group's acguisition
implementation plan, making Lean part of the pipeline with further work to be undertaken in 2020
Company's business systerm and philosophy. Lean strategy and approach firmly embodied into new '
operating model.
Interpersonal
- Develop and commence implementation of a 8% Strong progress made in refreshing purpose, values, 7% -
high-performance cuiture, required to support the leadership behaviours and code of business ethics in line '
revised strategy and ensure the delivery of the with new strategy and operating model with work to
enhanced Ethics and Compliance Programme. finalise the launch continuing into 2020 :
Build and develop new executive legdership team into Strong new executive team formed, with further
a high performing unit and deveiop plan to improve development work underway. Successful
diversity. f implementation of a plan Lo Improve diversity at a senior
management level but significant work is still required to
address diversity across the Graup.
Total 25% 23%
% of salary % borus
Derek Harding target Performance summary awarded
Strategic:
- Support the CECQ in completing the strategic reviewand gy Successfully partnered with the CEO to complete 9%
develop financial model, five-year financial plan and the Group sirategic review. Developed and received
playbook for 2020 and develop capital allocation Board approval for the Group's revised financial model
frarnework to reflect revised strategy for presentation Developed five-year financial plan and capital allocation
atthe Capital Markets Day. framework. In conjunction with the CEQ and Group
Complete fundamental review of the performance HR Director agreed a new operational mode! for the
management and management information framework; Group in support of the Strategy for Profitable Growth,
establish a revised financial performance management Significant progress made on improving the Group's
framework and operating model! consistent with the approach to forecasting.
revised strategy; and develop simplified, collaborative
reporting and farecasting.’
Operational; '
Enhance financial controls and risk management 8% Initiated review of Group's four fines of defence model 7%
1o align with best practice and new Group structure. and the establishment of enhanced Platform
Develop the Profit Improvernent Programme including risk managerment processes.
finance model frarnework for Group operating Drove delivery of the Profit Improvement Programme
companies. Develop cost mindset for FY20 budget and oversaw the development of the finance model for
to deliver targeted operating profit margin. the operating companies. Oversaw the overhaul of the
GCroup's budget and farecasting process for 2020.
Interpersonalk
Strengthen the financiat team including broadening 8% Significant progress made in bullding the finance 7%
the team's diversity, bench strength, opportunities for commuinity during 2019, including key new senior hires.
development of key high potential people and building Demonstrable step change in activity to bring together
a sense of a Croup finance community. the wider finance community in common shared purpose.
In conjunction with the Executive Committee, develop and
commence the implementation of a High-Performance
culture, reguired 10 SUPPON the revised sUrategy.
Total 25% 23%

Clive Watson retired from the Board in March 2019, As such, the Committee considered it appropriate that his 2019 bonus
payment be assessed against financial targets only and pro-rated on a time-served basis.
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D. Perfermance Share Plan {PSP) (audited)

Governance

PSP awards made under the Spectris Performance Share Plan (‘PSP’) to the Executive Directors are structured so that
one-third of the award is subject to an EPS target, one-third is subject to 2 TSR target and one-third is subject to an
‘gEconomic Profit {(EP) target. Each condition operates over a fixed three-year period (being the three financial years
commencing with the financial year in which an award is made in respect of the ESP and EP measures; and three years
froam the date of grant in respect of the TSR measure) with no opportunity for retesting. The TSR performance condition

is measured independently by Aon Hewitt [Aon).

PSP awards vested during 2019 (audited)

PSP awards granted in 2016 which matured in February 2019 vested in respect of all three performance conditions. The EPS
and EP threshold targets in respect of the three financial years to 31 December 2018 were exceeded and the TSR median
threshold for the three-year performance period ending en 22 February 2019 was also exceeded. The final outcome was
68.4% of the total award vested on 23 February 2019 and the balance of award lapsed in full {see tables below}. The single
total figure of remuneration of Clive Watson for 2018 has been restated to reflect this final outcome.

Percentage
Performance weighted performance Percentage of
condition Weighting Threshold Maximum Actuat condition vested total award vested
EPS One-thirg CPI+5%cpa. CPI+13% c.p.a CPi + 8.75% c.p.a. 57.5% 19.19%6
TSR One-third Median Upper quintite  56% [Median: 14.2%) 95.9% 32.0%
or sbove Upper quintile: 60.0%
EP One-third £145 million £275 million £196.8 million 51.9% 12.3%
or more
Total 68.4%

1 TSR outcome based on the final TSR performance results on 22 February 2019. Details of the comparator group are set out on page 83,

Tetal number of

shares subject Facevahue at Vesting Vesting Reinvested Total vesting Share price on
to PSP option at  date of grant percentage of number of dividend nurnber of  vesting date Vesting value
Executive Director date of grant total award shares shares shares 23 Feb2019 £
Clive Watson 42,860 734,449 68.4% 29,325 2,164 31,489 26.27p 825,750

1 Theface value is based on the average of the ¢losing share price over the five days immediately prior to the date of grant of 1,713.6 pence.

PSP awards vesting in June 2020 {audited)

Andrew and Derek joined the Group after the 2017 PSP awards were granted. Clive Watson received a PSP award grantedin
2017, which will mature in June 2020 and which is subject to EPS, TSR and EP performance conditions. Details of the EPS
and EP outcomes and estimated TSR performance results based on Acn's interim report as at 31 December 2019 are set out

in the table below.

ActualfEstimated Actual/Estimated

percentage weighted percentage of

Performance Actual/ performance total award

condition wWeighting Threshold Maximum estimate condition vested vested
CPi+T1%

EPS Ore-third CPi + 5% ¢c.pa. c.p.a.or above CPI+E.89%c.p.at 45.1% 15.0%

Upper quintile 8.19% {Median: TLH6

TSR One-third Median or above Upper guintile: 47.5% 0% Q%
£255.1 million

EP One-third £125.) milion or above £196.0 million? 63.7% 21.2%

Estimated Total 36.2%

1 The EPS outcome figure has been calculated on a consistent basis with the EPS calculation in place on grant. A full reconciliation from this EPS
ocutcome figure to the Adjusted EPS figure {set out in Note 2 to the Financial Statements on page 118} is set out below:

As at Asat
31 December 2016 3) December 2019
pence pence
Adjusted EPS (reported) 127.5 168.0
Adjustment for Project Uplift Cost net of Tax 2.0
Adjustments relating to disposal of Microscan and EMS [§A)]
Adjustments relating to disposal of BTG 2.8
Adjusted EPS (after disposals and project Uplift Costs) 128.4 170.8
Net impact of Share Buy Back
Impact of Share Buy Back (finance charges} [oX-)
impact of Share Buy Back [reduction in shares) 5.4}
(4.5)
Revised EPS (relevant to 2017 award vesting) 128.4p 166.3p
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Remuneration for FY2019 continued

PSP awards vesting in June 2020 (audited) continued

2 The TSR figures are estimates based on the interim TSR performance results as at 31 Decamber 2019. Details of the comparator group are set
out on page 83.

3 The EP outcome figure has been calculated on a consistent basis with the EP calculation in place on grant. A full reconciliation from this
EP outcome figure to the Reported EP outcome set out in the Key Performance Indicators on page 19 is sat out below:

Threshald Maximum
£m £rn
EP Target {curmuiative 2017-2019) 150.0 2800
Remove Microscan & EMS from target (24.9) {24.9)
Adjusted target 125.1 2551
Reported 2019 £EP performance 196.8
Remove actual EP of Microscan & EMS to disposal date {3.5)
Add in final month for BTG 2.7
Revised Economic Profit Outcome 196.0
Revised EP vesting 63.7%
The vesting estimates as at 31 December 2019 are deteiled in the table below:
Total number of Estimated Estimated Estimated Estimated Three-manth
shares subject Pro-rated vesting vesting reirvested  iot3tvesting averageshare  Estimated
to PSP option  Facevalueat number percentage of nurnber of dividend rumber of price at vesting
Executive Director  at date of grant date of grant  of shares total award shares shares shares year end volue
Clive Watson 28,770 £756,881' 19,977 36.2% 7,245 547 7,792 2624.31p  £206,124

1 The face vaiue is based on the average closing share price over the five days imnmediately prior to the date of grant of 2,630,8 pence.

Due to the fall in share price, the estimated share price appreciation based on the three month average share price
at 31 December 2019, was nil. As these values are only estimates, no discretion has been exercised by the Committee in
respect of the share price appreciation.

vested awards are satisfied in shares (normally treasury shares) with sufficient shares being sold to meet income tax and
national insurance contributions due on exercise, at the Director's discretion, and the net balance of shares transferred
to the individual. Awards lapse if they do not vest on the third anniversary of their award.

E. Retirement benefits (audited)

Executive Directors are entitled to a defined contribution pension contribution. Andrew Heath and Derek Harding receive
20% and 15% of base salary respectively and Clive Watson received 25% of base salary. in light of the pension fifetime
allowance of £1.055 million and the maximum annual pension contribution atiowance of £40,000, the Executive Directors
are entitled, at their option, to a taxable salary supplement in lieu of sorne oF all of such pension contriputions. Al Executive
Directors have chosen this option and each receives a cash payment in lieu of participation in a Spectris pension scheme.
No Executive Director participated in a defined benefit pension plan during the year, nor currently participates in a defined
benefit plan. Under the 2020 Remuneration Policy which came into effect on 1 January 2020, the pension entitiement for
new Executive Directors will be aligned to the maicrity of the wider UK workfarce, which is currently 6%. The Committee
has agreed that an approach will be deveioped to bring incumbent Executive Director and senior management pension
arrangements in line with the workforce by the end of 2022.

F. All-employee share plans (audited)
MNone of the Executive Directors exercised options under the Spectris ali-employee share plans during the year.
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Payments for loss of office or to past Directors

John O'Higgins
As set out in our 2018 Remuneration Repart, John O'Higgins stepped down from the Board on 28 September 2018 and left

the Company on 23 May 2019, His rermuneration terms on leaving were in line with the approved Remuneration Policy and
the terms of his service contract. John was entitled to receive salary and benefits including pension contribution by way of
phased monthly payments from 24 May 2018 for a maximum of 12 rmonths. He was also entitled to receive his contractual
non-cash benefits and eligible for a payment under the 2019 annual benus plan subject to performance and pro-rated on
a time-served basis to 23 May 2019. Accordingly. payrnents made to John in respect of the period from 1 January to 23 May
2019 amounted to: £242 795 in respect of salary; £60,699 in respect of 25% cash pension contribution; £6,047 in respect of
his car allowance; and £142,764 in respect of his 2019 bonus. The Committee determined John to be a good leaver in respect
of his 2017 and 2018 PSP awards (in line with the PSP plan rules). The number of shares under each award, which are due
to vest in June 2020 and March 2021 respectively, have been reduced on a time pro-rated basis to reflect length of service
up to cessation of ernployment with any dividend accruals calculated on the final vesting amount and paid in shares. All
awards are subject to the clawback provisions set out in the relevant rutes of the Plan. 68.4% of the 2016 PSP award vested
on 23 February 2019 at a value of £1,299,712. At the date of this report 36.2% of the 2017 PSP award is scheduled to vest

on 6 June 2020 at an estimated value of £296,258, subject to the finalisation of the TSR perforrmance condition,

Clive Watson, former Group Finance Director

Under the terms of his service contract and in line with the Remuneration Policy, following his retirement from the Board
on 25 March 2019, Clive Watson remained an emgployee of the Group until his retirement on 31 July 2019. During this pericd
{26 March to 31 July 2019), Clive was pai¢ a pro rata amount in respect of salary totalling £134,818; 25%; cash pension
contributions amounting to £33,705; and ¢ar allowance amounting to £5,296. He also received his contractual non-cash
benefits and received a pro rata payment under the 2019 annual bonus plan of £72,479 for that period. The Committee
determined Clive to be a good leaver in respect of his 2017 and 2018 PSP awards (in line with the PSP plan rules). The
number of shares under each award, which are due to vest in June 2020 and March 2021 respectively, have been reduced
on a time pro-rated basis to reflect length of service up to cessation of employment with any dividend accruals calculated
on the final vesting amount and paid in shares. All awards are subject to the clawback pravisions set out in the relevant
rules of the Plan. As detailed on page 79, 36.2% of the 2017 PSP award is scheduled to vest on 6 June 2020 at an estimated
vatue of £204.124, subject to the finalisation of the TSR performance condition,

PSP awards granted during 2019 (audited)

The table below details PSP share options granted to Executive Directors, in line with the Remuneration Policy, during 2019.
The maximurn level of grant remaing at 200% of base salary, calculated according to the average of the closing share price
over the five days immediately prior to the date of grant. The 2019 PSP awards to Andrew Heath and Derek Harding were
granted on 7 March 2019 and are subject to the performance conditions detailed below. No award was made to Clive
Watson in 2019, A holding period of two years applies to all awards following vesting.

Amount vesting
Basis on Number Threshold Maximum
which ofshares  Face value of Perfarmance performance opportunity Financial/
Exercise award under shares at date condition {% of face (9% of face performanca
Director price made option of grant (£} applied value} value) period
200% of Compound 13January 2019 to
Andrew Heath Sp base salary 45,710 £26.69° growthin EPS 6.66% 33.3%% 31 December 2021
EP 6.66% 33.33%
7 March 2018 to
TSR 6.66% 33.33% G March 2022
Total 20% 100%
200% of Compound 1January 2019 to
Darek Harding Sp base salary 35,593 £26.692 growthin EPS 6.66% 33.33% 31 December 2021
EP 6.66% 33.33%
7 March 2019 to
TSR 6.66% 33.33% 6 March 2022
Total 20% 100%

1 These PSP awards are linked to a grant of market value share options known as Linked PSP awards. No additional gross value can be delivered from

the exaicise of the Linked PSP awards.
2 Face value based on the average of the closing share price over five days immediately prior to the date of grant of £26.69 pence.
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Remuneration for FY2019 continued

2019 PSP awards performance conditions
The performance conditions attached to the 2012 PSP awards are:

Economic Profit 'EP')  Percentage of award that vesis
Totat Shareholder Return {'TSR') Aggregate economic {expressed as a percentage of

Relative to the FTSE 250 profit over the financial one-third of the 10tai number
Earnings Per Share 'EPS'] (excluding investments trusts) performance period of shares subject to an award}
wWeighting 33.33% 33.53% 33.33%
Performance metric CPI+ 1% p.a.compound  Upper guintile or above £181.8 million or more  100%
fc.pa)
Between CPT +5% and Between median and Between £112.3 millien Pro rata on a straight-line
% cp.a. upper gquintite and £181.8 miliien basis between 20% and 100%
CP1+5% c.p.a. Median £112.3 million 20%
Less than CPH+5% c.p.a.  Below median Less than £112.3 million 0%

Economic profit is defined as adjusted operating profit less average monthly capital employed multiplied by the Company’s weighted average cost of
capital {'WACC"), which was set at 11% for the awards granted since 2015, The WACC rate applied to subsequent acquisitions increases over the first
three years of ownership to 11%. Any impairment of goodwill and amortisation of acquired intangible assets over a performance period will be added
back to capital empleyed. The T5H performance condition is measured independently by Aon. The EPS figure is obtained from the audited Financial
Statements and the calculation of achievement against growth condition is presented to and approved by the Committee. The Committee will also
monitor outcarmes for the EP measure to ensure that they achieve the original objectives and may adjust the vesting accordingly. Any exercise of
discretion will be justified in the next Directors’ Remuneration Report. Similarly, the Committee must satisfy itself that the Company's relative TSR

performance is reflective of its underlying financial performance.

Since the original 2019 PSP targets for Economic Profit were set, the Group disposed of BTG in November 2019 and the
Commitiee agreed that, in line with its agreed policy for any material acquisition or disposal in the first two years of the
performance pericd, the Economic Profit of BTG should be removed from both the targets set and final assessment.

The impact of making this adjustment has a downward impact on the Economic Profit targets as BYG is no longer
contribluting te the Croup. The tables below show the revised targets taking into account the loss in Economic Profit and

shows how the adjustment is calculated.
The adjusted targets are as stretching as those originally set.
Summary impact of adjustment to 2019 PSP Economic Profit (EP) targets

Threshold Maximum

Economic Srofit target {Ermn) {E£m)

Original target 1474 2387

Adjustrnent for BTG [reduction in EP) {357} {56.9)
123 181.8

Adjusted Economic Profit targots
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Total shareholder return performance
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Value (£} {rebased)
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— Spectris - FTSE 250 (excluding investment trusts} Source: FactSat

This graph shows the value, by 31 Decernber 2019, of £100 invested in Spectris on 31 December 2009, compared with the
value of £100 invested in the FTSE 250 (excluding investment trusts) index on the sarme date. This index has been chosen
because it is a widely-recognised performance benchmark for large UK companies and Spectris is a constituent of the
FTSE 250. The other points plotted are the values at intervening financial year ends.

Historical Chief Executive remuneration

The table below shows the total remuneration figure for the Chief Executive for the current year and over the previous nine
years. The totai remuneration figure includes the annual bonus and LTIP awards that vested based on performance in those
years. The annual bonus and LTIP percentages show the pay-out for each year as a percentage of the potential maximum.

2000 201 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 207 2m8 2008 2009

John John John John Johbn Jehn John John John  Andrew Andrew
O'Higgins O'Higgins O'Higgins O'Higgins O'Higgins O'Higgins O'Higgins O'Higging O'Higgins Heath Heath

Single total figure of

remuneration (£'000) 1304 1,481 2,995 2172 1,122 729 1,388 1.61 1,9653 3243 1,163
Annual bonus

(9% of maximum} §5% 100% T70% 20% 18% O%' 90% 80% 549 60% 45%
PSP vesting

{% of maxirmum) B89% 100% 100% 100% 28% 0% 0% 10% 63%2 N/A N/A

1 Bonusentitlement waived.

2 Restated figure to reflect actual vesting of 2016 award.
3 Pro-rated figures based on time served as Chief Executive during 20)8: nine menths 1o 2B Septernber 2018 for John O'Higgins and three months

from 1 October 2018 for andrew Heath,

Percentage change in remuneration of Chief Executive

The table below shows the percentage change in the salary and benefits of the Chief Executive cormpared with the change
in the Executive team (excluding the Chief Executive} and in the Group's UK-based employees between the year ended

31 December 2018 and 31 Decermber 2019. The Group-wide 2012 annual bonus outcomes and payments witl be confirmed

in March 2020 and therefore estimated figures for UK-based empioyees have been used in the comparison. The Committee
has selected this cornparator group on the basis that the Chief Executive is UK-based and this provides a local market
reference and a sufficiently large comparator group based on a similar incentive structure to the Chief Executive, and
reduces any distortion arising from currency and cost of living differences in other gecgraphies in which Spectris operates.
For comparison purposes, the annualised figures for Andrew Heath have been used.

% change 2018-2019

Base salary Benefits Annual bonus
Chief Executive 0% 0.7% [24.3)%
Executive team Q%2 Q.7% 18.)%
Spectris UK-based employees 6.79% 16.19%? {5.7)%

1 Theincrease in benefits js mainly due to a small number of senior employees receiving a car allowance for the first time in 2019
2 Asreported in the 2018 Annual Report and Accounts, the Chief Executive and the Executive Team elected not to be considered for salary increases

in 2019 due to the ongaing Profit improvement Programme.
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Remuneration for FY2019 continued

CEO pay ratios

in 2018, new regulation (The Companies {Miscellaneous Reporting) Regulations 2018) was introduced in the UK requiring
quoted companies with more than 250 group-wide UK employees to disclose details of the pay ratio of the Chief Executive
to UK employees. The table below sets out the 2019 pay ratio of the Chief Executive's total remuneration to the 25th, median
{50th), and 75th percentile full-time equivalent (FTE} remuneration of Group UK employees.

25th percentile pay ratio  S0th percentile pay ratic  75th percentile pay ratio
Method lower quartile} {median} {upper quartile}

211

Financial year
31 December 2019 Qption A 401 301

Tne Chief Executive’s total remuneration is calculated on the same basis as his single total figure of remuneration {'STFR?)
reported in the table on page 76. The remuneration of the lower, median and upper quartile employees is calcutated on
full-time equivalent {FTE) data for the full year, run on 30 Novermber 2019, the annuat bonus and LTIP vesting non-salary
companents of which are estimated figures based on on-target performance. Option A methodology was chosen as it is
considered to be the most statistically accurate way to identify the best equivalents of the 25th, median and 75th percentile
figures used to calculate the pay ratios each year, and it is aligned with best practice and investor expectations. In

reviewing the employee pay data, the Committee is satisfied that the individuals identified within each relevant percentile
appropriately reflects the employee pay profiles at those quartiles, and that the overall picture presented by the ratios is
consistent with our pay, reward and progression policies for UK employees. All roles are reg warly benchmarked against
PricewaterhouseCoopers’ benchmarking report of FTSE 100-150 companies.

Further details on the total pay figures used for each quartile employee including the base salary component are set out in
the table and notes below.

Noof UK 25th percentite employee SOth percentile employee 75th percentile employee

Financial yea? employees  Remuneration  Chief Executive lower quartite) {rnedian) {uppar quartile}
: £25.605 £33,804 £47,307

31 December 2019 1,891 Base salary £610,000 FTE base salary FTE base salary FTE base salary
Total £1)62,883 £28,509 £37789 £54,990

remuneration STFR total FTE totat FTE total FTE

Notes:
The Chief Executive did not have any PSP awards capable of vesting in respect of the 2019 financial year therefore the componants of his STFR

figure cormprises only base salary, taxable benefits, pension-related benefits and annual borus.

2 Thetotal remuneration figure for UK employees comprises base salary and non.salary STFR components of taxable benefits, pension-related
benefits, annual bonus and PSPs, where applicable.

3 The total remuneration for UK employges is caleulated on the same basis as the single total figure of remuneration is calculated for Executive
Directors. The only exception 1o this is the personal element of the annual bonus for UK employees which is not known as at the date of report.
This has been estimated as the same performance level as the Chief Executive. Given the complexity of the calculations, such estimated values will
net be restated next year to reflect the actual outcames, hawever they will be for the Chief Executive’s STFR calgutations,

-

The Committee notes that, in assessing our CEO pay ratio outcemes against the wider market and our industry peers, -
these ratios are currently positioned towards the low to middle of the range. The Committee also notes that the ratios may
increase in future years as LTIPs awarded to the Chief Executive become capable of vesting.

Relative importance of spend on pay

The table below shows the relative expenditure of the Group on the pay of its employees in comparison to adjusted profit
before tax and distributions to shareholders by way of dividend payments and share buyback between the years ended
31 December 2018 and 31 December 2019, Total em pioyee pay is the total pay cost for all Group employees. Adjusted profit
before tax has been used as a comparison as this is a key financial metric which the Board considers when assessing the
Group's financial performance.

2019 2018
£ £m % change
Total employee pay 659.5 . 6337 49
Dividends paid during the year 723 682 6%
Share buyback - 100.5 -%
257.4 241.4 2%

Adjusted profit before tax!

1 Adjusted profit before tax is calculated as being statutory profit before tax as adjusted to exclude certain iterns defined in Note 2 to the Financial
Statements ON page 118,
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Non-executive Directors' remuneration

Chairman and Non-executive Directors’ fees
The fee structure for the Non-executive Directors rernained unchanged for 2019 as set out below:

2019 2008

£m £m

Chairrman [ali-inclusive fee} 220 220
Non-executive Curector basic fee 55 55
Senior Independent Director ['SID) fee 10 10
Chairman of the Audit and Risk Committee Q 10
Chairman of the Remuneration Committee 0 10
Annual travel supplement to he pzid 1o overseas-based Non-executive Directors 15 15

Single total figure of remuneration {audited}
The single total figure of remuneration for each Non-executive Director who served during the year is as follows:

Additional Taxable
Basic fees fees  expenses Total
£000 £'000 £000 £'000
Mark Williamson' Non-executive Chairman 2019 220 - - 220
2018 220 - - 220
Russell King SID and Chairman of the Remuneration Committee 2019 55 20 - 75
208 85 20 - 75
Karirn Bitar 2019 55 - - 55
2018 55 = - 55
Uif Quelmann 2019 55 15 - 70
2018 55 63 - (1]
Bill Seeger Chairman of the Audit and Risk Committee 209 55 25" - ac
2018 55 25 - B8O
Cathy Turner? 2019 18 - - 8
2018 - - - -
Kjersti Wiklund 2009 55 - - 55
20018 &5 - - 55
Martha Wyrsch 2019 55 15 - 70
2018 5% 153 - 70

1 Mark Williamson's fee is all-inchusive.

2 Cathy Turner joined the Board on 1 September 2019. Her fee is pro-rated from that date.

3 UK Quellmann, Bill Seeger and Martha Wyrsch {all based overseas) received an additional annual travel supplerment of £15,000 for 2009, inciuded in
their respective additional fees figures. UIf Quelimann bacame eligible to receive this annual travel supplement with effect from 1 August 2018 and
e recaived a pro-rated travel supplement of £6,250 for the 2018 financial year.

Directors’ shareholdings and share interests (audited)

Directors’ shareholding requirements

Under the 2017 Remuneration Policy, each Executive Director is, subject to personal circumstances, required to build

a retained shareholding in Spectris plc of at least three times base salary in value within five years of appointment and
is required to apply the post-tax benefit of any vested PSP awards or any bonus payments exceeding 60% of base salary
to the acquisition of shares until this required levef of shareholding is achieved. Both Andrew Heath and Derek Harding
{having been appointed on 3 September 2018 and 1 March 2019 respectively) are in the process of building ther
shareholding. At the date of his retirement, Clive Watson had a holding in excess of this requirement. There is no such
requirement In respect of the Chairman or Non-executive Directors, who have discretion as to whether ta hold the
Company's shares or not. "
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Remuneration for FY2019 continued

Directors’ sharehoidings and share interests (audited)
The beneficial interest of each Executive Director (including their closely associated persons) in the shares of the Company,

as at 31 Decermnber 2019, is as follows:

nterest in share plans

Ordinary shares Total Interests Total shares Shareholding asa

held at inshares 3t counting towards % of base sslary at
31 December 2019 PSP SIP? 31 Decernber 2019 sharehaolding 31 December 2012 Shareholding
Director or date of leaving' [share options) shares or date of leaving requirement* or date of leaving® requirement met
Andrew MHeath 2,500 §2,082 e 28,69 21609 102.9% No
Derek Harding 4,000 35,593 62 39,655 4,062 24.9% No
Clive Watson 131,979 70,535 50 202,57 139,186 233.7% Yes

1 Clive Watson retired from the Board on 25 March 2019,

2 PSPs are nominal cost share options of 5 pence and are subject to performance conditions. All of the PSPs held iy Andrew Heath and Derek

Harding are unvested shares. The PSP balance in respect of Clive Watson includes vested but unexercised share options, as at 25 March 2019, over

13,485 shares.

Inchudes shares purchasad through, and Matching shares held in, the Company's all-employee Share Incentive Plan {'SIP’). The Matching shares may

be subject to forfeiture within three years of the award.

4 Based on unrestricted shares held at 31 December 2018 or 25 March 2019 in respect of Clive Watsan. Clive Watson's baiance includes 13,585 vested
but unexercised share options. Net of UK income tax and N1 Contributions this represents 7,147 shares.

5 Based on the closing share price on 31 December 2019 of 2,906 pence per share and on 25 March 2019 of 2,590 pence (being the date Clive Watson

left the Board) and on annualised base salaries for comparison purposes.
Between 1January 2020 and 19 February 2020, Andrew Heath purchased 10 Partnership shares and received 2 free Matching
shares and Derek Harding purchased 11 Partnership shares and received 2 free Matching shares through the Company's SiP.
There were no other movements in share interests during this perind.

Wt

No, of shares.
subjectto
No. of options at
Market shares. 31 Decembear
value per subject to 2009 {or
Performance Exercise  share at Facevalue optionsat  Granted Exercised Lapsed cessation
Share'? Date periodend Expiry price dateof atdateof 1January during during during date if
Director plan granted date date {pence) award  grant (£) 2019  theyear theyear theyear earlier}
Andrew Sept Sept Sept
Heath PSP 2018 2021 2028 5 23784 S0B312 21,372¢ - - - 2,372
tar Mar Mar
2019 2022+ 2028 5 2,669.0 1220000 - 45,10 - - 45710
Total LTIP 21,372 45,710 - - 67,082
Derek Mar Mar Mar
Harding PSES 2078 20224 2029 5 2663.0 949977 - 35,593% - - 35,593
Total LYIP — 35,593 - - 35,593
Clive Feb Feb Feb
watson PSes 2016 2019 2026 5 17136 734,449 42,860 21645 180047 13,535 13,485
Jun Jun Jun
2017 2020 2027 5 26308 756,881 28,770 - - ~ 28,770
Mar Mar Mar
208 20214 2028 5 26772 7SINZ  28,280° - - - 28,280
Total LTIP 99910 2,184 18,004 13,535 70,5357

Shareholders approved the rules of the Spectris Performance Share Plan 2017 at the AGM held on 24 May 2017.

‘The PSP awards are conditional tights to acquire shares and are nominal cost options, The exercise price is the nominal value of a Spectris ordinary

share, which is 5 pence,

PSP awards to the Exacutive Directors are currently structured so that one-third of the award is subject to an EPS target, one-third is subject to

a TSR target and one-third is subject to an Econcric Prafit [EP'} target, Cach condition operates over a fixed three-year period (being the three

financial years commencing with the financial year in whith an award is made in respect of the EPS ang EP conditions; and three years from the

date of grant in respect of the TSR condition) with no epportunity for re-testing.

4 PSP awards granted on and after 2017 are subject to an additional two-year holding period following the Initial three-year performance period.
These awards will becorne available 10 exercise at the end of the holding peried {which will be the fifth anniversary of the date of grant).

S Under the terms of the share plan, additional dividend equivalent shares are awarded on the date the PSP award becomes exercisable thereby
increasing the numbper of award shares granted. The value of these shares is equivalent to the Company’s dividends that would have been paid
{between the date of grant and the date the PSP award bacomes exercisable) on the vested shares under the PSP award, These additional award
shares are structured as nil cost oprions 5o the exercise price is nil. )

6 The PSP awards are linked to a grant of market value share options {'Linked PSP awards’}. Such Linked PSP awards are granted up to the HMRC's limit
of an aggregate value of £30,000, and have the sarme performance and vesting conditions as the PSP awards to which they are linked. Mo additional
gross value wasican be detivered from the exercise of the Linked PSP awards. Further details are set out in Note 2X to the Financial Statements.

7 On19 March 2019 Clive Watson part exercised his 2016 PSP award by exercising options over 18,004 shares comprising 16,857 at an exercise price of 5
pence per share and 1153 dividend shares at an exercise price of nil pence. The market value on 19 March 2019 was 2,742 pence per share, The number
of outstanding shares under option shown in the final cofumn for Clive Watson is 85 at 25 March 2019, which is the date he ceased to be a Director.

B None the Direciors hold share options under the Spectris Savings related Share Options Scheme ['SAYE Scheme’).

W

W
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Share incentive Plan {'SIP’)

Totat No. of shares held

No. of shares held withinthe SiPas at

at1anuary 2019 No. of Partnership shares No. of Marching shares 31 December 2009

{or date of appointment) purchased duringtheyear  awarded during the year Dividend shares {or date of cessation)

. Andrew Heath 22 kil 15 1 103
Derek Harding 0 52 10 Q 62
Ciive Watson 38 18 4 o] 60

1 Derek Rarding was appointed to the Board an 1 March 2019,

2 Clive Watson stepped down from the Board on 25 March 2019,
3 The Spectris Share incentive Plan ("SIP’) was approved by shareholders at the 2018 AGM, This scherne is an HMRC tax-favoured share purchase scheme

open to all UK employees. The Executive Directors have the opportunity to participate in the SIP on the same terms as other Group UK employees,

4 Under the SIP, Partnership shares may be purchased cach month at market value using gross salary up 1o & rmaximunn monthly value set by HMRC
leurrently E150 per month), For every tive Partnership shares purchased, the Company will award one free Matching share. Al shares are held in
trust by the SIP Trustees. The Matching shares are subject to forfeiture within three years of the date of award.

Dilution limits

In line with best practice, the use of new or treasury shares to satisfy the vesting of awards made under the Cormnpany's
share plans [LTIPs and SAYE combined) is restricted to 10% in any ten-year rolling period. A further restriction applies to the
PSP of 5% over the sarme period of which 2.74% has been utilised.

Chairman and Non-executive Directors’ interest in shares

The Chairman and Non-executive Directors are not permitted to participate in any of the Company’s incentive schemes nor
are they required to build and retain @ minimum shareholding in the Company. They have discretion as to whether to hold
the Company's shares or not. The table below sets out the beneficial interests in the ordinary shares of the Company of
each current Non-executive Director (including their closely associated persons) during the year ended 31 December 2019.

Shares held at

1January 2019 {or date of Shares held at
Current Non-exscutive Director appointment i later) 31 Decembar 2019
Mark Williamson 16,753 16,753
Russell King 3,000 3,000
Karim Bitar 1,330 1,330
Ulf Quelimann 1,994 2,000
Bill Seeger 1,000 3,000
Cathy Turner — -
Kjersti Wiklund - -
Martha Wyrsch 3,000 3,000

There has been no change in the interests in shares of the Chairman and Non-executive Directors between 1 January 2020
and 19 February 2020.

Share price

At 31 December 20719, the last trading day of 2019, the mid-market closing share price on the London Stock Exchange of a
Spectris ordinary share was 2,906 pence per share. The highest mid-market closing share price in the year was 2,952 pence

per share and the lowest was 2,188 pence per share.
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Remuneration for FY2019 continued

Directors' service contracts and letters of appointment

The Executive Directors have rolling contracts subject to 12 months’ notice of termination by either party, or to summary
notice in the event of serious breach of the Director's obligations, dishonesty, serious misconduct or other conduct
bringing the Company into disrepute. All etters of appointment in respect of the Non-executive Directors are renewable
at each AGM, subject 1o review prior to proposal for re-election, and provide for a notice period of six months, Ordinarily,
appointments do not continue beyond nine years after first election, at which time Non-executive Directors cease to be
presumed independent under the UK Corporate Governance Code.

The table below summarises the current Directors’ service contracts or terms of appointment.

Length of service at
Date of contract Expiry date Notice period 19 February 2020
Executive Director
Andrew Reath 3Sept 2018 Ralling contract with 12 months 1vear S months
no fixed expiry date
Derek Harding 1 Mar 2019 Rolling contract with 12 months Tt months
no fixed expiry date
Non-executive Director
Mark Williamson 26 May 2017 Renewable at each AGM & months 2years 9 months
Russeii King 12 Oct 2010 Renewable at each AGM 6 months 9 yaars 4 months
Karim Bitar 1July 2017 Renewable at each AGM 6 months 2 years 7 months
UIf Quelimann 1Jan 2005 Renewable at @ach AGM & months S years1 month
Bill Seeger 1Jan 2015 Renewable at each AGM ) 6 months 4 years 1 manth
Cathy Turner 15ep 2019 Renewable at each ACM & months 5 months
Kjersti Wiklund 19 Jan 2017 Renewable at éach AGM 6 months 3 years 1 month
Martha Wyrsch 1Jun 2012 Renewable at each AGM € months 7 years 8 manths

External appointments — Executive Directors

Executive Directors may retain any payments received in respect of external non-executive appointments held, Such
appointments are normally limited to one per Director at any time and are subject to the approval of the Board. Andrew
Heath and Derek Harding did not hold any external non-executive appointments during 2019, Details of the payments
received by Clive Watson (pro-rated to 25 March 2015 being the date he retired from the Board) for external non-executive
appointments heid during 2019 are set out in the table below:

Company name Fee retained

Chve Watson . Spirax-Sarco Engineering plc £16,782

Summary of shareholder voting on Directors’ remuneration

The Remuneration Policy in operation during 2019 was approved by 98.46% of the votes cast at the 2017 AGM heid on

25 May 2017 anyd the 2018 Directors’ Rermuneration Report was approved by 3310% of the votes cast at the 2019 AGM held
on 24 May 2019. The new Rermuneration Policy, which is effective from 1January 2020, was approved by shareholders at

a General Meeting held on 4 December 2019 by 94% of the votes cast, as detailed in the tabie below:

Vates

Viates for Vates against withtheld

Number % Number %  Number

2017 AGM Directors’ Remuneration Poficy 93,190,031 98.46% 1445329 1.53% $17,033
2019 AGM 2018 Directors’ Remuneration Report 89,404,171 93.10% €,628,488 6.90% 817,297
2019 General Meeting 2020 Directors' Remuneration Policy 94,256,910 94.09% 5916276 5.91% 3.862

Directors’ interest in contracts

No Director had, during the year or at the end of the year, any material interest in any contract of significance to the -
Group's business.

Loans to Directors
During the year, there were no outstanding loans to any Director.
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Role of the Remuneration Committee

The Committee is responsibie for recommending to the Board the Group's Rernuneration Policy, including the
remuneration arrangements for the Chairman, the Executive Directors, the Cormpany Secretary and members of the
Executive Committee, and for the practical operation of the Policy. It regularly reviews the balance between fixed and
variable pay and the performance conditions that attach to both short-term and long-term incentives. Environmental,
social and governance factors are considered by the Committee when assessing the personai element of Executive
Directors’ performance. The Committee monitors the level and structure of remuneration for senior management and
takes into account workfarce remuneration, related poficies and the alignment of incentives and rewards with the Group's
culture. The remuneration of Non-executive Directors is a matter reserved for the Board. The full terms of reference for the
Remuneration Cormmittee are reviewed annually and are available at www.spectris.com.

Committee members and attendees

All members of the Committee are independent Non-executive Directars. During 2019, the members were: Russell King
[Chairman), Karim Bitar. UIf Quellmann and Kjersti Wiklund. Cathy Turner joined the Committee on her appointment 1o the
Doard on 1 September 2012, .

Details of each member's attendange are disclosed on page 57 Only members of the Committee have the right to attend
maeetings but other individuals and external advisers may attend by invitation. The Chairman i1s invited to attend alf
meetings of the Committee. During the year, the Committee also invited the Chief Executive and Group Human Resources
Director to attend meetings to provide advice to the Committee to allow it to make informed decisions. The Deputy
Company Secretary atiends all meetings as Secretary to the Committee. No ind/vidual was present when their own
remuneration was being discussed.

The Committee also meets without management present and received independent remuneration advice during the year
from the external advisers appointed to support the Committee.

Committee activities in 2019
The Committee addressed the following key agenda items during its six rneetings in 2C19:

February 20019
Review and approval of incentive outcomes for the annual bonus and Performance Share Plan {'P5P'} in respect of performance for the
year ended 31 December 2018

.- Agreement of Executive Directors’ 2019 bonus arrangements, target performance measures and personal objectives
+ Review and approval of 2019 PSP grant levels and target range for performance measures

- Review of Executive Director ang Executive Committee salaries
- Raview and approval of the 2018 Directors’ Rermuneration Report

Aprit 2019

Consideration of the UK Corparate Governance environmaent and Key external market developments relating to remuneration
Agreement of initial principles and relevant performance measures to support the creation of a draft Remuneration Palicy

Agreement of draft Remuneration Palicy structure

July 2013
Review of draft Remuneration Policy, detailed tarm sheets for proposed financial measures and malus and clawback provisions
+  Review of workforce remuneration arrangements, including pension arrangements
- Review of draft CEO average payratic
- Consideration of interim PSP awards for beiow Board level participants
- Reviewed the Group's gender pay reporting outcomes

Qcrober 2019
+ Review of proposed alterations to the draft Remuneration Policy following shareholder consultation and agreement of recommendation
of that policy to the Board

s 2019

Agreernent of approach for the roll-out and application of the new Remuneration Policy below Board-level
Consideration and agreament of adjustrments to in-flight incentive arrangements following the completion of the divestment of BTG
Review of the draft 2019 Directors’ Remuneration Report
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Role of the Remuneration Committee continued

The Committee has taken time during the year ta review the remuneration of the wider workfarce, related policies and
the alignment of incentives and rewards with culture as part of both its implementation of the 2017 Policy and its design

of the 2020 Remuneration Policy,

Stakeholder Engagement

Values and culture in remuneration

During 2019, the Board reviewed the Group's values and
culture as part of the launch of the Strategy for Profitable
Growth. The value framewark agreed by the Board in
December 2019 will be built into the performance
management framework of the Group and the Remuneration
Committee has used this framework as a foundation for
the operational and strategic targets for the Executive
Directors and Executive Committee members for 2020,

In setting these targets, the Committee has also considered
the outcomes of the first Croup-wide senior employee
pulse survey,

Empioyee share ownership

Spectris is a proud advocate of employee share ownership,
Due to the Croup's decentralised structure, particulfar
importance is placed on aligning management throughout
the Group with Spectris. Awards under the Spectris LTIP are
granted to each management team within each Platform
and in each operating cormpany in the Industriat Solutions
division to support the afignment of their interests with
sharehoiders, In the UK, the Croup also manages a successful
all-empioyee Share Incentive Plan ('SIP’) to allow all UK-
based employees to build a shareholding in Spectris. For
every five shares purchased by an employee under the SiP,
the Cormpany awards one free Matching share,

_ Investor views
Through the consulation process that supported the
approval of the 2020 Remuneration Policy, the Committee
reached out to investors holding in excess of 50% of the
Croup's issued share capital. The Remuneration Committee
Chairman also held face-to-face meetings with investors
holding over 40% of the Group's issued share capital.

Gender pay gap reporting

Spectris pic employs fewer than 250 people in the UK.
However, the Board and Remuneration Committee
considered the issue of gender pay to be important and for
the second year Spectris has chosen to voluntarily collate
the results for the UK-based employees of the Group and
disclose the Group's gender pay gap. The detaited disclosure
is set out on page 50 of the Sustainability Report. For 2018,
this gap is 10.65%. In 2019, the Remuneration Committee
reviewed the data that comprised the external disclosure
and confirmed its confidence that men and women were
being paid equally for doing the same job. It was agreed
that the structure of the UK workforce was driving the

gap, with an imbalance in the number of male and fermale
employees in similar roles. This imbalance has been a core
focus of time and attention by the Board and the Nomination
Committee during the year and the Remuneration
Committee now reviews the gender pay gap data as part

of its annual standing agenda.

337780 shares

held by employees as part of the Share
Incentive Plan as at 31 Decernber 2019

CEO pay ratio

The table below provides a summary disclosure of the
ratic of CEQ pay for 2019, The full audited disclosure is set
out on page B4 of this report. In reviewing the employee
pay data, the Cornmittee has satisfied itseif that the
individuals identified within each relevant percentile

appropriately reflect the employee pay profiles at those
quartiles and that the overali picture presented by the ratios
is consistent with our pay, reward and progression policies
for UK employees.

~ 25th percentile 50th percentile ‘75th percentile
No of UK CEO total employee employee employee
Financial year employees remuneration {lower quartile} {rmedian) (upper quartile}
31 Decamber 2019 1,891 £1,062,883 £28,509 £37,789 £54,980
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Advisers to the Committee

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP {'PwC’} was first appointed as independent remuneration adviser in January 2008. During
2019, PwC has provided advisory support to the Committee on various aspects of the Directors’ remuneration, including:

- advice on remuneration for Executive Directors;

- analysis on all elements of the Remuneration Policy; and

- regular market and best practice updates.

PwC reports directly to the Cornmittee Chairman. During 2019, PwC also provided certain project advisory services to
the Company.

Aon separately supports the Company in compiling IFRS 2 'Share-based Payment' reporting on the Company's share
plans and TSR perfermance calculations in retation to the Company's PSP. Aon does not provide any other services to
the Company. Total fees paid during the financial year to these advisers weare: PwC £144,751 (2018: £53,667) and Acn
£28,475 (2018: £12,300}. These fees were charged on the basis of each firm's standard terms of business.

Both PwC and Aon are members of the Remuneration Consultants Group and adhere to its Code of Conduct.

The Committee reviewed the objectivity and independence of the advice it receives from its advisers each year and
is satisfiad that both PwC and Aon provided credible and professional advice during 2019,

Annual performance evaluation

The performance of the Committee was reviewed as part of the external evaluation of the Board. This evaluation process
was led by Lisa Thomas from Independent Board Evaluation and further detaiis regarding the process followed are set
out on page 60. The Committee was considered to have operated effectively during the year.

2020 Remuneration Committee workplan

The Committee intends to focus an the following key areas during 2020:

- wider workforce remuneration structures and key policies;

+ wider UK workforce pension arrangements as part of the stated aim of aligning the UK pension arrangements by 2022,

+ CEO average pay compared to UK workforce average pay; and
monitoring of the Group's existing Rermuneration Policy against the Group's strategy, market practice, changes in the

external governance environment and investor quidance.

By order of the Board

Russell King
Chairman of the Remuneration Committee

19 February 2020

This Directors’ Remuneration Report for the year ended 31 December 2019 complies with the requirements of the
Listing Rules of the UK Listing autherity, Schedule B of the Large and Medium-sized Companies and Groups [Accounts
and Reports) Reguiations 2013, the Companies {Miscellaneous Reporting) Regulations 2018 and the provisions of the
2018 UK Corporate Governance Code.
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Directors’ Report

Ovarview of the information required to be disclosed
This section sets out the information required to be
disclosed by the Company and the Croup in the Directors’
Report in compliance with the Cornpanies Act 2006

(the ‘Act’), the Listing Rules of the UK Listing Authority
(‘Listing Rules’] and the Disclosure Guidance and
Transparency Rules ('DTR’). Certain matters that would
otherwise be disclosed in this Directors’ Report have been

therefore be read in conjunction with the Strategic Report
on pages | to 53 and the Governance section (pages 54 to
91) which are incorporated by reference into this Directors’
Report. The Strategic Report and this Directors’ Report,
together with other sections of this Annual Report and
Accounts including the Governance section on pages 54

to 91 incorporated by reference, when taken as a2 whole,
form the Management Report as required under Rule 41.5R

reported elsewhere in this Annual Report. This repart should  of the DTR.
Disciosure Reported in Page reference
Acquisitions and disposals strategic Report Page 38
Arsticles of Association Directors’ Report Page 93
Annual General Meeting Directors’ Report fage 93
Appointment and removal of Directors DOieciors Report Page 94
Autharity to aliot shares Directors’ Repaort Page 93
Business madel Strategic Report Pages16and 17
Change of control Diractors’ Report Page 94
Community and charitable giving Strategic Report Page 48
Corporate governance Governance Pages 54 1096
Directors’ conflicts of interest Directors’ Report Page 94
Directors’ details Gaovernance Pages 54 and 55
Directors' indemnity Directors’ Report Page 94
Directors’ responsibility statement Directors’ Report Page 96
Dizclosure of information to auditor Directors' Report Page 85
Diversity, equality and inclusion Strategic Report Page sO
Employee engagement Governance Page 59
Employee equal opportunities strategic Report Page 50
Employee share plans Directors’ Report Page 94
Employees with disabilities Strategic Report Page SO
Financial instruments Directors' Report Page 94
Future developments and strategic priorities Strategic Report Pages 14 and 15
Going concern Directors’ Report Page 94
Greenhouse gas emissions Strategic Report Page 52
. Non-financial information statement and Index Directors' Report Page 93
QOngoing director training and development Governance Page 80
Political donations Directors’ Report, Page 94
Powers of Directors Diractors’ Report Page 94
Principal risks and risk rr gement Strategic Report Pages 4210 46
Purchase of own shares Directors’ Report Page 94
Research and development activities Strategic Report Pages 17 and 37
Restrictions on transfer of shares Directors’ Report Page 95
Restrictions on voting rights Drirectors’ Report Page 95
Rasults and dividends Strategic Report Pages 4and S
Rights and obligations attaching to shares Directors’ Report Page 95
Section 172 statement Strategic Report Pages 5, 4B and 58
Sharae capital Directors’ Report Page 95
Stakeholder engagement Strategic Report Pages 48 and 49
Substantial share interests Directors' Report Page 95
Treasury shares Director's Report Page 95
Viability Statement Strategic Report Page 47
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Non-financial information statement and index

This statement is made in compliance with the Companies
Act 2006 and is intended to provide an understanding

of our development, performance and position on key
non-financial matters. The table below sets out where
information relating to non-financial matters can be located.

Non-financial information index

Reporting Some of our relevant policies Page
requirement and standards Where to find out more information reference
Anti-bribery and corruption Code of Business Ethics Ethics and values standards S3and 59
Culture, integrity and commitmant to our values S3and 59
Ethics helpline 53
Ethical teadership 53
Principal risk - 'Compliance’ 45
Business modal Qur business model i6and 17
Environmental matters Environrmental policy Environmental management 52
IS0 14001 Energy performance 52
Greenhouse gas emissions (CHG) 52
KP! - Energy efficiency 9
Employees Code of Business Ethics Fair employment and diversity 50
Heaith and Safety policy Board diversity 62
OHSAS 18001 Employee engagement and Workforce 48,50 and
Engagement Director 52
Gender pay 50
SA 8000 Social Accountability Health, safety and welibeing at work 50and 51
KPl Accident incidence rate 19

Principal risks;
-'"Compliance’ 45
- 'Talent and capabilities’ 46
Human rights Human Rights palicy Legal and regulatory compliance Sl
Code of Business Ethics Principal risk - 'Compliance’ 45
Non-financial KPis Energy efficiency 19
Accident incidence rate 198
Social matters Community involverment 48

Resuits and dividends

Tre financial results for the financial year ended 31 Decernber 2013 are set out on pages 105
to 171, Adjusted operating profit for the year amounts to £258.1 million {2018: £248.3 million).

An interim dividend of 21.90 pence per share was paid on 8 November 2019 in respect of

the half year ended 30 June 2019, The Board is recommending a final dividend of 43.2 pence
per share for the year ended 31 December 2019, which, together with the interim dividend

of 21.90 pence per share paid on 8 November 2019, gives a total dividend for the year of

65.1 pence per share (2018: 61.0 pence per share). Dividend detzils are given in Note 9 to the
Financial Statements on page 130. The Board is further recomnmending a special dividend of
150 pence per share together with a share consolidation which will also require shareholder
approval at the 2020 AGM. Full details are set out in the Notice of AGM which accompanies this
Annual Report. Subject to approval of shareholders at the 2020 AGM, the final and special
dividends will be paid on 22 June 2020 to thaose shareholders on the register at 22 May 2020.

Articles of Association
{Articles}

The Company's Articles contaln specific provisions and restrictions regarding the Company's
powers to borrow rmoney. Powers relating to pre-emgptive rights, allotment of shares, purchase
of the Company's owrn shares are also included in the Artictes and such authorities are
renewed by sharehociders each year at the Annual General Meeting. The Articles also give
power 10 the Board to appoint and remove Directors and require Directors to submit
themselves for election at the first AGM following their appointment and for annual re-
election at subsequent AGMSs, The Articles may be amended by special resolution of the
shareholders. The Cormpany's Articles are avaitable on the Cornpany's website:
WWwW.specttis.com.

Annual General Meeting

{AGM)

The 2020 AGM will be held at 12.00pm on Friday 22 May 2020 at Great Fosters, Stroude Road,
Egham, Surrey TW20 3UR. The Notice of the AGM accompanies this Annual Report and is
available at www.spectris.com.

Auditor's re-appoin?nent

and remuneration

Resolutions for the re-appointment of Deloitte LLP as the Company’s auditor and to authorise -
the Directors, acting through the Audit & Risk Committee, to agree the remuneration of the
auditor are to be proposed at the 2020 ACM,

Directors' Report
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Directors’ Report continued

Branches

The Spectris Group, through various subsidiaries, has established branches in a number
of different countries in which the business operates.

Change in control

‘There are a number of agreements that take effect, alter or terminate upon & change of

control of the Group following a takeover, such as bank loan agreements and Company share
plans. None of these are deemed to be significant in terms of their potential impact cn the
business of the Group as a whole. it is also possible that funding arrangements for the Group's
defined henefit pension arrangements would need to be enhanced following a change in
control if that resulted in a weakening of the employer covenant. The Company does not have
any agreerments with any Director that would provide for enhanced compensation for toss of
office or employment following a takeover bid.

Directors

Details of the Directors who served during the year are set out on pages 54 and 55, other than
Clive Watson whoe retired from the Board on 25 March 2019, Directors are appointed and
replaced in accordance with the Articies, the Act and the UK Corporate Governance Code 2018,

Directors' conflicts
of interest

The Board has an established process to review at least annually, and, if appropriate, authorise
conflict of interests, Any transactional conflicts are reviewed as they arise. Directors are asked
to review and confirm reported conflicts of interest as part of the year-end process.

Directors' remuneration

and interest

Details of Directors’ remuneration and their interest in the Company’s shares are set out in the
Directors’ Remuneration Report on pages 70 and 9.

Directors’ and
officers’ indemnities
and insurance

The Spectris Croup maintains tiability insurance for its Directors and officers. The Directors
and Company Secretary have also been granted a third-party indemnity, under the Act, which
remains in force. Neither the Company's indemnity nor insurance provides cover in the gvent
that an indemmnified individual is praven to have acted fraudulently or dishonestiy.

Directors' powers

The business of the Company is managed by the Board, which may exercise all the powers
of the Company subject 1o the Articles and the Act.

Employee share plans

Details of employee share plans are sét out in the Remuneration Policy summary table on
page 75 and in Note 23 to the Financial Staternents on page 145.

Financial instruments

Details of the Group's financial risk management inrelation to its financial instruments are
given in Note 28 1o the Financial Staterents uy pages 157 to 155,

Going concern and
Viability Statement

Having reviewed the Group's plans and availabie financial facilities, the Board has a reasonable
expectation that the Group has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for

at least 12 months following the signing of the accounts. For this reason, it continues to adopt
the going concern basis in preparing the Group's accounts. The Company's Viability
Statemnent can be found on page 47.

Palitical donations

The Group's policy is not to make any political donations and none were made during the
financial year ended 31 December 2019 {2018: nil).

Post balance
sheet events

On 17 January 2020, an announcement was made that agreement had been reached for the
sale of our interest in the EMS Brie! & Kjaer joint venture for consideration of £17.9m (n cash
and approximatety £1.2m in shares in Envirosuite Limited ("Envirosuite’). The closing of the deal
is subject to approval by Envirosuite’s shareholders at a meeting to be held on 24 February
2020 and the conditjonal placement of shares by Envirosuite reguired to fund the
consideration for the transaction, with completion expected to take piace shortly thereafter.
AS a result, the receivabie from the joint venture has been impaired by £21.3m to the expected
recovetable amount and the rermaining balance of £18.2m has been included within assets
held for sale at 31 December 2019.

On 31 January 2020, the Group sold its interest in the Rheology range of products to Netzsch

Group for consideration of £8.8m in cash. This product range, part of the Malvern Panalytical
segment, geherated approximately £12m of revenue apd £1m of operating profit in 2019,

Purchase of own shares

The Cornpany was authorised by shareholders at the 2019 AGM to purchase in the market up
to 10% of the Company's iSsued share capital, as permitted under the Company’s Articles. No
shares were purchased under this authority during the year. This standard authority is
renewable annually and the Directors will seek 1o renew this authority at the 2020 AGM.

Related party transactions

Daetails of related party transactions are set out in Note 32 to the Financial Statements
on page 156,
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Share capital

The share capital of the Company comprises ordinary shares of S pence each: each share
fwith the exception of those held by the Company in Treasuryj carries the right to one

vote at general meetings of the Company. The Company may reduce or vary the rights
attaching to its share capital by special resolution subject to the Articles ang applicable
laws and regulations. The issued share capital of the Company together with movements
in the Company’s issued share capital during the year are shown in Note 22 to the Financial
Staternents on page 144.

Shareholders' rights
and obligations
attaching to shares

The Articles {available on the Cornpany‘s website www.spectris.com ) contain provisions
governing the ownership and transfer of shares. All shareholders have equal voting rights
with one vote per share and there are no special control rights attaching. There are no
restrictions on the transfer of shares beyond those required by applicable law under the
Articles or under any applicable share dealing policy.

Subject to any speciat rights or restrictions, every shareholder on the Register not less than
48 working hours before the time fixed for a general meeting, will have one vote for every
fully-paid share that they hold. Shareholders may cast votes either personally or by proxy,
and a proxy need not be a shareholder. Details relating to the appointment of proxies and
registration of voting instructions for the 2020 AGM are set out in the Notice of AGM
accompanying this Annual Report.

Substantial shargholders

As at 31 Decermber 2019, the Company had received formal notifications of the following
holdings in its ordinary shares in accordance with DTR 5:

Percentage of issued

Shareholding i Date of. share capitalat

Spectris shares notification date of notification

Massachusetts Financial Services Company 12,797,886 22 Oct 2019 1.03%
FMRLLC 6,205,369 23 Nov 2016 5.37%
Oppenheimer Funds, Inc 5,720,217 1S Jun 2018 4.83%

Between 31 Decermber 2019 and the date of this report, the Company received notification
from FMR LLC, on 3 January 2020 of an increase in their holding 1o 7.48% (8,682,229
Spectris shares). A list of the Company's major shareholders is set out on page 172.

Treasury shares

Shares held by the Company in treasury do not have voting rights and are not eligible to
receive dividends.

Disclosures required
under UK Listing Rule 9.8.4

There are no disclosures required to be made under UK Listing Rule 9.8.4 pther than in
respect of long-term incentive schemes, details of which are set out in the Directors’
Rernuneration Report on pages 70 to 91.

Disclosure of
information to auditor

The Directors who held office at the date of approval of the Directars’ Report confirm that:

- 50 far as they are each aware, there is no relevant audit information, which would be
needed by the Company's auditor in connection with preparing its audit report, of which
the Company's auditor is unaware; and

+ each Director has taken ali steps that they ought to have taken as a Director in order to
make themselves aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that the
Company's auditor is aware of that information.

On behalf of the Board
Mark Serfdz6

Mole f..?f,.

General Counsel and Company Secretary

19 February 2020

Directors’ Report
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Statement of Directors' responsibilities in respect
of the Annual Report and the Financial Statements

The Directors are responsible for preparing the Annual
Report, Directors’ Rermuneration Report and the Group
and Company Financial Statements in accordance with
applicable law and regudations.

Under the Companies Act, the Directors are required to
prepare the Group and Company Financial Statements

in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards {'IFRS'} as adopted by the European Union ('EU’}
and Article 4 of the IAS regulation and have also elected to
prepare the Company Financial Staternents in accordance
with UK Accounting Standards, including FRS 101 'Reduced
Disclosure Framewoerk’.

Under company law, the Directors are required to prepare
such Financial Statements for each financial year and
must hot approve the Financial Statements unless they are
satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the state of
affairs of the Group and Company and of their profit or loss
for that period.

in preparing each of the Croup and Company Financial
Statements, the Directors are required to:

- select accounting policies and then apply them
consistently;

- make judgements and accounting estimates that are
reasvnable and prudent;

+ for the Group Financial Statements, state whether they
have been prepared in accordance with IFRS as adopted
by the EU;

- for the Company Financial Statemenits, state whether
applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed,
subject tc any rmaterial departures disciosed and
explained in the Company Financial Statements; and
prepare the Financial Statements on the going concern
basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the Group
and Company will continue in business.

The Directors are responsible for keeping adequate
accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain
the Company's transactions and.disclose with reasonabile
acecuracy at any time the financial position of the Company
and enable them to ensure that its Financial Statements
comply with the Companias Act 2006. They have general
respensibility for taking such steps as are reasonably open
to them to safeguard the assets of the Group and to prevent
and detect fraud and other irregularities.

Uinder applicable law and regulations, the Directors are
also responsible for preparing a Strategic Report, Directors’
Report, Directors' Remuneration Report and Corporate
Governance Statement that comply with that law and
those regulations.

The Directors are responsible for the maintenance and
integrity of the corporate and financial information included
on the Company's website. Legislation in the UK governing
the preparation and dissemination of financial statements
rnay differ from legislation in other jurisdictions.
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Directors’ responsibility statement
We confirm that to the best of our knowiedge:

- the Financial Statements, prepared in accordance with
the applicable set of accounting standards, give a true
and fair view of the assets, liabilities, financial position
and profit or loss of the Company and the undertakings
included in the consolidation taken as a whole;
the Strategic Repart on pages 1to 53 and the Directors’
Report on pages 54 to 95 include a fair review of the
development and performance of the business and the
position of the Group and the undertakings included
in the consolidation taken as a whole, together with a
description of the principal risks and uncertainties that
they face; and

+ the Annuai Report and Accounts taken as a whole, is fair,
balanced and understandable, and provides the
informatiorn: necessary for shareholders to assess the
Group's performance, business model and strategy.

The Strategic Report and the Directors’ Report were
approved by the Board on 12 February 2020.

By order of the Board

Andrew Heath
Chief Executive

Derek Harding
Chief Financial Officer
19 February 2020
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Financijal Statements

Independent Auditor’'s Report to the

Members of Spectris plc

Report on the audit of the
Financial Statements

1. Opinion

in our opinion:

- the Financial Statements of Spectris plc (the ‘Parent
Company') and its subsidiaries {the 'Group') give a true
and fair view of the state of the Group's and of the Parent
Company's affairs as at 31 December 2019 and of the
Group’s profit for the year then ended;

- the Group Financial Statements have been properly
prepared in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards ("IFRSs'} as adopted by the
European Union and IFRSs as issued by the international
Accounting Standards Board (1ASB’);

- the Parent Company Financial Statements have been

properly prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted

by the European Union and as applied in accordance
with the provisions of the Companies Act 2006; and

the Financial Staterments have been prepared in

accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act

2006 and, as regards the Group Financial Statements,

Article 4 of the IAS Regulation.

.

3. Surmmary of our audit approach

We have audited the Financial Statements which comprise:

. the Consolidated Income Statement;
- the Consolidated Statement of Cornprehensive income;

- the Consclidated and Company Statements of Changes
in Equity;

- the Consclidated and Company Statement of Financial
Position;

. the Consoligdated Statement of Cash Flows; and

- the Consclidated Notes 1to 34 and Company Notes 1to 15.

The financial reporting framework that has been applied in
their preparation is applicable law and IFRSs as adopted by
the European Union and, as regards the Parent Cormnpany
Financial Statements, as applied in accordance with the
provisions of the Companies Act 2006.

2. Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Internationalt
Standards on Auditing (UK} (‘ISAs [UK)'} and applicable law.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the auditor's responsibilities for the audit of
the financial statements section of our report.

We are independent of the Group and the Parent Cormnpany
in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant
to our audit of the financial statements in the UK, including
the Financial Reporting Council's (the ‘FRC's’) Ethical
Standard as applied to listed public interest entities, and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with these requirements. We confirm that the non-audit
services prohibited by the FRC's Ethical Standard were not
provided to the Group or the Parent Company. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key audit matters The key audit matters that we identified in the current year were:
. impairment of the carrying value of goodwill, other intangible and tangible assets;

. revenue recognition; and

- classification and disclosure of restructuring costs from significant programmes.

Within this report, key audit matters are identified as follows:

*‘ Newly identified
T Increased lgvel of risk
= Similar level of risk
\i’ Decreased leve! of risk

Materiality The materiality that we used in the Consolidated Financial Statements was £12.3m {2018:
£12.0rm} which was determined on the basis of 5% of adjusted profit before tax.
Scoping Full scope audit work was completed on 54 components and specified audit procedures were
undertaken on a further one component. Our full scope and specified audit procedures covered 71%
{2018 70%) of total Group revenue and 78% {2018: 93%) of Group statutory profit before tax.
Significant A significant proportion of the Croup's material cornponents are classified as full audit scope
changes in © components consistent with the previous year, BTG was audited to 2 Decernber 2019, when it was
our approach divested from the Group.

Two additional key audit matters are disclosed in our opinion in the year ended 31 Decernber 2019.

These afe:
- revenue recognition; and

- classification and disclosure of restructuring costs from significant programmes.

These iterns have been included as key audit matters as there continues to be a weighting towards the
second haif of the year in respect of revenue recognised, and in the ¢ase of restructuring costs, these relate
to the Profit Improverment Programme {'PIP') which is 2 material restructuring programme in the year.

Independent Auditor's Report to the Members of Spectris plc
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Independent Auditor’s Report to the
Members of Spectris pic continued

4.Conclusions relating to going concern, principal risks and viability statement

4.1. Going concern

We have reviewed the Directors’ statement on page 94 to the Financial Statements about whether
they considered it appropriate to adopt the going concern basis of accounting in preparing

them and their identification of any material uncertainties to the Group's and Company's ability

to continue to do 50 over a perfod of at least 12 months from the date of approval of the

Financial Statements.

We considered as part of our risk assessment the nature of the Group, its business model and
related risks including where relevant the impact of Brexit, the requirements of the applicable
financial reporting framework and the system of interna! control. We evaluated the Qirectors’
assessment of the Group's ability to continue as a going concern, including challenging the
underlying data and key assurnptions used to make the assessment, and evaluated the Directors'
plans for future actions in relation to their going concern assessment,

We are required to state whether we have anything material to add or draw attention to in relation
to that staterment required by Listing Rule 9.8.6R{3} and report if the statement is matenally
inconsistent with cur knowledge obtained in the audit,

Going concern is the
basis of preparation
of the Financial
Statements that’
assumes an entity
will remaln in
operation for a
period of at least

12 months from the
date of approval

of the Financial
Statements.

We confirm that
we have nothing
material to report,
add or draw
attention to in
respect of these
matters.

4.2, Principal risks and viability statement

Based solely on reading the Directors’ staterments and considering whether they were consistent

with the krnowledge we obtained in the course of the audit, including the knowledge obtained in

the evaluation of the Directors’ assessment of the Group's and the Company's ability to continue as

a going concern, we are required to state whether we have anything material to add or draw

attention to in relation to:

- the disclosures on pages 44-46 that describe the principal risks, procedures to identify emerging
risks, and an explanation of how these are being managed or mitigated,;

- the Directors' confirmation on page 47 that they have carried out a robust assessment of the
principal and emerging risks facing the Group, inciuding those that would threaten its business
model, future performance, solvency or liquidity; or

- the Directors’ explanation on page 47 as to how they have assessed the prospects of the Group,
over what period they have done so and why they consider that period to be appropriate, and their
statement as to whether they have a reasonable expectation that the Group will be able to
continue jn operation and meet its liabilities as they fall due over the period of their assessment,
incluging any related disclosures drawing attention to any necessary qualifications or
assumptions.

We are also required to report whether the Diractors' statement relating to the prospects of the

Group required by Listing Rule 9.8.6R(3) is materially inconsistent with our knowledge cbtained

in the audit.

Viability means the
ability of the Group
to continue over
the time horizon
considered
appropriate by

the Directars.

We confirm that
we have nothing
rmaterial to report,
add or draw
attention tc in
respect of these
matters.

5. Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of maost significance in our audit of the
Financial Statements of the current period and include the
most sighificant assessed risks of material misstatement
{whether or not due to fraud} that we identified. These

matters inciuded those which had the greatest effect on: on these mattars.
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the overall audit strategy, the allocation of resources in the
audit; and directing the efforts of the engagement team.

These matters were addressed in the context of our audit
of the Financial Statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion
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5.1, Impairment of the carrying value of goodwill, other intangible and tangible assets T

Key audit matter
description

Total goodwill and intangible assets at 31 December 2019 were £646.8m (2018: £766.3m) and £178.5m
(2018: £263.3m), respectively.

We focused our impairment of goodwill, other intangible and tangible assets testing at Concept Life
Sciences 'CLS') and Millbrook, given the increased risk of impairment triggered by trading
performance and/for limited headroom of recoverabie amount over the carrying armount.

- €LS - During 20192, CLS trading performance was below expectations leading to a strategic review of
the business. Consequently impairment triggers were identified leading te management petforming
an impairment assessment at 30 June 2019. Managerent assessed the recoverability of goodwil! and
other intangible asset balances and identified impairments of £32.4m relating to customer and
technology intangible assets and £35.1m relating to goodwill.

- Millbrook - Since its acquisition in 2016, there hasg been significant capital investment in Millbrook
alongside two bolt-on acquisitions. Given the early programme life cycle stage, the headroom
between the recoverable armount and the carrying amount of the Millbrook cash-generating unit
{'CCU'} is £17.0m. There is consequently a risk surrounding the recoverability of goodwill, intangible
and tangible assets, as assessed annually by management.

Management have determined the recoverable amount based on a value-in-use model calculated
from cash flow projections based on management's assumptions and estimates of future
trading performance.

Estimating a value-in-use is inherently judgernental, and a range of assumptions can reasonably

be applied in determining the estimates applied therein. The key judgements in assessing goodwill,
intangible and tangible assets for impairment are the discount rate, long-term growth rate, and the
short-term projected cash flows. The value-in-use model! is sensitive to changes in these estimates,

all of which must reflect a long-term view of underlying growth in the respective econornies within
which these businesses operate and the reasonableness of projected cash flows. Specifically, we have
pinpointed this key audit matter to the discount rate and short-term future cash flows in the two CGUs
referred to above and material judgements contained therein. This is where the highest degree of
sensitivity exists in determining the value-in-use. Therefore management have provided sensitivity
disclosures of the reascnable possible changes that could result in an impairment.

The Audit Committee Report on page 66 refers to impairment of goodwill and other intangibles as on
orea considered by the Audit Committee.

Note 1to the Consolidated Financicl Statements sets out the Group's occounting policy for testing of
gooadwill and intangibies for impairment. The basis for the impairment reviews is outlined in Note 17

to the Consolidated Financial Statements, including details of the discount rates and long-term
growth rotes used. Note 11 ta the Consolidated Financial Statements also includes details of the extent
te which the CGUs to which the goodwill and other intangibles ossets are allocated are sensitive to

changes in the key inputs.

How the scope
of our audit
respended to the
key audit matter

QOur precedures for challenging management's methodology and assumptions focused on both CGUs

discussed above and inciuded the following:

- Obtaining and understanding of controis relevant to the impairment assessment, including
management's review of projected cash flows prepared at the operating company level.

- Validating the integrity of management's impairment model through testing of the mechanical
accuracy and verifying the application of the input assumptions.

« Understanding the underiying process used to determine the risk adjusted cash flow prgjections.

- Evaluating the process management undertook to prepare the cash flow forecasts in their
impairment model including agreement with the latest Board-approved plans and management-
approved forecasts.

- Challenging the cash flow projections through assessing the accuracy of historical budgeting by
comparing them with actual performance and independent evidence to support any significant
expected future changes to the business.

- Considering a range of available market data and performing a peer benchmarking exercise to assess
and chalienge the growth rates forecasted by management in revenue and margins.

+ Considering the potential impact of Brexit on the cash flow projections. Considering reasonable
possible changes in assumptions to challenge the appropriateness of management’s assessment
of reasonable possible change scenarios.

- Reviewing the adequacy of the Group's disclosures on impairment in Note 11 of the Financial
Statements.

Our challenge was infermed by input from certain of our internal valuations specialists, utilising

their knowledge and expertise in relation to the discount rate and the market in which CLS and

Millbrock operate.

Independent Auditor's Report to the Members of Spectris plc
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Independent Auditor's Report to the
Members of Spectris plc continued

Key observations

Based on the work performed as outlined above, we consider the key assumptions taken by
management 1o be within an acceptable range and are reasenable and supportable when taken

in aggregate.
At CLS we are satisfied with the impairment charged to the consolidated income statement during
2019, and the disclosure provided within Note 1t of the Financial Statements.

Whilst not impaired, given the limited headroom in Millbrook, a change in the key assumptions in
isolation would cause an impairment loss to be recognised. We consider management’s disclosure
of the reasonably possible scenarios to be appropriate as it identifies the vajue of the applicable key
assumption and the value by which the key assumption must change to reduce headroom to nil.
Refer to Naote 11 of the Financial Statements where the sensitivity disclosure is provided,

5.2, Revenue recognition ¢

Key audit matter
description

The Group recognised revenue of £1,632.0m (2018 £1,604.2m), predominantly through the provision
of goods and services accounted for under IFRS 15. Given the number of operating companies

in the Croup, the variety of revenue streams and the bespoke nature of businesses, spanning across
numerous countries and industries, understanding the revenue cycles in each business and their
respective control environments underpins our risk assessment and the basis for our planned

audit procedures.

Consequently, we consider that revenue recognition represents a key audit matter due to the effort
and resources allocated during the audit. Additionally, more revenue is generated in Decermnber
across all operating cempanies than any other individual month in the financial year. We therefore
identified a risk of material misstatement, whether due to error or fraud, relating to the cut-off of
revenue recognition.

Refer to Note T for the accounting policies on revenue recognition, and Note 4 for the Group's
segmental analysis.

How the scope
of our audit
responded to the
key audit matter

We designed our audit procedures to be specific to each operating company, considering the nature
of each business and the associated revenue streams. Consequently, we performed a combination of
the following audit procedures as appropriate;

- Obtained an understanding of controis relevant to revenue and in some components we tested
these controls,

» Traced a sample of revenue recognised over a period in December 2013 to third-party supporting
evidence to assess whether appropriate cut-off was applied and that performance obligaticns had
been satisfied.

- Considered material contracts with multipte performance obligations and assessed the identification
of separate performance obligations, the timing of revenue recognition and the evidence of the
performance obligations being satisfied.

- Challenged the appropriateness of accrued income recognised by obtaining adequate and sufficient
supporting documentation of contract assets.

- Obtained a schedule of adjusting and manual journals posted in December 2019 with a credit impact
on revenue and traced a sample to appropriate evidence in support of the adjustment.

Key observations

We consider the revenue recognised across the Group to be appropriate and vear-end cut-off is
materially accurate. We concur with management's accounting policies and their application across

the Group.
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5.3. Classification and disclosure of restructuring costs from significant programmes 3

Key audit matter
description

Spectris discloses a number of alternative performance measures [[/APMs') as part of its presentation
and assessment of Group financial results. The Group's results include £52.2m (2018; £15.6m) of
restructuring costs from significant prograrmes which, together with other exceptional iterns, are
not considered to be reflective of underlying performance.

In Novermnber 2018, the Group launched the PIP, focusing on cost savings, improving the sales mix,
product profitability, restructuring, site rationalisation and reducing the size of the head office.

Given the size and broad nature of these costs, the appropriateness of the classification of restructuring
excluded from underlying trading performance is a key area of audit focus, particularly the presentation
in the primary staterments as well as the prominence of this item in the operating and financial reviews,
Therefore we have identified a risk in the classification of costs included within 'restructuring’, as
inappropriate presentation may distort the reported results. Also, the clarity and detail of disclosures in
respect of these items may be insufficient. precluding investors from obtaining a clear understanding
of the Group's results and performance.

The Audit Cornmittee Report on poge 65 refers to APMs as an areo considered by the Audit Committee,

Refer to Note 1 Critical accounting judgements and note 2 Alternative performance measures for the
Croup's policy on the classification ond disclosure of restructuring ond other exceptionaol iterns.

How the scope
of our audit

responded to the
key audit matter

We obtained an understanding of controls that the Group has established regarding the classification
and disclosure of restructuring cost items.

‘We have challenged the appropriateness of the PIP cost itemns classified as ‘restructuring costs'
disclosed by managernent in Note 2 of the Financial Statements and the reasonabieness of their
exclusion from underlying operating profit by reference to their nature and quantum.

We selected a sarnple of restructuring costs, traced these to supporting documentation and evaluated
the appropriateness of their classification. We also reviewed disclosures in the financial statements and
considered the prominence of these alternative performance measures, relative to statutery
performance measures.

We performed our audit work in this area to a lower materiality of £4.0m.

Key observations

We consider the classification and disclosure of the PIP costs to be appropriate as part of restructuring
COStSs within the APMs disclosed in Note 2 of the Financial Statements.

6. Our application of materiality

6.1. Materiality

We define materiality as the magnitude of misstatement in
the Financial Statements that makes it probable that the
economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable person
would be changed or influenced. We use materiality both

in planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the
results of our work.

Based on our professional judgernent, we determined
materiality for the Financial Statements as a whole as follows:

Group Financial Statements Parent Cormnpany Financial Statements

£4.0m {2018: £4.0m}

Materiality £12.3m (2018: £12.0m)

Basis for We have used 5% {2018 5%) of adjusted We nave used 5% (2018: 5%) of adjusted profit
determining profit before tax as the benchmark for before tax as the benchmark for determining
rmateriality determining materiality. rmatceriality.

Rationale for Adjusted profit before tax is a key performance Adjusted protit before tax is considered an

the benchmark measure for management, investors and the appropriate benchrark for the Company given
applied analyst community. This metric is important to that it is mainly a holding company.

the users of the financial statements [investors
and analysts being the key users for a listed
entity) because it portrays the performance of the
business and hence its ability to pay a return on
investment to the investors. Likewise, this metric
takes into account the acguisitive nature of the
Group which results in adjusting itermns needing
to be considered when determining the
performance of the husiness. Refar to Note 2

of the Financial Statements for the Group's
definition of APMs.

Independent Auditor's Report to the Members of Spectris pie
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Independent Auditor's Report to the
Members of Spectris plc continued

6.2. Performance materiality

We set performance materiality at a leve! lower than
materiality to reduce the probability that, in aggregate,
uncorrected and undetected misstatements exceed
the materiality for the financial statements as a whole.
Group performance materiality was set at 70% of Group
materiality for the 2019 audit (2018; 70%). In determining
performance materiality, we considered the quality of
the control environment and the history of uncorrected
misstatements in previous years.

Group matedality
—ER3Im

Component
PABLArIESLY (NGe
E4.0m to £3.5m
Audit Committee

_.repor ting threshold
£0.6m

1_PET
2 Group materiality

6.3. Error reporting threshold

We agreed with the Audit Committee that we would

report to the Committee all audit differences in excess

of £0.6rn (2018: £0.5m), as well as differences below

that threshold that, in cur view, warranted reporting on
qualitative grounds. We also report to the Audit Cormmittee
on disclosure matters that we identified when assessing
the overall presentation of the financial statements.

7. An overview of the scope of our audit

7.1. Identification and scoping of components

The Group operates in more than 30 countries spread

across five continents with the largest footprint being

in North America, Asia and Europe. Our Group audit was
scoped by obtaining an understanding of the Group and

its environment, including Group-wide controls, and
assessing the risks of materiat misstatement at the Group
and component level. Based on that assessment, we focused
our Group audit scope primarily on the audit work at the four
segments, consisting of three platforms: Omega, HBK and
Malvern Panalytical; as well as another seven operating
companies reported as part of the Industrial Solutions
segment. These three platforms and seven other operating
companies are composed of many individual components,
which are the lowest level at which management prepare
financial information that is included in the Consolidated
Financial Statements. The Company is located in the UK

and is audited directly by the Group audit team.

We have considered components on the basis of their
contribution to Group revenue, and profit, as well as thase
that require local statutory audits in their jurisdiction.

Full scope audit work was completed on 54 components
and specified audit procedures were undertaken on a
further one component. Our full scope and specified audit
procedures covered 71% (2018: 70%) of total Group revenue
and 78% (2018 93%} of Group statutory profit before tax.

7.2. Our consideration of the control environment
Given the disaggregated nature of the Group, we largely
adopt a substantive audit approach. Where control
improvements are identified these are reported t¢
management and the Audit Committee as appropriate.
Management determine their response to these
observations and continue to monitor their resolution
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with reporting to and oversight from the Audit Committee.
In the currerit year we have highlighted the potential to
enhance the formality of the control and process
documentation including evidencing their operation.

We do not consider the control improverments identified

in the year to be significant in nature.

7.3. Working with other auditors

Each component in scope was subject to an audit materiality
level between £3.5m and £4.0m. This audit work on all
components was performed by Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Limited member firms under the direction and supervision
of the Group audit team. Further work was performed at

a Group level over the consolidation and components not

in scope.

We communicated the resuits of our risk assessment
exercise 1o the component auditors and instructed them on
the areas of significant risk, the procedures to be performed
and the form and timing of their reporting to us. We also
provided direction on enquiries made by the component
auditors through online and telephone conversations. All the
findings noted were discussed with the component auditor
in detail and further procedures to be performed were issued
where relevant.

The Group audit teamn followed a programme of planned
visits that has been designed so that on a rotational basis the
Seniar Statutory Auditor, or a senior member of the Croup
audit team visits each of the primary operating companies
where the Group audit scope was focused in addition to the
work performed at the Croup head office. in relation to the
current year audit the Senior Statutory Auditor, or a senior
member of the audit team visited South Korea, China,
Denmark, Germany, Netherlands, USA and various locations
in the UK.

Revenue (%)

1 __Full scope audit 70%

2 Specified audit procedures 9%

3  Review at Group level 29%

Profit befere tax (%)

2

1__Full scope audit T7% '
2 Specified audit procedures 1%

3 Review at Group level 22%




8. Other information

The Directors are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information included
inthe Annual Report, other than the Financial Statements
and our Auditor's Report thereon,

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover
the other information and, except to the extent otherwise
explicitly stated in our report, we do not express any form
of assurance conclusion thereon.

in connection with our audit of the Financial Statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in
doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the Financial Statements or
our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears
to be materially misstated.

If we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent
material risstaterments, we are required to determine
whether there is a material misstatement in the Financial
Statements or a material misstaternent of the other
information. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other inforrmation, we are required to report that fact.

In this context, matters that we are specifically required
to report to you as uncoerrected material misstatements
of the ather information include where we conclude that:

- Fair, balanced and understandable - The statement given
by the Directors that they consider the Annual Report and
Financial Statements taken as a whole is fair, balanced
and understandable and provides the information
necessary for shareholders to assess the Group's position
and performance, business model and strategy, is
materially inconsistent with our knowledge obtained
in the audit; or

« Audit Committee reporting - The section describing the

work of the Audit Committee does not appropriately

address matters communicated by us to the Audit

Committee; or

Directors’ statement of compliance with the UK Corporate

Governance Code - The parts of the Directors’ statement

required under the Listing Rules relating to the Company's

compliance with the UK Corporate Governance Code
containing provisions specified for review by the auditor

in accordance with Listing Rule 9.810R(2} do not properly

disclose a departure from a relevant provision of the UK

Corporate Governance Code.

We have nothing to report in respect of these matters.

9. Responsibilities of Directors

As explained more fuily in the Directors’ responsibilities
statement, the Directors are responsible for the preparation
of the financial staternents and for being satisfied that

they give a true and fair view, and for such internal cantrol
as the Directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of financiat statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

in preparing the Financial Staterents, the Directors are
respansible for assessing the Group's and the Parent
Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing
as applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting untess the Directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or the Parent Company
of to cease operations, o have no realistic alternative but
todo sa.

Indepandent Auditar’s Report ta the Mermbers of Spectris plc
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10. Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,

and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion,
Reasonable assurance is a high leve! of assurance, but is
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
15As {UK) will always detect a material misstatement when
it exists. Misstatements can arise frorn fraud or error and
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reascnably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
Financial Statements.

Details of the extent to which the audit was considered
capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud and
non-compliance with Jlaws and regulations are set out below.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of
the Finanicial Staterments is located on the FRC's website at
wwwi.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description
forms part of our auditor's report.

. Extent to which the audit was considered capable

of detecting irregularities, including fraud

We identify and assess the risks of material misstaterment
of the Financial Statements, whether due to fraud or error,
and then design and perform audit procedures responsive
to those risks, including obtaining audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

1.1, identifying and assessing potential risks related

to irregularities

In identifying and assessing risks of material misstatement
in respect of irreqularnities, including fraud and non-
compliance with laws and regulations, we considered

the fallowing:

« the nature of the industry and sector, control environment
and business performance including the design of the
Croup's rermuneration policies, key drivers for Directors’
remuneration, bonus levels and performance targets;

- results of our enquiries of management, internal audit,
and the Audit Commmittee about their own identification
and assessment of the risks of irregularities;

- any matters we identified having obtained and reviewed
the Group’'s documentation of their poticies and procedures
relating to!

- identifying, evaluating and complying with laws and
regulations and whether they were aware of any instances
of non-compliance;

- detecting and responding to the risks of fraud and
whether they have knowledge of any actual, suspected
or alieged fraud;

- the internal controls established to mitigate risks of fraud
or non-compliance with laws and regutations; and

- the matters discussed among the audit engagement team,
inciuding significant component teams, and involving
relevant internal specialists, including tax, valuations,
pensions, IT, and industry specialists regarding how and
where fraud might occur in the Financial Statements and
any potential indicators of fraud.

As aresuit of these procedures, we considered the
opportunities and incentives that may exist within the
organisation for fraud and identified the greatest potentiaf
for fraud in the following areas: revenue recognition and the
classification of restructuring costs arising fror significant
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programmes. In common with all audits under ISAs [UK), we
are also required to perform specific procedures to respond
to the risk of management override.

We also obtained an understanding of the legal and
regulatory frameworks that the Group operates in, focusing
on provisions of those laws and regulations that had a
direct effect on the deterrnination of material amounts
and disclosures in the Financial Staterments. The key laws
and regulations we considered in this context included

the UK Companies Act, Listing Rules, pensions legisiation
and tax Jegisiation in all relevant jurisdictions where the
Group operates.

In addition, we considered provisions of other laws and
regulations that do not have a direct effect on the Financial
Statements but compliance with which may be fundamental
to the Group's ability to operate or to avoid a material penalty.

11.2. Audit response to risks identified

As a result of performing the above, we identified revenue
recognition and the classification of restructuring costs
arising frormn significant programmes. The key audit matters
section of our report explains the matters in more detail and
also describes the specific procedures we performed in
response to those key audit matters.

In addition to the above, our procedures to respond to risks
identified included the following:

- reviewing tie financial staternent disclosures and testing
to supporting documentation to assess compliance with
provisions of relevant laws and regulations described as
having a direct effect on the Financial Statements;

- enguiring of management, the Audit Cornmittee and
in-house legal counsel concerning actual and paotential
litigation and claims;

- performing analytical procedures to identify any unusual
or unexpected relationships that may indicate risks of
material risstatement due to fraud;

reading minutes of meetings of those charged with
governance, reviewing internal audit reports and reviewing
correspondence with HMRC; and

- in adidressing the risk of fraud through management
override of controls, testing the appropriateness of journal
entries and other adjustments; assessing whether the
judgements made in making accounting estimates are
indicative of a potential bias; and evaluating the business
rationale of any significant transactions that are unusual
or outside the norrmal course of business.

We also communicated relevant identified laws and
regulations and potential fraud risks to all engagement
team members including internal specialists and
significant component audit teams, and remained alert
to any indications of fraud or non-compliance with laws
and regulations throughout the audit.

Report on other legal and regulatory
requirements

12. Opinions on othar matters prescribed by the
Companies Act 2006

inouwr opinion the part of the Diractors’' Remuneration
Report to be audited has been properly prepared in
accordance with the Companies Act 2006.

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course
of the audit:
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- the information given in the Strategic Report and the
Directors’ Report for the financial year for which the
Financial Statements are prepared is consistent with the
Financial Statements; and

. the Strategic Report and the Ditectors’ Report have been
prepared in accordance with applicable legal requirements.

In light of the knowledge and understandging of the Group
and the Parent Company and their environment obtained
in the course of the audit, we have not identified any
material misstatements in the Strategic Report or the
Directors’ Report.

13. Matters on which we are required to report

by exception

13.1. Adequacy of explanations received and
accounting records

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report
to you if, in our apinion:

. we have not received all the information and explanations
we require for our audit; or

. adequate accounting records have not been kept by the
Parent Company, or returns adequate for our audit have
not been received from branches not visited by us; or

. the Parent Company Financial Statements are not in ,
agreement with the accounting records and returns.

We have nothing to report in respect of these matters.

13.2. Directors' remuneration

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are also required 1o

report if in our opinion certain disclosures of Directors’

remuneration have not been made or the part of the

Directors' Remuneration Report to be audited is not in |
agreernent with the accounting records and returns,

We have nothing tc report in respect of this matter,

14. Other matters

14.). Auditor tenure

Following the recommendation of the Audit Committee,
we were appointed by the Board on 28 July 2016 1o audit
the Financial Statements for the year ending 31 December
2017 and subsequent financial periods. The period of total
uninterrupted engagement including previous renewals
and re-appointments of the firm is three years, covering the
years ending 31 December 2017 to 31 December 2019.

14.2. Consistency of the audit report with the additional
report to the Audit Committee

Cur audit opinion is consistent with the additional report
to the Audit Committee we are required to provide in
accordance with iSAs (LK),

15. Use of our repont

This report is made solely to the Cempany's members,

as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the
Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken
50 that we might state to the Company’s members those
matters we are required to state to them in an auditor's
report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent
permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility
to anyone other than the Company and the Company's
membpers as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or
for the opinions we have formed.

Andrew Bond, FCA {Senior statutory auditor)
For and on behalf of Deloitte LLP

Statutory Auditor

Reading, UK

19 February 2020



Financial Statements

Consolidated Income Statement

For the year ended 31 December 2013

2019 2018
Note £m £m
Contimuing operations
Revenue 2,34 1,.632.0 1,604.2
Cost of sales (717.8) {696.8}
Gross profk 4.2 9074
Indirect production and engineering expenses 008.2) {106.8)
Sales and marketing expenses {345.7) (3523}
Administrative expenses {376.0) {(2727)
adjusted aparating prafit 2 2581 2483
Restructuring costs 2 {s2.2) 5.6)
Néet rransacUon-relaved costs and fair value adjusuments Z (6.1} 2.2}
Depreciation of acquisition-related fair value adjustments to property, plant and equipment 2 (1.0) {0.8)
Profit on disposal of property 2 5.2 -
impairment of goodwill 2 350 -
Armortisation and impairment of acquisition-retated intangible assets 2 {84.6) (43.3)
Qperating profit 2358 84.3 176.4
Share of post-tax results of joint verture 213 (4.9} .2}
mpairment of non-current receivabie from joint venture 2. 13 {21.3) -
Profit on disposal of businesses 25 2047 56.3
Financial income 7 7.3 25
Finamca costs 7 {n.4) {16.9)
Profit before tax 259.3 218.0
Taxation charge 8 {25.2) {32.8)
Profit for the year from continuing operations attributable to owners of the Company 234 852
Basic earnings per share 10 202.2p 157.6p
Diluted earnings per share 10 201.6p 156.9p
Interim dividend paid and final dividend proposed for the year (per share) 9 £51p eY.0p
Special dividend proposed [per share) 9 150.0p -
Dividends paid during the year |par share) 9 62.4p - 58.0p
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Financial Staternents

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

For the year ended 31 Decernber 2019

2019 208
Note £m £m
Profit for the year attributa ble to owners of the Company 234 1852
Other comprehensive Income:
Iterns that will not be reclassified to the Consolidated income Statement:
Re-measurement of net defined benefit obligation, net of foreign exchange 20 (10.6) 5.4
Tax creditficharge] on iterns abave 8 1T {1.4)
8.9} 4.0
Iterns that are or may be reclassified subsequently to the Consolidated Income Statement:
Net gainf{ioss) on effective portion of changes in fair value of forward exchange contracts
on cash flow hedges 31 (2.4)
Foreign exchange movements on translation of overseas operations (32.7) 279
Currency translation differences trapsferred 1o profit op disposal of business 25 (35.8) (5.1
Tax {chargel/credit on iterns above 8 {0.6) 0.5
(66.0) 209
Total other comprehensive income {74.9] 249
Total comprehensive income for the year attributable to owners of the Company 159.2 2101
Consolidated Staterment of Changes in Equity
For the year ended 31 December 2019 g q
Capital
Share Share  Retained Translation Hedging Merger redemption Total
capital premium earnings reserve reserve reserve reserve eguity
£m £m £m £m Em £m £m £m
At 1 danvary 2019 6.0 231.4 828.7 1671 3.9} 31 05 1,232.9
Adoption of IFR516 and IFRIC 23 - - (2.9 — - - = (2.9}
At 1January 2019 (restated) 6.0 231.4 825.8 167.) {3.9) 31 0.5 1,230.0
Profit for the year - - 2341 - - - - 2341
Gther comprehensive incorne - - (8.9} {68.5) 2.5 - - (74.9)
Total comprehensive income for the year - - 2282 168.5) 25 - - 159.2
Transactions with owners recorded directly
in equity:
Equity dividends paid by the Company - - [72.3) - - - - (72.3)
Share-based payments, net of tax - - 36 - - - - 36
Proceeds frorn exercise of equity-settled options - - 1.0 - - - - 1.0
At 31 Decembear 2019 6.0 2314 $831.3 98.6 {1.4) 31 0.5 1,321.5
Capital
Share Sryare R:taiped Translation Hedging Merger redempticn Total
capital premium  egarnings reserve reserve reserve reserve equity
£m £m Em £m £m £m £m £m
At1January 2018 8.2 234 820.8 144.3 {2.0) 3] 03 1204
Adoption of IFRS 9 and IFRS 15 - - (18.6) - - - - (18.6)
At PJanuary 2078 [restated) 6.2 2314 802.2 144.3 {2.0) 3.1 03 1,185.5
Profit for the year - - 185.2 - - - - 185.2
Other comprehensive income - - 4.0 2.8 119 - - 2469
Total comprehensive income for the year - - 189.2 22.8 (1.9) - - 210
Transactions with Owners recorded directly
in equity:
Equity dividends paid by the Cornpany - - {68.2) - - - - (68.2}
Own shares acquired for share buyback
programme {0.2) - {100.5) - - - 02 [100.5)
Share-based payments, net of tax - - 51 - - - - 53
Proceeds from exercise of equity-settled oplions - - 09 - - - - 09
At 3) Dacermnber 2018 6.0 234 8287 1671 (3.9) 31 0.5 12329
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Consoli'dated Statement of Financial Position

As at 31 December 20139

] 2019 2018
Note £m £m
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Intangible assets:
Goodwill n 646.8 766.3
Other intangible assets n 178.5 2633
825.3 10296
Property, plant and equipment 12 369.0 3315
Investment in joint venture 13 - 50
Other receivable - joint venture 13 - 389
Deferred tax assets 2 9.0 n3
1,203.3 1,.416.3
Current assets
Inventories 14 197.2 216.4
Current tax assets 4.1 1.6
Trade and other receivables 15 335.7 3815
Derivative financial instruments 1.8 o4
Cash and cash equivalents 16 2133 730
Assets held for sale 13 18.9 39
770.5 6769
Total assets 1,573.8 209%.2
LIABILITIES
Current llabijities
Borrowings 17 {80.7) 237
Derivative financial instruments 28 (0.3 (2.2)
Trade and other payables 18 (296.8) {344.1)
Lease liabilities {(15.% -
Current tax liabilities {20.8) {22.5}
Pravisions 15 {22.3) [31.6)
{%40.8) (4241}
Net current assets 3297 2528
Non-current liabilities
Borrowings 17 {98.9) (346.5)
Other payables B8 (21.3) {27.4)
Lease liabilities {45.4) -
Provisions 9 {5.6) -
Retirement benafit obligations 20 {27.5) {321
Deferred tax liabilities il (12.8} (30.2)
2n.s) [436.2)
Total liabilities {652.3) {860.3}
Net assets 13215 12328
EQUITY
Share capital 22 6.0 6.0
Share premium ~ 231.4 234
Retained earnings 9833 828.7
Translation reserve 22 98.6 167.1
Hedging reserve 22 (1.4} 3.9)
Marger reserve 22 LA 31
Lapital redemption reserve 22 Q.5 0.5
1,321.5 12328

Total aquity attributable to owners of the Company
The Financial Statements on pages 105 to 157 were approved by the Board of Directors on 19 February 2020 and were signed
on its behaif by:

Derek Harding # &
Chief Financial Officer Spectris plc Annual Report and Accounts 2019 107




Financial Staternents

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

For the year ended 31 December 2019

. 2019 e
Note £m £m
Cash generated from operations 26 2718 215.8
Net income taxes paid {37.0) (377
Net cash inflow from operating activities 2408 178.1
Cash flows from/f{used in) investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets {86.6) {97.0)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and eguipment and software n2 56
Acquisition of businesses, net of cash acquired 24 {9.7) (196.4)
Proceeds from disposal of businesses, net of tax paid of £1.2m {2018: £0.6m) 25 260 438
Proceeds frorm government grams 5.0 293
Interost received 0.7 0.6
Net cash flows from/{used in} investing activities 180.7 {240.5)
Cash flows used in financing activities
Interest paid on borrowings (7.0) {9.4)
Interest paid on lease liabilities (2.9) -
Dividends paid 9 {72.3) {68.2)
Share buyback purchase of shares - {100.5)
Net proceeds from exercise of share options 1.0 07
Payments on principal portion of lease liabilities {17.6) -
Loans to joint venture {2.2) 0.9}
Proceeds frorm borrowings 193.2 175.5
Repayment of borrewings {363.5) -
Net cash flows used in financing activities (273} (2.8)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 150.2 (65.2)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 67.3 1367
£ffect of foreign exchange rate changes {%.4) {4.2)
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 16 231 673
2019 2018
Reconcillatian of changes in cash and cash equivalents to movements In net cash/{debt} Note £m £m
Net increasef{decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 150.2 {65.2)
Proceeds from borrowings {193.2) (175.5}
Repayment of borrowings 363.5 -
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes 101 {5.9}
Movement in net cash/f{debt) 3306 {246.6)
Net debt at beginning of year {2971 {50.5)
2 33.5 {2977}

Net cash/(debt} at end of year
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Financial Statemnments

Notes to the Accounts

Y. Basis of preparation and summary of significant accounting policies

a) Basis of preparation

Basis of accounting

The Consclidated Financial Stat s have been prepared on a historical cost basis axcept for items that are required by
[ERS to be measured at fair value, principally certain financial instruments. The Consolidated Financial Statements have been
prepared in accordance with IFRS as issued by the Intermational Accounting Stancards Board {1ASE) and interpretations
issued by the International Financial Reporting interpretations Committee of the 1ASB, as adopted by the European Unien
(IFRS'), and in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 2006.

The Financial $taterments set out on pages 105 to 157 have been prepared using ¢onsistent accounting policies, except for
the adaption of new accounting standards and interpretations noted below. Detaits of the application of new and revised
IFAS that became applicable in 2019 are set out befow.

These Financial 5tatements are presented in millions of Sterling rounded to the nearest one decimal place.

Basis of consolidation

The Consolidated Financial Statements set out the Group's financial position as at 31 December 2019 and the Group's
financial performance for the year ended 31 December 2019, which incorporate the Financial Statements of Spectris plc
and its subsidiaries.

Subsidiaries are those entitias controlled by the Group. Contfol exists when the Group has the power, tirectly or indirectly,
to govarn the financial and operating poficies of an entity sc as to obtain benefits from its activities. Subsidiaries are
<onsolidated fram the date on which contest is transfarred 10 the Sraup and <ease to be consolidated riomihe date on
which controtis transferred out of the Group.

Jeint ventures are contractual arrangements which the Group has entered into with cne or more partiesto undertake an
econamic activity that Is sulject to joint control. Joint contral is the contractually agreed sharing of control gver an ecanomic
activity and exists onky when decisions relating to the relevant activities require the unanimous consent of the parties
sharing the control, The Group has assessad the nature of its joint arrangements and determined them to be joint ventures.
Joint ventures are accounted for using the equity method, under which the investment in a joint venture is initially
recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position at cost and adjusted thereafier to recognise the Group's
share of the profit or foss and other comprehensive income of the joint venture. When the Group's share of the losses of a
joint venture exceeds the Croup's interest in that joint venture the Group discontinues recognising its share of further losses.

Allinter-company balances and transacticns, including unrealised profits arising from intra-group transactions, have been
gliminated. Unrealised losses are eliminated in the sarme way as unrealised gains except that they are anly eliminated to the
axtent that thera is no evidence ofimpairment.

Going concarn

The Group's business activities, togather with factors likely to affect its future development, perfarrmance and fing
pasition, are set out in the Strategic Repart on pages 2 to 53. The financial position of the Group, its cash flows, liquidity
position and borrowing facilities are described in the Financial Review on pages 36 to 41 In addition, Note 27 to the Financial
Staternents includes the Croup's chjectives, policies and processes for managing its capital; its financial sisk managerment
objectives; datails of its financiat instrurnents and hedging activities; and its exposure te credit risk and liquidity risk.

The Group's net cash balance at 3 December 2013 was £33.5m {2018 net debt £2971m}, with undrawn cormmitted borrowing
facilities in respect of its US Doliar $800m revolving credit facility of £606.4m (2018: £467.9m). :

Tha Board has reviewsed 3 sensitivity analysis onthe Group's forecasts 1o 30 June 2021, the maturity profile of its financial

es 3nd kabilities (Notes 17 and 28) and the ability of the Group to re-finance these apligations as they fall due. The
principal liguidity risk is mitigated through its financial risk management policies {Note 27). For the foreseeable future, the
Board has a high level of confidence that the Group will have the necessary liquid rescurces to meet its liabilities as they fall
due and will be able to sustain its business model, strategy and aperatians and remain salvent, including the impact, of
reasonably possibie adverse scenarios. For this reason, it continues to adopt the going cencern basis in preparing the Group
Financial Statements. There are no key sensitivities identified in relation to this cenclusion. Further information on the gaing
concern of the Group can be found on page 47 in the Viability Statement,

New standards and interpretations adopted
Inthe current year the Group has apptied & number of new standards and amendments t& FFRSs issued by the IASE. Detalls
of the new standards that have had a material impact an the Greup's Staterent of Financial Position are set out below.

RS 16 'Leases’
inthe current year, the Group has applied IFRS 16 (as issued by the LASB in January 2016} that is effective for annual periods
that begin on ar after 1 January 2019. The date of initial application of IFRS 6 for the Group is 1 January 2019.

IFRS 16 provides a single model for lessees which recognises 2 right-0fuse asset and 2 lease liability for all leases, with
exceptions available for short-term and low-value leases. The impact of IFRS 15 is to recognise a lease liability and a
corresponding asset in the Statement of Financial Position for leases previously classified as operating leases. The most
significant impact has been that the Group's land, building and car leases are now recognised on the Statement of Financial
Position. Previously rentals payable under aperating leases were nat recegnised on the Statermnent of Financial Position and
were charged to the Consolidated Incorme Statement on a straight-line basfs over the term of the relevant fease.
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Notes to the Accounts continued

1. Basis of preparation and summary of significant accounting policies continued

Approach to transition

The Group has applied IFRS 16 using the modified retrospective approach, without restatement of the comparative
infarmation., In respect of those leases the Group previously treated as operating leases, the Group has elected to measure its
right-of-use assets using the approach set out in IFRS 16.C8{bj(i). Under IFRS 16.C8(b)(i) right-of-use assets are calculated as if
the Standard applied at lease commencement, but discounted using the borrowing rate at the date of initial application.

The Group has appiied the practical expedients available in IFRS 16 for excluding low-value assets and short-term leases
from the requirements of the standard and right-of-use assets have been adjusted by the carrying amount of onerous lease
provisions at 31 December 2019 instead of performing impairment reviews under IAS 36.

The impacts of the adoption of IFRS 16 at 1 January 2019 were: a decrease in retained earnings of £3.6m; an increase in
property, plant and equipment of £65.0m; a decrease in trade and other payables of £2.3m; an increase in lease liabjkities

of £71.9m; a decrease in provisions of £0.5m; a decrease in trade and other receivables of £0.5m; and an increase in deferred
tax assets of £1.0m. In 2018, the Group incurred a finance charge of £2.9m, reflecting the unwinding of discount on lease
liabifities, with depreciation and impairment of £22.1m on right-of-use assets. These items effectively replace the operating
lease rentals previously charged to profit before taxation under IAS 17 ‘Leases’. For the year ended 3) Decernber 2018,
operating lease rentals charged to profit before tax amounted to £20.Jm. The lease liabilities recognised at 1 January 2019 are }
£7.1m lower than the total operating lease commitments of £79.0m disclosed in the Annual Report and Accounts for 2018,
which were prepared under 1AS 17. The reasons for the differences are set out in the table below. The right-of-use assets are
shewn within property, plant and equipment and the lease liabilities are presented in a separate category in the :
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position.

The Group's weighted average incremental borrowing rate applied to lease liabilities as at 1 January 2019 is four per cent.

The key judgements in applying IFRS 16 for the Group are: the selection of discount rates and determining whether lease ;
extension and termination options included in the contract are reasonably certain to be exercised.

The table below presents a reconciliation from operating lease commitments disclosed at 31 December 2018 to lease
liabilities recognised at 1 January 2019,

£m
Operating lease commitments disclosed under IAS 17 at 31 December 2018 79.0 }
Short-term and low-value lease commitrments straight-line expensed under IFRS 16 {c.6) ‘
Cffect of discounting {12.4)
Payments due in periods covered by extension options that are included in the lease term %.6
Finance lease liabilities recognised under IAS 17 at 31 December 2018 13
71.9

Lease liabilities recognised at1 January 2019

New Accounting Policy under IFRS 16
The Group assesses whather a contract is or contains a lease, at inception of the contract. The Group recognises a right-of-

use asset and a corresponding lease liability with respect to all lease arrangement in which it is the lessee, except for
short-term leases [defined as leases with a lease term of 12 months or less} and leases of low-value assets. For these leases,
the Group recognises the lease payments as an operating expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the commencement
date, discounted by using the rate implicit in the lease. If this rate cannot be readily determined, the Group uses its
incremental borrowing rate. Lease payments included in the measurernent of the lease liability comprise: fixed lease
payments {including in substance fixed payments), less any lease incentives; variable lease payments that depend on an
index or rate, initially measured using the index or rate at the commencement date, the amount expected to be payable
by the lessee under residual value guarantees; the exercise price of purchase options, if the lessee is reasonably certain

to exercise the options; and payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the exercise of an
option to terminate the lease. The lease liability is subsequently measured by increasing the carrying amount to reflect
interest on the iease liability (using the effective-interest method) and by reducing the carrying amount to reflect the lease
payments macdle,

The right-of-use assets comprise the initial measurement of the corresponding lease liability, lease payments made at or
before the commencement day and any initial direct costs, They are subseguently measured at cost less accumutated
depreciation and impairment losses. Right-of-use assets are depreciated over the shorter period of lease term and useful life
of the underlying asset. Whenever the Group incurs an obligation for costs to dismantie and remove a2 leased asset, restore
the site on which it is located or restore the underlying asset to the condition required by the terms and conditions of the
lease, a provision is recognised and measured under 1AS 37

The Group remeasures the lease liability {and fmakes a corresponding adjustrnent to the related right-of-use asset) whenever:

the lease term has changed or there is a change in the assessment of exercise of a purchase option, in which case the lease

liability is rerneasured by discounting the revised lease payments using a revised discount rate; the lease payrments change

due ta changes in an index or rate or a change in expected payment under a guaranteed residual value, in which case the

tease liability is remeasured by discounting the revised lease payments using the initial discount rate; or a lease contract .
is modified, in which case the lease liability is remeasured by discounting the revised lease payments using a revised

discount rate. The interest portion of lease payments is presented under financing activities in the Consolidated Statement

of Cash Flows.
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IFRIC 23 Uncertainty over income tax treatments

IFRIC 23 provides further guidance on how to apply the recognition and measurement requirernents of IAS 12 when there
is uncertainty over income tax treatments. The Group has adopted IFRIC 23 with the cumulative effect of initially applying
the Interpretation recognised at the date of initial application of 1 January 2019, The impacts of the adoption of IFRIC 23 at
1January 2019 were an increase in retained earnings of £0.7m and a decrease in current tax liabilities of £0.7m.

New accounting standards and interpretations not yet adopted
There are no other standards that are not yet effective and that would be expected to have a material |mpact on the entity
in the current or future reporting periods and on foreseeable future transactions.

Significant accounting judgements and estimates

In determining and appiying accounting policies, judgement is often required where the choice of specific policy,
assumption or accounting estimate to be followed could materially affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, incorme
and expenses, should it later be determined that a different choice be more appropriate. Estimates and assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis and are based on historical experience and various other factors that are believed to be

reasonable under the circumstances.

Criticat accounting judgements

i) Restructuring costs
Restructuring costs consist of costs incurred under significant restructuring programmes. These costs are presented in

a separate income statement category, as adjusting items to operating profit. The classification and presentation of these
items require significant judgement to determine the nature and intention of the transaction. Details of the Group’s adjusted
measures are included in Note 2.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
Management considers the following to be the key sources of estimation uncertainty for the Group at the end of the

current reporting period due to the risk of causing a material change ta the carrying amount of assets and liabilities within
the next year. .

i} Taxation
The Group operates in a number of countries and is subject to taxes in nuMmerous jurisdictions. Significant esnmatlon is

required in determining the provision for taxes as the tax treatment is often by its nature complex and cannct be finally
determined untif a formal resolution has been reached with the ralevant tax authority which may take several years 1o
conclude. Amounts provided are accrued based on management’s interpretation of country-specific tax laws and the
likelihood of settlerment, Actual liabifities could differ frorn the amount provided which could have a consequent adverse
impact oh the results and net position of the Group. The assumptions and estimates which have been appiied in the
determination of taxation are detailed in Note 8. Details of the accounting policies applied in respect of taxation are set
out on pages 113 and N4.

iy Retirement benefit plans

Accounting for retirement benefit plans under IAS 19 (revised) requires an assessment of the future benefits payabie in
accordance with actuarial assumptions. The discount rate and rate of retail price Inflation (AP assumptions applied inthe
calculation of plan liabilities, which are set out in Note 20, represent a key source of estimation uncertainty for the Group.
Details of the accounting policies applied in respect of retirement benefit plans are set out on page 115.

iii} impairment reviews

Goodwill arising on business combinations is allocated 1o the relevant cash-generating unit {'CGUY). Impairment reviews

in respect of the relevant CGUs are performed at least annually or more regularly if events indicate that this is necessary.
Impairment reviews are based on a value in use model with future cash flows discounted using the weighted average cost
of capital for the relevant CGU with terminal values calculated applying a long-term growth rate. The future cash flows,
which are based on operating company forecasts, the long-term growth rates and the discount rates used are dependent
upon management estimates. Future events could cause the assumptions used in impairment reviews to change with a
consequential adverse impact on the results and net position of the Group. Since its acquisition in 2016, Spectris has made
significant capital investment in Millbrook alongside two bolt-on acquisitions in Leyland and Millbrook Revolutionary
Engineering. Given the early pragramme life cycle stage, the headroom between the recaverable amount (determined
based on a value in use model) and the carrying value of the Millbrook CGU is modest at £17m. We expect the headroom to
increase in future periods as the recent capital investments depreciate and the expected returns on these assets are realised.
We have considered reasonabiy possible changes in key assumptions that could cause an impairment at 31 December 2019,
and have identified two key assumptions as follows:

- Discount rate applied to future cash flows — our assessrent of impairment assumes a pre-tax discount rate of 12.1% based
on our determination of Group WACC and risks specific to the Milibrook CGU cash flows. An increase to 12.8% would see the
headroom reduced to nil.

+ Years 1to 5 cash flows - our assessment of impairment assumes a CAGR of 14% after year 1. A decrease in the CAGR by 2%,
equivalent to a 7% reduction in years 2 to 5 cash flows, would see the headroom reduced to nil,

Details of this sensitivity and the assumptions used in the impairment review are set out in Note 11, Details of the accounting

policies applied in respect of goodwill are set out on page 12.
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Notes to the Accounts continued

1. Basis of preparation and summary of significant accounting policies continued

b} Summary of significant accounting policies

The acceunting policies set out below have been applied consistently by Group entities to all yeats presented in these
Financial Statements.

Business combinations and goodwill
Goodwill represents the excess of the fair value of the purchase considaration for the |nterests in subsidiary undertakings

over the net fair value to the Group of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities acquired. Where the fair
vaiue of the Group's share of identifiable net assets acquired exceeds the fair vaiue of the consideration, the difference is
recognised immediately in the Consalidated Income Staterment. Contingent consideration is initially recognised as a liability
with changes to estimates of contingent consideration reflected in operating profit unless they accur during the 12-manth
measurement period, in which situation the amount of goodwill recognised on the acquisition is adjusted. Adjustments to
contingent consideration are treated as an adjusting item for the purposes of alternative performance measures (see Note 2).

Transaction costs on a business combination are expensed as incurred in the Consolidated Incorme Statement and treated
as an adjusting item for the purposes of alternative performance measures (see Note 2.

Goodwill arising on the acquisition of a business is tested annually for impairment. Goodwill is not armortised, and any
impairment losses are not subsequently reversed. The net book value of goodwill at the date of transition to IFRS has been
treated as deemned cost. On the subsequent disposal or discontinuance of a previously-acquired business, the relevant
goodwill is dealt with in the Consolidated Income Statement except for the goodwill already charged to reserves. From
1lanuary 2004, goodwill is allocated on acquisition to CGUs that are anticipated to benefit from the combination. Goodwill
is tested for impairment by assessing the recoverable amount of the CGU to which the goodwill retates and comparing it
against the net book value. This estimate of recoverale amount is determined annually and additionally when there is an
indication that a CGU may be impairad. The Group's identified CGUs are equivalent to or smaller than the reportable
operating segments in Note 3.

The estimate of recoverable amount requires sigrificant assumptions to be made and is based on a number of factors such
as the near-term business outlook for the CGU, including both its operating profit and operating cash flow performance.
Where the recoverable amount of the CGU is less than the carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised in the
Consolidated Income Statement. Where goodwill forms part of a CGU and part of the aperation within that unit is disposed
of, the goodwill associated with the operation disposed of is included in the carrying amount of the operation when
determining the gain of loss on disposal. Goodwill disposed of in this circumstance is measured on the basis of the relative
values of the operation disposed of and the portion of the CGU retained.

Intangible assets and amortisation
The cost of acquiring software (including associated implernentation costs where appiucable} that is not specific to an item

of property, plant and equipment is classified as an intangible asset.

Self-funded research and development costs are charged to the Consolidated Income Statement in the year in which

they are incurred unless development expenditure meets certain strict criteria for capitalisation. These criteria inciude
dernanstration of the technical feasibility, intent of completing a new intangible asset that is separable and that the asset will
generate probable future economic benefits. From the point where expenditure meets the criteria, developrnent costs are
capitalised and amortised over the useful economic lives of the assets to which they relate.

Intangible assets arising from a business combination that are separable frem goodwill are recognised initially at fair value
at the date of acquisition. Other acquired intangible assets (including software not specific to an itemn of property, plant and
equipmentj are initially recognised at cost (plus any associated implementation costs where applicable}.

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only when it increases the future economic benefits, otherwise it is expensed

as incurred.

Arnortisation of intangible assets is charged tc administrative expenses in the Consolidated income Statement on a straight-
line basis aver the shorter of the estimated useful economic life (determined on an asset-by-asset basis) or underlying
contractual life. The estimated useful lives are as follows:

- Software -3 to 7 years.
- Patents, contractual rights and technology - up to 10 years, dependent upon the nature of the underlying contractual right.

- Custornmer-related and trade names - 3 to 20 years, dependent upon the underlying contractual arrangements and specific
circumstances such as customer retention experience.

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment is stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. The cost comprises
the purchase price paid and any costs directly attributabie to bringing it into working condition for its intended use. Tangible
assets arising from a business combination are recognised initially at fair value at the date of acquisition.

Depreciation is recognised in the Consclidated income Statement on a straight-line basis to write off the cost, less the
estimated residual value {which is reviewed annually) of property, plant and equipment over its estimated useful economic
life. Depreciation commences on the date the assets are available for use within the business and the asset carrying values
are reviewed for impairment when there is an indication that they may be impaired. The depreciation charge is revised
where usefui lives are different from those previously estimated, or where technically obsolete assets are required to be
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written down. Where parts of an item of plant and equipment have separate lives, they are accounted for and depreciated
as separate items. Land is not depreciated. Estimated useful lives are as follows:

- Freehold and iong ieasehold property and automaotive testing tracks - 20 to 40 yeats.
- Short leasehold property — over the period of the lease.
- Plant and equipment - 3 to 20 years.

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets that take a
substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use are capitalised as part of the cost of the respective asset.

Inventories
Inventories and work in progress are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Inventory acquired as part of

business combinations is valued at fair value less cost to sell. Cost represents direct costs incurred and, where appropriate,
production or conversion costs and other costs 1o bring the inventory to its existing location and condition. in the case of
manufacturing inventory and work in progress, cost includes an appropriate share of production overheads based on normal
operating capacity. Inventory is accounted for on a first-in, first-out basis or, in socme cases, a weighted-average basis, if
deemed more appropriate for the business. Provisions are made to write down slow-moving, excess and obsolete itemns to
net realisable value, based on an assessment of technological and market developments and on an analysis of historical and

projected usage with regard 1o quantities on hand.

Trade and other receivables
Jrade and other receivables are carrigd at original invoice amount {which is considered a reasonable proxy for fair vatue) and

are subsequently held at amortised cost less provision for impairment. The provision for impairment of receivables is based
on lifetime expected credit losses. Lifetime expected credit losses are calculated by assessing historic credit loss experience,
adjusted for factors specific to the receivable and operating company. The movement in the provision is recognised in the

Consolidated Income Statement.

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and in hand and short-term deposits held on call or with maturities of

less than three months at inception. Bank overdrafts that are repayabte on demand and farm an integral part of the Group's
cash management are included as a component of cash eguivalents for the purposes of the Consolidated Statement of

Cash Flows.

Assets and liabllities held for sale
Assets, liabilities and disposal groups classified as held for sale are measured at the lower of carrying amount and fair value

less costs to sell.

Assets, liabilities and disposal groups are classified as held for sale if their carrying amount will be recovered principaily
through a sale transaction rather than continuing use. This condition is regarded as met only when the sale is highly
probable and the asset [or disposal group) is available for immediate sale in its present condition and when management
is committed to the sale which is expected to qualify for recognition as a completed sale within one year from the date

of classification.

Trade and other payables
Trade and other payables are recognised at the amounts expected to be paid to counterparties and subsequently held

at amortised cost.

Provisions

A provision is recognised in the Consolidated Staternent of Financial Position when the Group has a present legal or
gonstructive obligation as a result of a past event and it is probable that an outflow of resources, that can be reliably
mieasured, will be required to settle the obligation. In respect of warranties, a provision is recognised when the underlying
products or services are sold. Provisions are recognised at an amount equal to the best estimate of the expenditure required
to settle the Group's liability. A contingent liability is disclosed where the existence of the obligation will only be confirmed by
future events or where the amount of the obligation cannot be measured with reasonable reliability. Contingent assets are
not recognised but are disciosed where an inflow of economic benefit is probable. Obligations arising from restructuring
plans are recognised when detailed formal plans have been established and when there is a valid expectation that such

a plan will be carried out.

Taxation

Tax on the profit of loss for the year comprises both current and deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the Consolidated income
Statement except 1o the extent that it relates (¢ items recognised either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity,
in which case tax is recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive income or the Consolidated Statement of
Changes in Equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted
at the Staternent of Financial Position date, and any adjustments to tax payable in respect of prior years. Tax positions are
reviewed to assess whether a provision should be made based on prevailing circumstances. Tax provisions are included
within current taxation labilities.
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Notes to the Accounts continued

1. Basis of preparation and summary of significant accounting policies continued

Deferred taxation is provided on taxable temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
Financial Statements and their corresponding tax bases. No provision is made for deferred tax which would become payable
on the distribution of retained profits by overseas subsidiaries where the timing of the reversal of the temparary difference
can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred taxis
measured using the tax rates expected to apply when the asset is realised, or the liability settled based on tax rates enacted
or substantively enacted at the Statement of Financial Position date.

Deferred tax is not provided on the initial recognition of goodwill, nor on the initial recognition of an asset or lisbility unless
the related transaction is a business combination or affects tax or accounting profit.

A deferred tax asset is recognised only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against
which the asset can be utilised. Deferred tax assets are reduced to the extent that it is no lJonger probable that the related ‘
tax benefit will be realised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets against current
tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the sarme taxation authority.

Additional income taxes that arise frorm the distribution of intra-group dividends are recognised at the same time as the
liability to pay the related dividend.

Foreign currency transtation

The functional currency for each entity in the Group is determined with reference to the currency of the primary economic

environment in which it operates. Transactions in currencies other than the functional currency are initially recorded at

the functional currency rate ruling at the date of the transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign

currencies are retranslated at the rate of exchange ruling at the Staternent of Financial Pasition date. Exchange gains ;
and losses on selllement of foreign currency transactions are determined using the rate prevailing at the date of the

transactions, or the translation of monetary assets and liabilities at period end exchange rates, and are charged/credited to

the Consolidated Income Statement. Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies that are stated

at historical cost are translated to the functional currency at the foreign exchange rate ruling at the date of the transaction.

On consolidation, the Income Statement items of subsidiaries are translated into Sterling at average rates of exchange.
Statement of Financial Position items are translated into Sterling at year-end exchange rates. Exchange differences on
the retranslation are taken to the translation reserve within equity. Exchange differences on foreign currency borrowings
designated as a hedge of the net investment in a foreign operation are reported in the Consolidated Staternent of
Comprehensive income. All other exchange differences are charged or credited to the Consolidated Income Statement in
the year in which they arise. On disposal of an cverseas supsidiary, any cumulative exchange movements relating to that
subsidiary held in the translation reserve are transferred to the Consolidated Income Statement.

Derivative financial instruments may be purchased to hedge the Group's exposure to changes in foreign exchange rates.
The accounting policies applied in these circumstances are described below.

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initiakly at the fair value of consideration received less directly attributable
transaction costs. Subsequent ta initial recognition, interast-bearing borrowings are measured at amortised cost with any
difference between cost and redemption value being recognised in the Consolidated Income Staterment over the period
of the borrowings on an effective-interest basis.

Financial instruments

Recognition

The Group recognises financial assets and habilities on its Consolidated Staterment of Financial Position when it becomes
a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument,

Financial assets and liabilities are offset, and the net amount is reported in the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
when there is a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settie on a net basis
or realise the asset and settle the iiability simultaneously.

Measurement

when financial assets and iiabilities are initially recognised, they are measured at fair vaiue, being the consideration given

or received plus directly attributable transaction costs. In determining estimated fair value, investments are valued at quoted
bid prices on the trade date. When quoted prices on an active market are not available, fair value is determined by reference
to price quotations for similar instrurments traded. In determining fair vatue for ¢teferred contingent consideration, the fair
value is determined by reference to best estimates of the (ikely outcome.

Originated loans and receivables are initially recognised in accordance with the policy stated above and subsequently
re-measured at amortised ¢ost using the effective-interest method. Allowance for impairment is estimated on a case-by-
case basis.

The Group uses derivative financial instruments such as forward foreign exchange contracts to hedge risks associated with
foreign exchange fluctuations. These are designated as cash flow hedges. At the inception of the hedge relationship, the
Group documents the relationship between the hedging instrument and the hedged itemn, along with its risk management
objectives and its strategy for undertaking various hedge transactions. Furthermore, at the inception of the hedge and on
an ongoing basis, the Group documents whether the hedging instrument that is used in a hedging relationship is highly
effective in offsetting changes in cash flows of the hedged itemn.
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The effective portion of changes in the fair vaiue of derivatives that are designated and qualify as cash flow hedges
is deferred in equity. The gain or loss relating to the ineffective portion is recognised immediately in the Consolidated

Income Statement.

Amounts deferred in equity are reclassified to the Consolidated Income Statement in the periods when the hedged item

is recognised in the Consolidated Income Statement, in the same line of the Consolidated Incorne Staternent as the
recognised hedged item. However, when the forecast transaction that is hedged results in the recognition of a non-financial
asset or a non-financial liability, the gains and losses previously deferred in equity are transferred from equity and included in
the initial measurement of the cost of the asset or liability.

Hedge accounting is discontinued when the Croup revokes the hedging relationship, the hedging instrument expires or is
sold, terminated, or exercised, or ne longer qualifies for hedge accounting. Any cumulative gain or loss deferred in equity at
that time remains in equity and is recognised when the forecast transaction is uitimately recognised in the Consolidated
Income Statement. When a forecast transaction is no longer expected to ocour, the cumulative gain or loss that was deferred
in equity is recognised immediately in the Consclidated Incorme Statement.

Dereccgnition
A financial asset is derecognised when the Group loses control over the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset.

This occurs when the rights are realised, expire or are surrendered. A financial ability is derecognised when the obligation
specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or expired. Originated loans and receivables are derecognised on the date

they are transferred by the Group.

Impairment of financial assets
Tne Group assesses at each Cangolidated Statement of Financial Pogition reporting date whether there is any objective

evidence that a financial asset, or group of financial assets, is impaired. A financial asset, or group of financial assets, is
deemed to be impaired if, and only if, there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events that has
occurred after the initial recognition of the asset {an incurred ‘loss event’) and that loss event has an impact on the estimated
future cash flows of the financial asset or group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated. For trade receivables the
Croup recognises impairment provisions based on fifetime expecied cregit losses.

Net investment hedge accounting

The Group uses Euro-denominated borrowings as a hedge against the translation exposure on the Group's net investment in
pverseas companies. To the extent that the hedge is effective at hedging the variability in the net assets of such companies,
caused by changes in fareign exchange rates, the changes in the value of the borrowings are recognised in the Consolidated
Staternent of Comprehensive Income. The ineffective part of any change in value caused by changes in foreign exchange
rates is recognised in the Consofidated income Statement.

Employee benefits
The Group operates defined benefit post-retirement benefit plans and defined contribution pension plans.

Defined benefit plans
The Group's net obligation recognised in the Consclidated Statement of Financial Position in respect of defined benefit plans

is calculated separately for each plan as the present value of the plan’s liabilities less the fair value of the pian’'s assets. The
operating and financing costs of defined benefit plans are recognised separately in the Consolidated Income Statement.
Operating costs comprise the current service cost, plan administrative expense, any gains or losses on settlement or
curtaitrnents, and past service costs where benefits have vested, Finance items comprise the unwinding of the discount on
the net asset surplus/deficit. Actuarial gains or fosses comprising changes in plans’ liabilities due to experience and changes
in actuarial assumptions are recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income.

The amount of any pension fund asset recognised in the Consolidated Staternent of Financial Position is irnited to any future
refunds from the plan or the present value of reductions in future contributions to the plan.

Defined contribution plans
A defined contribution plan is a post-employrnent benefit plan under which an entity pays fixed contriputions into a

separate entity and will have no legal or constructive obligation to pay further amounts, Qbligations for contributions to
defined contribution pension plans are recognised in the Consolidated Income Statement in the periods during which
services are rendered by employees.

In certain countries, the Group participates in industry-wide defined benefit-type pension arrangements. In such
circurnstances, it is not possible to determine the amount of any surplus or deficit attributable to the Group and the pension
costs are accounted for as if the arrangements were defined contribution plans. These are not material to the Group and,
accordingly, no additional disclosuras are provided.

Short-term benefits

short-term employee benefit obligations are measured on an yndiscounted basis and are expensed as the related service is
provided. A lability is recognised for the amount expected to be paid under short-term cash bonus or protfit-sharing plans if
the Group has a present tegal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service provided by the
empioyee, and the obligation can be estimated reliably.
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Notes to the Accounts continued

1. Basis of preparation and summary of significant accounting policies continued

Share-based payments

Certain empioyees of the Group receive part of their remuneration in the form of share-based payment transactions,
whereby employees render services in exchange for shares or rights over shares (equity-settled transactions). The cost of
equity-settled transactions with employees is measured at fair value at the date at which they are granted. The fair value of
share awards with market-related vesting conditions is determined by an external consultant and the fair value at the grant
date is expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting period based on the Group's estimate of shares that will eventually
vest. The estimate of the number of awards likely to vest is reviewed at each Consclidated Staternent of Finangial Position
repaorting date up to the vesting date, at which point the estimate is adjusted to reflect the actual outcome of awards which
have vested. No adjustment is made to the fair value after the vesting date even if the awards are forfeited or not exercised.

Where it is not possible to incentivise managers of the Group's operating companies with equity-settled opticns, they are
issued with cash-settled options. The charge for these awards is adjusted to reflect the expected and actual levels of options
that vest, and the fair value is based onr either the share price at date of exercise or the share price at the Consolidated
Statement of Financial Position date if sconer.

Own shares

Own equity instruments which are re-acquired [own shares} are recognised at cost and deducted from equity. No gsin or
loss is recognised in the Consolidated Income Statement on the purchase, sale, issue or cancetlation of the Group's own
equity instruments. Any difference between the carrying amount and the consideration paid to acquire such equity
instruments is recognised within equity.

Dividends
Dividends are recognised as a liability in the period in which they are approved by shareholders,

Revenue
Revenue is measured based on the fair value of the consideration specified in a contract with a customer, net of returns

and discounts, and exclucgies amounts collected on behalf of third parties, value added tax and other sales-related taxes.
The Group recognises revenue when it transfers control of a product or service to a customer.

The Group's major revenue streams are the sarme as its reportable operating segments (Malvern Panalytical, HBK, Ormega
and Industrial Solutions).

The following table provides further details on the nature of each of the major revenue streams. The table shows where each
revenue factor forms more than 10% of the operating segment’s total revenue:

Revenue derived from

% of total Sale of goods Sale of goods Sale of goods

Croup sales Provision of without with simple  with cormplex

Revenye stream 2019 services installation installation installation

Malvern Panalytical 29% v v v v
HBK 26% v v
Omega 9% v

Industrial Solutions 38% v v v

Further details of the nature of each major revenue stream is provided below.

Mazlvern Panalytical

Revenue from the provision of services, including ongoing support, servicing and maintenance, is recognised in line with the
delivery of the service, either at a point in time or, for some ongoing services, over time.

Revenue from the sale of goods, where the goods are net required to be installed, is recognised at a point in time when legal
title transfers to the customer, usually on delivery.

When the sale of goods is combined with installation, revenue recognition depends upon the nature of the installation,

Simple installations are those which the customer perceives as a separate performance obligation within the overall
contract to deliver goods, whereas cornplex installations are those for which the installation is an integral part of the delivery

of the goods.

Revenue is recognised for simple installations separately from the delivery of goods, and cnly at a point in time when the
instailation has occurred.

For complex installations, revenue is normally deferred until installation is complete. For a small number of complex
installations, revenue is recognised before instailation when: a) a significant period of time has ¢lapsed since completion

of the product; b} an installation date has not been agreed despite multiple attempts to arrange; and ¢f payment has been
received from the customer. Significant judgement is required for these instaliations, Revenue from these arrangements

represents approxirmately 2% of the segment’s total sales.
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Occasionally, the initial contract covers both the supply of goods and ongoing support, servicing and maintenance. For such
contracts, revenue is allocated across each of the individual compeonents in line with their relative price and value of the
performance obligation and each efement is accounted for as described above.

Payment is norrmally due at the point that the performance obligation is completed. For some of the segment’s business the
customer may make partial payment in advance. Such payments are recognised as contract liabilities until the performance
obligation has been satisfied.

Sales-related warranties associated with the products cannot be purchased separately and they serve as an assurance that
the products sold comply with agreed-upon specifications.

HBK

Revenue from the provision of services, including ongoing support, servicing and maintenance, is recognised in line with the
delivery of the service, either at a point in time or, for sorme ongoing services, over time,

Revenue from the sale of goods, where the goods are not required to be installed, is recognised at a point in time when legal
title transfers to the customer on delivery. )

Occasionally, the initial contract covers both the supply of goods and ongoing support, servicing and maintenance. For such
contracts revenue is allocated across each of the individual compenents in line with their relative price and value of the
perforrmance obligation and each element is accounted for as described above.

Payment is normally due at the point that the performance obligation is completed. For some of the segment’s business the
custornmer may make partial payment in advance. Such payments are recognised as contract liabilities until the performance
obligation has been satisfied.

Sales-related warranties associated with the products cannot be purchased separately and they serve as an assurance that
the products sold comply with agreed-upon specifications.

Omega

The segment selis products direct to the customer and te the whelesale market (distributors).

For sale of products to retail customers and distributors, revenue is recognised when control of the goods has transferred,
being when the goods have been shipped to the custorer or wholesaler's location.

Sales-related warranties associated with the products cannot be purchased separately and they serve as an assurance that
the products sold comply with agreed-upon specificaticns.

Payrment is normally due at the point that the performance obligation is completed. For some of the segment's business the
customer may make partial payment in advance. Such payments are recognised as contract liabilities until the performance
obligation has been satisfied. .

Industrial Solutions

Revenue from the provision of services, including ongoing support, servicing and maintenance, is recognised in line with the
delivery of the service, either at a point in timae o, for some ongoing services, over time,

Revenue from the sale of goods, where the goods are not required to be installed, is recognised at a point in time when legal
title transfers to the customer, usuatly on delivery.

Simple instaliations are those which the customer perceives as a separate performance obligation within the overall
contract to defiver goods, whereas complex instailations are those for which the installation is an integral part of the delivery
i the gouds,

Occasionally, the initial contract covers both the supply of goods and ongoing suppart, servicing and maintenance. For such
contracts, revenue is allocated across each of the individual compohents in line with their relative price and value of the
perforrmance obligation and each element is accounted for as described above.

Sales-related warranties assodiated with the products cannot be purchased separately and they serve as an assurance that
the products sold comply with agreed-upon specifications.

Payment is normally due at the point that the performance obligation is completed. For some of the segment’s business the
custormer may make partial payrent in advance. Such payments are recognised as contract liabilities until the performance
obligation has heen satisfied.

Finance costs and financial income
Finance costs comprise the interest payable on borrowings calculated using the effective-interest method, the unwinding

of discount factor on lease liabilities and the unwinding of the discount factor an deferred or cantingent consideration,
Financial income comprises interest income on cash and invested funds, together with interest income from the joint
venture, and is recognised in the Consolidated Income Staternent as it accrues. The net gain or loss on retranslation of
short-term inter-company ican balances is also presented within net finance costs.
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Notes to the Accounts continued

2. Alternative performance measures

Policy
Spectris uses adjusted figures as key performance measures in addition 1o those reported under [FRS, as managerment

believe these measures enable managernent and stakeholders to better assess the underlying trading performance of the
businesses as they exclude certain items that are considered to be significant in nature and/for quantum, foreign exchange
movements and the impact of acquisitions and disposals.

The aiternative performance measures (APMs] are consistent with how the businesses’ performance is planned and
reported within the internal management reporting to the Board and Operating Committees. Some of these measures

are used for the purpose of setting remuneration targets. The key APMSs that the Group uses include like-for-like ['LFL)
organic performance measures and adjusted measures for the income statement together with adjusted financial position
and cash flow measures. Explanations of how they are calculated and how they are reconciled to an IFRS statutory measure

are set out below.

Adjusted measures
The Group’s policy is to exclude iterns that are considered to be significant in nature and/or qguantum andg where treatment
as an adjusted item provides stakeholders with additional useful information to better assess the pericd-on-period trading

performance of the Group. The Group excludes certain items, which management have defined as:

« restructuring costs from significant programmes;

- arnortisation and impairment of acquisition-related goodwill and other intangible assets;

- bargain purchase on acquisition;

- depreciation of acquisition-related fair value adjustments to property, plant and equipment;

- transaction-related costs, deferred and contingent consideration fair value adjustments;

- profits or losses on termination or disposal of businesses;

- impairrment of non-current receivable from joint venture and share of impairment of investment in joint venture;
- unwinding of the discourt factor on deferred and contingent consideration;

. unrealised changes in the fair value of financial instruments;

. gains or losses on retransiation of short-term inter-company loan balances; and

- related tax effects on the above and other tax itemns which do not form part of the underlying tax rate {see Note 8}.

During 2019, a profit on disposal of property of £5.2m in Omega was treated as an adjusting item since it was significant in
quantum and weuld distort the underlying trading performance if included.

In Novernber 2018, the Group announced the implementation of a Group-wide profit improvemnent pregramme. The total
costs of implementation of this programme are considered to be significant in both nature and armount. On this basis the
costs of the implementation of this programme are excluded from adjusted operating profit. Adjusted operating profit
{including on a LFL basis) is therefore presented before the impact of the Group profit improvernent programme costs. The
ongoing benefits arising fram this programme are considered to be part of underlying trading.

LFL measures

The Board reviews and compares current and prior year segmental sales and adjusted operating profit at constant exchange
rates and excludes the impact of acquisitions and disposals during the year.

Tne constant exchange rate comparison uses the current year segmental information, stated in each entity’s functional
currency, and translates the results into its presentation currency using the prior year's monthly exchange rates, irrespective
of the underlying transactional currency.

The incrermental impact of business acquisitions is excluded for the first 12 months of ownership from the month of
purchase. For business disposals, comparative figures for segmental sales and adjusted operating profit are adjusted

to reflect the comparable periods of awnership. Due to the change in ownership structure the EMS B&K business was
deconsclidated on 31 May 2018 and the segmental LFL adjusted sales and adjusted operating profit for HBK for 2078
exclude the trading results of EMS BA&K for the first five months of 2018. BTG was disposed of on 1 Decermber 2019 and the
segmental LFL adjusted sales and adjusted operating profit for Industrial Solutions for 2018 exclude BTG for the month of
December 2018.

The LFL measure is presented as a means of eliminating the effects of exchange rate fluctuations on the period-on-period
statutory results as well as allowing the Board to assess the underlying trading performance of the businesses on a LFL basis
for both sales and operating profit.

The tables on the following page show restated comparative figures for the operating segments for the year ended

31 December 2018, reflecting the impact of changes the Group made to its operating segments during the year ended

31 December 2019 (see note 3),
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Based on the above policy, the adjusted performance measures are derived frorn the statutory figures as follows:

income statement measures
a) LFL adjusted sales by segment

Malvern Industrial 2019
Panaiytical HBK Omega Solutions Total
Sales by segment £m £m £m £m £m
Sales 448.2 429.0 138.3 616.5 1,632.0
Lonstant exchange rate adjustment {3.5) {2.8) (4.5) {12.9) (23.7
Acquisitions (3.8) 13.3) - (3.4) {20.5)
LFL adjusted sales 4409 412.9 133.8° 600.2 1,5878
Matvern lnduserial 208
Panalytical HBK Omega Solutions Total
Sales by segment £m £m £m £m £m
Sales 436.7 426.5 147.2 5338 1604.2
Disposal of businesses £1.9) {8.8) - [12.4} {23.0)
LFL adjusted sales 434.8 4177 1472 5614 1,581)
b} adjusted operating profit, operating margin and adjusted EBITDA
Malvern Iindustrial 201%
Panalytical HBK Omega Salutions Total
Adjusted operating profit £m £m £m £m £m
Statutory operating (foss)/profit n7.7) 8.1 12.0 nse 843
Restructuring costs 16.4 177 22 15.9 52.2
Net transaction-related costs and fair value adjustments (0.3) 3.1 - 3.3 LA
Depreciation of acquisition-related fair value adjustments
to property, plant and eguiprment 0.4 - - 0.6 1.0
Profit on disposal of praperty - - {5.3 - {5.2}
Imnpairment of goodwill 35} - - - 351
Amortisation and impairment of acquisition-related
intangible assets 42.3 21.5 7.9 129 B84.6
Adjusted operating profit 76.2 60.4 169 104.6 258.1
Constant exchange rate adjustment 0.3 0.6 {0.6} (3.3 3.0
Acquisitions 0.5 0.4 - {0.9) -
LFL adjusted operating profit 77.0 6.4 16.3 100.4 2551
Malvern Industrial 2018
Panalytical . HBK omega Solutions Total
Adjusted operating profit £m £m £m £m £m
Statutory operating profit 529 431 18.0 62.4 176.4
Restructuring costs 36 4.3 1.6 6.1 15.6
Net transaction-related costs and fair value adjustments 1.3 14 - 9.5 2.2
Depreciation of acquisition-related fair value adjustments
to property, plant and equipment 02 - - 06 o8
Amortisation and impairment of acquisition-related
intangible assets 15.0 7.8 7.2 13.3 43.3
Adjusted operating profit 73.0 56.6 26.8 Ng 2483
Disposal of businesses 0.4 0.4 - (3.2 12.4)
LFL adjusted operating profit 73.4 57.0 26.8 887 2459
ne
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Notes to the Accounts continued

2. Altgrnative performance measures continued

Malvern Industrial 2019
Panalytical HBX Omega Soiutions Total
Operating margin % % % % %
Statutory operating margin (3.9 4.2 8.7 ny 5.2
Adjusted operating margin 17.0 14.3 12.2 17.0 15.8
LFL adjusted oparating margin 17.5 14.9 122 16.7 16.1
Malvern Industrial 208
Panalytical HBK Omega Solutions Total
Operating margin % % % % %
Statutory operating margin 12 10.1 12.2 10.5 Nn.o
Adjusted operating margin 167 13.3 182 15.5 15.5
LFL adjusted operating margin 169 3.6 18.2 15.3 15.6
209 208
Restructuring costs Em Em
Profit improvement programme 52.2 4.8
Project Uplift costs - 10.8
Restructuring casts 52.2 15.6
2019 2018
Adjusted EBITDA Note £m £m
Statutory operating profit 84.3 176.4
Depreciation and impairment of owned assets 12 355 303
Depreciation and impairment of right-of-use assots 12 22 -
Amortisation and irmpairment of intangible assets n 95.2 491
Impairment of goodwill H 3531 -
EBITDA 272.2 255.8
Restructuring costs excluding impairment of owned and right-of-use property, plant and
equipment and intangible assets £3.4 5.6
Profit on disposal of property classified as an adjusting itern 5.2} -
Net acquisition-related costs and fair value adjustments 6.1 12.2
316.5 283.6

Adjusted EBITDA

EBITDA is calculated as statutory operating profit before depreciation, amortisation and impairment of property, plant and
equipment, intangible assets and goodwill. Adjusted EBITDA is calculated as EBITDA excluding other adjusting items as
defined previously. This measure is used for the purpose of assessing capital management and covenant compliance and is

reported to the Group Executive Committee.

c) Adjusted net finance costs

2019 208

Note £m £m
Statutory net finance costs 7 {3.5) {13.5)
Net {gain)/loss on retranslation of shortterm inter-company loan balances 7 (4.0} 72
Unwinding of discount factor on deferred and contingent consideration 7 0.7 06
Adjusted net finance costs (6.8) )]

d) Adjusted profit before taxation

2019 2018

Mote £m £m

Adjusted operating profit Zb 258. 2483
Share of post-tax results of joint venture 13 39 n.2)
Adjusted net finance costs 2c (6.8) 5.7)
247.4 241.4

Adjusted profit before taxation

Share of post-tax results of the joint venture has been adjusted to exclude £1.0m of impairment of acquisition-related

intangible assets consistent with the Group’'s treatment of adjusted operating profit measures.
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e) Adjusted earnings per share

200% 2018
Adjusted earnings Note £m £m
Statutory profit after tax 234 185.2
Adjusted for:
Restructuring costs 52.2 156
Net transaction-related costs and fair value adjustments 61 12.2
Depraciation of acquisition-related fair value adjustments to property, plant and egquipment 2 1.0 0.8
Profit on disposal of property {5.2) -
Impairment of goodwill i sy -
Amortisation and impairment of acquisition-related intangible assets 84.6 %33
Profit on disposal of businesses 25 {2047} {56.3)
Impairment of non-current receivable from joint venture 3 23 -
Share of impairment of acquisition-related intangible in joint venture 13 1.0 -
Net (gain)/loss on retranslation of short-term inter-company loan balances 7 {4.9) 72
Unwinding of discount factor on deferred and contingent consideration 0.7 0.6
Tax effect of the above and other non-recurring items 8 {27.7) (14.8)
Adjusted earnings 194.5 193.8
Adjusted earnings per share Note 2019 2018
Weighted average number of shares outstanding {millians) 0 115.8 7.5
Adjusted earnings per share [pence) 168.0 164.9
Basic earnings per share in accordance with {AS 33 'Earnings Per Share’ are disclosed in Note 10.
Financial position measures
f} Net cash/f{debt)
j 2019 2008
Note £m £m
Bank overdrafts 17 - (5.8}
Bank loans unsecured 17 {179.6} {364.4)
Total borrowings (179.6) - {370.2)
Cash and cash equivalents 16 2131 733
Net cash/{debt) 33.5 {297)

Net cashf{debt) excludes lease liabilities arising under IFRS 16 as this aligns with the definition of net debt under the Group's
bank covenants.

Cash fiow measures
g) Adjusted cash flow

2019 2008
£m £m
Net cash inflow from operating activities 240.0 1701
Transaction-related costs paid 1.6 0.8
Restructuring cash outflow 34.3 8.6
Natincome taxes paid 37.0 377
Purchase of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets {86.5} (970}
Proceeds from government grants 5.0 29
Proceeds from disposal of property, piant and equipment and software? 2.1 5.6
Adijusted cash flow 234.2 146.7
91%: 59%

Adjusted cash flow conversion’

1 Adjusted cash flow conversion is calcutated as adjusted operating cash fllow as a proportion of agjusted operating profit.
2 Excludes the proceeds from dispasal of property of £9.1m in 2019 classified as an adjusting item.

The net cash inflow from operating activities in 2019 excludes cash outflows of £20.5m arising from lease and associated
interest payments as a result of the implementation of IFRS 16 from 1 January 2019 which requires these cash flows to be
treated as a financing cash flow. Prior to 1 January 2019, these cash flows were included in the net cash inflow from
operating activities.
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2. Alternative performance measures continued
Other mesasures

h) Return on Gross Capital employed {'ROGCE’)
The return on gross capital employed is calculated as adjusted operating profit for the last 12 months divided by the average

of opening and closing gross capital employed. Gross capital employed is calculated as net assets excluding net debt and
excluding accumulated amortisation and impairment of acquisition-related intangible assets including goodwili.

31 December 31 ecember 31 Decemnber

2019 008 07

£m Em £m
Net {cash)/debt (see Note 2f) (33.5) 2071 505
Accurmnulated impairment losses on goodwill {see Note 1) 179.4 1488 44
Accurmulated amortisation and impairment of acquisition-related intangible assets
(see Note 1) 366.3 3061 2530
Shareholders’ equity 1,321.5 12329 1,204.1
Gross captal employed 1,834 198449 1,bh LU
Average gross capital employed {current and prior year) 1,9039.4 1,818.5
Adjusted operating profit for year (see Note 2b) 2581 2483 ;
Return on gross cap employed 13.5% 13.7%

i) Net transaction-related costs and fair value adjustments

Net transaction-related costs and fair value adjustments cormnprise transaction costs of £2Im (2018: £7.4m) that have been
recognised in the Consolidated income Statermnent under IFRS 3 (Revised) ‘Business Combinations’ and other fair value
adjustments relating to deferred and contingent consideration comprising a charge of £4.0m (2018: £4.8m). Net transaction-
related costs and fair value adjustments are included within administrative expenses. Transaction-related costs have been
excluded from the agdjusted operating profit and transaction costs paid of £1.6m {2018: charge of £10.8m) have been

excluded from the adjusted cash flow.

3. Operating segments
The Group has four reportable segments, as described below. From 1July 2019, the Group's operating segments have

changed following the strategic review which commmenced in Novernber 2018, The new segmental platform structure
reflects the internal reporting provided to the Chief Operating Decision Maker (considered to be the Board) on a regular
basis to assist in making decisions on capital allocated to each segment and to assess performance. The tables below show
restated comparative figures for the operating segments for the year ended 31 December 2018, reflecting the impact of
changes the Group made to its operating segments during the year ended 31 December 2019, The segment results include
an allocation of head office expenses. The following summarises the operations in each of the Group's reportable segments:

- The Malvern Panalytical plattarm provides products and services that enable customers to determine structure,
composition, quantity and quality of particles and materials during their research and product development processes,
when assessing materials before production, or during the manufacturing process. The operating companies in this
segment are Malvern Panalytical and Concept Life Sciences (acquired January 2018). Concept Life Sciences was merged
into Malvern Panalytical as of 1 July 2019.

. The HBK platform supplies test, measurement and analysis equipment, software and services for product design
optimisation, and manufacturing control. The operating companies in this segment are Hottinger, Bruel & Kjzer and
Vi-grade {acquired August 2018). Vi-grade was merged into HBK as of 1 Juiy 2019, :

. The Omega platform is a global leader in the technical marketpiace, offering products for measurement and control of
temperature, humidity, pressure, strain, force, flow, level, pH and conductivity. Omega also provides a complete line of
data acquisition, electric heating and custom-engineered products. The operating company in this segment is Omega
Engineering.

- The industrial Solutions division [1SD") comprises a portfolio of high-value, niche businesses. A number of ISC companies
have platforrm potential, with streng rmarket positions, growth prospects and margins. The operating cornpanies in this
segment are Briel & Kjzer Vibro, ESC Solutions, Millbrook, NDC Technologies, Particle Measuring Systems, Red Lion
Controls, Servornex and BTG {disposed on 1 December 2019).
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Further details of the nature of these segments and the products and services they provide are contained in the Strategic
Report on pages 2to 53.

Malvern Industrial 2019

Panalytical HBK Omega Selytions Totat

Information about reportable segments £m £m Em £m £m
Segment revenues 448.4 430.7 138.5 616.7 1,634.3
Inter-segment revenue {0.2) (L7} {0.2) {0.2) {2.3)
External revenue 448.2 429.0 138.3 616.5 1,632.0
Operating (tossi/profit 17.7) 18 12.0 7.9 84.3
Share of post-tax results of joint venture' (6.9}
Impairment of non-current receivable from joint venture' {2n.3)
Profit on disposal of businesses’ 2047
Financial income’ 7.9
Finance costs! M.4})
Profit before tax’ 2593
Taxation charge' {25.2)
Profit after tax' 2343

1 Not allocated to reportable segments.

Malvern industrial 2018

Panalytical HBK Omega Solutions Total

Information about reportable segments £m £m £m £m £m
Segment revenues 436.7 4281 147.3 594.3 1,606.4
Inter-segment revenue - {1.6} {0.3) (0.5} {2.2)
Extarnal reverise 436.7 426.5 147.2 593.8 1,604.2
Operating profit 529 431 1B.0 62.4 176.4
Share of post-tax resuits of joint venture' (1.2}
Profit on disposal of businesses' 56.3
Financial incoma’ 25
Finance costs’ 6.0}
Profit before tax’ 218.0
Taxation charge? (32.8)
185.2

Profit after tax'-,

1 Not aliocated toreportable segments.

Reportable segment profit is consistent with that presented to the Chief Operating Decision Maker. Inter-segment revenue
includes the movements in internal cash flow hedges with inter-segment pricing on an arm's length basis. Segments are
presented on the basis of actual inter-segment charges made.

Carrying amount Carrying amount

of segment assets of segment liabilities

2019 2018 2019 2018

£m £m £m £m
Malvern Panalytical 486.9 570.5 {149.3) 145.9}
HBK 4467 4000 (129.4) {n..4)
Omega 242.8 2517 (21.4} (21.9)
Industrial Solutions. 550.8 735.8 {111.6) {116.9)
Total segment assets and liabilities 17272 1,959.0 {411.5) {403.Y)
Cash and borrowings 2131 731 {179.6) (370.2)
Derivative financial instruments 1.5 0.4 {01) 2.2}
Assets held for sale 8.9 39 - -

Other receivable - joint venture - 389 - -
Investment in joint ventyre - 50 - -
Retirernent benefit liabilities - - {27.5) 32y
Taxation 13.1 129 {33.6} {52.7)
Consolidated total assets and liabilities 1,973.8 2,093.2 (652.3) {860.3}
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3. Operating segments continued

Segrment assets comprise: goodwill; other intangible assets; property, plant and equipment; inventories; and trade and other
receivables. Segment liabiities comprise: trade and other payables; provisions; lease liabilities; and other payables, which can
be reasonably attributed to the reported operating segments. Unallocated iterns represent all components of net cash/
{debt), derivative financial instruments, assets held for sale, other receivable - joint venture, investrment in joint venture,
defined benefit plan iiabilities and current and deferred taxation baiances.

Additions to Depreciation, amaortisation

Nnon-cufrent assets and impairment

2019 2008 2019 2008

£m £m £m £m

Malvern Panalytical 109 182.2 999 . 233

HBK ' 19.2 434 369 17.0

Omega 7.9 n7 13.4 101

tndustrial Solutions ) 551 68.0 37.7 29.0

“Total segments . a3 3053 87,9 794
Other receivable - joint venture - k{5
Investrnent in joint venture - 5.0

Consolidated total 93.) 349.2 187.9 79.4

Geographical segments
The Group's operating segments are each located in several geographical locations and sell on to external customers in all
parts of the world. No individual country amounts to more than 3% of revenue, other than those noted below. The following

is an analysis of revenue by geographical destination.

Malvern Industrial 2009

Panalytical HBK Qmega Solutions Total

£m £m £Em Em £m

UK 427 13.4 4.0 64,7 124.8
Cermany 259 80.4 - B4 3oe 14%2.5
France 16.0 25.4 11 ic.9 534
Rest of Europe 60.9 79.1 53 76.2 2.5
USA 84.9 88.3 B9.9 195.3 458.4
Rest of North America 147 56 77 20.9 48.9
Japan nz 323 2.5 233 §9.3
China 709 60.8 8.9 76.5 218
South Korea 12.4 101 4 27.4 54.0
Rest of Asia 50.9 20.0 6.0 60.6 1376
Rest of the world 377 13.5 2.4 299 83.5
' 4482 429.0 138.3 616.5 1,632.0
Malvern Industrial 2018

Panalyticat HBK Omega Solutions Totai

£m £m £m £m Erm

UK 50.4 13 41 657 133.2
Cermany 265 88.7 61 301 151.4
France 161 225 12 N4 S1.2
Rest of Europe 57.3 72.4 58 76.4 M9
USA 841 8l4 942 88 4477
Rest of North Arnerica 159 6.1 83 221 52.4
Japan 266 316 33 211 B2.4
China 65.7 68.5 n.s 75.8 2215
South Korea n3 107 4.6 246 512
Rest of Asia 486 19.3 6 53.4 1273
Rest of the world 342 2.3 23 25.2 74,0
436.7 426.% 1472 593.8 1604.2
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Non-current 3ssets

2019 2018

£m £m

UK 386.7 439.4
Germany 857 93.8
France 2.9 1.6
Rest of Europe’ 264.5 373
UsA 40435 4444
Rest of North America 22.4 26.4
Japan -8 52
China 10.5 0.8
South Korea 1.9 2.3
Rest of Asia ¥4 4.3
Rest of the world 26 37
1194.3 1,405.0

Deferred tax assets?® 9.0 1.3
Total non-current assets 1,203.3 1,416.3

1 Principally in Netherlands and Fintand.
2 Not allocated to reportable geagraphic area in reporting to the Chief Operating Decision Maker,

4. Revenue

Disaggregation of revenue

The Group derives its revenue from the provision of goods and services both at a point in time and over time. Product lines
are presented consistent with the revenue information that is disclosed for each reporiable segrment under IFRS B (see
Note 3). The tables below show restated comparative figures for the year ended 31 December 2018, refiecting the impact
of changes the Group made to its operating segments during the year ended 31 December 2019 (see Note 3).

IFRS 15 paragraph 114 requires an entity to disaggregate revenue recognised from contracts with customers into categories
that depict how the nature, amount, tirning and uncertainty of revenue and cash flows are affected by economic factors.
This disaggregation will depend on the entity's individual facts and circumstances. The Group has assessed that the
disaggregation of revenue by operating segments is appropriate in meeting this disclosure requirement as this is the
information regularly reviewed by the Chief Operating Decision Maker in order to evatuate the financial performance of
the entity. The Group also believes that presenting a disaggregation of revenue based on the timing of transfer of goods

or services provides users of the Financial Statements with useful information as to the nature and timing of revenue from

contracts with customers.

Timing of revenue recognition:

2018 zne
£m £m

At a point in time:
Malverns Panalytical 3817 3771
HBK 368.8 37N3
Omega 138.3 14%7.2
industrial Selutions 578.4 558.9
1,467.2 1,454.5

Over time:

Malvern Panalytical 66.5 596
HBK 60.2 552
Ormega - _
Industrial Solutions 1381 349
164.6 149.7
1,632.0 1,604.2

Revenug

The Group’s material revenue streams have an expected duration of one year or less. The Group has therefore applied the
practical expedient in IFRS 15 paragraph 121 to not disclose information about its remaining performance cbligations.

No individual customer accounted for more than 2% of external revenue in either 2012 or 2018,
Total revenue for the Group, after including financial income of £7.9m {2018: £2.5m} (see Note 7}, was £1,639.9m (2018: £1,606.7m).
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5. Operating profit
OCperating profit is stated after charging/{crediting):
2018 2018
Note £m £m
Net foreign exchange losses/[gains) 35 {2.0)
Research and development expense 9318 96.2
Amortisation of intangible assets n 481 471
Impairment of intangible assets {including £351m inpairment of goodwill (2018: nil)) n 82.2 20
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 12 33.0 303
impairment of property, plant and aquipment 12 25 -
Depreciation and impairment of right-of-use assets 12 221 -
Income from sub-leasing right-of-use assets 1.5 -
Expenses relating to shart-term and low-value leases [+X] -
Cost of inventories recognised as expense £14.9 402.4
Profit on disposal of property, plant and equipment and software {4.9) (19)
2019 018
Auditor's remuneration £m £m
Fees payable to the Company's auditor for audit of the Company’'s annual acCounts 0.4 0.5
Fees payable to the Company’s auditor for the audit of the Company's subsidiaries, pursuant to legislation 1.6 14
Total audit-related fees 20 19
Fees payable to the Company's auditor for other services:
- audit-related assurance services' 9.2 a.
2.2 20
1 Review of the haif-year Financial Statements.
6. Employee costs and other information
Employee costs, including Directors' remuneration, comprise:
2019 2018
Note £m £m
Wages and salaries 542.4 518.8
Social security costs 9.3 862
Defined benefit pension plans:
- current service cost 20 1.8 20
- pastservice cost 20 - 27
Defined contribution pension plans 20 8.1 17.8
Equity-settled share-based payment expehnse 30 5.1
Cash-sellled share-based payment expense 2.9 11
659.5 6337
2019 2018
Directors’ remuneration £m Ern
Short-term benefits 27 28
Equity-settled share-based payment expense 0.2 0.7
2.9 3.5

Further details of Directors' remuneration and share options are given in the Directors’ Remuneration Report on pages 70

to 9l
20019 2018
Average number of employees Numbery Number
Production and engineering 3,901 3,074
Sales, marketing and service 4,643 4786
Administrative 95¢C 947
9,494 9,547
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7. Financial income and finance costs

2019 2018

Financial income £m £m
Interest receivable {0.7} (0.s)
Income on receivabie from joint venture 3.2) (2.0}

Net gain on retransiation of short-terrm inter-company loan balances {4.0} -
. {7.9) {2.5)

2019 208

Finance costs £m £m

Interest payable on loans and overdrafts kA 73

Net loss on retranstation of short-term inter-company loan balances - 72

Unwinding of discount factor on lease liabilities 29 -

Unwinding of discount factor on deferred and contingent consideration 0.7 086

Net interest cost on pension plan obligations o8 06

Other finance costs LAl Q.3

n4e 16.0

Net finance costs 315 3.5

Net interest costs of £6.4m (2018: £6.8m) for the purposes of the calculation of interest cover comprise interest receivable
of £0.7m (2018: £0.5m]} and interest payable on loans and overdrafts of £7.1m {2018: £7.3m).
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8. Taxation
2019 2008
UK  Overseas Total UK Overseas TFotal
- £m €m £m Ern Em £rm
Cutrent tax charge 21 367 38.8 EX ] n 41.0
Adfustrnents in respect of current tax of prior years - 1.7} (r.7} {on 2.9 2.0
Deferred tax - origination and reversal of temporary differences )
{Note 21) {7.4) {%.5) mn.s) (3.3) 1.9} 52
Deferred tax - changesin US tax rate (Note 21) - - - - (0.9} (0.9}
Taxation charge {5.3} 30.5 25.2 0.5 323 328

The standard rate of corporation tax for the year, based on the weighted average of tax rates applied to the Group's profits, is
18.6% {2018: 26.0%). The tax charge for the year is iower (2018 lower) than the standard rate of corporation tax for the reasons
set out in the following reconciliation.

2019 20

£m £m

Profit before taxation 259.3 218.0
Corporation tax charge at standard rate of 18.6% {2018; 26.0%) 48,2 56.7
Profit on disposat of business taxed at lower rate [29.8) 6.0}
Mon-deductible impairments 9.9° -
Net impact of US tax reform measures - (0.9}
Effect of intra-group financing - {4.9)
Other non-deductible expenditure 3.3 38
Movements on unrecognised deferred tax assets 0.5 0.4
Tax credits and incertives (LA {43)
Change in tax rates {excluding US) - 03
Adjustmnents to prior year current and deferred tax charges .8} {2.5)
Taxation charge 5.2 32.8

The Group's standard rate of corporation tax of 18.6% is lower than the ptior year rate (26%), principally due to the profit
on disposal of BYG arising in countries with lower tax rates. The standard rate of corperation tax applying to the profit on
disposal of BTG has been calculated by using a weighted average of the rates in the main countries in which BTG operates.

‘Profit on disposal of business taxed at a lower rate’ above, in the current year principally refers to the benefit of tax
exemptions for the sale of shares in certain countries.

‘Tax credits and incentives’ above refers principally to research and development tax credits and other reliefs for innovation
such as the UK Patent Box regime and Dutch Innovation Box regime, as well as tax retiefs available for Foreign Derived
Intangible Incorme in the US.

‘Net impact of US tax reform measures’ above refers tc the impact of the US Tax Cuts and Jobs Act of 2017 In 2018, this
comprises a ctedit of £0.9m arising as a prior year adjustment in respect of re-rmeasuring the prior year net deferred

tax liabilities.

Factors that may affect the future tax charge

The Group’s tax charge in future years is likely to be affected by the proportion of profits arising, and the effective tax rates, in
the various territories in which the Group operates, as well as changes in tax law affecting future periods. Such law changes
may affect the future availability or amount of existing tax reliefs or incentives. Furthermore, the resolution of tax or other legal
cases of investigations such as those mentioned below in respect of the UK's dividend taxation regime or the EU’s State Aid
investigation into aspects of UK tax legislation may result in a re-assessment of the Group's tax liabilities in respect of prior years.

2019 2018
Tax on items recognised directly in the Consolidated Statement of Cofmprehensive Income £m £rm
Tax charge/{credit) on net [loss)igain on effective portion of changes in fair value of forward exchange contracts 0.6 10.5)
Tax [credit)/charge on re-measurement of net defined benefit obligations, net of foreign exchange 1.7 1.4
Aggregate current and deferred tax {credit)/charge relating to iterns recognised directly in the Consolidated
Statement of Comprehensive Incorne {R)] 09
2019 2018
Tax on items gnised directly in the Consolidated Staternent of Changes in Equity £m £m
Tax credit in relation to share-based payrments {0.7) (0.
Aggregate current and deferred tax credit on items recognised directly in the
Consalidated Statement of Changes in Equity (0.7) {4} 1}
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The following tax (credits)/charges reiate to items of income and expense that are excluded from the Group's adjusted
performance measures.

Tax on items of income and expense that are excluded from the Group's adjusted profit before tax 22:: 22::
Tax credit on amortisation and impairment of acquisition-related intangible assets (16.9) {9.6)
Tax credit on depreciation of acquisition-related fair value adjustments to property, plant and equipment {0.2} (0.0}
Tax cradit arising from net impact of US tax reform measures - o9
Tax credit on net transaction-related costs and fair value adjustments (0.8) {0.6)
Tax charge on profit on disposal of property 1.2 -
Tax credit on retransiation of short-term inter-cornpany loan balances {0.q) [0.5)
Tax charge on profit on disposal of businesses 3.2 04
Tax credit relating to prior year acquisitions [2.2) -
Tax credit on restructuring costs m.9) (3.5}
Total tax credit (27.7) 14.8)
The effective adjusted tax rate for the year was 21.4% {2018: 19.7%) as set out in the reconciliation below.
2019 2018
Reconciliation of the statutory taxation charge to the adjusted taxation charge £m £m
Statutory taxation charge 25.2 328
Tax credit on items of income and expense that are excluded from the Group's adjusted profit before tax 17 4.8
52.9 47.6

Adjusted taxation charge

Management judgement is applied to determine the level of provisions required in respect of both direct and indirect taxes.
Tne Group is potentiailly subject to tax audits in many jurisdictions. By their nature these are often complex and could take a
significant period of time to be agreed with the tax authorities. Judgement is therefore applied based on the interpretation
of country-specific tax legislation and the likelihood of settiement. The Group estimates and accrues taxes that will ultimately
be payable when reviews or audits by tax authorities of tax returns are completed. These estimates include judgements

about the position expected tc be taken by each tax authority.

The Group applies judgement in respect of possible tax audit adjustments primarily in respect of transfer pricing as well as
in respect of financing arrangements and tax credits and incentives. In respect of transfer pricing, the level of provision is
determined by reference to management judgements of the adjustments that would arise in the event that certain intra-
group transactions are successfully chatlenged as not being at arm's length.

Management estimates of the level of risk arising from tax audit may change in the next year as a result of changes in
legislation or tax authority practice or correspondence with tax authorities during a specific tax audit, It is not possible
to quantify the impact that such future developments may have on the Group's tax positions. Actual outcomes and
settlements may differ significantly from the estimates recorded in these Consolidated Financial Statements. Further
detail is provided below in relation to tax provisions that are known 10 be potentially material,

Judgement is also applied relating to the recognition of deferred tax assets which are dependent on an assessment of the
generaticn of future taxable income in the countries concerned in which tempaorary differences become deductible orin
which tax losses can be utilised, These estimates may change in the next year if there are changes in the forecast profitability
of the relevant company.

IFRIC 23 provides further guidance on how to apply the recognition and measurement requirements of 1AS 12. The Group has
adopted IFRIC 23 with the cumulative effect of initially applying the Interpretation recognised at the date of initial application
of 1January 2019, See Note Y on page 1 for further details.
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8. Taxation continued

The UK's dividend taxation regime prior to July 2009 is the subject of long-running litigation between HMRC and other
taxpayers in relation to the tax charge on dividends received from EU-based cormpanies. The outcorme of this dispute is
likely to be relevant to the Graup in respect of certain dividends received by UK Group carmpanies before that date. Pending
resolution in the courts, an amount of £8.8m [2018: £8.8m) continues to be held as a tax creditor for the potential tax
liabilities arising if the final decision is in HMRC's favour. An arnount of £5.5m [2018: £5.4m) relating to accrued interest on
the potentiat tax liabilities is also held as a tax-related provision (see Note 19) and an amount of £0.9m {2018: £1.4rm) has been
booked as a deferred tax asset in respect of future tax relief on the accrued interest.

In October 20717, the EU Commission opened a formal State Aid investigation into an exemption within the UK's Controlied
Foreign Company regirne for ¢ertain finance income. A final decision was published by the Commission during 2019,
concluding that certain aspects of the exemption (as it was implermented in UK law for the years 2013-2018) constituted State
Aid and requiring the UK to recover such aid from affected parties. Spectris is impacted by this decision since we have
claimed the benefit of the group finance exemption during the period in question.

The Group, along with the UK government and a number of other affected taxpayers, has sought annulment of the EU
Commission’s decision through the EU Courts. No pravision has been made in respect of this matter since we believe that
it is more likely than not that the decisionh will subseguenty be annulled and no additional tax will be due. in the event that
the Commission’s decision is upheld then, as at 31 December 2013, the Group’s maximurm estimated exposure is £19.0m
{2018: £18.0m) in respect of tax and £1.0m {2018: £0.5m) in respect of interest. However, quantification of the liability in
accordance with the Commission's judgernent is camplex and depends on the facts of each individual case, and therefore
the Croup's liability rmay ultimately be determined to be Jess than this amount.

9. Dividends
2009 018
Amounts recognised and paid as distributions to owners of the Company in the year £m £m
Final dividend for the year ended 31 December 208 of 40.5p {2017:37.5p) per share 46.9 445
Interim dividend for the year ended 31 December 2019 of 21.9p {2018: 20.5p) per share 25.4 237
72.3 68.2
2012 2008
Amounts arising in respect of the year £m £rmn
Interim dividend for the year ended 31 December 2019 of 21.9p (2018: 20.5p} per share 25.4 227
Proposed final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2019 of 43.2p (2018: 40.5p} per share 50. 46.8
75.5 70.9

In addition, subject to shareholder approval, a special dividend of 150.0p per existing ordinary share is proposed, totaliing
£175m. In order to maintain the comparability of the Group's share price and per-share metrics before and after the special
dividend, the Group plans to undertake a share consolidation, which will be subject to sharehoider approval.

The proposed final and special dividends are subject to approval by shareholders at the AGM on 22 May 2020 and have not
been included as a liability in these Financial Statements.

10. Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share amounts are calculated by dividing net prefit for the year attributable to ordinary shareholders
by the weighted average number of ordinary shares cutstanding during the year (excluding treasury shares).

Diluted earnings per share amounts are calculated by dividing the net profit attributable to ordinary shareholders by the
weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year but adjusted for the effects of dilutive options.
The key features of the Company’s share option schemes are described in Nota 23,

Basic earnings per share 2009 2018
Profit after tax (Emj 234.1 185.2
Weighted average number of shares outstanding {millions) ns.e 7.5
Basic earnings per share (pence) 202.2 1576
Dilutad earnings per share 2019 2018
Profit after tax (Em) 234 185.2

15.8 Nnzs

Basic weighted average mumber of shares outstanding (miflions)

weighted average number of dilutive 5p ordinary shares under option {millions) 0.4 06

Weighted average number of 5p ordinary shares that would have bean issued at average rmarket value from

proceads of dilutive share options (millions) ©.n {on

Diluted weighted average nurnber of shares outstanding [millions) N6} ns8.0
201.6 156.9

Diluted earnings per share {[pence)
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1. Goodwill and other intangible assets

Patents, Customer-

contractual retated
rightsand  and trade
Goodwilt technology names Software Total

Cost Note £ Em £m Em £m
At1January 2018 7718 200.8 2363 7041 12799
Additions - separately acquired - 26 - 154 8.0
Additions - internal developmaent - 47 - - 4.7
Additions — business combinations 121.8 - %:] 53.2 - 193.8
Reclassification - (7.3} 73 - -~
Disposals - - - {17 nn
Foreign exchange difference 214 7.2 9.4 Fa) 403
At 31 December 2018 951 2278 306.0 859 1,534.8
Additions — separately acquired - - -~ 127 2.7
Additions - internal development - 7.3 - - 7.3
Additions - business combinations 2.4 18 - - 4.2
Disposals - (3.2) on .0} 13.3)
Disposals of business 25 {66.7) (8.4) {2.3) 5.9 (83.0)
Foreign exchange difference {24.6) {5.2} (6.1} {2.7) {38.6)
At 31 Decembaer 2019 826.2 220, 288.7 89.0 1.424.0
Accumuiated amortisation and impairment

At1January 2018 1444 135 n79 453 4425
Charge for the year - 17.8 237 56 473
Impairment - 20 - - 20
Reclassification - (6.0) 6.0 - -
Dispesals . - - - 0.7 0.7}
Foreign exchange difference 4.4 47 51 1Al 15.3
At 31 December 2018 148.8 153.6 152.7 501 505.2
Charge for the year - 18.0 226 7.5 48,
impairment 351 33 4.3 23 82.2
Disposals - (3.2} {2.) 0.0) 13.3)
Disposals of business 25 {0.2) (3.8) (0.7) {5.2) 3.7
Fargign exchange difference (4.3} (3.7} (%.0) {1.8) (13.8)
At 31 Decernber 2019 179.% 164.2 202.8 52.3 598.7
Carrying amount
At 3] December 2019 646.8 55.9 85.9 367 © 825.3
At 31 December 2018 766.3 T4.2 153.3 158 1.029.6

Goodwill is allocated to the cash-generating units that are anticipated to benefit from the acquisition.

The Group’s identified cash-generating units are the same or smaller than the four reportable segments, being the ten
operating companies as at 31 December 2019, Goodwill arising on a bolt-on acquisition is combined with the goodwill

in the existing CGroup company and is not considered separately for impairment purposes, since such acquisitions are

quickly integrated. '
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Notes to the Accounts continued

T1. Coodwiil and other intangibie assets continued
The most significant amounts of goodwill are as follows:

2019 2018

Pre-tax Pre-tax

discount discount

Coodwill rate Goodwilt rate

£m % Em %

Maivern Panalytical’ 208.6 10.2 1401 nz

HBK? 179.3 10.3 nfa nfa

Omega Engineering m.s ne n53 13.2

Millhrenk 57.6 12) 581 131

Red Lion Controls . 40.5 ns 46 132

Servomex 248 .6 25.4 2s

Concept Life Sciences’ nfa nfa 105.5 136

H3Mm?2 nfa n/a 108 ne

Brief & Kjzer Sound & Vibration? n/a nfa 664 1

RTGY n/a nfa 69.5 26

Other? 24.4 10.3-13.2 38.3 n.2-14.7
646.8 766.3

Changes to cash generating units during 2019
1 Concept Life Sciences was merged into Malvern Panalytical as of 1 July 2019, resuiting in one cash generating unit {called

Malvern Panalytical) from this date.

2 At the start of 2019 HBM and Briel & Kjeer Sound & Vibration were merged into one cash generating unit {called HBK).
Vvi-grade was merged into the HBK cash generating unit as of 1 July 2013.

3 BTG was disposed during 2019 and therefore is no longer a Group cash generating unit.

Included within ‘Other’ are three {2018: four) cash-generating units, in which none of the gocdwill balances are considered
to be individually significant.

Goodwill is not amortised but is tested for impairment annually or wheneaver there is an indication that the asset may be
impaired. As part of the annua! impairment review, the carnrying amount of goodwill has been assessed with reference to

its recoverable amount determined based on value in use. In assessing value in use, the forecast projected cash flows of each
cash-generating unit, which are based on actual operating resuits, the most recent budget for the next financial year as
approved by the Board, detailed strategic review projections and an assumed long-term growth rate to perpetuity, are
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects the time value of money and the risks specific

to the cash-generating unit.

The key assumptions on which the value in use calculations are based relate to future business performance over the
forecast period {five years), projected long-term growth rates and the discount rates appiied. The forecast cash flows include
management’s |atest estimates on sales volumes and pricing, production and other costs. The key estimates applied in the
impairment review are the forecast level of revenue, operating rargins and the proportion of operating profit converted to
cash in each year. A long-terrn growth rate of 2.0% (2018: 2.0%) has been consistently applied in the impairment review for all
cash-generating units based on current forecast global industrial production growth rates, and long-term GDP growth rates
for the Croup's primary markets. The cash flow projections have been discounted using cash-generating unit specific pre-tax
discount rates of between 10.2% and 13.2% (2018: N.5% and 17.9%). These rates have been determined by taking into account
the size of business, specific geographical and industry risk factors, as well as the period of ownership by the Group.

Impalirment of goodwill

Resuits at Concept Life Sciences ["CLS'}, which was acquired in January 2018, were below expectations during the initial
period of ownership to 31 December 2018, Performance was impacted by a reduction in project work from two major
customers, delays in gaining accreditations and sub-optimal performance at the environmernital laboratories. This was

partly attributable to internal issues reflecting the state of the business on acquisition by the Group, which was in the
process of integrating previous acquisitions into two divisions, as well as distraction end disruption caused by the acquisition.
In February 2018, management considered that remedial action was having a positive impact, progress was being made

and that the end markets for CLS were still strong as customers lock to outsource analytical services and pharmaceutical

development.
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During the first six months of 2019, performance had not improved as anticipated, with sales declining by 9% on a LFL

basis and resulting gross margin lower than 2018. [his under-performance was attributable to the exit of its major customer
in the pharmaceutical developrment/integrated drug developrment services business as well as continued sub-optirnal
performance in the environmental analytical services division. The analytical services division, despite continued focus

on on-time delivery, was impacted by high staff attrition rates and a deterigration in customer relationships. New senior
management for CLS were in place by June and a detailed strategic review of the CLS businesses was undertaken. In
agreement with the Spectris Group Executive, it was proposed, subject to consuitation and legal reguirements, that the
environmental analytical laboratories be closed. New management believed that in their current state, these laboratories
wouid not be able to recapture share in this market. The environmental consultancy and testing business was subsequently
sold in October 2019 (see Note 25) and the four environmental laboratories were closed. Management believe that the
market for pharmaceutical development/integrated drug development services remains strong and attractive and existing

activities here will be strengthened.

As a result of this, an impairment of CLS geodwill of £35.1m was charged to the consolidated income statement during the
year. This impairment reflects the loss of value from the acquired workforce particularly in the analytical service division, the
loss of expected future customer relationships across both divisions and reduced synergies from cross-selling instruments
and services. The estimated recoverable amount of the CLS cash generating unit at 30 June 2019 was £105.3m which was
determined on a value in use basis using a pre-tax discount rate of 10.0% {31 December 2018: 13.4%).

Sensitivity analysis
Since its acquisition in 2016, Spectris has made significant capital investment in Millbrook alongside two bolt-on acquisitions

in Leyland and Millbrock Revolutionary Engineering. Given the early programme tife cycle stage, the headroom between the
recoverable amount {determined based on a value in use model) and the carrying value of the Millbrook CCU is modest at
£17m. We expect the headroom to increase in future periods as the recent capital investments depreciate and the expected
returns on these assets are realised. We have considered reasonably possible changes in key assumptions that could cause
an impairment at 31 Decernber 2019, and have identified two key assumptions as follows:

+ Discount rate applied to future cash flows - our assessment of impairment assumes a pre-tax discount rate of 121%
based on our determination of Group WACC and risks specific to the Millbrook CGU cash flows. An increase to 12.8%

would see the headroom reduced to nil.

+ Years1to 5 cash flows - our assessment of impairment assumes a CAGR of 14% after year ). A decrease in the CAGR
by 2%, equivalent to a 7% reduction in years 2 to 5 cash flows, would see the headroom reduced to nil,

For all other cash-generating units the Directors do not consider that there are any reasonably possible sensitivities for the
business that could arise in the next 12 months that could result in an impairment charge being recognised. :

Other intangible assets
Impairment of other intangible assets includes £32.4m relating to customer relationships and technology acquired as part

of the CLS acguisition. The remaining £14.7m impairment of other intangible assets relates to items impaired as a result of
restructuring activities undertaken following the strategic review.

Internally generated assets arising from the capitalisation of qualifying development expenditure typically have a finite
expected useful life of four to ten years. Capitalised development expenditure is amortised on a straight-line basis. All
amoertisation charges for the year have been charged against operating profit. The Group has capitalised £7.3m of internally-
generated intangible assets frorm development expenditure in 2019 {2018: £4.7m). Accumulated amortisation on internally-
generated intangible assets was £0.7m (2018: £0.2m}.

The trade names and technoiogy assets recognised on the acquisition of Omega Engineering in 201, and included within
the Omega reportable segment, are considered significant by the Directors as they represent 51% (2018: 32%) of total
customer-related and trade names, and 119% (2018: 14%) of total patents, contractual rights and technology, respectively. The
carrying amount of the Ormega customer-related and trade name intangible assets at 31 Decernber 2018 is £44.1m (2018;
£49.3m) and is being amortised over 20 years with the remaining amortisation period being 12 years. The carrying amount
of the Omega patents, contractual nghts and technology intangible assets at 31 December 2019 is £6.2m (2018 £101m) and
s being amortised over ten years with the remaining amortisation period being two years.
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12. Property, piant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment: owned

Freehold Leasehold Plam and
property property  equipment Total

Cost Note Em £m £m £m
ALl January 2018 2109 171 2573 4853
Additions - separately acquired 302 1.5 416 733
Additions - business combinations 2.9 os 121 15.5
Reclassifications 69 03 (72) -
Transfer to assets held for sale (4.5) - - {«.5)
Adjustments 1o assets held for sale a5 - [0.6) [0
Disposals (2.8) ©9) .3} (14.7)
Foreign exchange difference 3.5 0.4 39 78
At 31 Decermber 2018 2479 18.9 295.8 562.6
Adaption of IFRS 16 - Q.5 {2.4) {1.9)
At 31 December 2018 {restated) 2479 19.5 293.4 560.7
Additions - separately acquired 13.8 1.4 413 56.3
Reclassifications {2.6) - 26 ~
Disposals {1.4) {0.9) Nn2.9) 15.2)
Disposal of business 25 {14.9) (0.2} {28.5) (43.6)
Fareign exchange difference {7.5) (0.6} (CA)] (16.2)
At 31 December 2019 235.3 191 2876 542.0
Accumulated depreciation and impairment

At1lanuary 20018 582 nz 39.7 209.5
Charge for the year 6.2 14 227 303
Neclassifications (0.2} 0.2 - -
Transfer to assets held for sale 0.6) - - {C.6)
Disposals - (1.0} 10.0) M.0)
Adjustments to assets held for sale 0.3 - {Q.5) {0.2)
Foreign exchange difference 0.4 0.2 25 31
At 31 Decemnber 2018 64.2 125 154.4 231
Adoption of IFRS 16 - 0.4 1.3) (0.9}
At 3) December 2018 {restated) 64.2 129 1531 230.2
Charge for the year 6.9 1.6 24.5 33.0
Impairment - - 2.5 25
Dispozsals {0.5) 0.6) m.zj (12.5)
Disposal of business 25 (5.2) (0.2) 0s.3) {20.7)
Foreign exchange difference {2.9) (0.3) {5.4) {8.6)
At 31 December 2019 62.5 13.2 148.2 2239
Carrying amount
At 31 December 2019 172.8 £9 139.4 3183
At 31 December 2018 183.7 6.4 1414 3315

The amount included in the cost of plant and equipment of assets in the course of construction was £20.5m {2018 £47.9m).

No borrowing costs were capitalised during either year.

Of the total depreciation charge of £33.0m (2018: £30.3m}, the amount attributable to the depreciation of fair value
adjustments to acquisition-related property, plant and equipment was £1.0m (2018: £0.8m).

Additions are net of £5.0m (2018: £2.9m] relating to the receipt of government grants.
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Property, plant and equipment: right-of-use

Plant and

Property equipment Total

£m £m £m

At }January 2019 on adoption of IFRS 16 53.2 128 66.0
Additions 89 3.7 126
Depreciation and impairment ne.oy {6.1} 22
Disposals {0.3) (0.8} Ly
Disposal of business {3.0) {0.9) (3.9}
Foreign exchange difference {0.3) (0.3} 10.6)
At 31 Dacember 2019 42.5 8.4 50.9
m9

£m

Property, plant and equipment: owned 381
Property, plant and equipment: right-of-use 50.9
369.0

13. Investment in joint venture and 2019 assets held for sale

The Group has one joint venture at 31 December 2019 and 31 Decermber 2018, Bruel & Kjaer EMS Pty Ltd ('EMS BEK'). The
Group has an effective 45% ownership interest in EMS B&K. EMS B&K's place of incorporation and principal place of business
is Australia and its principal activity is environmental monitoring.

2019 2008

£m £rn

Arllannary 5.0 -
Addition - 6.0
Share of post-tax results (including £1.0m impairment of acquired intangible assets [2018: £nil)) (4.9 (1.2}
Foreign exchange difference 10) 0.2
Transfer to hald for sale - =
5.0

At 31 Decembar -

The Group did not receive dividends from its joint venture during the year.

The Group also has a long-term receivable from EMS B&K which arose on the formation of the joint venture. The recoverable
amount is based on the futyre value which is expected 1o be achieved upon an ultimate exit of the joint venture,

During December 2079, as part of the plan to simplify the Group's portfolio, the Group entered inte preliminary discussions

in conjunction with its joint venture partner with a third party for the acquisition of the joint venture. On 17 January 2020, an
announcement was made that agreement had been reached for the sale of our interest in the joint venture for consideration
of £17.9m in cash and approximately £1.2m in shares in Envirosuite Limited. The closing of the deal is subject to approval

by Envirosuite’s shareholders at a rmeeting to be held on 24 February 2020 and the conditional placement of shares by
Envirosuite required to fund the consideration for the transaction, with completion expected to take place shortly thereafter.

As a result, the receivable from the joint venture has been impaired by £21.3m to the £18.9m expected recoverable amount.
This remaining balance, which represents fair value less costs to sell, has been included within assets held for sale at

3) December 2019. The investment in the joint venture {(nil value) has also been transferred 1o assets held for sale. In 2018,
the £3.9m of assets classified as held for sale related to the disposal of a property in Omega.

14. Invantories

2019 2018

£m £

Raw mnaterials 70.0 78.2
Work in progress 51.9 538
Finished goods and goods held for resale 753 84.4
197.2 216.4

In the ordinary course of business, the Group makes provision for slow-moving, excess and obsolete inventory to write it
down to its net realisable value based on an assessment of technological and market developmenits specific to the relevant
business, and an analysis of historical and projected usage on an individual itemn or product line basis.

Expenses relating to inventories written down during the year totalled £12.6m {2018: £7.4m).
Finished goods and goods held for resale expected to be utilised after 12 months amounted to £0.9m {2018: £1.5m).
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15. Trade and other receivables

2019 2008
Current £m £m
Trade receivables 2Nn7 mns
Prepayments 17.9 z07
VAT and similar taxes receivable n2 "8
Other receivables 24.4 215
Contract assets 10.5 15.7
335.7 381.5

Non-current
- 389

Other receivable - joint venture (see Note 13)

Trade receivables are non-interest bearing. Standard credit terms provided to customers differ according to business and
country, and are typically between 30 and 60 days. Trade receivables are stated after the provision for impairment of £4.8m
{2018: £4.6m). Trade and other receivables include £6.7m of receivables expected 10 be received in more than one year.

The fair value of trade and other receivables approximates to its carrying amount due to the short-term maturities associated
with these items. There is no impairment risk identified with regards to other receivables where no amounts are past due.
The noh-current other receivable — joint venture arose on the formation of the joint venture and is held st amortised cost.
This balance has been transferred to assets held for sale at 31 December 2019 {see Note 13}.

The maximum exposure te credit risk for trade receivables at 31 December by geographic region was:

2019 2018

£m £rr

UK 202 235
Germany 199 277
France 5.7 135
Rest of Europe 49.2 53.3
USA &7.8 836
Rest of North America 9.5 13.9
Japan 12.0 175
China 27.4 299
South Korea 6.4 a3
Rest of Asia 293 251
Rest of the world 14.5 15.5
2N.7 in.se

Expected credit losses .
The Group measures the loss allowance for trade receivables at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses (‘'ECL).

The ECL on trade receivables are estimated using a provision matrix by reference to past default experience of the debtor
and an analysis of the debtor’s current financiai position, adjusted for factors that are specific to the debtor, general
economic cenditions of the industry in which the debter operates and an assessment of both the current as well as the
forecast direction of conditions at the reporting date.

There has been no change in the estimation technigues or significant assumgptions made during the current reporting period.

The Group writes off a trade receivable when there is information indicating that the debtor is in severe financial difficulty
and there is no realistic prospect of recovery, e.g. when the debtor has been placed under liquidation or has entered into

bankruptcy proceedings.
The ageing of trade receivables and related provisions for impairment at 31 December was:

2019 208

Gross  Impairment Grass impairment

£m Em Em £m

Not past due 180.5 0.6 199.7 0.2
One month past due 43.3 - 55.4 Q)
Two months past due 18.5 0.9 215 0
Three months past due 7.2 - 127 Q2
Four months past due 6.0 - 7.2 Q1
More than four months past due 21.0 3.3 19.9 4.0
276.5 4.8 36.4 46
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The movement in the provision for impairment in respect of trade receivables during the year was as follows:

209 X8

£m £m

At1January 4.6 70
Adoption of IFRS 9 - (2.9}
At 1 January [restated) 4.6 41
Provision for impairment of receivables 1.8 iA
impairment loss utilised (0.5) 07)
Disposal of business {10} -
Foreign exchange difference {0.Y) (o}
At 31 Decemnber 4.8 4.6

All of the above impairment losses relate 1o receivabies arising from contracts with customers.

Significant changes in contract assets during the year
The decrease in contract assets during 2019 reflects progress on a number of larger contracts in the Industrial Solutions
business. There were no other significant changes in contract assets during 2012.

16. Cash and cash equivalents

- 2019 2018

Note £m £m

Cash and cash equivalents inciuded in current assets n3y 731
Bank overdrafts included in current borrowings 17 - {5.8)
Cash and cash equivalents in the Consotidated Statement of Cash Flows 213.1 67.3

The Group’s exposure tq interest rate risk and a sensitivity analysis for financial assets and liabilities is disciosed in Note 28.

17. Borrowings
2019 2018
Current Interest rate Repayable date £m £m
Bank overdrafts Ondemand - 58
Bank loans unsecured « €94 .8m Fixed 2.56% 14 October 2020 80.7 -
Bank {oans unsecured - £50.0m uncommitted facility Refevant LIBOR +S0bps On demand - 179
Total current borrowings 80.7 237
2019 2018
Non-current Interest rate Maturity cate £m £m
Bank loans unsecured - €94 8m Fixed 2.56% 4 October 2020 - B4.8
Bank loans unsecured - €116.2m Fixed 1.15% 9 September 2022 98.9 104.0
Bank loans unsecured - $800.0m revolving credit facility Relevant LIBOR +65bps 3t July 2024 - 1577
Total nen-current borrowings 98.9 346.5
Total current and non-current borrowings 179.6 370.2
179.6 364.4

Total unsecured borrowings

At 31 Decernber 2019, the Croup had available £606.4m of undrawn committed borrowing facilities in respect of its $800m
revolving credit facility (2018: £467.9m).

Movements in total unsecured borrowings are reconciled as follows:

2019 2018

£m £m

At 1January 364.4 1872
Proceeds from borrowings 193.2 175.5
Repayment of borrowings {363.5) -
Effect of foreign exchange rates {14.5) 17
179.6 3644

At 31 December
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18. Trade and other payables
2019 2008
Current £m £m
Trade payables 531 70.5
Accruals 89.2 106.4
Customer advances 9.5 27
Contract liabilities ‘ 734 749
Deferred and contingent consideration on acquisitions and disposals * n.e 97
VAT and similar taxes payable 14.7 na
Other payables 353 444
296.8 = 3441
Non-current
Contract liabilities 28 28
Deferred and contingent consideration on acquisitions and disposals 3.2 aa
Other payables 15.3 15.5
21.3 274

The fair value of trade and other payables approximates to their carrying amount due to the short-term maturities associated
with these iterns.

Total contract liabilities relate to the following product groups:

2019 208

£m £m

Malvern Panalytical 45.0 449
HBK 23 211
Omega 0.1 0.2
Industrial Solutions 8.0 1ns
76.2 777

Significant changes in contract liabilities during the year

2019
During the year £1.6m of contract liability balances were derecognised on the disposal of 8TG. There were no other

significant changes in contract liability balances during 2019.

2018;
The Group recognised £38.2m of additional contract liabilities as a result of adopting IFRS 15 at 1 January 2018, bringing the

total contract liability balance to £79.2m. Of this balance, £78.7m was recognised as revenue during 2018. The contract
liability balance at 31 December 2018 included £6.0m arising from businesses acquired during 2018 (business combinations),
of which £2.8m was in Malvern Panalytical, £1.5m in HBK and £1.7m in Industrial Solutions. There were no other significant
changes in contract liability balances during 2018,

19. Provisions

Legal,
Product cantractual
Reorganisation  warranty and other Totad
Note £m £m £m £m
At January 2019 5.4 128 3.4 3.6
Adogption of IFRS 16 — - {0.5) {0.5)
At} January 2019 (restated) 5.4 1”8 iR} m
Provision during the year 26.4 10.0 [+ ] 37.2
Disposal of business 25 {0.) {0.2} - . {0.3)
Utilised during the year {19.8) {8.9) (2.0) {30.7)
Released during the year {0.3) {2.3) {0.9) {3.5)
Foreign exchangse difference {0.4) {0.4) {on {0.9}
At 31 December 2019 } n.2 ne 10.7 32,9

Reorganisation
Reorganisation provisions relate to committed restructuring pians in place within the business, with much of the movement

during 2019 relating to the Group-wide profit improvement programme {see Note 2). Costs are mostly expected to be
incurred within one year and there is little judgemnent in determining the amount.
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Product warranty

Product warranty provisions reflect commitments made to customers on the sale of goods in the ordinary course of
business and included within the Group's standard terms and conditions, Warranty commitments typically apply for
a12-month period, but can extend to 36 months. These extended warranties are not individually significant.

Legal, contractual and other

Legal, contractual and other provisions mainly comprise amounts provided against open legal and contractual disputes
arising in the normal course of business. The Company has on occasion been required to take lega! or other actions to
protect its intellectual property rights, to enforce cormmercial contracts or otherwise and similarly to defend itself against
proceedings brought by other parties. Provisions are made for the expected costs associated with such matters, based on
past experience of similar iterns and other known factors, taking into account professional advice received, and represent
management’s best estimate of the most likely outcome. The timing of utilisation of these provisions is frequently uncertain,
reflecting the complexity of issues and the outcome of various court proceedings and negotiations. Contractual and other
provisions represent the Directors' best estimate of the cost of settling current obligations. Other provisions includes £5.5m
(2018: £5.4m) relating to accrued interest on potential tax liabilities {see Note B).

No provision is made for proceedings which have been or might be brought by other parties against Group companies
unless management, taking into account professional advice received, assesses that it is probable that such proceedings
may be successful. Contingent liabilities associated with such proceedings have been identified, but the Directors are of the
opinion that any associated claims that might be brought can be defeated successfully and, therefore, the possibility of any
material outflow in settlement is assessed as remote.

20. Ratirement benefit plans

Spectris plc operates funded defined benefit and defined contribution pension plans for the Group's qualifying employees
in the UK. At 31 Decemnber 2019, 12 overseas subsidiaries (2018: 14} in three overseas countries provided defined benefit
plans. During 2012 two subsidiaries left the Group as a resuit of the disposal of BTG, with most of the net Eability being
disposed of being in Switzerland. Other UK and overseas subsidiaries have their own defined contribution pfans invested

in independent funds.

Defined benefit plans

The UK, German, Dutch and Swiss plans provide pensions in retirement, death in service and in some cases disability
benefits to members. The pension benefit is linked to members’ final salary at retirement and their service life. Since
31 December 2009, the UK plan has been closed to all service accruals. The German and Dutch plans are closed to

new members.

The UK plan is administered by a pension fund, but the Swiss and Dutch plans are held by insurance companies that are
legally separate from the Group. The majority of the overseas plan assets are insurance policies. The UK plan is managed

by a Board of Trustees that represents both employees and employer, wha is required to act in the best interest of the plan's
participants and is responsible for setting certain policies fe.g. investment, contribution and indexation policies) of the
various funds. .

The plans expose the Group to actuarial risks, such as longevity risk, currency risk, interest rate risk and rarket (investment)
risk. Inflation and interest rate hedges are taken out to mitigate against risks arising on the UK plan and some reinsurance
exists in respect of the overseas plans.

The overseas plans are funded by the Group’s overseas subsidiaries, and the UK plan has been funded in the past by both
the Group's UK subsidiaries and the Company. The assets of the UK plan are invested in accordance with Section 40 of the
Pensions Act 1995. Although the Act permits 5% of the plan's assets to be invested in 'empioyer-refated investments’, the
Trustees have elected that none of the plan assets are to be invested directly in Spectris plc shares. The Trustees also hold
interest rate and inflation swaps to help protect against the impact of changes in prevailing interest rates and price inflation,
which in conjunction with the corporate bond portfolio aims to fully hedge against interest and inflation rate risks on the
basis used by the Trystee to fund the plan. Trustee investment in derivatives is only made in so far as they contribute to the
reduction of investment risks or facilitate efficient portfolio managerment and are managed such as to avoid excessive risk
exposure to a single counterparty or other derivative operations.

The Trustee of the UK Plan has invested a large proportion of the Plan's assets in a buy and maintain corporate bond
portfolio, designed to mowve in a similar way to the value of the Plan's liabilities. The Trustee has aisc entered into a swaps
strategy which seeks to further mitigate against movement in interest rates and price inflation over time.

The funding requirements are based an the individual funds' actuarial measurement framework set out in the funding
policies of the vatious plans.

The Group has determined that, in accordance with the terms and conditions of the defined benefit plans, and in
accordance with statutory requirements {including minimum funding requirements} of the plans of the respective
Jjurisdictions, the present value of the refunds or reductions in future contributions is not lower than the balance of the total
fair value of the plan assets less the total present value of obligations, This determination has been made on a plan-by-plan
basis. As such, no decrease in the defined benefit asset was necessary at 31 Decermnber 2013.

The last full actuarial valuation for the UK plan was 31 December 2017 and for the overseas plans was 31 December 2019.
Where applicable, the valuations were updated to 3) December 2019 for IAS 19 (Revised) 'Employee Benefits' purposes
by qualified independent actuaries.
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20. Retirement benefit plans continued
The Group's contributions to defined benefit plans during the year ended 31 December 2019 were £2.3m (2018: £2.2m).
Contributions for 2020 are expected to be £1.9m-for the overseas plans.

Contributions to the Spectris Pension Plan {UK) ceased from 1July 2012. The contribution rates are subject to review at future
valuations and periodic certifications of the schedule of contributions.

The assurnptions used by the actuary to value the liabilities of the defined benefit plans were:

2019 2018

Overseas Qverseas

UK plan plans UK plan plans

% p.a. % p.a. % p.a. % p.a.

Discount rate 1.9 Q1-1.0 27 095-21

Salary increases nfa 1.25-3.¢ nfa 10-3.0

Pension increases in payment 2.2-3.5 0.0-2.0 2237 0.0-2.0
Pension increases in daferment 2.2-3.0 2.4-33

Inflation assumption 2.2-3.0 1.0-2.0 2.4-33 1.0-2.0

Interast cradit rate 0.0-1.9 Q0-1.0

The weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation at 31 December 2019 was approximately 14 years (2018
14 years} for the UK plan and 17.9 years (2018:18.3 years) for the overseas plans.

Pensicner life expettancy assumed in the 31 December 2079 valuation is based on the following tables:

UK plan 92% SIPMA/96% SIPFA centred in 2006, future improvemnents in line with the core CMI_2018 model
with a long-term rate of improvernent of 1.25% per annum and initial addition of 0.5%

German plans Dr K Heubeck pension tables 2018 C

Dutch plans A.C. Prognosetafel 2008 tables

Swiss plan 8vVG 2015 - CM11.50%

Samples of the ages to which pensioners are assumed 1o live are as follows:

Male Female

Pensioners aged 65in 2019 852-86.2 £88.2-88.9
Pensioners aged 65 in 2029 86.6-87.8 89.4-899
UK pian Overseas plans Total

Amounts recognised inthe 2019 2018 209 208 2019 2018
Consolidated Income Statement £m £m Em £m £m £m
Current service cost - - 1.8 2.0 1.8 20
Past service cost - 25 - 02 - 27
Administrative cost 0.4 0.3 0.1 01 05 0.4
Disposal - - 015.8) - 058 -
Net interest cost 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.6 0.6
0.7 33 (13.6} 26 {12.9) 57

The current service cost and past service cost are recognised in administrative expenses in the Consolidated Income
Staternent. The net interest cost on the net defined benefit obligation is recognised in finance costs in the Consclidated
Income Statermnent. The disposal consists of the balance disposed as a result of the sale of BTG and has been recognised

in profit on disposal of business in the Consolidated Incorme Staterment (see Note 25). Actuarial losses or gains are recognised
in the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income.

During the year, insurance premiums for death-in-service benefits amounting to £0.5m (2018: £0.3m) were paid.
There was a positive total return on plan assets in the year of £14.2m (2018: a negative return of £4.4m).

UK plan Overseas plans Total
Amounts recegnised in the 2019 2008 2019 2008 2008 2018
Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income £m £m £m Em £m £m
Actuarial (losses)/gains recognised in the current year (r.9) 39 {9.1) 21 (.0} 6.0
Foreign exchange lossas in the current year - - 0.4 {0.6} .4 {0.6)
Tatal (losses}/gains recognised in the current year {1.9) 39 8.7 1.5 (10.6) 5.4
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UK plan Cverseas plans Total
Amounts recognised in the 9 2018 2m9 2018 2019 2018
Consolidated Statement of Financia) Position £m £m £m £m £m £m
Present value of defined benefit obligations (133.2) 125.7) {27.0) (57.4} {160.2) (183.1}
Fair value of plan assets naj n3.2 4.6 378 132.7 151.0
Net deficitin plans {15.9) {12.5} {12.4} {19.6) (27.5) (32.1)
UK plan Overseas plans Total
2019 2018 2009 2018 209 2018
Reconciliation of movement in net deficit £m £m £m £m £m £rn
At 1January 2.5 13.3) {19.6) [207) (329 [34.0)
Current service cost - - (1.8) (2.0) n.8) 2.0}
Net interest cost (0.3) {0.3} {0.3) {0.3) (0.6) [0.6)
Plan administrative cost {0.4) {©.3) {0.Y) {01} [0.5) 0.4}
Disposal - - 15.8 - 5.8 -
Past service cost - (2.5) - [0.2) - {27)
Contributions from sponsoring compary and plan members - - 1.7 16 .7 16
Benefits paid - - 0.6 06 0.6 06
Actuarial (iosses)/gains {1.9) 9 (9.7} 21 m.o) 60
Foreign exchange difference - - 0.4 {0.6) 0.4 (0.6}
At 31 December {15.7) {12.5) {12.4}) {19.6) {27.5} [32.3)
UK pilan Qverseas plans Total
Analysis of movement in the present value 2019 2018 2019 2008 g 2018
of the defined benefit obligation £m £rm £m £rm £Em £Em
At T January 125.7 1374 57.4 54.7 183.1 1921
Current service cost - - .8 2.0 1.8 20
Interest cost 33 iz 0.7 07 4.0 39
Disposal - - {41.9) - (41.9} -
Past service credit - 25 - 0.2 - 27
Contributions frorm plan members - - L2 1.2 1.2 1.2
Actuarial lossesf(gains) - financial 12.2 (4.1} w06 (1.8} 22.8 (5.9)
Actuarial {gainsjfiosses - demographic (1.4) (8.8) Q.9 o1 {0.5) (B.5}
Actuarial {gains)flosses — experience 0.2} 0.7 {0.6} - (0.8} o7
Benefits paid {6.4) (5.4) (2.2) 1.6) {8.6) {70}
Foreign exchange difference - - (0.9} 19 {0.9) 1.9
At 31 December 133.2 125.7 27.0 57.4 160.2 183
Analysed as:
Present value of unfunded defined benefit obligation - - 77 76 7.7 76
Present value of funded defined benefit obligation 133.2 125.7 19.3 49.8 152.5 175.5
UK plan Cverseas plans Total
2019 208 2019 2018 2019 2018
Reconciliation of movement in fair value of plan assets £m £m £m £m £m . £m
At1January Nn3.2 124 37.8 340 151.0 1581
Interest income on assets 3.0 29 0.4 0.4 3.4 33
Plan administration cost {0.4) 0.3) 0. (0.0) {0.5) (0.4}
Disposal - - (262} - {26.1) -
Contributions from sponsoring company - - 17 16 17 1.6
Contributions from plan members - - 1.2 1.2 12 12
Actuarial gainsf{losses) 87 2R ) 18 0.4 10.5 27
Benefits paid (6.4) {5.4) (L.6) {1.0} (8.0) {6.4}
Foreign exchange difference - - {0-5) 1.3 {0.5) 1.3
At 31 December g 3.2 14.6 378 132.7 151.0
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20. Retirement benefit plans continued

UK plan Cverseas plans Total

2019 M8 2019 2008 2019 208

Fair value of assets £m £m £m £Em €m £m
Equity instruments 87 53 - - 5.7 53
Corporate bonds 103.3 94.0 - - 103.3 94.0
Government bonds 201 10.3 - - 20 0.4
Cash and financial derivatives and other (net) m.o) 36 - - m.o) 36
Insurance policies . - - 14.6 378 4.6 37.8
nA1 nt 2 t4h 37R 1327 150

The UK plan assets are invested in active markets which have a quoted market price. The overseas plan assets are invested

in insurance policies.

Sensitivity analysis

The table below shows the sensitivity of the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position to changes in the significant
pension assumptions based on a reasonably expected change given current market conditions:

Impact on plan liabilities as at 31 December 2019

Change in assurnption

UK plan Overseas plans

Discount rate increase by 1%
Rate of price inflation (RPI)

Assumed life expectancy at age 65

Increase by 1%
Increase by 1 year

Decrease by £4.4m
Increase by £1.6m
Increase by £1.0m

Decrease by £18.2m
Increase by £13.0m
Increase by £5m

Defined contribution plans

The total cost of the defined contribution plans for the year was £18.1m (2018: £17.8m). There were no outstanding or prepaid

contributions to these plans as a{ the endg of the year.

2). Deferred tax
The movement in the net deferred tax liability/{asset) is shown below.

2019 2018
Note £m £m
At January 185 %5
Adoption of IFRS 16 (2018: Adoption of IFRS 9 and IFRS 15} (1.0} {5.8)
At January (restated) 179 87
Foreign exchange difference {a.y) 0.1
Acquisition of subsidiary undertakings 24 0.4 138
Disposal of businesses {1.5) 1.0
Deferred tax on changes in fair value of forward exchange contracts recognised
in the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income 0.5 on
Deferred tax on re-measurement of net defined benefit liability recognised
in the Consolidated Staternent of Comprehensive Income n 14
Deferred tax on share-based payments recognised in equity 0.2 [+
Credited to the Consolidated Income Statement 8 {119} 6.3}
At 31 December 3.8 8.3
Comprising:
Deferred tax liabilities 12.8 302
Deferred tax assets (8,0) .3}
3.8 18.9
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The movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities during the year are shown below. Deferred tax assets and labilities
are only offset where there is a legally enforceable right of offset and they relate to income taxes levied by the same

taxation authority.

Unrealised Goodwill
Accelerated Accruals profit on inter- and other .
tax and Tax company Pension  intangible 2019
depreciation provisions losses transactions plans assets Other Total
Net defarred tax {assets)/Alabilities £m £m £€m £m £m £m £m
Ag1 January 2019 4.3 3.2} ) (8.3) (7.0) %5.2 1.9 8.9
Adoption of IFRS 16 — - - — - 1.0} {10}
At1January 2019 {restated) 4.3 13.2) {1 (8.3} {7.0} 45.2 {2.0) 17.9
Foreign exchange difference - - - - - ©.3) - {on
Acquisition of subsidiary undertakings - - - - - 0.4 - 0.4
Disposal of businesses - - - - 22 {3.6) - (1.5}
Deferred tax on changes in fair value of
forward exchange contracts recognised
in the Consolidated Statement of
Comprehensive Income - - - - - - 0.5 0.5
Deferred tax on re-measurement of net
defined benefit obligation recognised
in the Consalidated Statement of
Comprehensive Incorme - - - - (.7 - - 1.7)
Deferred tax on share-based payments .
recognised in equity - - - - - - 0.2 0.2
Charged/(credited) to the Consolidated
Income Statement 0.8 {0.8) 0.4 1.0 0.5 {14.8) 1.0 {1n.9)
At 31 Decernber 2019 51 {14.0) {0.7) {(7.3) (6.9 271 (0.3) 38
Unrealised GCoodwill
Accelerated Accruals profiton inter- and other
tax and Tax company Pension  intangible 2018
depreciation  provisions losses transactions plans assets Other Total
Net deferred tax [assets)/liabilities Em £m £m Ermn £m £m £m
At1January 2018 37 {N.C} (2.2 {5.3) (77} 362 oB 14.5
Adoption of IFRS 9 and IFRS 15 - {5.8) ~ - - - - {5.8)
At 1January 2018 {restated} 37 {16.8} 2.2 (5.3} (77} 36.2 0.8 87
Foreign exchange difference - - - {0.6) - Q7 - o]
Acquisition of subsidiary undertakings - - - - - 138 - 13.8
Disposal of business - - - - - 10 - 10
Deferred tax on changes in fair value of
forward exchange contracts recognised
in the Consolidated Statermnent of
Comprehensive Income - - - - - - [(eR)] (0.3}
Deferred tax on re-measuvrement of net
defined benefit obligation recognised
in the Consolidated Statement of
Comprehensive Incorme - - - - 1.4 - - 14
Deferred tax on share-based payments
recognised in equity - - - - - - 01 ol
Charged/{credited) to the Consolidated
income Statement 0.6 16 1Al (2.4} 0.7} 6.5} 1.8} 6.3}
At 31 December 2018 4.3 3.2) {11 {8.3) (7.0} 45.2 (1.0} 18.9
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Notes to the Accounts continued

21. Deferred tax continued

Unrecognised temporary differences
Deferred tax assets have not been recognised on the following temporary differences due to the degree of uncertainty

over both the amount and utilisation of the underlying tax losses and deductions in certain jurisdictions, £2.2m will expire
between 2026 and 2030. There is no expiry date associated with the remaining tax losses of £49.1m.

2019 208

£m £€m

Tax losses 5.3 48.2
Other temporary differences 0.3 1.1
516 49.3

A reduction in the UK corporation tax rate ta 17% from 1 April 2020 was substantively enacted in the UK Finance Act 2016.
However, the UK government included a pledge to reverse the tax rate cut in their election manifesto. This pledge was not
substantively enacted as at the balance sheet date. The enacted tax rate cut may therefore not go ahead in which case the
UK corporation tax rate would remain at 19%. if this pledge is enacted we would expect the deferred tax lability above to

increase by £1.0m.

It is likely that the unremitted earnings of overseas subsidiaries would qualify for the UK dividend exemption such that no UK
tax would be due upon remitting these earnings to the UK. However, £82.7m [2018: £67.5rm) of those earnings ray stifl result
in & tax liability, principally as a result of the dividend withholding taxes levied by the overseas tax jurisdictions in which those
subsidiaries operate. These tax liabilities are not expected to exceed £4.8m (2018: £3.8m), of which only £2.0m {2018: £1.9m;}
has been provided for as the Group is able to control the timing of the dividends. it is not expected that further amounts will

crystallise in the foreseeable future. :
22. Share capital and reserves

2019 208
Number Number
of shares of shares
Millicns £m Millions £m
1ssued and fully paid {ordinary shares of 5p each):
At YJanuary and 31 December 121.2 6.0 121.2 6.0

No ordinary shares were issued upon exercise under share option schemes during the year {2018: nil).

At 31 December 2019, the Group held 5,182,366 treasury shares (2018: 5,636,153). During the year, 453,787 of these shares
wefe issued 1o satisfy options exercised by, and SIP Matching shares awarded to, employees which were granted under
the Group’s share schemes (2018:111,207). Nil ordinary shares were repurchased and cancelied by the Group during the year
(2018: 3,825,802 ordinary shares were repurchased and cancelied as part of the share buyback programme announced on
S March 2018, which conciuded on 13 August 2018).

In July 2018, the Group established an employee benefit trust {'EBT') to operate the Spectris Share incentive Plan ('SIP') to
all eligible UK-based employees. The EBT holds shares in Spectris pic for the purposes of the SIP, further details of which are
disclosed in the Directors' Remuneration Report. At 31 December 2019, the EBT heltd 33,780 shares which were purchased
frorn the market during the year {31 December 2018:11,353). The costs of funding and administering the plan are charged

to the income Staternent in the period to which they relate.

Other reserves

Movements in reserves are set out in the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity. The retained earnings reserve also
includes own shares purchased by the Company and treated as treasury shares. The nature and purpose of other reserves
forming part of equity are as follows: '

‘fransiation reserve

The foreign currency translation reserve is used to record exchange differences arising from the transfation of the Financial
Statements of foreign subsidiaries, including gains or losses arising on net investment hedges.

Hedging reserve
This reserve records the cumulative net change in the fair value of forward exchange contracts where they are designated
as effective cash flow hedge relationships.

Mearger reserve
This reserve arose on the acquisition of Servomex Limited in 1999, a purchase satisfied substantially by the issue of share

capitaf and therefore eligible for merger relief under the provisions of Section 612 of the Companies Act 2006.

Capital redemption reserve
This reserve records the historical repurchase of the Company's own shares. There were no movements jn this reserve during

2019. During 2018, as a result of the share buyback programme, the capital redemption reserve increased by £0.2m, reflecting
the nominal value of the cancelled ordinary shares.
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23. Share-based payments

Spectris Performance Share Plan ('PSP’}

The PSP is used to grant share awards to senior executives and key employees that are settled in either equity or cash.
Equity-settled PSP awards are granted in the form of nominal share options. Some PSP awards granted to UK employees
are linked to a grant of market value share options under the terms of HMRC's tax-advantaged Company Share Option Plan
{'Linked (tax-advantaged) awards').

Linked {tax-advantaged) awards are granted up to an aggregate value of £30,000, which is HMRC's limit. The Linked (tax-
advantaged) awards have the sarne performance and vesting conditions as the PSP awards to which they are linked.

When an employee chooses to exercise a PSP award which is linked to a Linked (tax-advantaged) award, both parts are also
automatically exercised at the same time. Should there be a gain on exercise from the Linked (tax-advantaged) award part,
then a propertion of the PSP award will lapse 10 ensure that the overall gross value received from the combined exercise of
these awards is no more than would have been delivered from a stand-alone equivalent PSP award. Shouid there be no gain
on exercise from the Linked (tax-advantaged} award part, then this part is forfeited and there is no reduction in the
remaining PSP award.

Both cash and equity-settled PSP awards are expected 1o vest, subject to their performance conditions, after three years.
Vested equity-settled awards must be exercised within the next seven years, whereas vested cash-settled awards are paid
out on or shortly after the vesting date, From 2017 onwards, all PSP awards granted to Executive Directors are subject to an
additional two-year holding period. These PSP awards vest after five years (three-year performance period plus two-year
holding period) and equity-settied awards must be exercised within the next five years.

Subject to the PSP awards vesting, participants receive additional dividend shares on the vested shares under the PSP
award. For PSP awards granted in or after 2014, the dividend shares are of equivalent value to the Company's dividends paid
between the date of grant and the vesting date. For PSP awards granted before 2014, dividend shares were of equivalent
value to Company’s dividends paid between the date of grant and the date of exercise.

PSP performance conditions

Cutstanding PSP awards granted to Executive Directors are subject to the following performance conditions: one-third
subject to an adjusted earnings per share growth target ('EPSY; one-third subject to an economic profit (‘'EP’} target; and
one-third subject to a Total Shareholder Return target {'TSR').

PSP awards granted to other mempbers of the Executive Committee were subject to the same performance conditions

up to 2016. For grants in 2017 and 2018, PSP awards to the Executive Committee are subject to the following performance
conditions: one-third subject to the same EPS target; one-third subject to the same EP target; and one-third solely subject to
continuous employment over the three-year vesting pericd. In 2012, the same conditions applied for Head Office Executive
Committee roles however the EP target was replaced for an operating company profit target for the Executive Committee
members who are Presidents of an operating company.

PSP awards granted to other senior head office managers were, until 2016, 50% subject to EPS and 50% subject 10 TSR.
From 2017 onwards, senior head office management have two-thirds of their PSP awards subject to EPS and the remaining
one-third solely subject to continuous employment over the three-year vesting period.

PSP awards granted to executives and senior managers of the Group's operating companies in 2008 and 2009 were subject
to an operating company profit target (50%) and EPS (50%). PSP awards granted between 2010 and 2016 had two-thirds
subject to an operating company profit target and one-third subject 1o EPS. Between 2017 and 2018, the performance
conditions have been two-thirds operating company profit targets and one-third continucus empiloyment over the three-
year vesting period. In 2019, the performance conditions were one-third operating company profit targets, cne-third £P$
and one-third continuous employment over the three-year vesting period.

Normally, PSP awards granted to participants who leave employment prior to vesting witl be forfeited. In the event a
participant leaves due to a qualifying reason, they receive a time pro-rated entitlement.

Restricted Shares Plan (‘RSP")
RSP is used to grant cash-settled share awards to selected key employees within the Spectris Group. RSP awards, which
have been granted frorm 2014 onwards, are subject to the same rules as the PSP but generally no performance conditions

apply. RSP awards cannot be granted to an Executive Director of Spectris plc,

Spectris Savings Related Share Option Scheme ['SAYE’)

The SAYE is a UK tax-advantaged ali employee share option scheme, UK employees could choose to save up to £500 per
month over three years and then can use their savings to exercise options to purchase ordinary shares in the Company
during a six-month window following the SAYE maturity date.

The exercise price of the SAYE options, which have no performance conditions attached to them, is set as the mid-market
closing share price on the day before the SAYE invitation date. No SAYE invitation has been made since September 2016.

Spectris Share Incentive Plan {'SIP")
The S1P, a UK tax-advantaged share matching plan, was launched after it was approved by shareholders at the May 2018

AGM. UK employees can invest up to £150 per month to buy ordinary shares in the Company ('Partnership shares’) tax
efficiently and for every five Partnership shares purchased, the Company will gift one free ordinary share {'Matching share’).
Matching shares need to be held in the SIP Trust for at least three years otherwise these shares are potentially subject

to forfeiture. The Company incurs a charge on any Matching shares awarded under the SIP although the charge in

2019 was £0.0m.
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23. Share-based payments continued
The nurmber of outstanding share incentives are sumrnarised below:

2019 2018
Number Number
Incantive plan thousands theusands
Equity-settled:
Parfermance Share Plan 1,326 1,615
Performance Share Plan {Linked tax-advantaged) 99 ]
SAYE 3 43
Total equity-settled 1,430 1773
Cash-settled: Performance Share Plan [Phantom allocations) and Restricted Share Plan 217 374
Jotal outstanding 1,647 2147
Share options outstanding at the end of the year (equity-settled)
2019 8
weighted Weighted
Remaining average dverage
Parformance Share Plan contractual life Number exercise price Number exercise price
Year of grant of options thousands £ thousands £
2009 - - - 13 0.04
2010 1year 3 Q.04 27 0.04
20M ' 2years a 0.04 k1l 004
2012 3 years 1 0.04 2 004
2013 4 yaars 1 0.04 2 0.04
2014 S years - - 2 0.05
2015 6 years 3 0.05 6 0.05
20% 7 years 37 0.05 831 005
207 8 years 333 0.05 441 0.05
2018 Qyears 377 0.05 S50 0.05
2009 10 years 562 0.05 - -
1,326 0.05 1,615 0.05
The weighted average remaining contractual life of the PSP awards is 9.04 years (2018: 8.68 years).
2019 2018
Weighted weighted
Weighted average Weighted average
average  fair value at average fair value at
Number exeircise price grant date Number exercise price grant date
Performance Share Plan (share optiens) thousands [ £ thousands £ £
At1January 1,615 Q.05 1576 Q.05
Shares granted 663 0.05 24.46 580 0.05 2474
Addition of reinvested dividends 30 - 8 -
Exercised {396) 0.05 (68) Q.05
Forfeited {586) 0.08 (481) 0.05
At 31 December 1,326 0.05 1815 0.05
Exercisable at 31 December 121 0.05 94 0.04
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2019 2018
Weighted Weighted
. Remaining - average average
Performanca Share Plan {Linked tax-advantaged) contractual Number exercise price Number exercise price
Year of grant life of options thousands £ thousands £
201 2years - - 1 n30
2012 Iyears - 7.3 2 5
2013 4 years - - - 2410
2018 Syears 1 .97 -3 2197
2016 7 years 2 18.30 16 17.29
2017 Syears 23 26.03 36 26.00
208 9 years 3 26.65. 53 26.63
2019 10 vears 42 26.48 - -
99 26.8 N3 24.61
The weighted average remaining contractual life of the PSP [Linked tax-advantaged) awards is 9.11 years (2018: 911 years).
2019 208
Weighted Weighted
Weighted average Woeighted average
average  fair value at average fair value at
Number exercise price grant date Number exercise price grant date
Performance Share Plan {Linked tax-advantageod) thousands £ £ thousands £ £
At1lanuary ni 24.61 a7 22.3
Shares granted ~ 57 26.50 3.9 57 2664 3.95
Exercised {7 17.66 (s} bR i
Forfeited {44) 25.75 (38) 22.37
At 31 December 99 2618 "3 2461
Exercisable at 31 December & 19.79 8 19.83
2019 2018
Expected
SAYE Exercise price remaining life Number Number
Year of grant of options thousands thousands
2015 17.37 1year - 19
2016 19.38 2 years 5 26
5 45
The weighted average remaining contractual life of the SAYE options is 1 year (2018:1.57 years).
2019 2008
Weighted Weighted
average average
Number exercise price Number exercise price
SAYE thousands £ thousands
At1January 45 8.5 86 1822
Exercised (37) 18.33 [36) 17.82
Forfeited (3} 19,19 £5) 18,44
At 31 December 5 19.38 45 18.51
Exercisable at 31 December 5 19.38 20 17.38
Share options outstanding at the end of the year (cash-settled}
2019 2018
Welghted Weighted
Performance Shara Plan (Phantom allocations) Remaining average average
and Restricted Shares Plan contractual life Number exercise price - Number exercise price
Year of grant of options thousands £ thousands
2016 - - - 133 0.05
2017 1 year B8x 0.05 108 005
2018 2years 109 0.05 132 0.05
2019 Jyears 25 Q.05 - -
27 Q.08 374 0.05
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23. Share-based payments continued
The weighted average remaining contractual life of the PSP/RSP awards is 1.74 years {2018: 2.00 years).

209 2018

Welghted weighted

average avarage

fair value at fair vaiue at

Perforrmance Share Plan {Phantom allocations) Number Exercise price grant date Number Exercise price grant date

and Restricted Shares Plan thousands £ £ thousands £ £
At 1January 374 .05 370 .05

Shares granted 30 0.05 25.52 140 0.05 26.45
Addition of reinvested dividends ] - 4 -
Exercised (1289) 0.05 (61 0.05
Forfeited {67) 0.05 {79} 0.05
At 31 December N7 0.05 374 0.05
Exercisable at 31 December - - - -

Share-based payment expense

Share options are valued using the stochastic option pricing model (also known as the Monte Carlo modet) in respect of TSR,
and the Black-Scholes model for all other options, with support frem an independent remuneration consultant. The TSR
performance condition was included in the calculation of fair vaiue under the PSP. For options granted in 2019 and 2018 the
fair value of options granted and the assumptions used in the calculation, are as follows:

Equity-settled Cash-settled

Performanca Share Plan

Performance Share Plan (Phantom) and Restricted

Herformance Share Plan [Linked tax-advantagead} Shares Plan

2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018

Weighted average share price at date of grant (£) 25.54 26.81 25.47 26.85 25.57 26.50

Weighted average exercise price (£) 0.05 C.05 26.50 26.64 0.05 0.05

Expected volatility 24.78% 24.66% 26.84% 24.65% 24,.76% 24.73%

Expected life 3.25yrs 3.07yrs 3.05yrs 304 yis 3yrs Iyrs

Risk-free rate 0.71% 0.86% 0.69% 0.86% 0.70% 0.84%

Expected dividends {expressed as a yield) - - 2.40% 211% 2.40% -
Waighted average fair values at date of grant (£):

TSR condition 14.22 15.30 3.49 373 - -

Profit condition 25.32 26.54 3.20 399 25.56 26.96

EPS condition 25.16 26.09. 309 394 25.46 26.96

Economic profit condition 25.50 26.46 339 400 - -

Sarvice condition 25.25 26.57 319 399 25.56 26.96
Weighted average fair values at 31 December (£):

Profit condition {cash-settled) 28.42 21.50

EPS candition [cash-settled) 27.99 21.50

28.38 2146

Service condition {cash-settled)

The expected volatility is based on historical volatility over the expected term. The expected life is the average expected
period to exercise. The risk-free rate of return is the yieid on zero-coupon UK government bonds of a term consistent with the
assumed option life.

The weighted average share price at the date of exercise for share options exercised under the PSP in 2019 was £26 .47

{2018: £26.71). The weighted average fair value of cash-settled options cutstanding at 31 December 2019 is £27.99 (2018 £21.98)
for the EPS condition. The Group recognised a total share-based payment charge of £5 9m {2018: £6.2m) in the Consolidated
Income Statement, of which £3.0m (2018: £5.1m) related to equity-settled share-based payment transactions.
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24, Acquisitions

2019

The Group completed the acquisition of 100% of RightHook inc. on 25 February 2019 for a gross consideration of £3.8m.
RightHook Inc. is an engineering software provider based in the USA. The provisional fair value of net assets acquired was
£1.4mm, including £1.8m of intangible assets and £0.4m of deferred tax liabilities, which generated goodwill of £2. 4m. There
are no material contingent liabilities recognised in accordance with IFRS 3 [Revised). The fair value of the net assets is
provisional, reflecting the timing of the acquisition, and is expected to be finalised within 12 months of the acquisition date.
The acquisition is included in the HBK segment and cash generating unit.

20019 208
Anatysis of cash outflow in Consclidated Statement of Cash Flows £m £m
Net consideration in respect of acquisitions during the year s 1957
Deferred and contingent consideration on acguisitions during the year to be paid in future years - {6.0}
Cash paid during the year in respect of acquisitions during the vear 38 189.7
Cash paid in respect of prior years' acquisitions 59 6.7
Net cash outflow relating to acquisitions 9.7 196.4
25. Disposal of businesses

The Group completed the disposal of 100% of its pulp and paper business, BTG, on 1 December 2019 in exchange for gross
consideration of £274.5m. This generated a profit on disposal of £206.1m which included transaction expenses of £7.9m,
of which £7.3m were paid during 2019.

The profit on disposal of BTG is calculated as follows:

2019

£m
Goodwilt and other intangible assets 73.4
Proparty, plant and equipment 26
Inventories LA
Trade and other receivablas 23.1
Cash and cash eguivalents 3.0
Trade and other payables T (21.0)
Lease liabiiities (3.4}
Provisions {0.3)
Net defarred and current tax liabilities {2.8)
Retirement benefit obligations (15.9)
Net assets disposed 96.4
Consideration received, satisfied in cash 272.8
Deferred consideration 17
Transaction costs {72.9}
Net consideration from disposal of business 266.6
Net assels disposed of (including €3.0m of cash and cash equivalents held by BTG) (96.4)
Currency translation differences transferred from translation reserve 35.9
206.1

Profit on disposal of business

On 10 October 2019, the Group completed the disposal of its environment consultancy and testing business for nil purchase
price. The net assets disposed were £2.3m, generating a loss on disposal of £2.3m. Profit on disposal of businesses in the
Consolidated income Statement also includes a2 £0.9m credit from other disposals.

The above disposals did not meet the definition of discontinued operations given in tFRS S *Non-Current Assets Held for
Sale and Discontinued Operations' and, therefore, no disctosures in relation to discontinued operations have been made.

The Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows includes £262.7m of net proceeds from the sale of BTG, which consists of
£272.8m of consideration received in cash less £7.1m of transaction fees paid and £3.0m of cash and cash equivalents
held by BTG units that were disposed of. The Consoclidated Statement of Cash Flows also includes £2.3m paid in respect
of deferred consideration and tax payments on the 2018 partial disposat of EMS B&K and £0.3m of payments from other
business disposals.
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26. Cash generated from operations

208 01e

Note £m £m
Cash flows from operating activities
Profit after tax 234 185.2
Adjustments for:
Taxation charge a 252 328
Profit on disposal of businesses 25 (204.7) {56.3)
Share of post-tax results of joint venture 13 49 12
Finance costs 7 n4 16.0
Financial income 7 {(7.9) (2.5)
Depreciation and impairment of property, plant and equipment 12 576 303
Amortisation and impairment of intangible assets n 95.2 493
Impairment of non-current receivable from joint venture 13 21.3 -
Impairment of goodwill n 351 -
Transaction-related fair value adjustments 4.0 48
Profit on disposal of property, plant and equipment s (4.9} {19)
Equity-settled share-based payment transactions 6 3.0 5.
Operating cash flow before changes in working capital and provisiens 274.3 2638
Decrease/f{increase) in trade and other receivables 139 {30.4}
Increase in inventories (3.3) 17.4)
Decrease in trade and other payables {10.0} {3.6)
Increase in provisions and retirement benefits 2.9 3.4
Cash generated from operations 277.8 215.8

27. Financial risk management

The Group's multinational operations and debt financing expose it to a variety of financial risks. In the course of its business,
the CGroup is exposed to foreign currency risk, interest rate risk, liquidity risk and credit risk. Financial risk management is an
integral part of the way the Group is managed. Financial risk management policies are set by the Board of Directors. These
policies are implemented by a central treasury department that has formal procedures to manage foreign exchange risk,
interest rate risk and liquidity risk, including, where appropriate, the use of derivative financial instruments. The Group has
clearly defined authority and approval limits. The central treasury department operates as a service centre to the Group and

not as a profit centre.

In accordance with its treasury policy, the Group does not hold or use derivative financial instruments for trading or
speculative purposes. Such instruments are only used to manage the risks arising from operating or financial assets or ‘
liakilities, or highly probable future transactions. The quantitative analysis of financial risk is included in Note 28.
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Foreign currency risk
Foreign currency risk arises both where sale or purchase transactions are undertaken in currencies other than the respective

functional currencies of Group companies {transactional exposures) and where the resuits of overseas companies are
consolidated into the Group's reporting currency of Sterling {translational exposures). The Group has operations arcund the
world which record their results in a variety of different local functicnat currencies. In countries where the Group does not
have operations, it invariably has some customers or suppliers that transact in a foreign currency. The Group is therefore
exposed to the changes in foreign currency exchange rates between a number of different currencies but the Group’s
primary exposures relate to the US Dollar, Eure, Danish Krone, Chinese Yuan Renminbi and Japanese Yen, Where appropriate,
the Group manages its foreign currency exposures using derivative financial instrurments.

The Group's translational exposures to foreign currency risks can relate both to the Consolidated tncome Statement and net
assets of overseas subsidiaries. The Group's policy is not to hedge the translational exposure that arises on consolidation of
the Consclidated Income Statement of overseas subsidiaries. The Group finances overseas company investments partly
through the use of foreign currency borrowings in order to provide a natural hedge of foreign currency risk arising on
translation of the Group's foreign currency subsidiaries. The quantitative analysis of foreign currency risk is included in Note 28.

The Group manages its transactional exposures to foreign currency risks through the use of forward exchange contracts.
Forward exchange contracts are used to hedge highly probable transactions which can be forecast to occur typically up

to 18 months into the future, For the hedges of highly probable forecast sales and purchases, as the critical terms (ie. the
notional amount, life and the underlying) of the forward exchange contracts and their corresponding hedged items are the
same, the Group performs a qualitative assessment of effectiveness and it is expected that the value of the forward contracts
and the value of the cotresponding hedged items will systematically change in opposite directions in response 1o
movements in the underlying exchange rates.

The main potential source of hedge ineffectiveness in these hedging relationships is the effect of the counterparty and the

Group's own credit risk on the fair value of the forward contracts, which is not reflected in the fair value of the hedged item
attributable to changes in foreign exchange rates. No other sources of ineffectiveness emerged from these hedging

relationships.

The following tables detail the foreign currency forward contracts outstanding at the end of the reporting period, as well as
information regarding their refated hedged itemns. Foreign currency forward contract assets and liabilities are presented in
the line 'Derivative financial instruments’ (either as assets or liabilities} within the Statement of Financial Position.

Hedging instruments - outstanding contracts

Change in fair value for Carrying amount of
recognising hedge ineffectiveness the hedging instruments
2019 2008 2019 2018
£m £m Em £m
Cash flow hedges
Currency risk - forward exchange contracts
Less than 6 months - .0} - {1.0}
61012 months 1.2 {¢.7) 1.2 {07}
12 to0 18 months 0.2 {0.) 0.2 o3
1.4 1.8} 1.4 (1.8)

Hedging instruments - hedged items

Balance in cash flow hedge

reservefforeign currenty

Change in value used for translation reserve for

calculating hedge effectiveness continuing hedges

2019 201 2018 201

£m £m £m £m

Currency risk

Forecast sales {1.4) 1.8 .4) (3.8}
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27. Financial risk management continued

Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk comprises both the interest rate price risk that results from botrowing at fixed rates of interest and also the

interest cash flow risk that resuits fromn borrowing at variable rates. Where appropriate, interest rate swaps are used to
manage the Group’s interest rate profiie.

tiquidity risk

Liquidity risk represents the risk that the Group will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall due. The Group's
approach to managing this risk is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities
when due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the
Group's reputation. The Group manages this risk through the use of regularly updated cash flow and covenant compliance
forecasts and a liguidity headroom analysis which is used to determine funding requirements. Adequate committed fines
of funding are maintained from high-quality investment grade lenders. The facilities committed to the Group as at

31 December 2012 are set out in Note 17.

Credit risk

Credit risk arises because a counterparty may fail to perform its obligations. The Group is exposed to credit risk on financial
assets such as cash balances, derivative financial instruments and trade and other receivables.

The Group's credit risk is primarily attributable to its trade receivables. The amounts recognised in the Consolidated
Statermnent of Financial Position are net of appropriate allowances for doubtful receivabies, estimated by the Group's
management based on whether receivabies are past due based on contractual terms, payment history and other available
evidence of collectability. Trade receivables are subject to credit limits and control and approval procedures in the operating
companies, Due to its large geegraphical base and number of customers, the Group is not exposed to material concentrations
of credit risk on its trade receivables. The quantitative analysis of credit risk relating to receivables is included in Note 15.

Credit risk associated with cash balances and derivative financial instruments is managed centrally by transacting with
existing relationship banks with strong investment grade ratings. Accordingly, the Group's associated credit risk ig limited.
The Group has no significant concentration of credit risk.

The Group's maximum exposure to credit risk is represented by the carrying amount of each financial asset, including
derivative financial instruments, as shown in Note 28.

Capital management
The Board considers equity shareholders’ funds, together with undrawn committed debt facilities, as capital for the purposes

of funding the Group's operations. Total managed capital at 31 December is:

2019 2008
£m £mn

Equity sharehoiders' funds 13215 1,232.9 ‘
606.4 4679

Undrawn committed debt facilities

1,927.9 1,700.8

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributabie to the issue of ordinary shares and share
options are recognised as a deduction from equity, net of any tax effects.

The Board's policy is to mairtain a strong capital base so as to maintain investor, creditor and market confidence and to
sustain the future development of the business. The Board of Directors monitors both the geographic spread of shareholders
and the level of dividends to ordinary shareholders,

The Board encourages employees to hold shares in the Company. This is carried out through the Spectris Share Incentive
Plan in the UK, as well as Performance and Restricted Share Plans. Full details of these schermes are given in Note 23,

The main financial covenants in the Company’s debt facilities are the ratic of net debt to adjusted earnings before interest,
tax, depreciation and amortisation, and the ratio of finance charges to adjusted earnings before interest, tax, amortisation
and impairment. Covenant testing is completed twice a year based on the half-year and year-end Financial Statements.
At 31 December 2019, the Company had, and is expected to continue to have, significant headroom under these financial
covenant ratios.

From time to time the Group purchases its own shares in the market; the timing of these purchases depends on market
prices. Buy and sell decisions are made on a specific transaction basis by the Board.

There were no ordinary share repurchase and cancellations in 2019 and there were no changes to the Group's approach to
capital management during 2012. During 2018, 3,825,802 ordinary shares were repurchased and cancelled by the Group as
part of the share buyback programme announced on S March 2018.

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries is subject to externally imposed capital requirements.
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28. Financial instruments
The following tables show the fair value measurement of financial instruments by level following the fair value hierarchy:

- level 2 inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observabie for the asset or liability, either directly
{i.e. as prices} or indirectly {i.e. derived from prices); and

- level 3: inputs for assets and liabilities derived from valuation technlques that include inputs for the asset or liability that
are not based on observable market data.

2019

Level 2 Level3  Carrying

fair value  fair valus amount

Fair value and carrying amount of financial instruments £m £m £m
Trade and other receivables excluding prepayments and contract assets - - 3073
Trade and other payables excluding contract liabilities and customer advances - {14.8) {222.4)
Financial instruments included in assets heald for saie (see note 13} 18.9 - 18.9
Forward exchange contract assets L5 - 1.5
Cash and cash equivalents A - 2131
Fixed rate borrowings (183.8) - (¥79.6)
Forward exchange contract liabilities {0.0) - [OR)]
1368.8

2018

Level 2 Level 3 Carrying

fair value fair value amount

Fair valua and carrying amount of financial instruments £m Em £m
Trade and other receivables excluding prepayments and contract assets - - 34851
Trade and other payables excluding contract liabilities and customer advances - (18.8) {266.7)
Other receivable - joint venture - - 389
Forward exchange contract assets 0.4 - 0.4
Cash and cash equivalents 731 - 731
Floating rate borrowing§ {inciuding bank overdrafts) (181.4) - (181.4)
Fixed rate borrowings [195.0) - (188.8)
Forward exchange contract liabilities (2.2 - (2.2
{181.6}

There were no movements between the different levels of the fair value hierarchy in the year.

The fair value of cash and cash equivalents, receivables and payables approximates to the carrying amount because of the
short maturity of these instrurments,

The fair value of floating rate borrowings approximates to the carrying amournt because interest rates are at floating rates
where payments are reset to market rates at intervais of less than one year.

The fair value of fixed rate borrowings is estimated by discounting the future contracted cash flow, using appropriate yield
curves, to the net present values.

The fair value of forward exchange contracts is determined using discounted cash flow technigues based on readily available
market data.

The fair value of forward exchange contracts outstanding as at 31 December 2018 is a net asset of £1.4m (2018: net liability
of £1.8m), of which £1.4m has been credited to the hedging reserve {2018; £1.6m charged) and £nil credited/charged to
the Consolidated Income Staterment {2018: £0.2m charged). These contracts mature over periods typically not exceeding
18 months. A summary of the movements in the hedging reserve during the year is presented below. All of the cash fiow
hedges in 2019 and 2018 were deemed to be effective.

2015 2008
Analysis of movements i hedging reserve net of tax £m £m
At1January {3.9) {2.0)
Amounts removed from the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity and included
in the Consolidated Income Staternent during the year 2.9 14
Armounts recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity during the year (0.4) (3.3}
At 31 December (1.4) {3.9)

The amount included in the Consolidated Income Statement is split between revenue and administrative expenses
depending on the nature of the hedged itemn.
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28. Financial instruments continued

Reconciliation of level 3 fair value for deferred and cantingent consideration payable on acquisitions and disposals 22:: 221:.

At1Januaty (18.9) {11}
Deferred and contingent consideration arising from cusrent year acquisitions payable in future years - {6.0)
Deferred and contingent consideration payable arising from current year disposals - (5.0}
Deferred and contingent consideration paid in the current year relating to previous years' acquisitions and disposais 7.3 87

Costs charged ta the Consolidated income Statemant:

Subsequent adjustments on acquisitions and disposais (3.1 (4.8}
Unwinding of discount factor on deferred and contingent consideration {0.7) (0.6)
Foreign exchange differenca ' [ X -

At 31 December {14.8} 18.8}

The fair value of deferred and contingent consideration is determined by considering the performance expectations of the
acquired or disposed entity or the likelihood of non-financial integration milestones whilst applying the entity-specific
discount rates. The unobservabile inputs are the projected forecast measures that are assessed on an annual basis. Changes
in the fair value of deferred and contingent consideration relating to updated projected forecast performance measures are
recognised in the Consolidated Income Statement within administrative expenses in the Consolidated Income Statement
in the period that the change occurs.

Deferred and contingent consideration relates to financial (20192 £8.6m, 2008: £71m) and non-financial (2012 £6.2m, 2018:
£11.7m) milestones on current and prior year acduisitions and disposals, as disclosed in Note 24 and Note 25. The financial
rmilestones are mainly sensitive to risk-adjusted discount rates and annual future revenue targets.

The following table shows the total outstanding contractual forward exchange contracts hedging designated transactionat
exposures split by currencies which have been sold back into the functional currency of the underlying business. These
contracts typically mature in the next 18 rmonths and, therefore, the cash flows and resulting effect on the Consolidated
Income Statement are expected to occur within this time period.

Forward exchange contracts at 31 December 2019 2018
Foreign currency sale amount (Em) 124 1546
Percentage of total:
Us Dollar 37% %
Euro 15% 6%
Japanese Yen 22% 2%
Other 26% 22%
A maturity profile of the graoss cash flows related to financial liabilities is:
2019 2018
Derivative Derivative Bank
financial Unsecured financial loansand Unsecured
liabilities foans Total liabilities  overdrafts loans Total
Maturity of financial liabilities £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Due within one year o 83.9 84.0 10 58 231 299
Due between one and twe years - LA 11 07 - 902 209
Due between two and five years - 100 100.) [+X} - 2675 2676
(2] 1851 85,2 1.8 5.8 3808 388.4
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Trade and other payables {Note 18) are substantially due within one year.
It is not expected that the cash flows described above could occur significantly earlier or at substantially different amounts.
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Financial assets

Financial Habilities

2019
Non- Net financial
Ftoating interest Floating ass

Interest rate exposure of financial Fixed rate rate bearing Total  Fixed rate rate Total {liabilities}
assets and liabilities by currency £m £m £m £m £m Em £m £m
Sterling 74.5 47.8 9.3 131.6 - - - 131.6
Euro 0.7 6.0 138 205 179.6) - (v79.6) (159.1)
Us Dallar 0.5 5.3 16.0 2.8 - - - 21.8
Other - 207 18.5 39.2 - - - 39.2
75.7 79.8 57.6 213 1179.6) - {179.6) 33.5

Financial assets Financial liabilities

2018

Non- Net financial

Floating interest Floating assets/

Interest rate @xposure of financial Fixed rate rate bearing Total Fixed rate rate Total (liabilities)

assets and Habijities by currency £m Em £m £m £en £m £m £m
Sterling Q1 1.0 29 4.0 - (95.0) (95.0) (91.0)

Euro 0.5 1.8 228 251 (188.8) (80.6} (269.4) (244.3) |

us Dollar 1.6 1.6 108 13.8 - {0.8) {0.8} 13.0
Other 1.2 4.6 24.4 30.2 — {5.0} [5.0} 25.2
3.4 9.0 60.7 731 (188.8) {181.4} [370.2) {297.1)

Sensitivity analysis

Thie tables below show the Group's sensitivity to foreign exchange rates and interest rates. The US Dollar, Euro, Danish Krone,
Chinese Yuan Renminbi and Swiss Franc represent the rnain foreign exchange translational exposures for the Group, although
since the disposal of BTG the Group no longer has a significant translational exposure to the Swiss Franc. The Group's

borrowings are in Euros.

Impact on foreign exchange transiational exposures against Sterling

10% weakening in the US Doflar

10% weakening in the Euro/Danish Krone
10% weakening in the Chinese Yuan Renminbi

10% weakening in the Swiss Franc

Impact of interegst rate movements

1pp increase in interest rates

29, Contingent liabilities

In the normal course of business, Group companies have provided bonds and guarantees through tocal banking
arrangements amounting to £15.2m (2018: £20.3m). Contingent liabifities in respect of taxation are disclosed in Note 8.

Notes to the Accounts

2019 208

Decrease/ Decrease/

Decrease/ (increase) Decrease/ [tncrease)
{increase) n profit {increase) in profit
inequity before tax in equity before tax
£m £m £m £m

88.8 T 981 6.0

52.2 T4 70.8 6.7

4.4 2.2 3.4 17

0.7 1.6 3.5 1.5

{0.8) (0.8} 17 17
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L 4
30. Lease liabilities
2019 Undiscounted lease liability maturity analysis under IFRS 16
Plant and 2019
Property equipment Total
£m £m £m
Within one year 126 4.6 17.2
More than one year but less than five years - n3z 57 37.0
Greater than five years 19.4 - 19.4
Total undiscounted lease liabilities at 31 December 63.3 10.3 73.6
2018 - operating leases under 1AS 17
08
Property Other Total
Total commitments under non: llable operating | expiring: £m £m £m
Within one year 14.8 5.5 203
More than one year but less than five years 340 6.2 40.2
Greater than five years 18.4 0.1 18.5
€72 LLA:] 790

31. Capital commitments
At 31 December 2019, the Group had entered into contractual commitrents for the purchase of property, plant and

equipment and software amounting to £12.5m {2018: £31.0m) which have not been accrued.

32. Related party transactions
The Group has related party relationships with its subsidiaries (a list of all related undertakings is shown in Note 15 of the
Company Financial Staternents) on pages 168 to 171, with its joint venture {see Note 13) and with its Executive Directors and

members of the Executive Management Committee,

Transactions with key management personnel
The remuneration of key management personnel during the year was as follows:

2019 20018

£m £m

Short-term benefits 51 52
Post-empioyment benefits 0.5 0.6
Equity-settled share-based payment expense 1.0 1.6
6.6 T4

In accordance with 1AS 24 ‘Related Party Disclosures’, key managernent personnel are those having authority and
responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the activities of the Group, directly or indirectly. Key management
personnel comprise the Directors and the other members of the Executive Management Committee.

Further details of the Executive Directors' remuneration are included in the Directors’ Remuneration Report on pages 70
to 91

Transactions with joint venture

2m9 W
£m Em
Sales 1.9 1.2
Income on receivable (see Note 7) {3.2) (2.0)
Loan receivable 3.0 09
Other receivable {see note 13} - 385
Assets classified as held for sale {see note 13} 8.9 -
Trade receivables 1.5 17
Trade payables {1.6) (27)

During 2019, the Group transferred the other receivable balance to assets classified as heid for sale and booked an impairment
of £21.3rm against this balance, ieaving a remaining balance of £18.9m. See Note 13 for further details.

There were no other related party transactions in either 2019 or 2018,
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33. Subsidiary undertakings
The table below lists the Group's principal subsidiary undertakings at 31 Decermber 2019, They operate mainly in the countries
of incorporation. All of the subsidiaries are involved in the manufacture and sale of highly specialised measuring instruments

and controis, together with the provision of services.
Spectris pic holds 100% of the ordinary share capital of all the subsidiaries either directly or indirectly through intermediate
hoiding companies.

Country of

Name incorporation
Engineering Seismology Group Canada Inc. Canada
Denmark

Brael & Kjaer Sound & Vibration Measurement A/S
Malvern Panalytical Limited
Millerook Proving Ground Limited

England & Walas
England & Wales

Servomex Group Limited England & Wales

Brael & Kjaer Vibro GmbH Germany
Hottinger Baldwin Messtechnik GmbH GCermany
NDC Technologies, Inc. usa
Omega Engineering, Inc. USA
Particle Measuring Systems, inc. USA

USA

Red Lion Controls, inc.

A full list of subsidiaries is given in Note 15 of the Company Financial Statements on pages 168 to 171

34, Events after the balance sheet date

0On 17 January 2020, an announcement was made that agreement had been reached for the sale of the Group's interest

in the EMS BEK joint venture for consideration of £17.9m in cash and approximately £1.2m in shares in Envirosuite Limited
(‘Envirosuite’). The closing of the deal is subject to approval by Envirosuite's shareholders at a meeting to be held on

24 February 2020 and the conditional placement of shares by Envirosuite required to fund the consideration for the
transaction, with completion expected to take place shortly thereafter. As a result, the receivable from the joint venture

has been impaired by £21.3m to the expected recoverable amount and the remaining balance of £18.9m has been included
within assets held for sale at 31 December 2019 (tee Note 13).

On 31 January 2020, the Group sold its interest in the rheology range of products to Netzsch Group for consideration of
£8.8rm in cash. This preduct range, part of the Malvern Panalytical segment, generated approximately £12m of revenue
and £1m of operating profit in 2019,
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Spectris plc Staterment of Financial Position

As at 31 December 2019

2009 208
Naote £m £m
ASSETS
Non-citrrent assets
Intangible assets 4 6.0 35
Property, glant and equipment 5 2.8 24
Invastrnents in subsidiary undertakings 6 1LO7L] 1,070.2
Deferred tax assets 3.5 39
1,083.4 1.080.0
Current assets
Current tax assets 4.7 36
Other receivables {due after more than one year; £430.7m {2018; £417.9m)) 7 764.3 7851
Derivative financial instruments 2.1 2.8
Cash and cash equivalents 130.3 207
9014 812.2
Total assets 1,984.8 1,892.2
LIABILITIES
Cusrent linbilities
Borrowings '8 {BO.7} {30.3}
Derivative financial instrurnents (2.2} 2.8)
Other payables ] {777.5} (521.9)
Prowvisions 10 (0.9} {1.2)
[861.3) 556.2)
Net current assets 40.1 256.0
Non-current liabHities
Borrowings 8 {98.9) {346.5)
uLhel paydbiles 8 (?NR7) {(ranf)
Retirement benefit obligations 2 (15.1) (12.5)
{320.7) {549.5}
Total liabilitles 1182.0) {1,105.8}
Net assets 802.8 786.4
EQUITY
Share capital T 6.0 6.0
Share premium 2314 234
Retained earnings 527.7 SNz
Merger reserve n 31 3.1
Capital redemption reserve n 0.5 Q5
Special reserva N 34 341
802.8 786.4

Total equity

The Company's profit for the year was £86.4m {2018: £18.5m).
The Financial Statements on pages 158 to 171 were approved by the Board of Directors on 19 February 2020 and were signed
on its behalf by:

Derek Harding
Chief Financial Officer

9{5& NS

Company Redistration No. 02025003
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Spectris plc Statement of Changes in Equity

fFor the year ended 31 December 2019

Capital
Share Share Retained Merger redemption Speciat Total
capital premium earnings reserve reserve reserve equity
Note £m £m £m £m
At} January 2019 6.0 23%.4 SN.3 3 0.5 34.1 706.4
profit for the year - - B5.4 - - - 686.4
Other comprehensive income:
Re-measurement of net defined
benefit obligations, net of tax - - (1.6) - - - (.6}
Total comprehensive income for
the year - - B84.8 - - - 858
Transactions with owners recorded
directly in equity:
Equity dividends paigd 14 - - {72.3} - - - {72.3)
Capital contribution relating to
share-based payments - - 23 - - - 31
Share-based payments, net of tax - - ©.2) - - - (0.2)
Utilisation of treasury shares - - 1.9 - - - 1.0
At 31 December 2019 6.0 231.4 527.7 kA 0.5 34 902.8
Capital
Share Share Retained Merger redemption Special Total
capital premium earnings reserve reserve reserve equity
For the year ended 31 December 2018 Note £m Em £m £ £m £m £m
At1January 2018 6.2 2314 6527 3) 0.3 241 9278
- 18.5 - - - 185

Profit for the year -
Cther comprehensive income:

Re-measurement of net defined
benefit obligations, net of tax - 30

Total comprehensive income for

the year - - 215 - - - 215

Transactions with cwners recorded

directly in equity:

Own shares acquired for share buyback

programme (0.2) - [oo.s) - 0.2 - {100.5}
Equity dividends paid 14 - - 68.2) - - - (68.2)
Capital contribution relating to

share-based payments - - 1.8 - - - 18

Share-based payments, net of tax - - 3] - - - 31

Utilisation of treasury shares - - o9 - - - 039

At 31 December 2018 6.0 23.4 S10.3 31 o5 34) 786.4
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Notes to the Company Accounts

1. Basis of preparation and summary of significant accounting policies

The separate Financial Statements of the Company are presented as required by the Companies Act 2006. As permitted by

that Act, the separate Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with applicable accounting standards in the
United Kingdom. In accordance with the exemption provided by Section 408 of the Companies Act 2006, the Company has

not presented its own income statement or statement of comprehensive income.

a) Basis of preparation
These Financial Statements were prepared in accordance with Financial Reporting Standard 101 'Reduced Disclosure
Framework' 'FRS 101'). The Company’s shareholders were notified in 2015 of the use of the EU-adopted IFRS disclosure

exemptions and there were no objections to the adoption of FRS 101

In preparing these Financial Statements, the Company applies the recognition, measurement and disclosure requirements
of International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the £EU {'IFRS’), but makes amendments where necessary in
order to comply with the Companies Act 2006 and has set out below where advantage of the FRS 10t disciosure exemptions
has been taken.

The Company has applied the exemptions available under FRS 101 in respect of the following disclosures:

- A Cash Flow Statement and related notes.

« Comparative period reconciliations for share capital, property, plant and equipment and intangible assets.
- Disclosures in respect of transactions with wholly owned subsidiaries.

+ Disclosures in respect of capital management.

- The effects of new but not yet effective IFRSs.

+ Disclosures in respect of the compensation of key management personnel.

As the Consolidated Financial Staternents of Spectris plc {pages 105 to 157} include the equivalent disclosures, the Company
has also taken the exernptions under FRS 101 available in respect of the following disclosures:

- IFRS 2 ‘Share Based Payments' in respect of Group-settled share-based payments.
- Certain disclosures required by IFRS 13 ‘Fair Value Measurement’ and the disclosures required by IFRS 7 ‘Financial

Instrurment Disclosures’
The Financial Statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis, except for the revaluation of financial instruments.
Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for the assets, The principal
accounting poticies are set out befow.
As permitted by Section 408 of the Companies Act 2006 the Company has elected not to present its own income
Statement or Staterment of Comprehensive Income for the year. The profit attributable to the Company is disclosed in the
footnote te the Company's Statement of Financial Position.

The following accounting policies have been applied consistently in dealing with items which are considered material

in relation to the Financial Statements.

Significant accounting judgements and estimates

In determining and applying accounting policies, judgement is often required where the choice of specific policy,
assumption or accounting estimate to be followed could materially affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income
and expenses, should it later be determined that a different choice be more appropriate. Estimates anhd assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis and are based on historical expenence and various other factors that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances.

in the course of preparing these Financial Statements in accordance with the Group's accounting policies, no judgements
that have a significant effect on the amounis recegnised in the Financial Statements have been made, other than those
involving estimation, Management consider the following to be areas of estimation for the Company due to greater
complexity and/for are particularly subject to uncertainty.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

Retirement benefit plans
Accounting for retirement benefit plans under IAS 19 [revised) requires an assessment of the future benefits payable in

accordance with actuarial assumptions. The discount rate and rate of retail price inflation {'RPI'} assumptions applied in the
calculation of plan liabilities, which are set out in Note 20, represent a key source of estimation uncertainty for the Company.
Details of the accounting policies applied in respect of retirernent benefit plans are set out on page 162.

b) Summary of significant accounting policies
Intangible assets
Intangible assets purchased by the Company are capitalised at their cost.

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment whenever there
is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The estimated useful economic lives are as follows:

- Software -3 to 7 years.
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Property, piant and equipment
Property, plant and equiprnent is stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. The cost comprises

the purchase price paid and any costs directly attributable to bringing it into working condition for its intended use.

Depreciation is recognised in the incorme Statement on a straight-fine basis to write off the cost, less the estimated residual
value (which is reviewed annually), of property, plant and equipment over its estimated useful economic life. Depreciation
commences on the date the assets are available for use within the business and the asset carrying values are reviewed

for impairment when there is an indication that they may be impaired, Land is not depreciated. Estimated useful lives are
as follows:

- Freehold property - 20 to 25 yeafrs.
- Office equipment - 3 to 20 years.

Investments
Investments in subsidiaries are stated at historical cost, less provision for any impairment in value.

Trade and other receivables
Trade and other receivables are carried at original invoice amount {which is considered a reasonable proxy for fair value) and

are subsequently held at amortised cost less provision for impairment. The provision for impairment of receivables is based
on lifetirne expected credit losses. Lifetime expected credit losses are calculated by assessing historic credit loss experience,
adjusted for factors specific to the receivable and operating company.

Cash arnd vasl equivalfents
This comprises cash at bank and in hand and short-term deposits held on call or with maturities of less than three months

at inreptinn,

Trade and other payables
Trade and other payables are recognised at the amounts expected 1o be paid to counterparties and subsequently held at

amorised cost.

Provisions
A provision is recognised in the Staternent of Financial Position when the Company has a present legal or constructive

obligation as a result of 3 past event and it is probable that an cutflow of resources, that can be reliably measured, will be
required to settle the obligation. In respect of warranties, 2 provision is recognised when the underlying products or services
are sold. Provisions are recognised at an amount equal to the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the
Company's liabitity. A contingent fiability is disclosed where the existence of the abligation will only be confirmed by future
events or where the armount of the obligation cannot be measured with reascnable reliability. Contingent assets are not
recognised but are disclosed where an inflow of economic benefit is probable. Obligations arising from restructuring plans
are recognised when detailed format plans have been established and when there is a valid expectation that such a plan will

be carried out.

Taxation

Tax on the profit or loss for the year comprises both current and deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the Income Statement
except to the extent that it relates to items recognised either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which
case tax is recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income or the Statement of Changes in Equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted
at the Statement of Financial Position date, and any adjustments to tax payable in respect of prior years, Tax positions are
reviewed to assess whether a provision should be made based on prevailing circurnstances. Tax provisions are included
within current taxation liabilities.

Deferred taxation is provided on taxable temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in
the Financial Statements and their corresponding tax bases. Deferred tax is measured using the tax rates expected to apply
when the asset is realised or the liability settled based on tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the Statement of
Financial Position date.

A deferred tax asset is recognised only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against
which the asset can be utilised or that they will reverse. Deferred tax assets are reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that the related tax benefit will be realised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets against current tax
lizbilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

Foreign currency translation
The functional currency of the Company is Sterling and is determined with reference to the currency of the primary

economic environment in which it operates. Transactions in currencies other than the functional currency are initially
recorded at the functional currency rate ruling at the date of the transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are retranslated at the rate of exchange ruling at the Staternent of Financial Position date. Exchange gains
and losses on settlernent of foraign currency transactions are translated at the rate prevailing at the date of the transactions,
or the translation of monetary assets and liabilities at period end exchange rates, and are charged/credited to the income
Statement. Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies that are stated at historical cost are
translated to the functional currency at the foreign exchange rate ruling at the date of the transaction.
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Notes to the Company Accounts continued

1. Basis of preparation and summary of significant accounting policies continued

Financial instruments

Recognition

The Company recognises financial assets and liabilities on its Statement of Financial Position when it becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financjal assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the Statement of Financial Position when there
is a lagally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, of realise the
asset and settle the liability simultaneouslhy.

Meagsurement )
when financial assets and liabilities are initially recognised, they are measured at fair value, being the consideration given

or received plus directly attributable transaction costs.

Originated loans and debtors are initially recognised in accordance with the policy stated above and subsequently
re-Measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Allowance for impairment is estimated on a case-by-

case basis.

The Company uses derivative financial instruments such as forward foreign exchange contracts te hedge risks associated
with foreign exchange fluctuations. These are designated as cash flow hedges. At the inception of the hedge relationship,
the Company documents the relationship between the hedging instrument and the hedged itern, along with its risk
management cbjectives and its strategy for undertaking various hedge transacticns. Furthermore, at the inception of the
hedge and on an ongoing basis, the Company documents whether the hedging instrument that is used in a hedging
relationship is highly effective in offsetting changes in cash flows of the hedged item,

The effective portion of changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated and qualify as cash flow hedges are
deferred in equity. The gain or loss relating to the ineffective portion is recognised immediately in the Incorme Statement.

Amounts deferred in equity are reclassified to the Income Staterent in the periods when the hedged item is recognised
in the Income Statement, in the same line of the Income Statement as the recognised hedged item. However, when the
forecast transaction that is hedged results in the recognition of a non-financial asset or a non-financial fiability, the gains
and losses previously deferred in equity are transferred from equity and included in the initiai measurement of the cost of
the asgset or liability.

Hedge accounting is discontinued when the Company revokes the hedging relaticnship, the hedging instrument expires

or is sold, terminated, or exercised, or no longer qualifies for hedge accounting. Any cumulative gain or joss deferred in
equity at that time rernains in equity and is recognised when the forecast transaction is ultimately recognised in the income
Statement. When a forecast transaction is ho longer expected to occur, the cumulative gain or loss that was deferred in
equity is recognised immediately in the Income Statement.

Derecognition

A financial asset is derecognised when the Company loses control over the contractual rights to the cash flows from the
asset, This occurs when the rights are realised, expire or are surrendered. A financial liability is derecognised when the
obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or expires. Originated loans and debtors are derecognised

on the date they are transferred by the Company.

Impairment of financial assets

The Company assesses at each Statement of Financial Position reporting date whether there is any objective evidence that
a financial asset, or group of financial assets, is impaired. A financial asset, or group of financial assets, is deemed to be
impaired if, and only if, there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or rore events that have occurred after
the initial recognition of the asset (an incurred ‘loss event’} and that loss event has an impact on the estimated future cash
flows of the financial asset or group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated,

Employee benefits
The Company operates a defined benefit post-retirement benefit plan and a defined contribution pension plan.

Defined benefit plan

The Company's net obligation recognised in the Statement of Financial Position in respect of its defined benefit plan is
calculated as the present value of the plan's liabilities less the fair value of the plan's assets. The operating and financing
<osts of the defined benefit plan are recognised separately in the Income Statement, Operating costs comprise the current
service cost, plan administrative expense, any gains or losses on settiement or curtailments, and past service costs where
benefits have vested. Finance items comprise the unwinding of the discount on the net asset/deficit. Actuarial gains or
losses comprising changes in plan labilities due to experience and changes in actuarial assumptions are recognised in
other comprehensive income.

The amount of any pension fund asset recognised in the Statement of Financial Position is limited to any future refunds
from the plan or the present value of reductions in future contributions to the plan,

Defined contribution plan

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which an entity pays fixed contributions into a

separate entity and will have no legal or constructive obligation to pay further amounts. Obligations for contributions
to defined contribution pension plans are recognised in the Incorme Statement in the periods during which services are

rendered by employees.
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Short-term benefits
Short-term employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are expensed as the related service

is provided. A liability is recognised for the amount expected to be paid under short-term cash bonus or profit-sharing plans
if the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service provided by the
employee, and the obligation can be estimated reliably.

Share-based payments

Certain employees of the Company receive part of their remunetration in the form of share-based payrment transactions,
whereby empicyees render services in exchange for shares or rights over shares (equity-settled transactions). The cost of
equity-settled transactions with ermployees is measured at fair value at the date at which they are granted. The fair value

of share awards with market-related vesting conditions is determined by an external consultant and the fair value at the
grant date is expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting period based on the Company's estimate of shares that will
eventually vest. The estimate of the number of awards likely to vest is reviewed at each Statement of Financial Position
reporting date up to the vesting date, at which point the estimate is adjusted to reflect the actual outcome of awards which
have vested. No adjustrment is made to the fair value after the vesting date even if the awards are forfeited or not exercised.

Where it is not possible to incentivise managers of the Company with equity-settled optians, they are issued with cash-
settled options. The charge for these awards is adjusted ta reflect the expected and actual leveis of options that vest and
the fair value is based on either the share price at date of exercise or the share price at the Statement of Financiat Position

date if soconer.

Where the Company grants options over its own shares to the employees of its subsidiaries, it recognises an increase in
the cost of investment in its subsidiaries equivalent to the equity-settled share based payment charge recognised inthe
subsidiary’s Financial Statements with the corresponding credit being recognised directly in equity. In cases where a
subsidiary is recharged for the share based payment expense, no such increase in investmant is recognised which may
result in a credit in a particular year.

Dividends
Dividends are recognised as a liabifity in the period in which they are approved by shareholders,

Treasury shares
Shares held in treasury are treated as a deduction from equity until the shares are cancelled, reissued or disposed. Where

such shares are subseguentiy sold or reissued, any consideration received, net of any directly attributable incremental costs
and related tax effects, is included in equity attributable to the Company's equity shareholders.

2. Auditor's remuneration
The details regarding the remuneration of the Company's augditor are included in Note 5 to the Group Consclidated Financial

Statements under ‘Fees payable to the Company's auditor for audit of the Company's annual accounts'

3. Employee costs and other information
Average number of employees on a full-time equivalent basis:

2019 zowe

Number Number

Administrative 80 86
Emplayee costs, including Directors' remuneration, are as folows:

2019 2018

£m £m

wages and salaries 3.8 6.6

Social security costs 2.5 26

Defined contribution pension plans 0.5 0.5

Equity-settled share-based payment (credit)/charge (0.2} 3.2

Cash-settled share-based payrnent charge 01 Q1

16.7 23.0

Directors' remuneration
Further details of Directors’ remuneration and share options are given in Note & 1o the Group Consolidated Financial

Staterments and in the Directors’ Remuneration Report on pages 70 to 91.

Tax losses

As at 31 December 2019, the Company had capital tax losses of £16.4m {2018: £16.4m). No provision has been made for
deferred tax on the basis that there is insufficient evidence that suitable taxable profits will arise in the future against
- which the losses may be offset and the asset recovered.
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Notes to the Company Accounts continued

4. iImtangible assats

Software
Cost £m
At)January 2019 75
Additions 5.5
At 31 December 2019 ‘130
A, lated amortisation and impairment
At1January 2019 4.9
Charge for the year 03
trnpaiirnaent in the yeas 27
At 31 December 2019 7.0
Carrying amount
At 31 December 2019 6.0
At 31 Decernber 2018 3.5
5. Property, plant and equipment
Freehold Office
proparty  aquipment Yatal
Cost £m £m £m
AtlJanuary 2019 3.4 0.8 4.2
Additions - 0.6 0.6
At 31 Decemnbey 2019 3.4 1.4 4.8
Accumulated depreciation and impairment
At lanuary 2009 13 (=3 ] 1.8
Charge for the year 01 0. 0.2
At 31 December 2019 1.2 0.8 2.0
Carrying amount
At 31 December 2019 2.2 a.6 2.0
At 31 December 2018 23 01 2.4
6. Investments in subsidiary undertakings
investment
In subsidiary
undertakings
Cost and carrying amount £m
At 1January 2019 1,070.2
Movements relating to share options granted to subsidiary employees 22
impairments ({3
1,071

At 3t December 2019

Details of the Company’s subsidiaries are given in Note 15.
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7. Other recsivables
2019 2018
Current £m £m
Amounts owed by Group undertakings 1B 5.9
Loans owed by Group undertakings 325.4 3574
Loans owed by indirectiy held joint venture 3.0 [oF-]
Prepayments 1.9 22
Cther receivables 1.5 0.8
333.6 367.2
2019 2018
Non-current £m £m
Loans owed by Group undertakings 428.7 415.8
Prepayments 2.0 21
430.7 4179
764.3 785

Total other receivables

All loans owed by Group undertakings are in relation to interest-bearing intra-group loans which are formalised
arrangernents on an arm's length basis. tnterest is charged at fixed rates between 2% and 10%. Other amounts cwed
by Group undertakings are non-interest-bearing and repayable on demand.

8. Borrowings
2019 2018
Current interest rate Repayable date £m £m
Bank overdrafts On demand - 2.4
Bank loans unsecured - €94.8m 14 October 2020 80.7 -
Bank loans unsecured - £50.0m uncommitted facility Relevant LIBOR +50bps On demand - 17.9
‘Total current borrowings 80.7 303
2019 208
Non-current interest rate Maturity date £m £m
Bank loans unsecured - €94.8m Fixed 2.56% 14 Qctober 2020 - 84.8
Bank locans unsecured - €116.2m Fixed 1.15% 9 September 2022 98.9 104.0
Bank lpans unsecured - $800.0m revolving credit facility Relevant LIBOR +65bps 31 July 2024 - 1577
‘Total non-current borrowings a98.9 346.5
Total current and non-current borrowings 179.6 376.8
Further details of borrewings are provided in Note 17 to the Group Consolidated Financial Statements.
9. Other payables
2019 208
currant £m £m
Amounts owed to Group undertakings 07 [+X]
Loans owed to Group undertakings 766.6 5107
Accruals 10.2 107
7715 5219
2019 2018
Non-currant £m £m
206.7 190.6

Loans owed to Group undertakings

Allloans owed to Group undertakings are in relation to interest-bearing intra-group loans which are formalised
arrangements on an arm's length basis. Interest is charged at fixed rates between 0% and 10%. Other amounts pwed

to Group undertakings are non-interest-bearing and repayable on demand.

Notes to the Company Accounts Spectris plc Annual Report and Accounts 2018 165



Financial Statements

Notes to the Company Accounts continued

10. Provisions

Recrganisation

£m

At January 2019 12
Provision during the year 10.3
tilised during the year {10.6)
0.9

At 31 December 2019

Provisions are all presented as current liabilities.

Rearganisation provisions relate to cornmitted restructuring plans in place within the business. Costs are expected to be
incurred within one year and there is little judgement in determining the amount.

11. Share capital and reserves

2019 208
Number of Number of
shares shares
Allotted, called-up and fully paid Millions £m Millions £m
Issued and fully paid [ordinary shares of 5p each):
At January and 31 December 121.2 6.0 212 60

No ordinary shares were issued upon exercise under share option schemes during the year (2018: nil).

Share options have been granted to subscribe for ordinary shares of Spectris plc. Full details of share options currently in
issue, including those issued during the year, together with information regarding the basis of calculation of the share-based
payment expense, is contained in Note 23 to the Group Consolidated Financial Statements.

At 31 December 2019, the Company held 5182,366 treasury shares (2018: 5,636,153). During the year 453,787 of these shares
were issued to satisfy options exercised by, and SIP Matching shares awarded to, employees which were granted under
the Group's share schemes (2018: 11,207). Nil ordinary shares were repurchased and cancelled by the group during the year
{2018: 3,825,802 ordinary shares were repurchased and cancelled as part of the share buyback prograrmme announced

on 5 March 2018, which concluded on 13 August 2018).

In July 2018, Spectris plc established an employee benefit trust {'EBT) to operate the Spectris Share Incentive Plan {'5IP"} to
all eligible UK-based empioyees. The EBT holds shares in Spectris plc for the purpose of the SIP, further details of which are
disclosed in the Directors’ Remuneration Report. At 31 December 2019, the EBT held 33,780 shares which were purchased
frorn the market during the year {31 December 2018: 11,353). The costs of funding and administering the plan are charged
10 the income statement in the period te which they relate,

Other reserves

Movements in reserves are set out in the Statement of Changes in Equity. The retained earnings reserve also includes own
shares purchased by the Company and treated as treasury shares. The nature and purpose of other reserves forming part
of equity are as fellows:

Merger reserve

This reserve arose on the acquisition of Servomex Limited in 1999, a purchase satisfied substantially by the issue of share
capital and therefore eligible for merger relief under the provisions of Section 612 of the Companies Act 2006.

Capital redermnption reserve

This reserve records the historical repurchase of the Company's own shares. During 2018, as a result of the share buyback
programme, the capital redemption reserve increased by £0.2m refiecting the nominal value of the cancelled

ordinary shares,

Speciat reserve

The special reserve was created historically following the cancellation of an amount of share premium for the purpose of
writing off goodwill. The special reserve is not distributable,
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12. Retirement benefit plan

The Company participates in, and is the sponsoring employer of the UK Group defined benefit plan. The plan provides
pensions in retirement, death in service and in some cases disability benefit to members. The pension benefit is finked
to members' final salary at retirement and their service life. Since 31 December 2009, the UK plan has been closed to

new members.

in accordance with IAS 19 (Revised 201}, there were no Company contributions made to the defined benefit plan during
the year {2018: Enifl,

Further details of the Spectris Pension Plan {UK) including all disclosures required under FRS 101 are contained in Note 20
tn the Cirnup Consnlintater Financial Statements

13. Contingent liabilities

The cross-guarantee arrangements to support trade finance facilities are included in Note 29 of the Group Consolidated
Financial Statements.

Where the Company enters into financial guarantee contracts 1o guarantee the indebtedness of other companies within
its group the Company considers these to be insurance arrangements in accerdance with the requirements of IFRS 4 and
accounts for them as such. In this respect, the Company treats the guarantee contract as a contingent liability until such
time as it becormnes probable that the Company will be required to make a payment under the guarantee.

In the normal course of business, the Company has provided bonds and guarantees through local banking arrangements
armounting to £15.2m (2U18: £ 19.6m).

14. Dividends

2m9 208
Amounts recognisad and paid as distributions &€m £m
Final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2018 of 40.5p (2017: 37.5p) per share 469 445
interim dividend for the year ended 31 December 2019 of 219p (2018: 20.5p) per share 25.4 237
i2.s G58.1
2019 2018
Amounts arising in respect of the year £m £m
Interim dividend for the year ended 31 December 2019 of 21.9p (2018: 20.5p) per share 25.4 237
Proposed final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2019 of 43 2p (2018: 37.5p) per share 50 46.8
e 0.5

In addition, subject to shareholder approval, a special dividend of 150.0p per existing ordinary share is proposed, totalling
E175m. In order to maintain the comparabiiity of the Group's share price and per-share metrics before and after the special
dividend, the Group plans to undertake a share consolidation, which wiil be subject to shareholder approval.

The proposed final and special dividends are subject to approval by shareholders at the AGM on 22 May 2020 and have not
been included as a liability in these Financial Statements.
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15. Related undertakings

In accordance with Section 409 of the Companies Act 2006, detailed below is a full list of related undertakings as at

31 December 2019,

All entities listed below have their registered office in their country of incorporation.

Subsidiaries

All wholly owned subsidiaries listed below are owned through intermediate holding companies, unless otherwise indicated.

Shareholdings are held in the class of ordinary shares, unless ctherwise indicated.

. Country of
Name Registered address incorparation
Agenda 1 Analytical Services Limited One St Peter's Square, Manchester, M2 30E England & Waies
Aquila Biomedical Limited Addleshaw Goddard Lip Exchange Tower, 19 Canning Street, Scotland

Edinburgh, EH3 8EH

BK Vibro America inc 2243 Park Place, Suite A, Minden Nevada 89423 USA
Bruel & Kjaear France SAS 46 rue du Champoreux. F-91540 Mennecy, LCedex France
Bruel & Kjaer GmbH Linzer Straiie 3, Bremen, D-28359 Germany
Bruel & Kjaer Htalia SRL Milang (MI), via Pordenone B, Milan 20132 Italy
Bruel & Kjaer North America inc 3079 Premiere Parkway, Suite 120, Duluth, GA 20097 Usa
Bruel & Kjaer Pofska Spz.0.0. ul. Goraszewska 12, PL-02-910 Warszawa Poland
Briiel & Kjaer Sound & Vibration Measurement A/S Skodsborgvej 307, DK-2850, Naerum Denmark
Bruel & Kjaer UK Limited' Jarrnan Way, Royston, Hertforgshire, SG8 5BQ England & Wales
Brdel & Kjaer Vibro A/S Skadsborgvej 3078, Naerum, 2850 Denmark
Brilel & Kjaer Vibro GmbH teydheckerstrasse 10, D-64293, Darmstadt Germany

Bruel & Kjaer VTS Limited®

Jarman Way, Royston, Hertfordshire, SGB 5BQ

England & Wales

Burnfield Limited

Heritage House, Church Road, Egham, Surrey, TW20 9QD

England & Wales

CAS Clean-Air-Service AC Reinluftweg 1, Zurich, CH-9630 Switzerland
Concept Life Sciences [Discovery) Limited One St Peter's Square, Manchester, M2 3DE England & Wales
One St Peter’s Square, Mancheaster, M2 3DE England & wales

Concept Life Sciences [Environmental
Consulting) Limited

Concept Life Sciences {Holdings) Limited*

One St Peter's Square, Manchaster, M2 3DE

England & Wales

Concept Life Sciences (Laboratorias) Limited

One St Peter's Square, Manchester, M2 3DE

England 8 Wwales

Concept L ife Sciences {Midco) Limited

One St Peter's Square, Manchester, M2 3DE

England & Wales

Caoncept Life Sciences Analytical &
Development Services Limited

One 5t Peter's Square, Manchester, M2 3DE

England & wales

Concept Life Sciences Integrated Discovery
& Development Services Limited

Onae 5t Peter's Square, Manchester, M2 3DE

England & Wales

Concept Life Sciences Limited

One St Peter's Square, Manchestar, M2 3DE

England & Wales

CXR Biosciences Limited 2 James Lindsay Place, Dundee Technopole, Dundee, DO 532 Scotland
DISCOM Elektronische Systerme und Maschrnihlenwag B, Cottingen, 37081 Cermany
Komponenten GmbH
Engineering Seismology Group Canada Inc. 20 Hyperion Court, Kingston, ON, K7K 7K2 Canada
ESG (Beijing) Seismic Technology Co Ltd Room 1226, Building Mo, Yinan, North Erlizhuang No.4 4, Beijing, China

Dongcheng District
ESG USA Inc 10815 Woodedge Dr, Houston, Texas 77070 UsA
HBM Danmark ApS Nydamsvej 19D, 8362 Horning, Skanderborg Denmark
HBM FiberSensing SA Rua Vasconcelos Costa 277, Mareira, Maia Partugal
HBM France SAS 46 Rue du Champoreux, Mennecy, 91540 France
HBM ltalia S.R.L. Milano (M1}, Via Pordenone B, Milan, 20132 Italy
HBM nCode Federal LLC? 100 Research Bivd, Starkville, Mississippi USA
HBM Netherlands B.V. Schutweg 15a, Waalwiik, 5145 NP Netherlands
HBM Norge AS Rosenholmveren 25, [rollaser, 1414 Norway
HBM Prenscia inc 5210 E Williams Cir, 2nd Floor, Suite 240, Tucson Arizona 85711 USA
HBM Prenscia Pta. Ltd. 31 Kaki Bukit Road 3, 064-0/05 Techiink 417818 Singapore
HBM Prenscias.p. 2.0.0. ul. Wronia, nr 45, lok. 200, Warsaw 00-870, Warsaw Poland
HEM United Kingdorn Limited Technology Centre, Advanced Manufacturing Park, Brunal Way, England & Wales

Catcliffe, Rotherham, South Yorkshire, 60 SWG

106 Henshan Road, Suzhou New District, Suzhou, China

Hotringer Baldwin [Suzhou) Electronic
Measurement Technology Ltd

Jiangsu Province, 215009
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Country of

Name Registered address incorporation
Hottinger Baldwin Measuremaents, inc. 19 Bartlett Street, Marlborough, Massachusetts Q1752 USA
Hottinger Baldwin Messtechnik AGS c/o Simon Berger, Alpenblickstrasse 57, Uster, 8610 Switzerland
Hottinger Baldwin Messtechnik GmbH Im Tiefen See 45, Darmstadt, D-64293 Germany
Hottinger Baldwin Messtechnik GmbH Lemboeckgasse 63/2, A-1230, Wien, Vienna Austria
Hottinger Briel & Kjaer Ibérica, S.L.U. Calle Teide nimero 5, San Sebastian de los Reyes, Madrid Spain
International Applied Reliability Syrmposiurm LLC? 5210 E Williams Cir, 2nd Floor, Suite 240, Tucson Arizona B571 USA
LLC Spectris CIS? Building 1, Usacheva Street, Moscow 119048 Russian Federation
Maivern Instruments Nordic Oy Kumitehtaankatu, 5 04260, Kerava, Asianajotoimisto OY Finfand
Malvern Panalytical BV. Lelyweg 1, 7602EA, Almelo Netherlands
Malvern Panalytical GmbH Nirnbergerstr 113, D 34123 Kassel Cermany
117 Flanders Road, Westborough Massachusetts 01581-1042 USA

Malvern Panalytical Inc

Maivern Panalytical Limited

Erigma Business Park, Grovewood Road, Malvern,
Waorcestershire, WRIG IXZ

England & Wales

Mailvern Panalytical Nordic AB Vallongatan 1, 752 28 Uppsala Sweden

Malvern Panalytical 5.A.S. 22 Avenue Descartes, BP-45, Limeil-Brevannes, France
Cedex, 94454

Matvern Panalytical srl Via Cadore 21, Lissone, 20851 italy

Maivern Panalytical [Pty) Lirnited Private Bag 4015, Ferndale, 2160 South Africa

India

Malvern-Aimil Instruments Pvt Limited

Naimex House, A-8, Mohan Co-operative Industrial Estate,
Mathura Road, New Delhi - 10044

Millbrook European Holdings Limited

Millbrook, Bedford, MK45 23Q

England & Wales

Millbrook Proving Ground Limited

Millbrook, Bedford, MK452)Q

England & wales

Millbrook Revolutionary Engineering GmbH Hermann-Kdhi-Strasse 7. 28199 Bremen Germany
Millbrook Revolutionary Engineering Inc 36865 Schooleraft #, Livonia, Michigan 48150 UsA
Millbrook Special Vehicles Limited Millbrock, Bedford, MK45 2]G England & Wales
Milibrook US Inc 36865 Schoolcraft #1, Livonia, Michigan 48150 USA
MPG Finland Oy cfo Titisakut Oy, Kauppakatu 12, Kuopio, 70100 Finland
Nanosight Limited Enigma Business Park, Grovewood Road, Malvern, England & Wales
Worcestershire, WR14 1XZ

NDC Technologies GmbH Im Tiefen See 45, Darmstadt, D-64293 Germany
NDC Technologies Limited Bates Road, Maldon, Essex, CM9 S5FA England & Wales
NDC Technologies S A. Rue H Goossens 16, B-4431 Loncin Belgium
NDC Technologies SARL 2 Chemin du Moulin 94450 Limeil-Brévannes France
NDC Technologies S.R.L. Corso Cristoforo Colombo, 33 Gallarate (VA), CAP 21013 Italy
NDC Technologies, inc. 8001 Technolggy Bivd, Dayton, Ohio 45424 usa
Newport Electronics Limited One Omega Drive, Northbank, Irlam, Manchester, M4 4 5BD England & Wales
Novisim Limited Jarman Way, Royston, Hertfordshire, SGB SBQ England & Wales
Omega Engineering GmbH Daimierstrasse 26, Deckenpfrong, 75392 Cermany
QOmega Engineering Limited* One Omega Drive, Northbank, irlam, Manchester, M44 SBD England & Wales

USA

Omega Engineering, inc,

800 Connecticut Avenue, Norwalk, Connecticut 06854

Omega Technologies Limiteg*

One Omega Drive, Riverbend Techneology Centre, Northbank,
Irlam, Manchester, M&4 SBD

England & Wales

PANatytical Limited'

Enigma Business Park, Grovewood Road, Malvern,
Worcestershire, WRI4 1IXZ

England & Wales

Particle Measuring Systems Germany GmbH Im Tiefen See 45, Darmstadt, D-64293 Germany
Particle Measuring Systems Limited"$ 2nd Floor, One Hood Street, Newcastle Upon Tyne, NE161Q England & Wales
Particle Measuring Systems S.R.L. Via di Grotte Portella, Frascati, Rome, 34-00044 Italy
Particle Measuring Systems, Inc. 5475 Airport Boulevard, Boulder, Colorado 80301 USA
Peakdale Chemistry Services Limited One 5t Peter's Square, Manchester, M2 3DE England & Wales
Peakdale Inc N7 Flanders Road, Westbarough, Massachusetts 01581 USA
Peakdale Molecular Limited One 5t Peter's Square, Manchester, M2 3DE England & wales
Pixirad Imaging Counters S.r.i. Via Cadore 2], Lissone, 20851 italy
Red Lion Controls BV, Softwareweg 9, 3821 BN Amersfoort Netherlands
Red Lion Controls, Inc. 20 Willow Springs Cir, York Pennsylvania 17406 USA
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Notes to the Company Accounts continued

15. Related undertakings continued

Country of
Name Ragistered address incorporation
ReliaSoft India Private Limited New Ne6.16, Oid No.21, Cenotaph Ist Street, Alwarpet, India
Chennai, 600 018
Revokstionary Engineering {Shanghai) Co Ltd Room 316, 3/F, Building 1, No.169 Shengxia Read and No. 1658 China
Zhangdong Road, Shanghai Filot Free Trade Zone
SAL Food Limited One St Peter's Square, Manchester, M2 3DE England & Wales
SAL Laborateries Limited 6%a Killyman Street, Moy, Dungannon, BT717EA Northern lreland
Scientific Analysis Laborateories Limited One St Peter's Square, Manchester, M2 3DE England & wales
Servomex BV. P O Box 406, 2700 A¥, W Dreeslaan 436, 2729 NK Zoetermeer Netherlands
Servomex Company 12300 Dairy Ashford Road #400, Sugar Land, Texas 77478 UsSA
Servornex GmbH Im Tiefen See 45, Darmstadt, D-64293 Germany
Servomex Group Limited Jarvis Brook, Crowborough, East Sussex, TNG 3FB £ngland & Walaes
Servomex 5.A. 23 Rue de Roule, Paris, 75001 France
Specuraseis Canada nc. 1900, 520 - 3rd Avenue S.W., Calgary, AB, T2P OR3 Canada
Spectraseis inc 10815 Woaodedge Dr, Houston, Texas 77070 USA
Spectraseis I5M LLC? 10815 Woodedge Dr, Houston, Texas 77070 USA
Spectris Australia Pty Ltd Suite 2, 6-1) Talavera Road, PO Box 349, North Ryde, Australia
New South Wales 2113
Spectris Canada Inc. 4921 Place Qlivia, St-Laurent, Quebec, H4R 2V6 Canada
Spectris China Limited Room 0B, 20/F., China Shipbuilding Tower, 650 Cheung Sha Wan Hong Kong
Road, Cheung Sha Wan, Kowloon, Hong Kong
Spectris Co., Ltd. Tstkasa-machi Bldg, 2-6 Kanda Tsukasa-machi, Chiyoda-ku, Japan
Tokyo, 101-0048
Spectris Denmark ApS Skodsborgvej 307, Naerum, DK-2850 Dermark
Spectris Do Brasil Instrumentos Eletronicos Lida.  Rua Laguna 276, Sante Amaro, CEP 04728-000, Sac Paulo 5P Brazil
Spectris Finance Ireland Dasignated Activity 12 Merrion Square, Dublin 2 Iretand
Company*
Spectris Finance UK Limiteds Heritage House, Chyrch Road, Egham, Surrey, TW20 9QD England & Wales
Spectris Funding BV. Lelyweg 1, 7602EA, Almelo Netherlands
Spectris Germany GmbH im Tiefen See 45, Darmstadt, D-64293 Germany
Spectris Group Holdings Limited* * Heritage House, Church Road, Egharn, Surrey, TWZ0 9Q0 England & wales
Spectris Hoidings Inc. 117 Flanders Road, Westborough Massachusetts 01581 USA
Spectris Inc. 117 Flanders Road, westborough Massachusetts 01581 USAa
China

Spectris instrumentation and Systerns
Shanghai Ltd.

Bidg 9,No. 88, Lane 2888, HuaNing Road, MingHang District,
Shanghai, 2008

Spectris Korea Ltd.

7th & 8th F), SH Energy Building, 16-6 Sunae-Deng, Bundang-Gu,

Seongnarn-City Kyeonggi-Do

Korea, Republic of

Spectris Mexi¢o, 5. De RL.De CV.

Av. Pedro Ramirez Vazquez No. 20013, Nivel 1, Col. Valle Oriente,
San Podvo Gorze Gardia, C41 LLLAGY

Mexico

Metherlands

Spectris Netherlands BV Lelyweq 1,7602 £A Almelo

Spectris Netherlands Cooperatief W.A M Lelyweg 1, 7602 EA Almelo Netherlands
Spectris Pension Trustees Lirnited® Heritage House, Church Road, Egham, Surrey, TW2093QD England & Wales
Spectris Pte Ltd 31 Kaki Bukit Road 3, Techlink #04-05/07, 517818 Singapore
Spectris Taiwan Limited 13F-1, No. 128, Sec. 3, Min Sheng E. Road, Taipei Taiwan
Spectris Technologies Private Limited 202 Anarkali Complex, Jhandetwalan Extension, Opp Videcon India

Tower, New Delhi 110 055

Spectris UK Holdings Limited?® Heritage House, Church Road, Egham, Surrey, TW20 9QD England & Wales
Spectris US Holdings Limited HMeritage House, Church Road, Egham, Surrey, TW20 9QD England & Wales
Systern Level Simulation Inc. 25 Villa Perico, Rancho Santa Margarita, CA 92688 United States
Test World Holding Oy Testitie 1, 9980 Ivalo Finland
Test world Oy PL167, Nellimintie 569, lvalg, 99801 Finland
The Omnicon Group Inc 50 Enginears Rd, Hauppage, New York 11768 USA
Vi-grade AG Neustrasse 2, 8590 Romanshorn Switzarland
Vi-grade CmbH Im Tiefen See 45, Darmstadt, D-64293 Germany
Vi-grade Japan Ltd. 9-1, Shinjuku-ku 3 Chome, Shinjuku, Tokyo Japan
Vi-grade Limited Heritage House, Church Road, Egham, Surrey, TwW20 SQD England 8 wales
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Country of
Name Registered address incorporatian
Vi-grade s.rl. Via Galileo Galilei 42, 33010 Tavagnacco (Udine) Italy
Vi-grade Systems GmbH im Tiefen See 45, Darmstadt, D-64293 Germany
Viscotek Europe Limited Heritage House, Church Road, Egham, Surrey, TW20 920D England & Wales
Zhyhai Ormec Instrurnents Co,, Ltd Floor 1-3, No 9 RAD Main Building, Keji No 1 Road, Scientific & China

Technical Innovation Sea Shore, New High Tech Zone, Zuhai,
Guangdong Province

Notes
1 Wholly owned by Spectris plc.
2 ALLE, Cooperatief and other non-equity owned entities listed are wholly owned and controlled by Spectris pic directly or indirectly through

intermediate holding companies.
3 Share capital consists of ordinary shares and deferred shares.
4 Share capital consists of ordinary shares and redeemable shares.
5 In liquidation.
Joint venture
Spectrns shares Joint control of the EMS Bruel & Kjaer joint venture with Macquarie Capital under a shareholders’ agreement.
Voting interests in EMS Bruel & Kjaer Holdings Pty Ltd ('EMS’) are shared equalily between Spectris and Macquarie Capital,
and each of Spectris and Macquarie Capital has equal board representation. Spectris and Macquarie Capital each holds 45%
of the ordinary share capital of EMS with the remaining 10% held by third parties. The 10% ordinary share capital held by third
parties does not have any voting rights or board representation, however it does entitle the holder to received dividends or
other distributions. Folfowing an announcement made on 17 January 2020 and subject to the completion of a number of
conditions, Spectris plc announced that the EMS Brue! & Kjaer joint venture will be soid in its entirety to Envirosuite, an
envircnmental management technology company, listed on the Australian Securities Exchange.

Country of
Narye Registered address Incorporation
EMS Bruel & Kjaer Holdings Pty Ltd Levels 11 &12, 432 St Kilda Road, Melbourne, Victoria 3004 Australia

UK registered subsidiaries exempt from audit
UK incorporated subsidiaries which have taken exemption frorm audit per Section 4794 of the Companies Act 2006 for the

year anred 3t Necemhier 2004 are listerl helow

Spectris plc will guarantee the debts and liabilities of the companies claiming the statutory audit exemption at the balance
sheet date of £12.6m in accordance with Section 479C of the Companies Act 2006. The Company has assessed the
probability of loss under the guarantee as remote. )
Registerad number

Namhe

Agenda 1 Analytical Limited 5903736
Aquila Biomedical Limited SC393914
Bruel & Kjaer UK Limited 4066051
Brugl 8 Kjarr VTS Limited 1239186
Burntield Limited 1522736
Eg_qtcpt Lite Yeiences [Liscovery) Limited Y hbh's
Concept Life Sciences [Envirenmental Consulting Limited 9046580
Concept Life Sciences {Holdings) Limited 9046553
Concept Life Sciences {Labaratories) Limited 9046586
Concept Life Sciences {Midco) Limited 9046568
CXR Biosciences Limited SCRNTI6S
HEM United Kingdom Limited 1589921
Millsrook European Holdings Limited 9657741
Nanosight Limited 4599525
NDC Technologies Limited 630998
Novisim Limited 5269664
Omega Engineering Limited 2564017
Omega Technologies Limited 2775272
spectris UK Holdings 1 irmnitead 4451903
Spectris US Holdings Limited 4451883
Vi-grade Limited 8245242
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Additional information

Shareholder information

Shareholder Information
Financial calendar

Trading updata 22 May 2020
Annual General Meeting 22 May 2020
Record date for 2019 final and special dividends 22 May 2020
Record date for participation in the Dividend Reinvestrment Plan for the final and special dividends 22 May 2020
Ex-dividend date for final and special dividends 26 May 2020
2018 final and special dividends payable 22 June 2020
2020 half-year resuylts 4 August 2020
Trading updateé 21 noverniben 2020
2020 full-yeer results February 2021
Company Secretary Major shareholders
M‘ark_ Serfizd ) Percentage of
Email: cosec@spectris.com issued share
. capitat at
Head of Corporate Affairs Shareholdingin 31 December
Siobhén Andrews Spectris shares 2019
Email: investeot relations@spectris.com MFS Investment Management 14,058,957 1212
Registered office Fidality Management & Research 8,682,229 7.49
Spectris plc BlackRock 8,795,242 5.00
Heritage House Marathon Asset Management 5,708,763 4.92
Church Road Liont Asset M. 5,407,507 4,66
Egham iontrust Asset Management 407, .
Surrey Vanguard Group 5,204,584 4.49
TW209QD Sprucegrove Investment Managemeant 4,871,887 4.20
England UBS Asset Managemant 4,336,261 3%
Tel: +44 (01784 470470 Royal London Asset Management 3,556,286 3.07

Email: info@spectris.com
Company registered in England, No. 2025003

Auditor
Deloitte LLP

Bankers
Royal Bank of Scotland Plc

Solicitor
Slaughter and May

Brokers
Jefferies Hoare Govett
1 P Morgan Cazenove

Financial PR adviser
FTI Consulting

Registrar
Equiniti Limited
Aspect House
Spencer Road
Lancing

West Sussex
BN99 6DA

The registrars provide a range of shareholder services

cnline at www. shareview.co.uk
Share price information

The Company's ordinary shares are listed on the London
Stock Exchange. The latest share price is available via the

Company's website at www.spectris.com
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Email news service

To receive details of press releases and other announcements
as they are issued, register with the mail alert service on the
Company's website at www.spectris.com.

Cautionary statement

This Annual Report may contain forward-locking statements.
These staterments can be identified by the fact that they

do not refate only to historical or current facts. Without
jimitation, forward-looking staterments often use words such
as anticipate, target, expect, estimate, intend, plan, goal,
believe, will, may, should, would, could or other words of
similar meaning. These statements may (without limitation)
relate to the Company's financial pasition, business strategy,
plans for future operations or market trends. No assurance
can be given that any particular expectation will be met or
proved accurate and shareholders are cautioned not to place
undue reliance on such statements because, by their very
nature, they may be affected by a number of known and
unknown risks, uncertainties and other important factors
which could cause actual results to differ raterially from
those currently anticipated. Any forward-looking staternent
is made on the basis of information available to Spectris pic

" as of the date of the preparation of this Annual Report. All

forward-looking statements contained in this Annual Report
are qualified by the cautionary statements contained in this
section. Qther than in accordance with its legal and
regulatory obligations, Spectris plc disclaims any obligation
to update or revise any forward-looking staterent centained
in this Annual Report to reflact any change in circumstances
or its expectations.
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